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CORPORATE PROFILE

Fubon Bank (Hong Kong) Limited (“Fubon Bank”) is a wholly owned
subsidiary of Fubon Financial Holding Co., Ltd. (“Fubon Financial
Holdings”), one of the largest financial holding companies in Taiwan.
Fubon Financial Holdings is now the only Taiwanese financial institution
with banking subsidiaries in China, Taiwan and Hong Kong. Fubon Bank
operates 21 branches and 1 Securities Services Centre in Hong Kong,
providing a wide range of financial services encompassing consumer and
wholesale banking, wealth management, financial markets, securities
brokerage and investment services. Fubon Bank holds an A-2 short-term,
BBB+ long-term rating from Standard & Poor’s. The rating reflects Fubon
Bank’s strong capitalization, good liquidity and sound asset quality.

KEY MILESTONES IN 2018

The Board of Directors approved the sale of all the Bank’s shares held in
FB Investment Management Limited to Fubon Securities (BVI) Limited in
May 2018. The transaction was completed on 12 February 2019.

Fubon Bank completed the transfer of all the Bank’s shares in Xiamen
Bank Co., Ltd to its parent company, Fubon Financial Holdings, in
November 2018.

Fubon Bank completed the redemption of USD193 million undated non-

cumulative subordinated Additional Tier 1 Capital Securities from Fubon
Financial Holdings in December 2018.
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ACCOLADES

Sky Post
Banking & Finance Awards 2018
— Excellence Award for Green Banking Service

U Magazine
U Magazine Travel Awards 2018
— The Most Favourite Travel Credit Card

Tiptop Consultants Ltd.

Tiptop Service Award

— Persistently Outstanding Service Company (2017-2018)
— Persistently Outstanding Service Outlet (2017-2018)

LACP
2017 Vision Awards Annual Report Competition
— Gold Award

Bank of New York Mellon
Straight Through Processing Award

Employees Retraining Board
ERB Manpower Developer Award Scheme
— Manpower Developer

Environment Bureau, HKSAR Government
Charter on External Lighting — Platinum Award

Environmental Campaign Committee
Wastewi$e Certificate

Energywi$e Certificate

Hong Kong Green Organisation

Hong Kong Council of Social Service
10 Years Plus Caring Company Logo
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

EEFEZMBEHRE

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—E-N\F ZT—+tF ZE—XRF ZET-hF ZTNF
For the Year (HK$ Million)
2FE(EEBT)
Profit before Taxation
BB A A ) 924 693 708 613 555
Profit for the Year
FE A 823 583 635 522 481
At Year End (HK$ Million)
RELEB(BE®ERT)
Total Equity
T ARRR 14,024 14,368 11,373 10,806 10,416
Total Assets
BERRE 102,787 98,484 95,648 90,993 83,860
Advances to Customers less Impairment Allowances
BEPEFURBIERE 47,699 47,583 43,319 42,495 40,322
Customer Deposits
BEP1FHR 68,248 62,068 63,564 58,385 52,664
Financial Ratios (%)
BT EE = (%)
Return on Average Equity
G PR AN Bl R 5.61 4.81 5.72 4.92 518
Return on Average Assets
T B ERHRE 0.82 0.60 0.68 0.60 0.62
Total Capital Ratio
AR X 20.60 19.42 17.02 16.62 17.96
Average Liquidity Maintenance Ratio/
Average Liquidity Ratio ()
I REN I MRS R RENE 2L E () 54.83 50.52 48.49 45.82 48.56
Loan-to-deposit Ratio
Bt ® 66.73 73.25 64.78 69.40 75.09
() The average liquidity maintenance ratios for 2015-2018 were " —E—RE-Z-N\FFHRMUEES

computed in accordance with the Banking (Liquidity) Rules effective
from 1 January 2015, whereas the average liquidity ratio for 2014
was computed in accordance with the Fourth Schedule of the
Hong Kong Banking Ordinance as in force immediately before 1
January 2015. The ratios for 2015-2018 are, therefore, not directly

comparable with the ratio for 2014.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

FEFEZHBEE
Profit for the Year Advances to Customers less Impairment
FERF Allowances
B F BRI ERE
HK$ Million HK$ Million
AEATT AEAET
823
47,583 47,699
635 42,495 43,319
583 40,322
| I I
481
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
Total Assets Customer Deposits
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
~EEFR

SHAREHOLDER

100% — Fubon Financial Holding Co., Ltd.

AUDITORS

KPMG

COMPANY SECRETARY

Juliana CHIU Yuk Ching

REGISTERED OFFICE

Fubon Bank Building
38 Des Voeux Road Central
Hong Kong
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Ming-Chung (Daniel) TSAI

Chairman

Aged 62. Mr. Tsai joined Fubon Group in 1981. He is currently
the Chairman of the Fubon Group and Chairman of Taiwan
Mobile Co., Ltd. Mr. Tsai is also the Standing Director of Taipei
Fubon Commercial Bank Co., Ltd. and Director of Fubon
Bank (China) Co., Ltd. Mr. Tsai has extensive experience in
banking and telecommunication services, as well as land
development, construction management and building leasing
business. He holds a Master of Law Degree (1979) from
Georgetown University and a Bachelor of Law Degree (1978)
from National Taiwan University. Mr. Tsai is the elder brother
of Mr. Ming-Hsing (Richard) Tsai. He became a Director of the
Bank in February 2004.

Ming-Hsing (Richard) TSAI

Vice Chairman

Aged 61. Mr. Tsai joined Fubon Group in 1983. He is the
Chairman of Fubon Financial Holding Co., Ltd. and Fubon Life
Insurance Co., Ltd. Mr. Tsai has over 30 years of experience
in financial and insurance businesses. He is also currently
the Director of Taiwan Mobile Co., Ltd. Mr. Tsai was the
Chairman of Fubon Securities Co., Ltd. Mr. Tsai holds a
Master of Finance Degree (1981) from New York University
and a Bachelor of Business Administration Degree (1979) from
National Taiwan University. Mr. Tsai is the younger brother of
Mr. Ming-Chung (Daniel) Tsai. He became a Director of the
Bank in February 2004.

Raymond Wing Hung LEE

Executive Director

Aged 69. Mr. Lee was appointed Chief Executive Officer and
Managing Director of the Bank in May 2012. He is the Director
of Fubon Life Insurance (Hong Kong) Company Limited. Mr.
Lee is a professional accountant and veteran banker with
over 40 years of extensive international banking experience
acquired both locally and overseas. He was the Executive
Director and Chief Financial Officer of the BOC Hong Kong
(Holdings) Limited (“BOCHK?”) from 2004 to 2009. Before
joining BOCHK, he was a Director, Alternate Chief Executive
and Managing Director of CITIC International Financial
Holdings Limited and a Director and Chief Executive of The
Hong Kong Chinese Bank. He was seconded by the Bank
of New York in 1992 to serve as a Director and Alternate
Chief Executive of Wing Hang Bank and had remained in that
capacity until 1999. While serving in Wing Hang, Mr. Lee was
concurrently a Senior Vice President and Managing Director
of the Bank of New York, where he had served in different
capacities in New York and Toronto since 1982. Prior to 1982,
he had worked for Bank of America for 8 years in various
positions in different Asian and North American cities. Mr. Lee is
a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.
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Jerry HARN Wey-Ting

Non-Executive Director

Aged 57. Mr. Harn joined Fubon Group in 2005, currently
serves as President and Director of Fubon Financial Holding
Co., Ltd. He has over 29 years of experience in financial
business. Prior to this, he was the Executive Vice President of
Chinatrust Commercial Bank and Vice President of Citibank
Taiwan. Mr. Harn is also the Director of Fubon Bank (China)
Co., Ltd. and Taipei Fubon Commercial Bank Co., Ltd. Mr.
Harn holds a Master of Business Administration Degree from
The Ohio State University. He became a Director of the Bank
in January 2014.

Eric CHEN Sun-Te

Non-Executive Director

Aged 64. Mr. Chen is the Chairman of Taipei Fubon
Commercial Bank Co., Ltd. He has over 38 years of
experience in the banking and financial industry. Mr. Chen is
also a Director of Fubon Financial Holding Co., Ltd. and Fubon
Bank (China) Co., Ltd. He is also an Independent Director of
China Telecom Corporation and Uni-President China Holdings
Ltd. Prior to joining Fubon Group, Mr. Chen was the President
of North Asia and Greater China of Fullerton Financial
Holdings, a Temasek wholly owned subsidiary, President of
Chinatrust Financial Holding Co., Ltd. (how known as CTBC
Financial Holding Co., Ltd.) and Country Corporate Officer
for Citigroup, Taiwan. Mr. Chen received a Master Degree
in Business Administration from University of Missouri and a
Bachelor Degree in Political Science from National Chengchi
University. Mr. Chen became a Director of the Bank in June
2016.

Roman CHENG Yao-Hui

Non-Executive Director

Aged 53. Mr Cheng is President and Standing Director of
Taipei Fubon Commercial Bank Co., Ltd. He is also the
Chairman of Fubon AMC Co., Ltd. and Director of Fubon Bank
(China) Co., Ltd. Prior to that, Mr. Cheng was the Director and
Chairman of Strategy Committee of Haier Consumer Finance
Co., Ltd., Senior Vice President of Fullerton Financial Holdings
Pte Ltd. (subsidiary of Temasek Holdings (Private) Limited) and
Chief Executive Officer and Director of Fullerton Investment
& Credit Guarantee Co., Ltd. and Fullerton Commercial
Factoring Co., Ltd. Mr. Cheng holds a Master of Business
Administration Degree and a Bachelor Degree in Diplomacy
from the National Chengchi University. He became a Director
of the Bank in March 2018.
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Robert James KENRICK

Independent Non-Executive Director

Aged 71. Mr. Kenrick was a partner of the international
accounting firm KPMG from 1988 to 1998 and a member of
the Financial Accounting Standards Committee of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants from 1992 to
2001. He holds a Master of Arts and Bachelor of Arts Degree
(1969) from Cambridge University and is a Certified Public
Accountant (Hong Kong) and Chartered Accountant (England
& Wales). He became a Director of the Bank in April 1999.

Hung SHIH

Independent Non-Executive Director

Aged 64. Mr. Shih is an Independent Non-Executive Director
of Fubon Life Insurance (Hong Kong) Company Limited.
He was the Director of China Renaissance Capital Advisors
Limited and Managing Director of China Renaissance Capital
Investment Limited. Prior to this, he was also the Managing
Director and the China Country Head of UBS AG. Mr. Shih
holds both a Master of Business Administration Degree (1982)
and a Master of Law Degree (1980) from the University of
Michigan, as well as a Bachelor of Law Degree (1976) from
National Taiwan University. He became a Director of the Bank
in February 2004.

Peter PANG Sing Tong

Independent Non-Executive Director

Aged 63. Mr. Pang joined the Hong Kong Monetary Authority
(“HKMA”) as Executive Director (Banking Policy) in 1994
and was appointed as Executive Director (Monetary Policy
and Markets) in 1996. Mr. Pang was seconded to the Hong
Kong Mortgage Corporation and assumed the position of the
Chief Executive Officer in 1997 till 2004. He was appointed
as Deputy Chief Executive of the HKMA from July 2004 to
February 2016. Mr. Pang holds a Bachelor Degree of Social
Science from The University of Hong Kong and a Master
Degree in Management from the Stanford University. He
became a Director of the Bank in April 2018.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
SNREEE

Raymond Wing Hung LEE
Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director

(Biographical details are set out on page 7)

Henry WANG Hao-Jen

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Wang joined the Bank in April 2009 and currently oversees the Bank’s
financial control, legal, corporate communications, as well as enterprise project
management functions. Mr. Wang is an experienced professional with over 25
years of related work experience. Before joining the Bank, Mr. Wang has held
various senior positions in marketing and finance fields in The Chase Manhattan
Bank, N.A., Banque Nationale de Paris, Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing
Company, Ltd., Taiwan Mobile Co., Ltd. and Primax Electronics Co., Ltd. Mr.
Wang obtained an MBA degree from Rutgers, The State University of New Jersey,
U.S.A. and a BA degree in Finance, National Taiwan University.

Carmen YIP Ka Man

Executive Vice President and Head of Retail Banking Group

Ms. Yip joined the Bank in January 2000 and overseeing the Bank’s Retail
Banking Group, including Channel and Wealth Management, Consumer Finance,
Securities Services and Retail Credit Approval and Administration. Ms. Yip held
management positions in local and foreign banks, gaining expertise in retail
banking. She obtained a Bachelor of Social Sciences degree from The University
of Hong Kong.

Henry NG Yuk Hang

Executive Vice President and Head of Institutional Banking Group
Mr. Ng possesses extensive experience in commercial and corporate banking as
well as credit administration and risk assets management. Before joining the Bank,
he was Senior Vice President, Private Banking Credit Head of DBS Bank. He also
held key positions in various banks including Bank of New York — Hong Kong
Branch, Wing Hang Bank, Citic Ka Wah Bank, East West Bank — Hong Kong
Branch, and DBS Bank. Mr. Ng obtained a Master of Business Administration
degree from The City University, London and is an Associate of The Hong Kong
Institute of Bankers.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
SREEE

(Front row, from left) Carmen Yip, Executive Vice President & Head of Retail Banking Group; Raymond Lee, Chief Executive Officer & Managing Director;
Henry Wang, Executive Vice President & Chief Financial Officer

(Back row) Henry Ng, Executive Vice President & Head of Institutional Banking Group
(RIHEAAE) HITRIRHFRTERTHLIEE RS  TRERRESALEFIS - UTRIBBRUBRIEA
(&5 BITRIARER R MM RITE LB R
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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In 2018, Hong Kong’s economy grew at an above-trend pace of 3.0%
after registering growth of 3.8% in 2017. The economy was supported
by the continued strength of external and domestic demand, but slowed
moderately towards the end of the last quarter after a year filled with
financial market volatility and global trade conflicts. Retail sales grew
by 8.7% in 2018 supported by a 11.4% growth in visitor arrivals and a
20-year-low unemployment rate of 2.8%.

Consecutive interest rate increases by the U.S. Federal Reserve (“Fed”)
together with its policy to trim the size of the balance sheet, led to rising
volatility in the financial markets throughout the year. The Hang Seng
Index fell by nearly 14% in 2018. Rising USD LIBOR also pushed up the
USD/HKD exchange rate to the Hong Kong Monetary Authority’s weak-
side Convertibility Undertaking of HK$7.85, leading to a near HK$100
billion capital outflow from Hong Kong over the year. All these factors led
to a prime rate increase by local commercial banks in September 2018,
marking the first time in a decade.

Adding to the unfavourable market environment was the lingering trade
conflict between the U.S. and Mainland China. Uncertainties over the
U.S.-China trade relationship and the Fed policy outlook also dampened
the local property market, business sentiment, and trade performance
towards the end of the year.

Despite the challenging market environment, Fubon Bank (Hong Kong)
Limited (“the Bank”) reported a record-high net profit of HK$823 million
for the year ended 31 December 2018, representing a year-on-year
increase of 41% as compared with 2017. Net interest income rose
by 12% to HK$1,356 million, benefiting from the improvement in the
net interest margin and the growth in average interest-earning assets.
The encouraging performance was attributable to our enhanced risk
management and effective cost control measures while achieving
sustainable growth.

Meanwhile, our dedicated efforts in promoting green finance and
providing outstanding services gained significant recognition during the
year, including “Banking & Finance Awards 2018 — Excellence Award
for Green Banking Service” from Sky Post; “Tiptop Service Award —
Persistently Outstanding Service Company” from Tiptop Consultants
Ltd.; “Hong Kong Green Organisation” from the Environmental Campaign
Committee; and “Charter on External Lighting — Platinum Award” from
the Environment Bureau of the HKSAR Government, to name a few.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
FRER

Our strategic initiative to grow our corporate banking business generated
a 5% loan growth in 2018, with higher interest and fee income as
compared with 2017. We continued to deepen existing customer
relationships and acquire new customers by identifying their needs for
products and services and providing customized financial solutions that
best suit their needs. Leveraging on Fubon Group’s extensive network
and foundation in the region, we also heightened our cross-selling efforts
with other entities in the Bank and collaborated with Fubon Bank (China)
and Xiamen Bank. Moreover, we continued to broaden our product
offering and strengthen our digital platform to provide more convenient
financial services for our corporate customers.

Regarding our consumer finance business, our “Travel Companion”
credit card continued to gain recognition from our customers. As a
result, our Fubon Credit Card received the “U Magazine Travel Awards
2018 — The Most Favourite Travel Credit Card” from U Magazine. Our
change of business focus from mass market to pre-selected customer
segment also proved to be successful as the new loan booking for the
personal loan business increased by 13% as compared with 2017. Also,
loan impairment losses dropped to a record low. Our merchant acquiring
business again delivered good performance in 2018. The introduction
of a pioneering self-service card acceptance kiosk not only fostered our
relationships with existing merchants but also enabled us to recruit more
new strategic merchant partners. Furthermore, our Merchant Receivable
Financing business had a 21% year-on-year growth in the size of new
financing.

Last year, we continued to upgrade and digitize our retail banking
service channels to enhance customer engagement and we received
encouraging results. The number of Personal Internet Banking and
Mobile Banking customers increased by 19% and 76%, respectively,
as compared with 2017. Going forward, we will continue to improve our
digital banking platform to meet the changing needs of our customers
and provide them with more efficient and convenient banking services.

We continue to make investment in information technology (“IT”)
and infrastructure to enhance our digital capabilities. A new 5-Year
Strategic IT Plan was developed last year to be in line with the Fintech
development in the financial industry and also to offer more innovative
and easy-to-use banking services to our customers. In addition
to promoting green finance, the Bank is committed to building a
sustainable workplace and is taking various measures to lighten its
ecological footprint. We remain dedicated to our staff by providing
career enhancement opportunities, ongoing support and a caring work
environment so that they can reach their full potential.
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The growth momentum of the global economy is anticipated to be slow
in 2019. Despite the optimism over the U.S.-China trade deal, the tariff
measures introduced by the U.S. and the Chinese governments over last
year will keep impacting the global trade and business sentiment. Also,
the Fed'’s previous tightening actions will continue to restrict the growth
of the U.S. and global economy. Nevertheless, the Bank will remain
its prudent growth strategy to capitalize on new opportunities and
maintain sustainable growth. We will also follow our customer-centric
approach and provide our customers with reliable and high-quality
financial services. We will continue to leverage on the inherent strengths
of our parent company, Fubon Financial Holdings, to strengthen our
relationships with customers and to capture business opportunities
across the region. We remain committed to become the preferred
banking partner of our customers and focus on delivering the exceptional
“Fubon Experience”.

Ming-Chung (Daniel) Tsai
Chairman
April 2019
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REPORT
THRRRE

We are pleased to report that 2018 was a milestone year for Fubon Bank
(Hong Kong) Limited (“the Bank”). We surpassed HK$100 billion in total
assets and also achieved record earnings. These achievements came
against a backdrop of volatility and uncertainty in the global economy.
Market conditions were unpredictable and changed quite abruptly
without much notice. Needless to say, 2018 was another challenging
year for the banking industry in Hong Kong.

We generally saw slower growth in the Chinese market, rising
geopolitical concerns, and an ongoing trade conflict between the U.S.
and Mainland China. The pace of U.S. interest rate rises slowed but
with the uncertainty surrounding the global economy, the local property
market dampened in the second half of 2018. Business sentiment
turned negative with the stock market exhibiting rapid swings.
Hong Kong Dollar interest rates fluctuated amid a currency market that
saw exchange rates hitting the upper limit of the pegged regime.
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Despite the challenging operating environment, the Bank and its
subsidiaries (“the Group”) reported a record-high net profit of HK$823
million for the year ended 31 December 2018, representing a year-on-
year increase of 41% as compared with 2017. Return on average equity
and return on average assets were 5.61% and 0.82%, respectively,
compared with 4.81% and 0.60% in 2017. We also saw the completion
of a number of important events such as the transfer of the Xiamen
Bank Co., Ltd (“Xiamen Bank”) investment to our parent company,
Fubon Financial Holding Co., Ltd. (“Fubon Financial Holdings”) and the
redemption of all our outstanding undated non-cumulative subordinated
Additional Tier 1 Capital Securities (“Additional Tier 1 Capital Securities”)
ahead of schedule.

Net interest income rose by 12% to HK$1,356 million, driven by both the
widening of the net interest margin and the growth in average interest-
earning assets. The net interest margin widened by 10 basis points to
1.53%, benefiting from the continued yield improvement in the loan and
debt securities investment portfolios which offset the increase in deposit
costs. Average interest-earning assets grew by 4%, mainly underpinned
by the expanding loan portfolio.

Net fee and commission income declined by 9% to HK$289 million. The
decline was primarily due to the decrease in insurance services and unit
trust services income by 23% and 17%, respectively. On the other hand,
trade finance services and credit card services income recorded growth
of 42% and 6%, respectively.

The increase in other operating income was mainly the result of lower
mark-to-market losses on foreign exchange swaps. In spite of an
increase in total non-interest income of 3% to HK$331 million, the
percentage of non-interest income to total operating income declined to
19.6%.

Operating expenses slightly increased by 1% to HK$965 million.
However, with a higher operating income, the cost-to-income ratio
dropped to 57.2% compared with 61.8% in 2017. During the year, the
Group exercised effective cost control measures including optimizing
its branch network and streamlining its workflow. In the face of the
emerging Fintech era, the Group has remained committed to deploying
resources and investing in the development of innovative information
technology.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REPORT
TRARES

Total impairment losses amounted to HK$21 million, including a HK$49
million charge on loans and advances and a HK$28 million write-back
on other assets. The amount decreased significantly by 71% when
compared with 2017, reflecting the sound asset quality of the Bank. The
impaired loan ratio was 0.49% at 2018 year-end, with a coverage ratio of
95%. Effective from 1 January 2018, the new expected credit loss model
in Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard 9 replaced the incurred loss
model in Hong Kong Accounting Standard 39 for the measurement of
impairment losses of the Group.

The Group’s share of profits from Xiamen Bank increased by 14% to
HK$270 million in 2018. In June 2018, the Bank acquired approximately
99 million ordinary shares of Xiamen Bank at a price of RMB4.80 per
share. The Bank’s shareholding in Xiamen Bank increased to 19.95%
upon completion of the transaction. The Bank recognized a gain on
bargain purchase of HK$70 million, which represented the excess of
Xiamen Bank’s fair value of RMB5.41 per share over the purchase
consideration for the acquired shares.

On 30 November 2018, the Bank completed the disposal of its entire
shareholding in Xiamen Bank to Fubon Financial Holdings as part of
the Fubon Group’s realignment initiative. The Bank recorded a loss on
disposal of HK$119 million which was partially offset by the reversal of
deferred tax of HK$57 million.

The Group’s total assets rose by HK$4 billion, or 4%, to HK$103
billion as at 31 December 2018. Gross advances to customers were
HK$48 billion, almost the same level as at the 2017 year-end. Customer
deposits, on the other hand, attained a double-digit growth of 10%
to HK$68 billion, maintaining the strong deposit portfolio considered
necessary in times of market uncertainty. Taking into account the trade
bills and certificates of deposit issued by the Bank, the loan-to-deposit
ratio decreased from 73.2% at 31 December 2017 to 66.7% at 31
December 2018.

On 27 December 2018, the Bank redeemed US$193 million of Additional
Tier 1 Capital Securities from Fubon Financial Holdings. Despite this
capital reduction, the Group’s capital and liquidity position remain strong
and healthy. As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s common equity tier
1 capital ratio and tier 1 capital ratio had risen to 16.75%, and the total
capital ratio to 20.60%, which was well above statutory requirements.
The average liquidity maintenance ratio also stood at a comfortable level
of 54.83%.
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Looking ahead, there are signs that global economic growth momentum
may continue to weaken. Uncertainty in interest rates, trade conflicts
between the U.S. and Mainland China, and Brexit will continue to affect
economic growth and market sentiments in 2019. Against a backdrop
of a rapidly changing market environment, we will continue to pursue
our customer-centric and prudent growth strategy to strengthen our
local franchise. We understand the diverse financial needs of our
customers and will continue to focus on developing customized financial
solutions for customers from all walks of life. We are proud to be able
to provide our customers with the unique “Fubon Experience” which
emphasizes our culture of “customer first”. We continue to enhance
customer engagement by widening our range of products and services,
diversifying our service delivery channels, and upgrading our service
outlets and digital platforms. To align with our customer-centric strategy
and in support of the Hong Kong Monetary Authority’s Smart Banking
initiative, we remain committed to investing in information technology
and infrastructure, aiming to enhance the digital customer experience
by launching more secure and convenient financial services. Our brand
image will reflect our business philosophy and commitment to be a
market leading institution in both customer care and service quality. As a
member of the Fubon Group that also emphasizes fithess and health, we
will renew our branding campaign in 2019 featuring the renowned Hong
Kong snooker player Miss Ng On Yee.

As always, we believe in a robust risk management and compliance
culture, and we will continue to adopt the best practices in these
areas. We maintain good credit quality through proactive credit risk
management. Supported by the extensive business network and
leveraging the competitive advantages of the Fubon Group, we continue
to closely collaborate with our parent company and other affiliates to
capitalize on new opportunities arising in the region and to establish
ourselves as a quality and trustworthy banking partner.

We believe our staff are our most valuable asset. We remain committed
to promoting a caring working environment that supports personal
well-being and career advancement. As a good corporate citizen,
we continue to support a variety of corporate social responsibility
programmes in the community.

Finally, | would like to express my sincere thanks to our management
team and staff for their continual dedication and contributions to the
Bank, which anchored our strong performance in 2018. | also wish to
express my gratitude to our Chairman, the Chairman of Fubon Financial
Holdings and to the entire Board of Directors whose on-going guidance
and support led us to our success. Together, we deliver the unique
“Fubon Experience” and create value for all of our stakeholders.

Raymond Lee
Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director
April 2019
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It was a mixed year for the corporate banking business in 2018. The
year began with the global economy maintaining its expansion trend
boosted by persistent low interest rates, optimistic economic growth,
and vibrant stock and property markets. But market sentiment started
to turn negative in the second quarter due to the U.S.-China trade
war. With the U.S. introducing additional tariffs on a wide range of
products from Mainland China and threatening to cast the net even
wider, the U.S.-China trade conflict started to weigh on global economic
sentiment. The U.S. also reversed its qualitative easing monetary policy,
and coupled with the tightening of capital outflows in Mainland China,
we witnessed credit contraction and corrections in the major stock
markets. Both Mainland China and Hong Kong reported slower growth
in the second half of the year and the Hong Kong property market had
weakened moderately since mid-2018. The situation in Mainland China
and Hong Kong began to stabilize towards the end of the year after
China began easing its policy to stimulate the economy. For the whole
year, the local banking industry recorded 4.4% loan growth, much lower
than the 16.1% in 2017.

Corporate loan demand in the first half of 2018 was stable and it
provided our Corporate and Commercial Banking teams with a good
opportunity to improve the quality and profitability of our corporate loan
portfolio. After experiencing strong 24% growth of the Bank’s corporate
loan portfolio (including trade bills and factoring) in 2017, our Corporate
and Commercial Banking teams were commissioned to elevate the
average return of the loan assets while maintaining steady growth in the
loan book. Through good planning, teamwork, perseverance and hard
work, we succeeded in improving the portfolio’s risk adjusted return and
customer profitability by increasing various service fee income through
the cross-selling of our products. Together with our new initiatives
to acquire new customers, the Bank’s Corporate Banking business
achieved very satisfactory performance. Our Corporate Banking business
achieved 5% loan growth in 2018.

The Bank remained focused on SMEs in Hong Kong. Our Commercial
Banking team continued to utilize internal cross referrals and structured
marketing programmes to intensify our efforts to expand our business
in this market segment. Introduction of new and innovative loan and
deposit products strengthened our appeal to local entrepreneurs and
ensured customer satisfaction with our signature “Fubon Experience”.

We continued to be active in both the primary and secondary syndication
markets allowing us to actively manage the Bank’s loan portfolio.
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While maintaining a profitable customer portfolio was important, we
did not compromise our commitment to a customer-centric approach
through effective communication and attention to our customers’
interests. We strived to deepen our relationship with existing customers
by taking time to understand their needs and to customize our services
to satisfy their expectations.

Credit quality was not compromised by our goal to expand our business.
Through tightened selection criteria and pricing parameters, we
managed to ensure a high quality loan portfolio.

Revenue from corporate customers reported satisfactory growth in
2018. Interest income increased nicely due to higher spreads and higher
average loans outstanding, which also brought about record-breaking
credit fee income. Our strategy to focus on fee income produced good
results. Fee income generated from trade finance, treasury, corporate
wealth management and general banking services all reported better
than expected results.

The Bank’s corporate e-banking, Fubon Business Online, will receive
further enhancement in early 2019, such as our Online FX services. Our
full-scale cash management e-banking service will be made available to
our corporate customers around the same time.

Mainland China was adversely affected by the U.S.-China trade war and
the increasing protectionism. Coupled with a deleveraging policy, China
recorded the worst stock market performance in the region in 2018 and
slower GDP growth. However, cross-border and import/export trade
remained strong until year-end. There was still a stable demand for
loans, particularly from the real estate sector and the non-bank financial
institutions sector. To better balance our China exposure, we focused
our marketing efforts on State-Owned Enterprises and industry market
leaders with good and sustainable track records. Leveraging on Fubon
Group’s unique status of being the only Taiwanese financial institution
with banking subsidiaries in Mainland China, Taiwan and Hong Kong,
we can provide comprehensive and wide-ranging cross-border banking
services to our customers in trade-related and general banking areas
through our close cooperation with Fubon Bank (China) and Xiamen
Bank.

Our Financial Institution (“FI”) team continued to focus on building
deposit relationships with non-bank financial institutions and successfully
achieved healthy deposit growth in 2018. Another important role of our
Fl team is to provide credit support to the Bank’s investment activities.
Following the expansion of the investment book of the Bank, the FI team
allocated more resources to support the Bank’s investment transactions
and worked closely with our Financial Markets Division. The FI team also
played a major role in coordinating the collaboration efforts with Mainland
banks including Fubon Bank (China) and Xiamen Bank.

Looking forward to 2019, we remain cautiously optimistic and will
keep closely monitoring market developments. We will stay focused on
growing our loan portfolio and enhancing the portfolio’s returns while
maintaining a high quality loan book. Through good teamwork and
collaboration with other members of the Fubon Group, we aim for a
good start to the year and achieve even better results in 2019.
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CONSUMER FINANCE

Alongside our mortgage services, credit cards remained a cornerstone
product in our consumer finance line-up in 2018. For the credit card
business, we entered a new era of contactless technology. Customers
can now enjoy speedy and convenient payment with our newly launched
contactless credit card. To keep pace with market developments in
Fintech, we are soliciting strategic online promotion offerings from
renowned travel brands in Hong Kong, including Hotels.com, Toyota
rent-a-car and Hong Kong Airlines. This approach aims to reinforce our
positioning as the “Travel Companion”, while at the same time delivering
the best product value to our customers. Due to our efforts, we recorded
11% year-on-year growth in e-commerce card spending by MasterCard.
Furthermore, our travel platform continued to gain appreciation and
recognition from our customers. This resulted in our Fubon Credit Card
receiving the “U Magazine Travel Awards 2018 — The Most Favourite
Travel Credit Card” from U Magazine.

To further strengthen our Bank’s unique “Fubon Experience” programme,
we successfully switched our focus in the personal loan business from
mass market to existing bank customers with known financial needs
and credit behaviour. As a result, new loan booking for the personal
loan business increased by 13% year-on-year, while loan loss charge-
offs dropped to a record low. Looking ahead, we anticipate even more
fierce competition due to Fintech developments in digital banking and
the arrival of virtual banks in Hong Kong. To meet the challenges, we
will continue to enhance our products and customer experience by
developing more online services including online applications for loans
and credit cards. As always, our prudent risk culture will ensure that our
loan quality remains at a good level.

This was another fruitful year for our merchant acquiring business as
demonstrated by the smooth integration of innovative technology with
our traditional merchant services. The introduction of a pioneering
self-service card acceptance kiosk significantly helped cement our
relationship with existing merchants, and it also acted as a powerful
anchor to recruit new strategic merchant partners. The overall result
for the merchant business was very encouraging, highlighted by 13%
year-on-year growth in sales volume and 13% year-on-year growth in
revenue. Our e-commerce business recorded significant growth, and we
will continue to explore various emerging payment methods to further
strengthen the relationship with our merchant customers and enhance
our service solutions.
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In recent years, another core business initiative for the merchant
acquiring business has been Merchant Receivables Financing. The
21% year-on-year growth in new financing reflected the success of this
unique product. We will continue to focus on the growth of this exclusive
and tailor-made financial service to support the expansion plans and
other business needs of our merchant customers by providing quick and
simple short term funds.

The early 2018 property market in Hong Kong continued on an uptrend
carrying over from 2017. However, the market turned soft starting in the
third quarter and negative market sentiment began to surface towards
the end of the year. This was partially due to the U.S.-China trade war
and the first upward adjustment of the prime rate in Hong Kong since
2006. Declining investment from Mainland Chinese buyers also affected
the market. Overall, the private domestic property price still recorded
year-on-year appreciation of 1.9% in 2018 according to the Property
Market Statistics from the HKSAR Government. At the same time,
mortgage loan demand remained strong in the market. With the surge of
HIBOR in the second half of 2018, banks revised pricing strategies and
the portion of customers who opted for the Prime Rate Mortgage Plan
increased. Despite that, our mortgage lending business remained one of
our important consumer financing products and one of the key drivers
for the Bank’s interest income.

With the evolution of Fintech in the banking industry and the introduction
of virtual banks in Hong Kong, technological innovation and development
will undoubtedly be the focus for the consumer finance business in 2019.
Changes in customer needs and behaviour will only heighten the need
for banks to adopt a Fintech approach to digital solutions. In recognition
of these market changes, we will strive to enhance our customer
experience through online and mobile platforms to provide smart and
secure banking services.

CHANNEL MANAGEMENT

Understanding that many of our customers desire one-stop wealth
management services, we enhanced our branch network and began
optimizing our brand into a one-stop financial platform through different
marketing programmes and customized barrier-free arrangements. In
addition to our physical channels, we focused on enhancing our digital
banking channels. As the digital revolution continues to impact the
banking industry and change customer behaviours and needs, digital
product innovation and development with Fintech and other digital
solutions are priorities for our Retail Banking business. In 2018, we made
great strides in promoting various digital banking services. The number
of Personal Internet Banking and Mobile Banking customers increased
by 19% and 76% year-on-year respectively, and the proportion of
customers opting for electronic statements rose by 311%. Travel
Insurance transaction conducted through digital channels increased by
316% year-on-year.

The Bank is committed to improving the quality of its services to bring a
better “Fubon Experience” to our customers. As part of our efforts, we
formed a new customer services team composed of Financial Planning
Managers to provide more personalized and dedicated services to
customers who need professional financial planning services. As product
specialists, our Financial Planning Managers formulate individualized
strategic financial plans for our customers to help them achieve their
personal financial management goals and to make prudent financial
decisions for their future. We have received very favourable comments
from our customers.
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To meet and even exceed customer expectations on service quality
in 2018, we devoted a lot of resources on training existing staff and
nurturing our talents. Intensive internal and external training programmes
were offered to our staff, not only to strengthen their sales skills but also
to enhance their level of competency when serving our customers. It is
mandatory for our sales staff to attend diversified training sessions to
enrich their knowledge and awareness of retail wealth management and
compliance. We believe that our training programmes are important to
promote a sound bank culture. Moreover, to expand the talent pool, we
have started to recruit fresh university graduates as Personal Banking
Manager Trainees. This programme grooms professionals within the
Bank so we can meet the increasing demand for wealth management
services. Resources have been allocated to cultivate the trainees as our
reliable and professional sales force.

Going forward, to keep up with the ongoing developments in Fintech,
we will continue to enhance our digital banking platform to offer more
efficient, secured and convenient banking services for customers on
the move. Our new foreign exchange service offers a wide choice of
foreign currencies on digital platforms. The Faster Payment System and
biometric software token will be available through our digital banking
platform in the first half of 2019. We will also continue to introduce digital
enhancements to provide high-quality, dynamic and professional wealth
management services to our valued customers.

INVESTMENT & INSURANCE

The market was full of uncertainties in 2018. With the anticipation of
more interest rate hikes and an uncertain U.S.-China trade war, there
was a drop in the insurance business. Financial assets including foreign
currency, equity, bond and commodities lost value during the year
for the very same reasons. It is predicted that the financial market will
continue to fluctuate in 2019 as market sentiment remains cautious.
Understanding that many of our customers are eager to de-risk, the
Bank is exploring the potential market for low-risk investment products.
Moreover, with growing concerns for the retirement needs of Hong
Kong'’s ageing population and the Hong Kong Government’s promotion
of an annuity scheme, we have launched five insurance products
providing regular income pay-outs to cope with market demand.

On the support side, we officially launched a new Insurance System
in September 2018 to automate the sales and reporting work flow.
It is a highly efficient and stable platform that can effectively support
the insurance business by providing real-time data for analysis and
managerial monitoring. The Insurance System has substantially
increased operational efficiency and information accuracy, which in turn
has enhanced the customer experience and improved staff productivity.

Fintech is a hot topic within the banking industry. The Bank will enhance
its investment and insurance services by developing more Fintech
solutions. Robo-advisory, online commentary and online trading are our
focuses of development. More and more online investment services will
be launched in 2019 to assist our customers to achieve their wealth
management goals.
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SECURITIES SERVICES

[t was a volatile year for the global stock market in 2018. The vulnerability
in the market was due to U.S.-China trade tensions, the tightening of
global financial conditions, and the slower-than-expected growth in
Mainland China. Although the benchmark stock market index, Hang
Seng Index, hit a record high of around 33,000 points in January, it
fell by 14% and closed at 25,845.7 points at the end of the year. Due
to these difficult conditions and the pessimistic market sentiment, our
trading turnover and brokerage decreased slightly in 2018.

Our most significant success in 2018 was the considerable growth of
the Fubon Mobile Stock Trading business. Technology and mobility
are increasingly shaping consumer behaviours. While we already have
a very user-friendly mobile trading platform, we will continue to pursue
enhancements in our automated channels to cater to the investment
needs of our customers and to stay at the forefront of the securities
business in Hong Kong.

We understand how critical it is to maintain a sound cyber security
system. To address this very important issue, we formulated a well-
defined cyber security strategy for our security trading platform. In 2018,
we developed a series of cyber security enhancement measures, among
which was the introduction of the Two Factor Authentication.

To achieve a higher product penetration rate, we launched an Investment
Account e-Statement Registration Promotion Programme in 2018 to
support the e-Statement Services offered by the Bank. The promotion
not only boosted the utilization of the programme, but it also gave us the
chance to seize more business opportunities.

We also launched a number of ongoing marketing campaigns to
ensure that we maintain our market position in response to heightened
competition. We will place more emphasis on online marketing and
social media platforms in addition to the traditional advertising channels.
In-house seminars and investment education workshops will also
be organized frequently to share market insights and maintain good
relationships with our customers.

The outlook for the Hong Kong stock market in 2019 will remain
uncertain. It is difficult to predict the outcome of many global events such
as Brexit, ongoing trade wars and various Chinese economic initiatives.
However, we will continue to develop diversified securities products
to enable our customers to fully embrace the “Fubon Experience”. At
the same time, we will continue to entrench our position in the market
and become widely acknowledged for our caring customer service and
proactive innovation.
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FINANCIAL
MARKETS
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The financial markets in 2018 reflected a volatile global economy with
political uncertainties and trade tensions. The world’s two largest
economies, the U.S. and Mainland China, ignited a trade war in July
2018 by imposing punitive tariffs on each other’s imports. In addition
to companies’ revenue and labour markets, the impact of the trade
war extended to the equity market. The Hang Seng Index closed at
25,845.7, representing a year-on-year loss of 14%, after hitting a 10-year
high at the beginning of the year. In terms of the interest rate market, the
U.S. Federal Reserve (“Fed”) raised the Federal Funds Rate four times
in 2018, from 1.50% to 2.50%, and nine times since the Fed began
normalizing rates from near-zero three years ago. Later in the year,
the Fed suggested that there could be fewer rate hikes in 2019 than
originally anticipated. Members of the Federal Open Market Committee
generally predicted that two rate hikes will occur in 2019. However, this
forecast may change as the development of the global economy is far
from certain.

The rise in funding costs resulting from multiple increases in U.S. Dollar
(“USD”) interest rates in 2018 exerted pressure on local commercial
banks to maintain their net interest margin. However, banks in Hong
Kong only marginally increased their benchmark lending rate just once.
The Bank announced an increase in its prime rate from 5.25% to 5.5%
on 28 September 2018, and concurrently adjusting its Hong Kong Dollar
(“HKD”) Saving Rate from 0.05% to 0.25%.

INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO

In 2018, we continued to follow a prudent investment strategy. The
overall credit rating of our investment portfolio remained at “A” while we
maintained an appropriate diversification in terms of geography, currency
and industry. Our portfolio yield improved by 63 basis points compared
with the end of 2017. Furthermore, our investment portfolio sustained
an upward trend of net interest income for the year despite a widening
credit spread in 2018.

Looking forward to 2019, the U.S. is expected to turn cautious about
further tightening of its monetary policy. Moreover, bond yields in the
U.S. may continue to rise with the Eurozone following a similar but more
moderate trend.
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The Bank aims to mitigate the impact of a volatile interest rate market
environment with effective hedging tools. Observing global political
developments is a key part of portfolio risk management in the coming
year. In addition, credit risk exposure will be closely monitored by using
various predictive tools and using sensitivity analysis that will assist us to
take timely mitigating measures in the event of market turmaoil.

TREASURY MARKETING AND
FLOW INVESTMENT PRODUCTS

In the first half of 2018, the world economy exhibited steady growth.
Under this overall positive investment environment, we saw strong
momentum in various areas, including structured deposits, equity-linked
products, currency-linked products, foreign-exchange-related products,
as well as bond investment services for both corporate and wealth
management customers.

Towards mid-year, with the upward pressure in interest rates, customers
turned more cautious over international trade and longer-term global
economic and financial trends. Our professional Treasury Product and
Marketing Team provided solutions and services to our customers in
meeting their financial needs in a volatile market. Also, we provided
timely market information and insights to assist our customers in the
formulation of financial plans to address their currency exposure and
interest rate risks.

Despite the bearish equity market and volatile FX market, our Flow
Investment Products Team managed to mitigate customer risk with
diversified treasury products and generated stable income for our Bank.

We will strive to expand our product range while deepening our
understanding of the needs of our customers to satisfy various customer
needs and their risk appetite.

FUNDING AND INTEREST INCOME

Since rises in the Federal Fund Rate were generally not fully reflected in
the HKD interest rate market, the widening of interest rate gaps between
the HKD and USD attracted carry trade activities and prompted funds to
flow gradually from HKD to USD. The USD/HKD exchange rate touched
the weak end of its pegged range on 20 occasions during 2018.
Meanwhile, the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (“HKMA”) intervened in
the currency market to defend the local currency by buying HKD while
selling USD. The HKMA Closing Aggregate Balance dropped from
HK$179.79 billion to HK$78.58 billion throughout the year.

Confronted by the shifting global economic outlook of 2018, the funding
costs of the Bank were comparatively stable while maintaining a healthy
liquidity maintenance ratio. The Bank’s funding position was strong and
our deposits base increased by 10% to HK$68.2 billion.

It is likely that 2019 will be another challenging and volatile year due to
ongoing political and economic uncertainties around the world. With the
support and guidance of the Bank’s core values, we will ensure that our
customers’ interests stay at the forefront of our business activities while
maintaining a risk profile that is within the parameters of our risk appetite.
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RISK MANAGEMENT
& COMPLIANCE
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RISK MANAGEMENT

Market Risk Management

In 2018, the U.S.-China trade conflicts weighed on global economic
sentiment and activities, as evidenced by corrections in the major stock
markets and slower global growth. The U.S. Federal Reserve continued
to normalize monetary policy, encouraging international capital outflow
from emerging markets to the U.S. and heightening volatility which
rippled through various asset classes. The market outlook for 2019 is
uncertain. Dissonance over trade between the U.S. and its major trading
partners, the complex Brexit negotiation, and slowing global economic
growth are the major challenges impacting the world’s economies. The
Bank will continue to closely monitor and manage the risks associated
with its trading and investment activities to ensure the associated risks
are within the Bank’s tolerance level.

Credit Risk Management

The credit conditions in Hong Kong and Mainland China began to show
signs of deterioration in 2018 on the back of weakening global demand
and tighter liquidity. The Bank’s credit quality managed to improve
over the year, thanks to our prudent credit underwriting standards and
robust portfolio review and stress testing practices. We believe that
these measures will enable the Bank to be better prepared for any
unanticipated financial market turmoil and safeguard against asset quality
deterioration.

In 2019, we will continue to strengthen our credit risk management
through systems development and expand the use of decision and
stress testing models. A new credit origination system will be developed
to streamline the credit process, provide quantitative analysis and
improve data integrity. Together with the phased-in launch of our new
Core Banking System, the Bank will be equipped with a more efficient
and environmentally-friendly credit risk management system.

Operational Risk Management

In 2018, the Bank actively managed and controlled operational risk within
target levels that are consistent with our risk appetite. We reviewed our
business continuity plans and tested our contingency systems during
the year. Also, we continued to evaluate and ensure the effectiveness
of the underlying operational and system controls for new products and
innovative services. Going forward, the Bank will continue to promote the
culture of risk management awareness and to maintain a sound internal
control environment.
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COMPLIANCE

The Bank has put in place a holistic and effective compliance risk
management framework to ensure our activities are conducted in
accordance with applicable laws and regulations. This framework is
constantly reviewed and reported to our Board for endorsement and
approval. Our Compliance framework also covers adherence to sound
practices to ensure the fair treatment and appropriate protection of
customer interests. As a responsible financial institution, we are not
only committed to enforcing a robust compliance framework but also
to promoting a sound compliance culture that is well entrenched and
understood by all levels of our organization.

To further bolster and maintain the professional competency of our
compliance staff in 2018, we continued to conduct our accredited
training courses on Compliance and Anti-Money Laundering as part of
our comprehensive and structured training programme. Our programme
ensures that our staff acquire the latest knowledge and updates related
to the regulatory requirements and best market practices. Our in-house
accredited compliance training programme, “Certificate in Banking
Compliance”, continues to provide valuable opportunities for staff to
enhance their professional standards in the areas of banking compliance
knowledge, skills and mindset.

To ensure the continuous enhancement of staff competency, the
Bank has participated actively in the licensing regime of the Enhanced
Competency Framework on Anti-Money Laundering (“AML”) and
Counter-Terrorist Financing (“CFT”). All our practicing staff have met the
qualification requirements of this competency framework and have been
certified as AML Professionals. Our practicing staff are committed to
continuous professional development to maintain up-to-date knowledge
of the latest AML/CFT risks, compliance developments, and local and
international regulatory requirements and standards.

To strengthen the overall effectiveness of our AML risk management
systems and controls, the Bank has been working with selected
business partners to develop a new customer risk assessment scoring
system to further enhance our customer due diligence process. We are
targeting to launch the new customer due diligence system in late 2019.
An enhanced transaction monitoring system is also in our AML pipeline
upon completion of the Core Banking System Replacement Project of
the Bank.

Several years ago, we established a Business Compliance Department
to conduct regular internal control self-assessments. This process allows
us to very quickly identify weaknesses in our regulatory compliance and
enables us to take timely remedial measures. Also, this Department
is used as a training ground for both new and existing employees to
develop their compliance awareness and culture. Staff are therefore
periodically rotated both in and out of the Department. Our Business
Compliance Department staff serve as a sustainable talent pool of
highly qualified compliance personnel to meet the critical demand for
compliance professionals in our Bank.

In 2019, we will continue to take concrete steps to strengthen the
effectiveness and efficiency of our compliance function and stay vigilant
to the ever-changing compliance and anti-money laundering regulations.
By providing comprehensive compliance training, enhancing our AML risk
management systems and cultivating a strong compliance culture, we
will be able to stay abreast of not only the new regulatory requirements
and best market practices, but also the latest developments in AML and
CFT threats.
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INFORMATION
TECHNOLOGY &
OPERATIONS

ENRREE

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

The Bank is deep into its 5-Year Strategic Information Technology Plan
(“IT Plan”) and has completed several important components. These
include the installation of a new generation treasury system called
Summit, and the completion of the first phase of the Core Banking
System (“CBS”) Replacement Project. Also as part of the IT Plan, the
Bank has continuously and consistently upgraded its digital banking
services, including the enhancement of our electronic delivery channels.
These IT initiatives are important to ensure that the “Fubon Experience”
remains an iconic symbol of excellence among our customers. In parallel
with the improvement of our electronic services, we are ensuring that our
customers continue to enjoy secure and worry-free e-services.

With the imminent licensing of virtual banks by the Hong Kong Monetary
Authority, the Bank has taken comprehensive measures to ensure that
we can compete effectively in the new banking environment in Hong
Kong. In this regard, we undertook several initiatives in 2018 and have
planned for more in 2019. Together all the new initiatives in our IT Plan
will eventually move us to a total virtual banking environment.

The completed initiatives in 2018 included the launching of the first
stage of new Faster Payment System, the establishment of an Open
API platform, a token-based 2-factor authentication system, enhanced
e-banking and e-security services, and eKYC for an electronic on-
boarding service. Also the features and functionalities of the Bank’s
corporate e-banking system were revamped to enable us to provide
faster and better service to our corporate customers. With the
technological improvement of our branch banking services, we will be
able to provide a unique experience to our customers based on the
combined advantages of virtual banking and physical branch banking.
Our goal is to offer electronic and virtual banking services that will match
or exceed those offered by the new virtual banks, yet we will continue
to offer highly sophisticated branch banking services that cannot be
matched by virtual banking entities.

Meanwhile, the Bank is completing the replacement of its CBS Phase
2 and has successfully implemented the Customer Information File
module, which allows the Bank to have a 360-degree view of customer
information. The replacement of the retail deposit and loan module is the
second phase of the CBS and is planned for completion by mid-2019.
The final phase of the CBS Replacement Project will be completed after
the implementation of the corporate loan and Central Liability module.
The new CBS will enable us to launch new products faster and react
to market changes more effectively and in a more timely manner, an
important prerequisite of successful customer service.

Fintech is rapidly changing the landscape of the financial industry in
Hong Kong and around the world. Therefore, as part of our continual
efforts to ensure we are at the forefront of the industry, we reviewed
and updated our last 5-Year Strategic IT Plan in 2018. The new Plan
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places even more focus on virtual banking services, cyber security and
the customer experience. In 2019 and over the next several years we
will launch such features such as biometric software token, an upgraded
Faster Payment System, an expanded Open API platform, and enhanced
virtual banking product offerings. The new IT Plan will also enhance the
Bank’s IT hardware and software infrastructure through optimization
and replacement of the remaining legacy systems. It will include an
expansion and enhancement of the Bank’s data warehouse to enable us
to begin using big data to develop business initiatives and programmes.
The IT Plan also calls for the development of automated Enterprise Work
Flow (“EWF”) Projects to simplify and automate work processes that
will allow the Bank to optimize its cost structure. The Bank has already
identified several business processes that will be transformed by EWF.
Eventually, EWF will be applied to essentially all business processes so
that costs can be better managed. Our vision for EWF will involve the use
of a digital document imaging system with the ultimate goal of turning
our operations into a paperless, highly automated working environment
with user-friendly delivery channels. Last but not least, the new IT Plan
will also enable our IT infrastructure team to provide support for business
intelligence when formulating business plans and marketing strategies.

OPERATIONS

For the 12t consecutive year, the Bank was ranked as one of the top
performing banks among 500 banks in the Asian region and won the
Straight Through Processing Award in 2018. The Award was presented
by our USD clearing bank, the Bank of New York Mellon, in recognition
of the excellent quality of our fund transfer operations. This reflected
the consistency of our operational competency and the maturity of
our operations. While the Bank’s CBS Replacement Project was in full
swing, this did not distract from our operational efficiency. We continued
to record very low non-fraud related operational losses with 2018 being
an uneventful year.

During the year, we channelled a good part of our resources to support
the CBS Replacement Project. While we expect our operational
efficiencies will improve as a result of this project, we are looking forward
to the EWF Project that will almost immediately follow the completion
of the CBS project. We anticipate that our operations will be a big
beneficiary of any work flow improvements brought about by the EWF.

While 2018 was an uneventful year from an operational perspective and
our operations unit provided the usual high quality support and services
to our customers, we continued to focus on the “go green” aspect
of our business operations that is now very well entrenched into our
corporate culture. With the effort of all our staff, the overall consumption
of energy, electricity, printing and paper has consistently decreased
over the past few years. In 2018, the Bank again joined the World Wide
Fund for Nature’s Earth Hour and obtained the Charter on External
Lighting Award — Platinum Award. We also signed a Service Pledge
to the Environmental Protection Department committing to follow their
Green Event Guidebook to reduce waste and paper consumption and
to use recycled materials when organizing/sponsoring events. We were
also able to renew our Wastewi$e Certificate and thus obtained the
Hong Kong Green Organisation title from the Environmental Campaign
Committee. In recognition of the Bank’s contribution to environmental
protection by introducing the iBranch concept and paperless office, as
well as implementing a series of technical projects for savings in printing
and paper, the Bank was presented with the Banking & Finance Awards
2018 — Excellence Award for Green Banking Service by Sky Post in
2018.

To provide our customers with more efficient and effective services,
we will continue to review and streamline the operational process to
smoothen our daily operations. The Bank’s various Fintech initiatives
should also improve both the quality and efficiency of our daily operations
and customer support.

In the years ahead, we will continue to maintain our efforts to sustain our
high quality performance and our commitment to enhancing the “Fubon
Experience”.
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PEOPLE
DEVELOPMENT

AATEERRE

In 2018, we heightened our efforts to develop a comprehensive
framework for the promotion and sustainability of a bank culture based
on best market practices. This effort was spearheaded by our Board
and is now part of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee’s
responsibilities. To cultivate a good bank culture, the Bank established
codified guidelines to govern the implementation of related measures.
As part of this, we conducted a Staff Opinion Survey (the “Survey”) with
the help of an external consultant to solicit staff feedback on a variety of
topics including areas relating to bank culture. The results of the Survey
spurred Management to make some changes to our Human Resources
(*HR”) policies and staff benefits. The Bank will continue to promote
appropriate staff behaviour and monitor the development of a proper
corporate culture through various established channels.

To achieve the Bank’s long-term business mission, we continuously
examine our ability to attract and retain good employees. As a normal
practice, we conduct surveys and engage outside consultants to provide
us with a benchmark of the HR practices and employee compensation
structures in the industry to ensure that the Bank remains a competitive
employer. In 2018, we reviewed our staff benefits to meet staff
expectations and align with market practices. Medical benefits for junior
to middle level staff were enhanced to provide better coverage and
protection. Annual leave entitlements for these staff were also increased,
while paid maternity leave was increased to 14 weeks with effect from
January 2019.

With the implementation of the Enhanced Competency Framework
introduced by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (“HKMA”) on various
banking disciplines, such as Cyber Security, Anti-Money Laundering and
Counter-Terrorist Financing, Treasury Management and Retail Wealth
Management, our employees assigned to these areas are required to
possess the necessary professional qualifications. There are associated
recruitment costs and additional training expenses that increase from
time to time. However, the improved proficiencies of our staff will ensure
our Bank can provide the best services to our customers and protect
their interests while adhering to all regulatory requirements.
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We made a significant effort in 2018 to enhance staff competency
according to the HKMA'’s Enhanced Competency Framework, with
the focus on Treasury Management and Retail Wealth Management.
Our staff were either grandfathered in based on pre-set criteria or
they attended accredited training provided by recognized professional
institutes. The Bank continued to put great emphasis on people
development that helps to raise the standard of our customer services
and leads to a stronger compliance and corporate culture.

In 2018, the Bank arranged 293 training courses with increasing
emphasis on adopting online e-Learning platforms by internationally-
acclaimed providers such as Thomson Reuters and EdX. These
e-Learning programmes included control and risk focused training like
Anti-Money Laundering and Personal Data Privacy. Another important
area of training focused on the rapidly emerging technologies in Fintech.
We introduced Fintech training to re-skill our information technology staff
so they can keep abreast of the latest developments in the digitization
of banking. Furthermore, in support of nurturing Fintech talent in Hong
Kong, we joined the Fintech Career Accelerator Scheme of HKMA,
and we are in the process of training a university student hired as full-
time intern to work on an internal Fintech project for a year. Also, the
pioneering “Certificate in Banking Compliance” programme, which
was conducted by seasoned, professional consultants in the banking
industry, continued to serve the purpose of training qualified control, risk
and compliance staff.

The well-being of our employees is one of the key issues that we focus
on year after year. In 2018, the Bank organized a series of Lunch &
Learn sessions for staff, covering such topics as Periodontal Health, DIY
Handmade Soap, DIY Terrarium, Green Living Tips and Aurora Borealis
Watching Travel Tips. We will also be working with medical groups
to host programmes and workshops to raise awareness about the
importance of a healthy and happy lifestyle.

On the social front in 2018, our Staff Recreation Committee maintained
its efforts to provide enjoyable and relaxing activities like Coffee-Tasting,
Movie Night, Disneyland Visit and BBQ Night, which were all well-
received by staff. Also, as part of the Overseas Joint Team with Fubon
Bank (China) and Xiamen Bank, our Fubon Basketball Team earned
second runner-up honours in the Basketball Competition of Fubon
Financial Holdings.

The Bank continued to streamline and automate HR-related processes
to enhance effectiveness and efficiency. Our e-Leave and e-Quiz
systems were further enhanced in 2018 by providing more automated
functions for our staff. In particular, the e-Quiz system now includes the
new function of e-Declaration. This allows the administrator to handle
tasks electronically, such as the annual declaration of adherence to the
Code of Conduct, resulting in the reduction of manpower and paper
usage. The e-Attendance Record System was also launched in the
second quarter of 2018 to facilitate the attendance taking procedure
for training classes and promote our paperless initiative. In addition,
we introduced the Digital Document Management System in 2018 to
strengthen data security and improve the ease of document retrieval.

For the seventh consecutive year, the Bank received the “Manpower
Developer” status award. It was given by the Employees Retraining
Board (“ERB”) under their ERB Manpower Developer Award Scheme to
recognize the Bank’s continuous achievements in staff development.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL

RESPONSIBILITY
ERAFEE

Fubon Bank is committed to business development that is environmentally
and socially sustainable. We believe that embedding environmental,
social, and governance best practices into our strategies and operations
will enable us to be in business for the long term, gain greater respect
from our stakeholders, and enhance the value of our franchise.

Sustainable development starts with a resilient and inclusive society. We
strive to create a lasting positive impact through our business operations
and our commitment and contributions to a wide range of community
activities and initiatives, particularly in the fields of education, social
welfare, and the environment.

We regard our employees as our greatest asset and we believe we
have to invest in their training and development so we can continue to
effectively meet the needs of our customers and community. This also
offers our employees the opportunity to reach their full potential. Equally,
we endeavour to provide a safe and healthy working environment for our
employees and encourage them to strike a healthy work-life balance.

The Bank’s Staff Recreation Committee organizes sports and
recreational activities for our employees and their family members to
enhance staff wellness and strengthen family bonds. Also our volunteer
team provides our employees with invaluable opportunities for personal
growth and contributing to the local community.

Charitable works have always been a cornerstone of our commitment
to the community. We also encourage our employees to join the Bank’s
efforts and to gain a greater understanding of the challenges facing
our society. In this regard, together our staff, management and Board
contributed and helped build our Bank into a caring organization with
a strong culture that recognizes and understands our corporate social
responsibilities (“CSR”). The table below showcases our dedication to
CSRin 2018.

BRRIT-EBINEERE R SR ER
REEBDRE - HEE - SRR - wgkE
ANREEZRABARITORE R EE - &
FEHRMERPARER  BEERNHEEE - X
RAARITHEE

AHERRAN—EAEARENEBERNEE -
FBRBPINERE @M&&ﬁﬂxﬁﬁﬁéﬁ
R 8I(FRIREHE - WA KIREFE)
W%%ﬂﬁ@'ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%%%mﬁﬁ%
@,

BMREIRRBEBENEE - HMRAR /W
REPRMENFFR - RIFILEL B THFII
REREHIRE - EOBEPE TR D HFMF
HERE - R - RABN BB TRHZ2MEE
B TERIR - WEkE B TR TIFRAE 2
By o

AITHETRAEZEGERETI NERARN—
ZIMEE RFELEE - 1RITE THRE RN
SR ERE - tbHN - RFIER TEB N RAIT
BTREFEARKR R /AT EELTREE
BHe -

BETE-EEAMTHHERAGRNER © 7
e E T2EARTTHRETIE - AR T#H
SFEHME - EATTET - BEEERES
GHESHT  ATKRAT —EA=ZRERER
SEEXEHWBEERE - TRERTRMAN
2018 MG REEE T EMIEHNE T -

Activity
TEE
March Skip Lunch Day
3A RN 1E [#1] BH
March Earth Hour 2019
3H HER—/]\EFF2019
June Visiting Underprivileged Families and the Elderly cum
68 Handicraft Workshop
[ERR « ERE] — RNEWRARENBERE
August The Community Chest Green Day
8AH NI S
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The Community Chest of Hong Kong
BERTmE

World Wide Fund
tREAESE

Windshield Charitable Foundation
RiEEES

The Community Chest of Hong Kong
YN



CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
TEEEEF

Month Activity
A& TEED
September Moon Cake Donation Programme Windshield Charitable Foundation
94 [AWE ] AgtiEEsTE LEEERES
Annual Gathering with Po Leung Kuk Children —
Sep;e)%nber Dialogue in the Dark & Upcycling Workshop £ EQ%KUK
REBRERLH — BREPEFERE+ARBETED )
September Po Leung Kuk Charity Raffle 2018 Po Leung Kuk
9A RRBZEEEH2018 RESB
November Donation to Po Leung Kuk Po Leung Kuk
114 RRBESEHEY REB
November Sponsor at the Inaugural Annual Charity Golf Tournament Foodlink Foundation Limited
1A ERANEEEED REOERSBARAA
November Sponsor at “Banana Fallout Fever” Stewards
118 [EXQ@AH| BREAEEERFEEDY BEMTTE
December Barbecue Activity with Children from Underprivileged Families Windshield Charitable Foundation
128 [E ]| ZAEELt — BB R ER ZRIEL LSS

The Bank is committed to re-assessing its business operations to create
more efficient processes and manage our environmental impact. We
monitor the environmental footprint of our office buildings and branches,
and make a continuous effort to reduce energy, paper consumption and
waste.

We invest in enhancing our technology to integrate environmental
considerations into our product and service offerings. By adopting
the use of cutting-edge technology, transactions become a paperless
workflow, generating less waste and reducing environmental impact,
which not only benefits our customers but also the earth. We also take
every opportunity to convey this green message to our customers
and to analyze our dealings with customers and vendors from a green
perspective.

In recognition of our efforts and achievements on multiple environmental
fronts, we have been granted the title of Hong Kong Green Organisation.
This certification is spearheaded by the Environmental Campaign
Committee alongside the Environmental Protection Department and in
conjunction with nine other organizations.

Corporate social responsibility is much more than making donations
and participating in green events. It requires a proactive commitment
to be a positive influence on the lives of our stakeholders and non-
stakeholders. Drawing from our deep ties to the community, not only
do we provide financial services, we also share our expertise and vision.
Moving forward, through the Bank’s actions and interactions with others,
we endeavour to leave a strong green footprint on the communities we
serve.
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BANK NETWORK
IRITHE

Head Office #23¥ = 5

Fubon Bank Building, 38 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong

BAPREWHETRISREARITAE
Tel &3 . (852) 2842 6222

Fax E  : (852) 28101483
Website 484F : www.fubonbank.com.hk

Branches 717

Hong Kong & &

Central Main Branch FIg#{T

Fubon Bank Building, 38 Des Voeux Road Central
EEEP 38 E BRITAE

Causeway Bay $Fi%
G/F, Shing Wah Mansion, 455-457 Hennessy Road
ST fEFHE455-457 SR EEE I T

Chai Wan 4%

Shops 82-83 & 85-86, Lower G/F, Koway Plaza,
111 Chai Wan Road

SCEE115R & BUE 5 T582-83 5285-865% 4

North Point 1t &
Shop 2, G/F, Tsing Wan Building, 334-336 King’s Road
& 2i8334-336% 5 2 AEH T 2554

Queen’s Road East 25 XEH (/3,0
Shop 2, G/F, Wu Chung House, 213 Queen’s Road East
EENER21SRABKEM 2555

Sheung Wan 3%
G/F & 1/F, Ngan House, 210 Des Voeux Road Central
EEER2105ERR R EH T R 118

Western District BB (©/3,,/.

Shop 1, LG/F, 44A-46 Belcher’s Street, Lexington Hill,
Kennedy Town

EXE b3 R BR E T 44A- 4650 K B b T 157 47

38 Fubon Bank & F8R1T

Kowloon 1.3

Kowloon Main Branch WEE81T (CA,./
G/F & 1/F, 731 Nathan Road, Mong Kok

AL ABE 7315 T R 118

Cheung Sha Wan £ &

Shops D & E, G/F, Wing Lung Building,
220-240A Castle Peak Road

% IL138220-240A55 5k [E R = iy D R E4H

Hung Hom 4T
Shop A3, G/F, 13 Tak Man Street, Wong Po Sun Tsuen
EIETIRE R A1 355 N AR &R

Jordan {£3
Shop A, G/F, Ka Woo Building, 131-137 Woo Sung Street
RIBET181-1375 = MAE M AR

Kwun Tong £#E
Unit 1501, 15/F Millennium City 6, 392 Kwun Tong Road
BUEIEG025R Bl4C 2 W6 EA15121501 &

Mei Foo %%
G/F, 26B Nassau Street
B A E265RBIH T

Mong Kok i &
G/F, President Commercial Center, 602 Nathan Road
RPGEBOST AR S F FE AL T

Richland Gardens B &t &

Shops 111-112 & 117-118, Richland Gardens,
Commercial Complex, Wang Kwong Road
AR EBREEES111-112%117-1185%48

Tsim Sha Tsui L HE
G/F, Grand Right Centre, 10-10A Cameron Road
&5 HE10-10AZR A LT



Branches 71T

New Territories ¥R

Sha Tin ;“'J‘EEI .L/‘//))/j(//wﬁ

Shops Nos. 15 B, C, D & E, Level 1, Shatin Lucky Plaza,

Nos. 1-15 Wang Pok Street
BEEA1-155% P BITER OEH158 » C - DRESRA

Tai Po Ki#
Shop 28, G/F, Jade Plaza, On Chee Road
LR R FELE M T 2855 4

Tsuen Wan £
G/F & 1/F, Wing On Mansion, 22-28 Tai Ho Road
KA 3822-285R SR K[E 3 T J2 148

Tuen Mun HF9
Shop 11, G/F, Mei Hang Building, 15-45 Kai Man Path
RUR1E15-455: K 18181 T 115548

Yuen Long JtHA
G/F, Hing Fat House, 9 Kau Yuk Road
BB HERNEM T

Branches Tel 5 1TEZ 5%: (852) 2566 8181

Securities Services Centre
#HHRERBE SO

Tsuen Wan &

Shop D&E, G/F, Wing On Mansion,

22-28 Tai Ho Road
ROAE22-2855; 88 % KB 1 D K Eff

Tel B (852) 2842 1628

Credit Card Centre <5/

23/F, Fortress Tower, 250 King’s Road, North Point, Hong Kong
FE AL A 2382505k 18 AT 02318

Operations Centre & & 1 /{

9/F, Fortress Tower, 250 King’s Road, North Point, Hong Kong
BB AK2E25057 1L A 0%

BANK NETWORK
RITHAE

Principal Subsidiaries = Z & A 7]

Fubon Credit (Hong Kong) Limited = 388115 (&8 ) GR AT
Rooms 2501-2504, 25/F, Wing On House,

71 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong
ERPIREHBT715R kL EEKE251#2501-2504%

Tel & 5% (852) 2806 7228 Fax {£H: (852) 2541 2848

FB Securities (Hong Kong) Limited E$R&% % (F8) AR AT
1/F, Fubon Bank Building,

38 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong
EERIREHEDISEEABRITAEE

Tel % 5% (852) 3767 6067 Fax {HH: (852) 2840 0742

Fubon Insurance Brokers Limited E F{REERIGR A 7
4/F, Fubon Bank Building,

38 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong
BRFIREHETISKEHRITRNELE

Tel E 5% (852) 2842 6237 Fax {HH: (852) 2524 9632

Fubon Nominees (Hong Kong) Limited

1/F, Fubon Bank Building,

38 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong
EERIREHEDISKEMBRITAEE

Tel & :%: (852) 3767 6067 Fax {HH: (852) 2840 0742
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

SREARE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Hong Kong Monetary Authority (“HKMA”) has issued a statutory
guideline on Corporate Governance of Locally Incorporated Authorized
Institutions (“CG”) under section 7(3) of the Banking Ordinance applicable
to all locally incorporated Authorized Institutions which the HKMA
expects all Authorized Institutions to adopt.

The Bank belongs to a Group which is highly esteemed for its corporate
governance, regards corporate governance as an essential discipline
for its operations and business. Thus, the Bank has in place an effective
framework which is consistent with the principles and best practices in
corporate governance as set forth in the CG guidelines.

From time to time, the Bank will review its corporate governance
practices to ensure that they are consistent with the latest requirements
of international and local corporate governance best practices.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

The Board of Directors (“the Board”) of the Bank currently comprises
nine members: one Executive Director, five Non-Executive Directors
and three Independent Non-Executive Directors. All Directors possess
appropriate experience, competence and personal and professional
integrity to discharge their responsibilities effectively.

The Board as structured is sufficiently independent and possesses
collective expertise for effective and objective decision-making and
oversight of the Bank in its pursuit of its business objectives and control
of the associated risks.

Details of the members of the Board may be found in the Corporate
Information section of this Annual Report.

Board Practices

Full Board meetings are held at least four times a year, with one in each
quarter. Notice of each Board meeting is given to all Directors at least 14
days in advance and the agenda is sent to the Directors at least 7 days
before the date of each Board meeting.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Bank, a Director shall
not be entitled to vote or be counted in the quorum in respect of any
contract or arrangement in which the Director or any of the Director’s
associates has a material interest.

Minutes of each Board meeting are circulated to all Directors for their
comments prior to confirmation of the minutes at the following Board
meeting. Minutes of Board meetings are kept by the Company Secretary
and are available for inspection by Directors.

Directors may have access to the advice and services of the Company

Secretary with a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all
applicable rules and regulations are followed.
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Board Responsibilities

In meeting its overall responsibilities to the shareholders, depositors,
creditors, employees and other stakeholders, the Board has to ensure
that there is a competent executive management capable of running the
Bank in a sound, efficient and profitable manner.

The responsibilities of the Board include:

= establishing the business objectives of the Bank and approving and
reviewing the corresponding business strategies and plans (including
annual budgets);

= ensuring that the operations of the Bank are conducted prudently
within the laws and regulations of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region, and as such, reviews and approves policies,
codes of conduct and systems of the Bank as it considers necessary
and appropriate;

= ensuring that the Bank observes a high standard of integrity in the
conduct of its business and complies with all applicable laws and
regulatory guidelines issued by the HKMA, the Securities and Futures
Commission and other relevant regulatory authorities;

m  establishing, approving and reviewing risk management strategies
and policies of the Bank to ensure that the various types of risk
inherent in the Bank’s operations and business (including credit,
market, interest rate, liquidity, operational, reputation, legal and
strategic) are regularly identified, measured, monitored and
controlled;

= overseeing the business of the Bank and managing the Bank
through delegating duties and responsibilities to the Chief Executive
Officer or through the appointment of Directors to specialised Board
committees with all decisions and approvals being reported to the
Board regularly.

Role of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”)

Information on the Chairman, Ming-Chung (Daniel) Tsai, and the CEQ,
Raymond Wing Hung Lee, may be found in the Corporate Information
section of this Annual Report.

The Chairman and the CEO are not related, and their roles are
segregated with a clear division of responsibilities.

The Chairman is a Non-Executive Director and is responsible to lead and
effectively run the Board, ensuring that all key and appropriate issues are
discussed by the Board in a timely and constructive manner.

The CEO who is an Executive Director, appointed by the Board under
its authority, is responsible for the day to day general management
and control of the business and operations of the Bank. The CEO may
consult and/or seek guidance from other Directors of the Board when he
considers it necessary.
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The Board, or its Nomination and Remuneration Committee, identifies,
assesses and selects qualified and experienced individuals for
appointment as directors. The proposed appointment will be reviewed by
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, taking into account of the
candidate’s experience, knowledge, skills, track record, independence
of mind (particularly in the case of Non-Executive Directors and
Independent Non-Executive Directors) and other relevant factors as may
be determined by the Board.

The appointment of Directors will be considered and approved by the full
Board or Shareholder in accordance with the Articles of Association of
the Bank. Approval from the HKMA will also be obtained in accordance
with the Banking Ordinance.

All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
annual general meeting in accordance with the Articles of Association of
the Bank.

The directors appointed by the Board during the year shall hold office
only until the next annual general meeting and shall then be eligible for
re-election.

BOARD LEVEL COMMITTEES

The Board has established five Board level committees to assist it
in carrying out its responsibilities; Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, Audit Committee, Risk Committee, Executive Committee
and Executive Credit Committee.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is chaired by an
Independent Non-Executive Director and comprises the Non-Executive
Chairman, Non-Executive Vice Chairman and all the Independent Non-
Executive Directors of the Bank. The Committee meets periodically and
as required and provides oversight of the management of the Bank’s
human resources including the appointment of Directors (for both
executive and non-executive), senior management and Management
Committee Members. The Committee approves the Bank’s overall
human resources management framework to ensure that the Bank
is in compliance with the applicable government regulations and
follows the market best practice wherever feasible. The Committee is
also responsible to ensure that Directors, Chief Executive Officer and
Management Committee Members appointed possess the necessary
and appropriate qualifications to perform and discharge their duties.
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The Committee regularly reviews whether each existing Director
continues to remain qualified for his post. It also reviews the structure,
size and composition of the Board and makes recommendations on any
proposed change to the Board.

The Committee reviews and approves the remuneration for Directors,
members of Board Committees, senior management and Key Personnel
(as defined under the Remuneration Policy of the Bank).

The Committee is mandated to assist the Board in establishing cultural
and behavioural standards that promote prudent risk-taking and fair
treatment of customers and employees. It advises and assists the Board
in discharging its responsibilities for the Bank’s culture-related matters.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee held two meetings during
the year.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises four members including one Non-
Executive Director and three Independent Non-Executive Directors.
The Audit Committee is chaired by an Independent Non-Executive
Director who has appropriate accounting professional qualifications.
The Committee meets at least four times a year and additionally when
deemed necessary.

The Audit Committee is required to ensure that there is adequate
supervision of the Bank's financial reporting processes and systems
of internal control, and that the internal audit function is effective and
backed by adequate resources and has appropriate standing within the
Bank. It is also required to ensure that there is coordination between
the internal and external auditors, to monitor compliance with internal
policies, statutory regulation, and to consider recommendations made
by the internal and external auditors.

The Audit Committee reviews the Bank's financial reporting process,
the systems of internal control, the internal audit function and the risk
management process. In particular, the review undertaken by the Audit
Committee on the internal audit function includes the Internal Audit
Charter and its approval, the annual audit plan, internal audit reports
and special investigation reports issued, and ensuring that appropriate
management actions are taken following the major audit findings.

The Audit Committee also reviews the appointment of external auditors
and to discuss with them the nature and scope of their audits. The Audit
Committee also reviews the interim and annual financial statements
before recommending them to the Board for approval.

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year.
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Risk Committee

The Risk Committee comprises five members including one Executive
Director, one Non-Executive Director and three Independent Non-
Executive Directors. The Risk Committee is chaired by an Independent
Non-Executive Director who has extensive banking experience. The
Committee meets at least four times a year and additionally when
deemed necessary. Its mandate is to establish the Bank’s overall risk
appetite and to ensure a proper risk management framework is in place.
The Committee also oversees senior management’s implementation of
the Bank’s risk policies.

The Risk Committee will annually review and endorse the Bank’s risk
appetite statement and risk management strategies. It will oversee the
establishment and maintenance by senior management of appropriate
infrastructure, resources and systems for risk management, particularly in
relation to the compliance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements
and adherence to the approved risk appetite and related policies, and
the adoption of best practices wherever feasible.

The Risk Committee is required to ensure that the staff responsible for
risk management function and control are sufficiently independent of the
risk taking units in the Bank.

The Risk Committee held four meetings during the year.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee comprises the Non-Executive Chairman, Non-
Executive Vice Chairman and the Executive Director of the Bank. It will
exercise the powers and authorities delegated by the Board from time to
time concerning the management and day-to-day running of the Bank.
The Executive Committee will meet periodically and as required and
will oversee the general management functions of the Board under the
auspices of the Board.

The Executive Committee held one meeting and dealt with 37 resolutions
in writing during the year.

Executive Credit Committee

The Executive Credit Committee comprises the Non-Executive
Chairman, Non-Executive Vice Chairman and the Executive Director of
the Bank. It has the delegated authority to approve credit proposals,
credit policies and other credit related matters which require the approval
of the Board. The Executive Credit Committee meets regularly and as
required.

The Executive Credit Committee held thirty-seven meetings during the
year.

KEY MANAGEMENT LEVEL COMMITTEES

In addition to the Board level committees, six management level
committees have been set up by the Board to oversee the effectiveness
of the Bank’s daily operations — Management Steering/Business
Committee, Asset and Liability Committee, Internal Control Committee,
Credit Committee, Information Technology Steering Committee and
Compliance & Anti-Money Laundering Committee.
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Management Steering/Business Committee

The Management Steering Committee and the Management Business
Committee (together “the Committees”) are both chaired by the Bank’s
CEO, and comprises senior management personnel appointed by
the CEO. The Committees are the key decision making bodies for
the Bank’s daily operation and are responsible for the running of the
Bank’s day to day business under the authority delegated by the Board
and within the strategy and business plan as approved by the Board.
The Committees are also responsible for the formulation of the Bank’s
business strategies and major bank-wide initiatives for the Board’s
approval. The Committees meet weekly to evaluate and approve new
business initiatives, coordinate business and support units during the
implementation process, monitor the progress. The Committees also
monitor the implementation of the approved business strategies and,
review the achievement of business targets, objectives and the financial
performance of the Bank.

Asset and Liability Committee

The Asset and Liability Committee (“ALCO”) comprises the Bank’s CEO,
Chief Financial Officer and senior management personnel as appointed
by the CEO. The Committee is responsible for providing oversight of
the Bank’s operations relating to interest rate risk, market risk and
liquidity risk (collectively known as "financial risks") as well as capital
management. The Committee initiates, reviews and endorses for the
approval of the Risk Committee of the Board the Bank’s policies on
financial risks and capital management. It approves guidelines relating to
such policies, reviews and approves all major financial risk management
reports. ALCO also oversees the Bank's investment activities by
establishing investment strategies within policies laid down by the Risk
Committee of the Board and reviews actual performance.

Internal Control Committee

The Internal Control Committee (“ICC”) comprises the Bank’s CEO,
Executive Vice Presidents, Head of Control & Risk Management and
the heads of different control, business and support functions. The
responsibilities of the Committee include providing oversight of the
Bank’s exposure to operational and legal risks, ensuring the Bank has in
place an effective internal control framework, providing guidance to the
Bank in establishing a sound internal control and monitoring system to
ensure overall compliance within the Bank.

To ensure an effective internal control framework is in place, the ICC
reviews policies and approves guidelines relating to internal control and
management of operational and legal risks. It receives and discusses
reports submitted by various risk management units and promotes
internal control culture. To maintain an adequate system of internal
control, the ICC reviews and discusses major operational risk events,
and the progress of rectification of audit findings and control self-
assessment.

Credit Committee

The Credit Committee’s ("CC") mandate is to provide oversight of the
Bank’s credit risk management. The Committee is chaired by the Bank’s
CEO, and consists of senior executives of the Bank.
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The CC reviews and endorses credit policies and credit risk profile of
the Bank for the Executive Credit Committee’s approval, and reviews
and approves credit related guidelines. The Committee also reviews and
approves requests for credit facilities that are within the CC’s authority as
delegated by the Board, and reviews and endorses requests for credit
facilities before their submission to the Executive Credit Committee for
approval.

The CC conducts on-going reviews on the market environment and
makes necessary policy recommendations to the Executive Credit
Committee to ensure the credit risk profile of the Bank is within the
established risk appetite. The CC also provides periodic and timely credit
related management and stress testing reports to the Executive Credit
Committee for review.

Information Technology Steering Committee

The Information Technology Steering Committee is chaired by the Bank’s
CEO, and comprises senior management personnel as appointed by
the CEO. The Committee is responsible for the oversight of the Bank’s
key information technology governance and operations. The Committee
approves long and short term information technology strategies to
ensure they are in line with the Bank’s business strategy and priorities;
approves funding and determines prioritization of information technology
projects; discusses and reviews status of key projects; and manages
major information technology risk issues and corresponding remediation.
The Committee meets at least once a month.

Compliance & Anti-Money Laundering Committee

The Compliance & Anti-Money Laundering Committee (“CAMLC”)
comprises the Bank’s CEO, Executive Vice Presidents, Head of
Compliance & Anti-Money Laundering and the heads of different control,
business and support functions. The responsibilities of the Committee
include providing oversight of the Bank’s exposure to compliance risks
and compliance activities to ensure the Bank is in compliance with
applicable regulatory requirements and the Anti-Money Laundering and
Counter-Terrorist Financing (Financial Institutions) Ordinance (Cap 615)
(“AML/CFT”). The CAMLC provides guidance to the Bank and senior
management in establishing a professional compliance control and
monitoring system to cultivate a strong compliance culture and ensures
the Bank has an effective compliance framework in place to meet the
regulatory requirements. In addition, the CAMLC also reviews and
approves guidelines relating to compliance and AML/CFT.

To maintain the Bank’s overall regulatory compliance standards, the

CAMLC reviews latest developments in regulatory compliance and AML/
CFT requirements applicable to the Bank.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

The Risk Committee, a Board level committee, establishes overall risk
appetite and risk management strategy of the Bank, taking into account
current and forward-looking aspects of risk exposure.

The Bank has established a set of risk management policies and
guidelines to identify, measure, monitor and control various types of risks,
including credit, market, interest rate, liquidity, operational, reputational,
legal and strategic risks. A set of risk limits are set in accordance with
the defined risk appetite, and a proper risk management framework is in
place, so as to ensure the degree of risk that the Bank is exposed to is
kept within an acceptable level. Risk management policies and major risk
limits are approved by the Board or Board level committee.

Regular risk management reports are submitted to the Risk Committee
for assessing the level of risk involved in the Bank’s business activities,
and how they are controlled and managed. The Risk Committee
monitors the risk profile of the Bank against the approved risk limits, and
determines appropriate management action if material deviations from
approved limits occur. Risk Committee also assesses the effectiveness
of the risk management function of the Bank and ensures that it has the
necessary resources and expertise to carry out its duties.

ANTI-MONEY LAUNDERING AND
ANTI-TERRORIST FINANCING

The Bank has in place stringent internal guidelines and procedures in
combating money laundering, drug trafficking and terrorist financing.
All staff members are required to comply with these guidelines and
procedures in conducting customer due diligence and transaction
monitoring to ensure that prevention of such activities. With the support
of the Board, management of the Bank has been actively promoting a
strong AML and Anti-Terrorist Financing culture, to ensure compliance
with all relevant laws and regulations.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board discharges its responsibilities to ensure there is an adequate
system of internal control through the Audit Committee and Risk
Committee. Management is primarily responsible for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal controls.

The Bank’s internal control systems comprise a number of measures
designed to promote effective control and fraud prevention. Reliable and
timely reporting of financial and management information and internal
control matters to the Board ensure that the Board can properly oversee
the Bank’s operation.
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The internal control framework include:

1. Establishment of different functional committees with the
responsibilities to monitor various risks and controls.

2. A clear organization structure with well defined authorities and
responsibilities to enable effective checks and balances.

3. All major bank policies are approved by the Board. These policies
provide specific operational, financial and compliance controls which
will facilitate segregation of duties, accuracy of reporting and proper
control over assets and risk exposure.

4. Risk management policies and procedures are in place to identify
and measure risks associated with the Bank’s business and
operations.

5. A risk management reporting framework to provide regular reports
1o senior management and/or relevant Board level committees.

6. A system to monitor changes and developments of relevant laws,
regulations and standards applicable to the Bank’s activities and
ensures that senior management and relevant units are duly aware
of such and are in a position to take appropriate measures to ensure
continued compliance.

The internal audit function of the Bank is an independent appraisal
function set up with the primary objective of evaluating the internal
control system and the compliance regime of the Bank, and to report
major findings and agreed rectification measures to the Board’s Audit
Committee for review and comments on a regular basis. The Chief
Internal Auditor reports directly to the Audit Committee and is appointed
by the Audit Committee.

BANK CULTURE

The Bank promotes a culture that encourages and recognizes
high ethical standards and expects its staff to be familiar with and
observe Fubon Group’s four Core Values; INTEGRITY, SINCERITY,
PROFESSIONALISM AND INNOVATION, and the three Personal
Behavioural Principles; INTEGRITY, THRIFT and HUMILITY. These Core
Values and Behavioural Principles form the cornerstone of the Bank’s
corporate culture and the Bank expects its staff to uphold these Values
and Principles in dealing with its customers as well as with other staff
members. The Bank discourages and prohibits any form of discrimination
and harassments of a personal nature and will take appropriate actions
against staff who engages in these unacceptable social behaviours.

Sensible sustainability of the environment is an important social
responsibility principle. In this regard, the Bank promotes green
programs wherever possible and ensures that bank staff contribute to
this effort. The Bank also promotes this green culture to customers and
considers the green impact of related customer dealings.
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Treating customers fairly as well as ensuring the protection of their
interests are part of the professional standards the Bank looks for in its
employees.

The Bank also expects its employees to understand that a sound
corporate culture in a bank includes prudent risk taking. While risk taking
is inherent in banking business, employees are expected to exercise
judgment in their daily work activities to reflect the underlying principles
outlined above.

To ensure that the Bank maintains a proper framework to sustain and
enhance the desired culture, the Bank has established a Culture Policy
to clearly explain the Bank’s expectations and requirements to its
employees, and will evaluate employee performance in this respect.

The Board of Directors of the Bank, through its Nomination and
Remuneration Committee, is responsible to ensure that the
Bank’s culture programs are effectively implemented and maintained.

The Bank believes that the promotion of a good corporate culture will
contribute towards the success of the Company and establishes the
Company as a good corporate citizen. Good corporate governance is
also a key element in providing a good working environment for the Bank
Staff.

CODE OF CONDUCT

The Bank adopts a high standard of ethical conduct and professional
competence. Consistent with the policies and practices of its parent
company, it has set up a Code of Conduct guideline (“Code”) which all
levels of staff are required to observe in the discharge of their duties.

The Code is structured in line with applicable regulatory guidelines
and other industry best practices, setting out professional standards
and corporate values to promote ethical, professional and responsible
behaviour among the Bank’s staff.

The Bank has procedures set up for staff to communicate, in confidence,
material and bona fide concerns or observations of any violations
or irregularities in the Bank. Communication is also allowed to be
channelled to the Board through a “CEO Channel” which is independent
of the internal chain of command.

In addition, the Bank promotes a culture that encourage and recognizes
high ethical standards and expects its staff to be familiar with and
observe the Core Values and Behavioural Principles of the Group and
the Bank.

The Bank also adopted the principles of the holding company’s Code
of Ethical Conduct, which is available in the “Corporate Governance”
section of the Bank’s website.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors have pleasure in presenting their report together with the
audited financial statements of Fubon Bank (Hong Kong) Limited (“the
Bank”) and its subsidiaries (collectively “the Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Bank, through its branches and subsidiaries, provides a range of
banking, financial and related services.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Bank’s principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2018 are
set out in Note 24 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Bank are set out in Note 34 to the
financial statements.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Bank is a licensed bank incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong
and has its registered office at Fubon Bank Building, 38 Des Voeux Road
Central, Hong Kong.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The result of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 is set out
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page 69.
The state of the Group’s affairs as at 31 December 2018 is set out in the
financial statements on pages 69 to 220.

No interim dividend was paid for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017:
Nil).

The Directors do not recommend a payment of final dividend in respect of
the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).
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DIRECTORS

The Directors in office during the financial year and up to the issuance date
of this Report of the Directors were:

Executive Director
Raymond Wing Hung LEE (Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director)

Non-Executive Directors
Ming-Chung (Daniel) TSAI (Chairman)
Ming-Hsing (Richard) TSAI (Vice Chairman)
Jerry HARN Wey-Ting

Eric CHEN Sun-Te

Roman CHENG Yao Hui

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Robert James KENRICK

Moses TSANG (retired on 30 April 2018)

Hung SHIH

Peter PANG Sing Tong (appointed on 27 April 2018)

The names of Directors who have served on the boards of the subsidiaries
of the Bank during the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out below:

Henry WANG Hao Jen
Carmen YIP Ka Man
Dennis HA Yiu Fai
Patrick CHAN Tin Ching
Tony NG Yin Tsang
Fabian CHEUNG Yue Kiu
Paul CHAN Yue Yuen

ROTATION OF DIRECTORS IN THE
FORTHCOMING ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

In accordance with Article 81 of the Bank’s Articles of Association, Hung
SHIH, Jerry HARN Wey-Ting and Eric CHEN Sun-Te retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the Directors of the Bank is
currently in force and was in force throughout this year.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Non-Executive Directors were appointed by the Bank’s shareholders
at the Annual General Meeting with appointment terms in accordance with
Article 81 of the Bank’s Articles of Association.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting has an unexpired service contract with the Bank which is not
determinable by the Bank or any of its subsidiaries within one year without
payment of compensation, other than normal statutory obligations.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance in relation to the
Bank’s business to which the Bank, its holding company, subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which the Directors of the Bank had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

The Directors and Chief Executive of the Bank who held office at 31
December 2018 had the following interests in the shares of its ultimate
holding company, Fubon Financial Holding Co., Ltd. (“Fubon Financial”)
and the Bank, at that date as recorded in the register of Directors’ and
Chief Executive’s interests and short positions required to be kept under
section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”):
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ERCESREEIOTHAKETER

Percentage

Personal Family Corporate Total number of total

Name interests interests interests of shares held issued shares

A £ EE sl (hE2HS8T

A s s R wme ROBEDLE

Ming-Chung (Daniel) TSAI 308,507,129 28,458,053 2,155,933,036" 2,492,898,218 24.36
R

Ming-Hsing (Richard) TSAI 327,125,694 29,473,565 2,155,933,036" 2,512,532,295 24.55
AR

Jerry HARN Wey-Ting 2,430,288 - - 2,430,288 0.02
FRETEE

Note: izt -

(1) 2,155,938,036 shares were held through corporations in which Ming-Chung
(Daniel) TSAI, Ming-Hsing (Richard) TSAI and other TSAI family members have
beneficial interest.
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Annual Report 2018 ik 53



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EXEHREE

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES AND
DEBENTURES (continued)

ESTBRORES 2B @)

Preferred Shares A in Fubon Financial of NT$10 each

EACESREENSB10T ZELRHA

Percentage of

Personal Family Corporate Total number total issued
Name interests interests interests of shares held shares
fBA 93 EE iR EERBERT
" s R s wme RGBS
Ming-Chung (Daniel) TSAI 2,500,000 - - 2,500,000 0.197
RS
Ming-Hsing (Richard) TSAI 74,564 - - 74,564 0.006
B H
Jerry HARN Wey-Ting 100,000 - - 100,000 0.008
BRTE
Eric Chen Sun-Te 22,800 - - 22,800 0.002
BREES®
Roman Cheng Yao-Hui 25,000 249 - 25,249 0.002
Options TR E
No Directors and Chief Executive of the Bank or any of their spouses or ~ BEERIT 2 EE RITHARE K E 2 BB %
children under eighteen years of age has interests or short positions in the  T/\BRIA T 2 FEARARIT ~ HEMIZERAA -

shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Bank, any of its holding
company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

At no time during the year was the Bank, or any of its holding company,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors of the Bank to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Bank or any other body corporate.

DONATIONS

Donations made by the Group during the year amounted to HK$180,000
(2017: HK$313,000).
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RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group operates a defined benefit retirement scheme which covers
20% (2017: 22%) of the Group’s employees, and a Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme. Particulars of these retirement schemes are set out in Note
38 to the financial statements.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE BANKING (DISCLOSURE)
RULES

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 in
conjunction with the unaudited supplementary financial information on
pages 221 to 238, together with a separate document — “Regulatory
Disclosures Statement” and disclosures made in the Bank’s website
under the page “Regulatory Disclosures”, comply fully with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Banking (Disclosure) Rules issued by the Hong
Kong Monetary Authority under section 60A of the Hong Kong Banking
Ordinance.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by KPMG who retire and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-
appointment of KPMG as auditors of the Bank is to be proposed at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Ming-Chung (Daniel) TSAI
Chairman

19 March 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZBERE

KPMG

Independent auditor’s report
to the members of Fubon Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Fubon Bank
(Hong Kong) Limited (“the Bank”) and its subsidiaries (together “the Group”)
set out on pages 69 to 220, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2018, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2018 and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS FREEITEIE

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, BB :t =B 2 RIEF P =L 4L - 2 A K
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial R AMKERENETZAEENTE - 2551
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the REPIEFEEREEMFRENTLEERREIE -
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, i T BEREHEBNER o

and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Impairment of advances to customers
BFERREE
Refer to Note 44 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 96.
DI B BN iF44 R EI6H .2 BFMHF
The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
BRETEE BANETNAREZEE

The Group has applied Hong Kong Financial Reporting Our audit procedures to assess the ECL of advances to

Standard 9 - Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) which replaced customers as at 1 January 2018 and 31 December 2018
Hong Kong Accounting Standard 39, Financial Instruments: included the following:

recognition and measurement, since 1 January 2018 and

developed a new impairment model for financial assets BN —_E—N\EF—A—BLK-_Z—\FE+-_A=+—HF
including advances to customers. HEFERNEREEEENEMETERENTSE !

B \—H—H&- %Eﬁgﬁﬁ%iﬁﬁﬁki&iﬁﬁﬂ e understanding and assessing the design,

FOW—SRT A([BBUBHELELEIR ) BMREEEE implementation and operating effectiveness of key

AERIZERT - @M T A BMRAFE  TAEREERER internal controls of financial reporting over the approval,

PEFGIEFERERER - recording and monitoring of advances to customers,
the credit grading process, the ECL model approval

The new financial instruments standard has amended the and monitoring of the measurement of ECL;

previous classification and measurement framework of financial

instruments and introduced a more complex expected credit B 7 B R B A SRR RS N BB B YRR G~ B ME

loss (“ECL”) model to assess impairment. The Group is required BB - BEEN C B NEIRTRFER C EEFTR

to retrospectively apply the classification and measurement IR FEEMEE SEEINE R E R EE R

(including impairment) requirements and recognise any =

difference between the original carrying amount and new
carrying amount at the date of initial application (i.e. 1 January
2018) in the opening retained earnings or other component of
equity.

el e T AR BESSRTANDBAFTEER
j’[%lAE%%’ETEE’JE‘EHHEEJ%?E&Manﬂﬁﬁifﬁ° 55E

BEPEADBNTE(RIERE)RE - ARBONREEN
Eﬁzﬁﬁﬁﬁ’\]ﬁﬁﬂz%ﬂﬁ}ia‘ﬁn hHERREREEREEREMRE (BN Z
T N\F—A—R)NHEREEEOEAZE -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYRBEHRE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

FEREETEE®

Impairment of advances to customers (continued)

FEFEEFRE(H)

Refer to Note 44 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 96. (continued)

(%)

DI e B EN 5144 REI6E 2 BFHHF °
The Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BN ETNETREEZER

Loan exposures that are not already credit-impaired are
originated into stage 1 and a 12-month ECL provision is
recognised. Loan exposures will remain in stage 1 until they are
repaid, unless they experience significant credit deterioration

(stage 2) or they become credit-impaired (stage 3).

HARK ST RIEENEFRNERESREFRHE R
RIEEM2(E AMBERMEREE RN SREREE - EETH
BRIFHEERRBBEE

BER - ERERENFE R
(R —FEBOHCK R TREE(F=FEE)

Loan exposures will transfer to stage 2 and a lifetime ECL
provision recognised when there has been a significant change
in the credit risk compared to what was expected at origination.

EEERRERREELEEERREZIE I

Wiz

- BRE

RARKEBEEME - WHRDMEMEEERRE -

Loan exposures are classified as stage 3 when they become

credit-impaired.

ERABAEREERERBERBARFEIEGER
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obtaining journal entries relating to adjustments made
on transition to the new financial instruments standard
and compared the list of classification of advances to
customers, the original carrying amounts, the list of
journal entries and new carrying amounts of advances
to customers to assess if the journal entries have been
entirely put through in the system;

EREFHeR T AEAEERMENARAHENER
D8 WHEFPERDBBEEAREFPERNRIKE
ELRENRESE  UHEZ ST O REEERE
HEt ARR RS

evaluating the accuracy of the classification of
advances to customers. We obtained information
on how management applied the classification
requirements of the new financial instruments standard
and the classification results. On a sample basis we
assessed the contractual cash flow characteristics of
advances to customers and relevant documents in
relation to the business model;

FHAEPERDBNERNE - RACESEHRERE
A ERF SR TEENDBR D BERNER -
B TP ERN A HR SR FRUA R EBE
UARRAS M



KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
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FEREETEE®

Impairment of advances to customers (continued)

FEFEEFRE ()

Refer to Note 44 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 96. (continued)

ZIGRAT S EIRE N T 44 R FICR Z BT IHE ° (&)

The Key Audit Matter
BERETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMHETNATREEZER

The determination of loss allowances using the expected e

credit loss model is subject to a number of key parameters
and assumptions, including the identification of loss stages,
estimates of probability of default, loss given default, exposures
at default and discount rate, adjustments for forward-looking
information and other adjustment factors. Management
judgment is involved in the selection of those parameters and
the application of the assumptions.

ERENEERRRLUBEERBREXRNETHREZ2H KL
R - BEBEEER  BOBEX  BHBEE  ZOA
RAERRIRRMMGE  AIEEER AR EMARAR -
W HELBRERE RBRROEAATEINAEEEHHIE

In particular, the determination of the loss allowance is heavily
dependent on the external macro environment and the Group’s
internal credit risk management strategy. The expected credit
losses are derived from estimates including historical losses,
internal and external credit grading, historical overdue data
and other adjustment factors. The expected credit losses for
advances to customers are derived from estimates whereby
management takes into consideration historical overdue data,
the historical loss experience for advances to customers and
other adjustment factors.

LEE  BEEBEBRBERARE LBORNIIMNBEBRE
&k BEEENNNEERBREERERE - EHEEBEREM
it BREELER - ulifiié?l\*ﬁfé“%ﬁ& BB &
HipARAR - EFEFNBEHEEERRE MG - Bt
EREeERELARIE FPEFNELEBEBERNIE
b FHERE -

with the assistance of our internal specialists, assessing
the validity of the ECL models used by the management
in determining ECL of advances to customers, including
assessing the appropriateness of the key parameters
and assumptions in the expected credit loss model,
including the identification of loss stages, probability of
default, loss given default, exposure at default, discount
rate, adjustments for forward-looking information and
other management adjustments;

EHFNABERNHY T @ FEEREREERTP
ERNEMEERRFERNENEERERRLNE
M BEFETEREEEERLPER2ENERR
E’J‘*%"\‘E C BREBRERER  BOBE - BHBX
£ Zﬁﬂ CBAIRE  AIEEER R R EMERE

2

‘Il-l

E.PH}

assessing the completeness and accuracy of data used
for the key parameters in the ECL model, by selecting
samples and comparing individual loan information
with the underlying agreements and other related
documentation to assess the accuracy of the loan
information in the expected credit loss model. For key
parameters derived from external data, we selected
samples to inspect the accuracy of such data by
comparing them with public resources;

BEE R AL A E R &S B A R 173 R A AR
LR SHMEERERREMEEEERI A1
RN - %iéﬁﬁaﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%@ﬂﬁﬁ?éqﬂEﬁﬁé%%@ﬁﬁﬁ
M T B R ERNE - SRR BINBEENERS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYRBEHRE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

FEREETEE®

Impairment of advances to customers (continued)

FEFEEFRE(H)

Refer to Note 44 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 96. (continued)

ZIGHAFE N EIRE N T 44 RFIGR Z BT IHE ° (&)

The Key Audit Matter
BERETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BN ETNETREEZER

Management also exercises judgement in determining the e

quantum of loss given default based on a range of factors.
These include available remedies for recovery, the financial
situation of the borrower, the recoverable amount of collateral,
the seniority of the claim and the existence and cooperativeness
of other creditors. Management refers to valuation reports issued
by qualified third party valuers and considers the influence of
various factors including the market price, location and use
when assessing the value of property held a collateral. The
enforceability, timing and means of realisation of collateral can
also have an impact on the recoverable amount of collateral
and, therefore, the amount of loss allowances as at the end of
the reporting period.

ERENTRE-FIARHEEENBRSTRETHE - B
REEREBZRNT N - ERANTBHOR « BR R AT
EE%E  REXEIEFREGEEARSFENEEIERR
% -BEREEZ2EREMFB=-HEMLANGBERS Lk
HEBAERRNMEEERERZBAZNZE - BN
B wE AR - EWmeVEER) - BREEMTETE
HIERAMH WA SRELTE AL TeHREHROE
BRERELYE -

We identified transition adjustments and disclosures in
relation to the change of financial instruments standards and
impairment of advances to customers as a key audit matter
because of the complexity of the transition process, inherent
subjectivity and management judgement involved in calculating
loss allowances and because of its significance to the financial
results and capital of the Group.

BB ESH TAENEGH LT EFRERBNBERER
REBERES—BHERBFFE  HHNBEERNEMR
1 SHEBBRBYEITS MO EA B N B I B HI 6 A N
REYE BERENVBRENEANEEN -
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for key parameters involving judgement, critically
assessing input parameters by seeking evidence from
external sources and comparing to the Group’s internal
records including historical loss experience and type of
collateral. As part of these procedures, we challenged
management’s revisions to estimates and input
parameters compared with prior period and on transition
to the new accounting standard and considered the
consistency of judgement. We compared the economic
factors used in the models with market information to
assess whether they were aligned with market and
economic development;

ERAEMRER2EME - BAKINIERERL
o EEENARER(RREELERLRNMEMRE
BB H M B AZE - (ERZERFN—
o BfEBEF S ERBERNG REBAZ
BUETTHE BB EBH A RBASEMERTRD
G WEEHFE B - RPIELL P PR
AZETIZESLE U ERESEETIS REH
BRARR 80

for key parameters used in the ECL model which were
derived from system-generated internal data, assessing
the accuracy of input data by comparing the input data
with original documents on a sample basis. In addition,
we involved our IT specialists to assess the logics
and compilation of the overdue information and the
operational process of the credit grading of corporate
customers for selected samples;

REHEEERENTERNER2EME - %52
BURE RMAERNAREE - AT EE KR
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB RS

FEREETEE®

Impairment of advances to customers (continued)

FEFEEFRE ()

Refer to Note 44 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 96. (continued)

ZIGRAF S EIRE I T 44 R FICR Z BT IHK ° (&)

The Key Audit Matter
BERETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BN EFNETREEZER

evaluating the validity of management’s assessment
on whether the credit risk of the loan has, or has not,
increased significantly since initial recognition and
whether the loan is credit-impaired by selecting samples
in industries more vulnerable to the current economic
situation with reference to other borrowers with potential
credit risk and checking the loan overdue information,
making enquiries of the credit managers about the
borrowers’ business operations, checking borrowers’
financial information and researching market information
about borrowers’ businesses;

FREEREA > HEEEEHERRREST B UHHE
REBETRZEMNHAE RERREEHEREDN
FHAEM AR - MPIRTEUERBENERESETT
oI YARE SR B EAREBERTENITETE
BEA  AR2EZHEMAEEERARBROERA - &
PipE T ERBHER - AR TEELEERANE
BEZNN  RETEFRANPBENRAE T EH
fERAPIREEXBSEB TSR -

for selected samples of loans and advances to
customers that are credit-impaired, evaluating
management’s assessment of the value of any property
collateral held by comparison with market prices based
on the location and use of the property and the prices
of neighbouring properties. We also evaluated the
timing and means of realization of collateral, evaluated
the forecast cash flows, challenged the viability of the
Group’s recovery plans and evaluated other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contract terms;

HREMENTREENTEPEREBREAME -
REVNENUERREARBOMENER - BB
HEHELE - FHAEEEHMFYERERREENT
fly o BAAIIR RS E I e BIRES 8 R 70% - FHETRA
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

FEREETEE®

Impairment of advances to customers (continued)

FEFEEFRE(H)

Refer to Note 44 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 96. (continued)

ZIGHAF SN EIRE N 44 RFIGR Z BT IHE ° (&)

The Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BN ETNETREZER

62 Fubon Bank & F8R1T

recalculating the amount of credit loss allowance for
12-month and lifetime credit losses using the ECL
model based on the above parameters and assumptions
for a sample of advances to customers where the credit
risk of the loan has not, or has, increased significantly
since initial recognition, respectively;

EREREERERLENTE12EAREREER
BREEEERESRE  NERLREPEFREAN
2HLER - HPERERNEERRR B SH#R
RBEREEIR

assessing whether the relevant disclosures in relation
to the change in financial instruments standard are in
compliance with Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKAS”) and HKFRS; and

EERERTALAEHNEBREESTEER
SRR RBBWHRELED K&

evaluating whether the presentation and disclosures
on impairment of loans and advances to customers
measured at amortised cost meet the requirements
in HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and
HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosure.

FHARESER A BN E R M EFORERN IR LR
REAMEBEGHERERREMIE - 2 NEE
MBHRELNETHRERMTA - HEOEK -
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FEREETEE®

Assessing the fair value of financial instruments

AT AN A FEE

Refer to Note 41 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 90.

LI B R TE RS Wit 41 RFEIOR Z BF K °

The Key Audit Matter
BERETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BN EFNETREEZER

At 31 December 2018, the Group’s financial assets measured
at fair value includes equity securities designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income of HK$809 million,
trading assets of HK$1,898 million and derivative financial
instruments of HK$797 million.

RZZE—\F+-—A=+—H BEEEQAFEEIENS
MEEBEREAATFEEREMEZE NG E CRAES
$£809,000,000% 7T + F1ER 5 % & & #£1,898,000,000/%
T RATHE © BT B 797,000,000 7T °

The valuation of the Group’s financial instruments measured
at fair value through profit or loss or at fair value through other
comprehensive income is based on a combination of market
data and valuation models which often require a considerable
number of inputs. Many of these inputs are obtained
from readily available data for liquid markets. Where such
observable data is not readily available, as in the case of level
3 financial instruments, estimates need to be developed which
can involve significant management judgement. In addition,
the Group has developed its own models to value certain level
2 and 3 financial instruments, which also involves significant
management judgement.

BEEEABEaRE MG RERATEEAEZERTA
BEDEBRTSHELEERTEAEGABER ZAEELKN
HAETE - 2RSS ABREBE R M EER A SNEIE
R - WZSAUBRBEEIERE  IBR=f2RT
B EEEFRHEEE  ETRASREREEBHE - 1t
Hh . BEEECHET _RER=ASRMITASNEGLERSE - &
RV RERNEEEHE -

Our audit procedures to assess the fair value of financial
instruments included the following:

e T AR TVEERB 2 ETEFEEATEER

e assessing the, design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of management’s key internal controls
over the valuation, independent price verification and
front office/back office reconciliations;

o FHMEEEESME BUEBZE  AIaERKREHE
Z BB AR B RORRET - B ME(F L RORAR

e assessing the fair values of all level 1 financial

instruments by comparing the fair values applied by
the Group with publicly available market data;

o FEBLE BERBERAZATEEEQRAFNSEHR
B AHMEPTAE—RERTANRFEE:
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

FEREETEE®

Assessing the fair value of financial instruments (continued)

LR T AN A FEEGE)

Refer to Note 41 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 90. (continued)

ZIGHAE N TEIRE N iT41 RFEIOR Z BT HE ° (&)

The Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BN ETNETREEZER

We have identified assessing the fair value of financial
instruments as a key audit matter because of the degree of
complexity involved in valuing certain financial instruments
and the degree of judgement exercised by management in
determining the inputs used in the valuation models.

HREETERTABEMS R ZEREE - UEREER
BEREMAZEABERS L EREHE  RASTEERT
A AT EERE S HBRETEEHE -
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involving our internal valuation specialists to evaluate
the appropriateness of the valuation models used
by the Group to value certain level 2 and level 3
financial instruments and to perform, on a sample
basis, independent valuations of level 2 and level 3
financial instruments and compare these valuations
with the Group’s valuations. This included comparing
the Group’s valuation models with our knowledge of
current and emerging practice, evaluating inputs to
the fair value calculations and establishing our own
valuation models to perform revaluations; and

ZERMNAEBEEERTE EREERAFGESE
T_RE=AeBITANBERENABREE - RIA
METAH R =M T LETEGE X8
ZEMERE ERENGHEETLR - EBEKE &
SE G EER RIS E m A R EORR T BRETT
L8 SHE R FEEENEABENA REIHME
S EREIAETTER

\

N

assessing whether the financial statement disclosures
appropriately reflect the Group’s exposure to financial
instrument valuation risk in accordance with the
requirements of the prevailing accounting standards.

AR HRERESTEERR SRERERT
SEHERIMREAEN SR T AGERR -



INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S
REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon. The other information is expected to be made available to us after
the date of this auditor’s report.

QOur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information when it becomes available
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

66 Fubon Bank & F8R1T

R ET RS
MEE

ATHMBERENHEAMBRERBMN AR
AREFF R ME M EA B RRERMBAER

WHABREATERMNZEEHRE - ABET)
RIBEB(RAIED)F405FKNRTE - ERERKE
W o BRULASN - ARE A BEEMAE » BiA
BARARENATAEMEMA T RERAET
A -

BA R A ARNE

REFRERRKTHORE - ETEREZ(BEE
APERETHEEX —EXNERRAFER B
B - MR AT AR GF RS B - MRAE
RHAEENEAERIVEF EGSMBHRRER
EIRBRAMBEREMELNEERE - JERN
BRI AR EERK -

(ERREB(EA R EDETENNBRS - RN
ERTERHE  REFREREE BN

o BAIRFHEARREFRERMEBGAMB
HERFEENERRANER - Rt AT
B RFAREZSEE - ARERTR R
AENENRE  FRRATANER - &
RERFFA RS R BR g ERER B
R - SR BRARES 2 £ Bt REE
EHARFMERHREASERRA R
BRREERAERMERHRERERR
AR °

o TRERMEBORBRE  ARHES
MERTBEEHEHRE  BANLIHE

8 BEEENZHNEREERER -



AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB RS

R B RS MR EAAE
NEEwE
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s HEZRARELLSTERNEEHEL
fgwm o WIREAMERMNETERE  BTES
FEEFHEABRABANEANETEE - 1€
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AAEVEEREMRE T RREERE LIRS
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B BEEETRHBREEY -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYRBEHRE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Wong Po Shan.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

19 March 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HE—-T—N\F+-_A=1+—HILFE

Interest income calculated using effective
interest method

Other interest income

Interest income

Interest expense

Net interest income

Fee and commission income
Fee and commission expense

Net fee and commission income
Other operating income

Operating income
Operating expenses

Operating profit before gains and
impairment losses
Impairment losses on advances to customers
Write back of impairment losses on
other financial assets
Write back of/(charge for) impairment losses on
other assets
Write back of impairment losses on
assets held for sale
Write back of impairment losses on
assets acquired under lending agreements
Impairment losses on available-for-sale
financial assets

Impairment losses

Share of profits of an associate
Gain on bargain purchase of an associate
Loss on disposal of an associate

Dilution loss arising from investment in
an associate

Net gains on disposal of financial assets
at amortized cost

Net gains on disposal of available-for-sale
financial assets

Net gains on disposal of fixed assets

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit for the year

RABERFR AR
A EWA
HAbF S WA

A SIA

MBS

FRBBA

ERLA2RA
ERMAEH

FEARABEZRA
HAith 28 WA

LEWA

LEXH

Rt RBERRA
R F
EFEEFRERR

H b RS BB E & 18 2 [0 8

HinEEREBRZ
[, ($1F%)

FEHEZEERERR
pACIEC

RIEE R IHEPSEERE
B8 2

A ESREERERR

HEEE

RGBS R BNR A

EAEL NIl 6
HERE R FEIR

ERE NP E FREL A
BB
HENEER AT EZERE
Bt

HER O ESREEF R

HEREE & EF R
BB AR

BiE

REE BRI

10
11

12

SLEeEEHEWER

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
2,692,504 2,170,044
15,736 10,698
2,708,240 2,180,742
(1,351,788) (964,563)
1,356,452 1,216,179
396,600 415,986
(107,287) (97,618)
289,313 318,368
42,007 3,597
1,687,772 1,538,144
(964,707) (950,493)
723,065 587,651
(48,953) (67,829)
20,010 -
5,492 (5,553)
1,543 1,200
1,100 1,700
- (1,286)
(20,808) (71,768)
269,921 237,103
70,255 -
(118,768) -
- (60,883)

399 -

- 1,310

16 51
924,080 693,464
(101,252) (110,081)
822,828 583,383
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FeaRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE—-T—N\F+-_A=1+—HILtFE

Other comprehensive income
for the year, net of tax:
[tems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:

Ny
AN

HreEHHEERR

ME - MEREGHFEEFE

Premises: net movement in premises &
revaluation reserve

Equity securities designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income:
net movement in investment revaluation
reserve (non-recycling)

Remeasurement of net defined benefit liability

BE

AR HEEREAD

RESHHEFE
(FF1EER)

EFTETEENREFRE

AIREREREF D RE
B2 IAE ¢
EEARFEEREMD

ltemns that may be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss:

Debt securities designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income:

net movement in investment revaluation KESHREERE

reserve (recycling) (&%)
Available-for-sale financial assets: net movement rJftHE S EIEE ¢

in investment revaluation reserve REENRETFES
Net movement in foreign exchange reserve GNHE 0 B AR S B
Total comprehensive income for the year ZAEE2EIKEELE

The notes on pages 77 to 220 form part of these financial statements.
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2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+F

Note HK$’000 HK$'000
P 5T F#ET T
13 262,501 331,448
13 225,939 -

13 1,199 (6,607)
489,639 324,841

13 68,501 -
13 - 399,900
13 9,637 171,192
78,138 571,092

1,390,605 1,479,316
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2018 R-_Z—N\F+_-_A=+—H

ASSETS

Cash and short-term funds

Balances with banks and other
financial institutions

Trading assets

Derivative financial instruments

Advances to customers

Trade bills

Accrued interest and other assets

Debt securities measured at
amortized cost

Equity securities designated at
fair value through other
comprehensive income

Available-for-sale financial assets

Held-to-maturity investments

Interests in associates

Fixed assets

Assets held for sale

Deferred tax assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Deposits and balances of banks and

other financial institutions
Deposits from customers
Trading liabilities
Certificates of deposit issued
Debt securities issued
Derivative financial instruments
Other liabilities
Liabilities associated with assets
held for sale
Deferred tax liabilities
Subordinated notes issued

Total liabilities

Note
BisE

BE
RehBBES 15
RITRER S B
ML
REXZRBEE 16
TTHESHmITA 17(b)
EFPER 18
[BEESE

JEFT B R E A & B
LABESHRE ANETE 2

EES 19
BRI A FEER
HEfvz2ARETEZ
BAES 20
AL EeREE 21
REIERE 22
N ANl 23
EE B E 25(a)
BELECEE 26
RIETIEEE 32(b)
BERTE

as

RITRER SR

Wt 2 PR R AR 28
BEPTFR 29
RGEET2AE 30
BTG
BEITEBES
PTESRIA 17(b)
HEMBaE 31
FELEEEZ

HEABE

BEIEFIEAE 32(b)
BEITRERE 33
BERE

SEMBARRE

31 December 1 January 31 December
2018 2018 2017
—E-N\F —T-)N\F —FtF
+=A —H +=A
=t+-—-H —H =t—H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET THTT FET
5,981,567 5,131,404 5,138,534
2,060,262 557,437 558,348
1,898,372 1,846,823 1,846,823
796,595 705,165 705,165
47,699,240 47,668,418 47,583,317
907,964 879,838 880,255
1,385,311 1,436,269 1,436,269
36,889,767 33,005,143 -
809,330 544,409 -

- - 32,243,660

- - 1,561,796

- 2,390,675 2,390,809
4,312,504 4,100,320 4,100,320
45,827 43,900 43,900

7 9 6
102,786,746 98,309,810 98,484,202
9,467,425 11,207,295 11,207,295
68,247,798 62,067,793 62,067,793
1,898,372 1,846,819 1,846,819
4,551,273 3,311,457 3,311,457
388,774 1,179,009 1,179,009
133,347 228,216 228,216
1,836,703 2,084,571 2,074,503
25 - -
676,552 612,924 643,338
1,562,870 1,557,472 1,557,472
88,763,139 84,095,556 84,115,902
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e UBRRE

As at 31 December 2018 R-_Z—\F+_-_A=+—H

31 December 1 January 31 December
2018 2018 2017
—E-N\FE —E-N\F S
+=A —A +=A
=t+-H —H =t—H
Note HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FfaE FET FAT FAET
EQUITY %

Share capital B 34 4,830,448 4,830,448 4,830,448
Reserves B 9,193,159 7,876,009 8,030,055

Total equity attributable to & R ez
shareholders of the Bank 14,023,607 12,706,457 12,860,503
Additional equity instruments BIMEART A 36 - 1,507,797 1,507,797
Total equity MR 4ATE 14,023,607 14,214,254 14,368,300
Total equity and liabilities Hm N BERTE 102,786,746 98,309,810 98,484,202

Approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 19 March ~ KEE@RN_ZT—NF= AT N BRBRIRERMG
2019.

Ming-Chung (Daniel) TSAI Robert James KENRICK Raymond Wing Hung LEE

R HEgs £ 90

Director Director Director

EF EE BE

The notes on pages 77 to 220 form part of these financial statements. BNETTE220E M AL ST HRE 2 —HD °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HE—-T—N\F+-_A=1+—HILFE

Investment ~ Premises Foreign Aaditional
Share  Regulatory  revaluation  revaluation  exchange Retained equity Total
capital reserve resenve reserve resenve eamings Totd  instruments equity
REERE  WEER  EHE BIMRE

BE - ARREE B L BE  REEA ot IR BioEE

HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO0D  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSO00

TRT  TER TER TR TER TEr TR TER TEn

At 1 January 2017 WoE-tE-A-B 4830448 5417 46656 2206786 (180829 3853186 11372634 - 1137263

Total comprehensive income for -~~~ AEE2EMHLE

the year - - 399,900 331,448 171,192 516,776 1,479,316 - 1479316
- Poft for the year -KEREH - - - - - 5338 583383 - 583383
- Other comprehensive income, ~ —Hfh 2 ENE
of which: Ehag:
- Premises: net movementin -W%  NEBHE
premises revaluation reserve B35y - - - 331448 - - 331448 - 314
- Remeasurement of net - BT BE
defined bensfit iability BEFE - - - - - (6,607) (6,607) - (6,607)
- Avallable-for-sale financial -EESE
assets: net movement in BE  REERE
investment revaluation reserve E5g - - 399900 - - - 399900 - 399900
- Exchange differences on ~BENFNE
tranglafion of an associate BFRAEE - - - - - - TR
Diution on an associate NG - - - - - 8,553 8,553 - 8553
Transfer (to)/fom retained eamings ~ E(Z) /B RE % - (28,324) - (11,122) - 99,446 - - -
lssuance of additional equity BIBIRATA
instruments - - - - - - - 1507797 1,507,797
At 31 December 2017 RIF—t5
“F=1-H 4,830,448 499,093 446556 2,556,112 (0637) 4587931 12860508 1,507,797 14,368,300
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
RERmBBEER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE—-T—N\F+-_A=1+—HILtFE

Investment ~ Investment

revaluation revaluation  Premises Foreign Additional
Share  Regulatory reserve (non-  reserve revaluation  exchange Retained equity Total
capital reserve  recycling)  (recycling) reserve reseve  eamings Total instruments equity
REEffEE REEMHRE  MEER  MAR A
BA  iEBE  (FER) (%) i .  REEH it IR BhEEE
HK$'000 HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS$'000
Thn TAn T Thn Thn TAn T T Thn TAn
At 31 December 2017 O o
=1-f 4,830,448 499,093 - 446556 2,556,112 (0637) 4537931 12860503 1,507,797 14,368,300
Opening balance adjusiments arishg &3 HRE8IME
flom change inaccounting poliy IS L ER - - 332008 (515057 - - 28018 (154,046) - (154,046)
At1 Janvay 2018 HOT-)E-F-B 4800448 400000 32008 (68501) 25612 (0631 4565044 12706457 1507707 14214254
Total comprehensivencomefor ~ ERZENHAE
the year - - 259 68,501 262,501 9,637 824,021 1,390,605 - 1,390,605
- Prot for the year -1TERAET - - - - - - 808 8288 - 8088
- Other comprehensive inoome, of ~ ~E2EUE
which: At
- Premises: net movement n -0 DEER
premises revaluation resenve REFY - - - - 262501 - - 260501 - 262501
- Eouty securites designated ~BRAATERR
at FVOC: net movement in Hfp2EhETE
investment revaluation reserve IR Z
EffRRTEE = - 259 - - - - 225939 - 259
- Debt securties designated ~BENATEER
at FVOC: net movement in A2 EhETE
investment revaluation reserve LERER RE
EfRRTEY - - - 118116 - - - 118116 - 118,116
-Remeasurementofnet defned ~ — B BT
beneft iabiity 8EFE = = - - - - 1,199 1,199 - 1,199
- Movement in foreign exchange -RERE
fesene 28 - - - - - (a64%) - (64%) - (643
-Realzafonupon disposal ofan~ —HERERTE
associate 28 - - - (49,615) - 226,011 - 176,456 - 176,456
Realization upon disposal of an HEBENTBER
assoclate - - - - (57,629) - 57,629 - - -
Transfer fom/to) retained eamings B8 /(2 )RE&H - 31520 - - (81,564) - 44,044 - - -
Dividend payment for adaitional equity  SHESMRAT AR
nstruments k& - - - - - - (12986)  (72,986) - (72,986)
Redemption of adiional equty EEBIMRATA
instruments - - - - - - (469) (469)  (1,507,797)  (1,508,266)
At 31 December 2018 RE-N\ET2R
=t-H 4,830448 536,613 558,937 - 2679420 - 5418180 14,023,607 - 14,023,607
The notes on pages 77 to 220 form part of these financial statements. HPNETTE220B 7 iE B ERBRE 7 —5 ©
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
mERERBR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HE—-T—N\F+-_A=1+—HILFE

2018 2017
“E-N\§ —TtF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
st TET T T T
Operating activities BEEH
Profit before taxation BRRADRF 924,080 693,464
Adjustments for non-cash items: FREER AR
Depreciation ne 138,543 133,081
Net gains on disposal of fixed assets HERE&E 2 e (16) (61)
Impairment losses on advances to customers EPERRERS 48,953 67,829
Write back of impairment losses on other financial ~ E {4 & EREEIEZ T
assets # (20,010) -
(Write back of//charge for impairment losses on EnEENESEL(E
other assets &)/ (5:492) 5,553
Write back of impairment losses on assets held RELE BERERR
for sale mf3 (1,543) (1,200)
Write back of imparment losses on assets BIEGEERZMEEET
acquired under lending agreement BB E (1,100) (1,700)
Net gains on disposal of financial assets at HENBERAGT S/
amortized cost BEFNE (399) -
Share of profits of an assaciate JE(EE A RRF (269,921) (237,103)
Gain on bargain purchase of an associate HEKERE A (70,255) -
Loss on disposal of an associate HEBENAER 118,768 -
Dilution loss arising from investment in an EBENRRREMESEN
associate EEEE = 60,883
Impairment losses on available-for-sale financial R ESREERERE
assets = 1,286
Net gains on disposal of available-for-sale HEAHEESHEETR
financial assets Ey = (1,310)
Exchange difference and other non-cash items EREEREMIEREIER 5,536 25,625
867,144 746,357
(Increase)/Decrease in operating assets: BELE(EM),/ R
Treasury bills with original maturity of BEH(RAHR A
over three months =EAMLE) (2,618,253) 689,370
Balances with banks and other ROAERAMEREE
financial institutions e (831,253) 786,011
Derivative financial instruments THEERIA (91,430) 48,079
Gross advances to customers RFERHE (79,774) (4,332,307)
Trade bills BERE (27,785) (650,118)
Equity securities designated at fair value EEARTEBEREMEZE
through other comprehensive income Wzt 8 2 RAE S 5,665 -
Accrued interest and other assets e FIE REMEE 66,729 (374,779)
Certificates of deposit held PR 576,438 239,362
Debt securities measured at amortized cost WESARK AT 2 2 EBES (885,987) -
Financial assets designated at fair value through BT ARBBRENRBRAT
profit or loss BEzRAE = 39,226
Available-for-sale financial assets RHESREE = (1,677,218)
Held-to-maturity investments BERISRE = (11,912)
(3,885,650) (5,244,286)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

RERERBR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE—-T—N\F+-_A=1+—HILtFE

(Decrease)/increase in operating liabilities:

Deposits and balances of banks and other
financial institutions

Deposits from customers
Trading liabilities
Derivative financial instruments
Certificates of deposit issued
Other liabilities

Net cash generated from/(used in) operations
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid
Overseas tax paid

Net cash generated from/(used in)
operating activities

Investing activities
Net proceeds from disposal of an associate

Payment for investment in an associate
Dividend received from an associate
Payment for purchases of fixed assets
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets

Net cash generated from/(used in) investing
activities

Financing activities
Net repayment of debt securities
Dividends payment on additional equity
instruments
Redemption of additional equity instruments
Proceeds from issuance of additional equity
instruments

Net cash (used in)/generated from
financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents as at
1 January

Cash and cash equivalents as at
31 December

Cash flows from operating activities include:
Interest received

Interest paid

Dividends received

The notes on pages 77 to 220 form part of these financial statements.
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2018 2017
“E-N\f i S o3
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
iz T T FEn FiEn
BEARBZ(RD)/Em:
ROFEREMSRERE .
RS (1,739,870) 230,891
EPER 6,180,005 (1,496,068)
RHRETEE 51,553 (163,476)
(TESRIA (94,869) (215,498)
BERIERE 1,239,816 476,567
Enai (259,295) 853,656
5,377,340 (313,928)
BEZESWA/(ZH)FHE 2,358,834 (4,811,857
BEREENEH (101,162) (25,564)
ERENIE (4,694) (8,729)
2EFRH AU/ (RHE)
ek 2,252,978 (4,846,144)
REEs
HE—HHEDRMEHE
ek 3,239,180 -
WS EARIRE 2R (575,071) -
B e ARz RE 45,684 86,278
BEETEENT (81,184) (106,549)
HEETEEMEHE 77 82
BEZHREWA/(XH)
R 2,628,686 (20,189)
BEEH
BEEREF TR (790,373) (59,415)
TR T ERMRE
(72,986) -
BREMRATA (1,508,266) -
BIEIMBATEMSE
T - 1,507,797
BEZEB RS (XH) /WA
T 37(c) (2,371,625) 1,448,382
BeRERAREEE 28N/
(HD) 358 2,510,039 (3,417,951)
R-B-BzE&R
ZRRLER 7,206,165 10,624,116
RT-A=+-H2H8eR
ZRBRLER 37() 9,716,204 7,206,165
EETHCASRERSE
B YA 2 2,649,705 2,116,636
BERFIE (1,248,842) (898,458)
Bz 2 15,874 102,902
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1.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACTIVITIES

Fubon Bank (Hong Kong) Limited (“The Bank”) is a licensed bank
incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and has its registered office at
38 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong.

The Bank, through its branches and subsidiaries, provides a range of
banking, financial and related services.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

(c)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”),
which collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. A summary of the significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

New and revised HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are
first effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group. Note 2(d) provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Group for
the current and prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is
not yet effective for the current accounting period.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2018 comprise the Bank and its subsidiaries (together
referred to as the “Group”) and the Group’s interests in associates.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis except that the following
assets and liabilities are stated at their fair value as explained in the
accounting policies set out below:

— equity securities designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (see Note 2(h));

—  trading assets (see Note 2(h));

derivative financial instruments (see Note 2())); and

— owned properties (see Note 2())).

Fr 75 3 5 B

£
ERET(EB)ARDR (AT A—HRER

AEMACSL Y A B B AR SRR TT -

HEE s

FRANESTREHETIBH -

ATEBEDTTRHE A REMH —

FIRT - 2

BRABRY -
ETEEITBR

(a)

(b)

(c)

BTEH
WEFBREREBEDTEGHMRSRMH
—ER(ERMBREEADMER - %50
BER-ERNENEEMEREER
(BReEA)RRRAREBEERAN
SEHRA - L ERBIE T A ER(RRIE
PDRERRTE - AEBMRANEESHR
RRBHN T -

I RGBT BB K REER
BAGHMAGEEGE TEH T REER]
BAMBRMEER - RSB AR A
BHRERS AT IR PR - EAENZE
WE TSI B EFBOREE) - ERLENH
BEUAREERSHEERURI G FEER
58 - HIRHE2() -

A A R (T SRR R S
ZHTRASRTE -
MBERENREREE
BE-T-NFt-ASt-BLEEZE
ARBRE  BEATRANBARARA
EZE DEVESS FERVOrE L
BRB A FRAGT HERRER KA

% BTIIARAFEEIRNEERAE(N
TXHETHEAER)RI

- ETEUAATEEAEMZERSEZ
PAE S (RHTE2(N)

- BEXRSRREE(RKE2MN) ;

- TEERTA(RME) &

- FEEHEEzMERME2) -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
3R o Bt

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c) Basis of preparation of the financial statements (continued)
In addition, the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities carried at
amortized cost that are designated as hedged items in a fair value
hedge are adjusted for fair value changes attributable to the hedged

risk.

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale are stated at
the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell (see Note

2(m)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from

these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the

revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs that
have a significant effect on the financial statements and major sources

of estimation uncertainty are discussed in Note 48.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d) Changes in accounting policies
(1) HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
3R o Bt

2. FESHHEX @)
(d) BTEERES
(1) BBRBREEREY  ¢MITE

HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39, Financial instruments: recognition
and measurement. It sets out the requirements for recognising and
measuring financial assets, financial liabilities and some contracts
to buy or sell non-financial items. The Group adopted HKFRS 9
retrospectively for items that existed at 1 January 2018 in accordance
with the transition requirements and took advantage of the exemption
in paragraph 7.2.15 of HKFRS 9 from restating prior periods. As
such, the Group recognizes cumulative effect of the initial application
of HKFRS 9 as an adjustment to the opening balance of equity at 1
January 2018. Comparative information is not restated and continues
to be reported under HKAS 39. The following table gives a summary
of the opening balance adjustments recognized for each line item
in the consolidated statement of financial position that has been
impacted:

ASSETS BE

Cash and short-term funds RehEHES
Balances with banks and other financial institutions
Advances to customers RFER

Trade bills BERE

Debt securities measured at amortized cost LA%?%@JEZF& 573
Equity securities designated at fair value through other BEAATEBEREMD

comprehensive income %WﬁlmﬁriZJ&m&
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEHESRHEE
Held-to-maturity investments Hi@]ﬁﬂ?ﬁﬁ
Interests in associates RN E 2 g
Deferred tax assets EETEAE
LIABILITIES G
Other liabilities HEinafk
Deferred tax liabilities EXHBEE
EQUITY R
Reserves [t

ERMBRE LR BEIRIMAE B ER
F0RERMIA ﬁw FHE - HATHSE
BE SHaBERYIEEHSRBESY
AR EEX - AEBREBEETY
R-Z—N\&E—A—AEFENERBHEK
ERPREEDNFN - AKIEE TR
ERABHRET 215 P BAEIFTEE
B o Bt - NEBERVGEBE AN SR
LHEAFOFK Y RETHE  (ERH-T—/\F
—A—BREZHVEH AR - LBRERE
EREREGENFEIRLEY - TAKSE
5l o TERBARAMIBSHRARAREENS
5 B FTRER R BB A R F 2

BROTRE A SRR

31 December  Opening balance 1 January
2017 adjustments 2018
—E+F H1) —T-N\F
+ZA=+—H TR —R—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FET TET
5,133,534 (2,130 5,131,404
558,348 911) 557,437
47,583,317 85,101 47,668,418
880,255 417) 879,838

- 33,005,143 33,005,143

- 544,409 544,400
32,243,660 (32,243,660) -
1,561,796 (1,561,796) -
2,390,809 (134) 2,390,675
6 3 9
2,074,503 10,068 2,084,571
643,338 (30,414) 612,924
8,030,055 (154,046) 7,876,009
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d) Changes in accounting policies (continued)
(1) HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments (continued)
Balances as at 1 January 2018 disclosed in the consolidated
statement of financial position and related notes have incorporated
opening adjustments on balances as at 31 December 2017 in

80
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(d) 5BEREE ()

u)?%%ﬁﬁ%%%%ﬁﬁ
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Eﬁ%%iaﬁﬁ%%&%%ﬁ
MY -—T—+FE+=-A=+—B 2 EsiMT

ERMITRE)
ﬁ?ﬁ%ﬂkﬁ%&
HERIFENR

accordance HKFRS 9. The balances as at 31 December 2017 have FAE —E—+FF+_A=1t—HZ&EHEK

not been represented.

The following table summarizes the impact of transition to HKFRS
9 on retained eamnings and reserves and the related tax impact at 1

January 2018:

Retained earnings
Difference between provision of impairment loss

allowance under HKAS 39 and HKFRS 9 on financial

assets measured at amortized cost
Effect on the adoption of HKFRS 9 of
an associate
Tax related adjustments

Net increase in retained earnings at 1 January 2018

Investment revaluation reserve (recycling)
Transfer to investment revaluation reserve

(non-recycling) relating to equity securities now

measured at FVOCI
Reversal of revaluation gain due to change
in classification

Effect on the adoption of HKFRS 9 of an associate

Tax related adjustments

Net decrease in investment revaluation
reserve (recycling) at 1 January 2018

Investment revaluation reserve (non-recycling)
Transfer from investment revaluation reserve (recycling)
relating to equity securities now measured at FVOCI

Net increase in investment revaluation reserve
(non-recycling) at 1 January 2018
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HK$'000
THETT
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1,001
(5,333)

28,013

(332,998)

(216,674)
(1,135)
35,750

(515,057)
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(1) HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments (continued)
Further details of the nature and effect of the changes to previous
accounting policies and the transition approach are set out below:

()

Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities

HKFRS 9 groups financial assets into three principal classification
categories: measured at amortized cost, at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) and at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVPL”"). These supersede HKAS 39’s categories
of held-to-maturity investments, loans and receivables, available-
for-sale financial assets and financial assets measured at FVPL.
The classification of financial assets under HKFRS 9 is based on
the business model under which the financial asset is managed
and its contractual cash flow characteristics.

Debt securities investments held by the Group are classified into
one of the following measurement categories:

amortized cost, if the investment is held for the collection of
contractual cash flows which represent solely payments of
principal and interest. Interest income from the investment is
calculated using the effective interest method;

FVOCI (recycling), if the contractual cash flows of the
investment comprise solely payments of principal and
interest and the investment is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by both the collection
of contractual cash flows and sale. Changes in fair value
are recognized in other comprehensive income, except for
the recognition in profit or loss of expected credit losses,
interest income (calculated using the effective interest
method) and foreign exchange gains and losses. When the
investment is derecognized, the amount accumulated in
other comprehensive income is recycled from equity to profit
or loss; or

FVPL, if the investment is held for trading or otherwise
does not meet the criteria for being measured at amortized
cost or FVOCI (recycling). Changes in the fair value of the
investment (including interest) are recognized in profit or
loss.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d) Changes in accounting policies (continued)
(1) HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments (continued)

82

U

Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)
An investment in equity securities is classified as FVPL unless
the equity investment is not held for trading purposes and
on initial recognition of the investment, the Group makes an
election to designate the investment at FVOCI (non-recycling)
such that subsequent changes in fair value are recognized in
other comprehensive income. Such elections are made on
an instrument-by-instrument basis, but may only be made if
the investment meets the definition of equity from the issuer’s
perspective. The FVOCI designation is made because the non-
trading equity investments are expected to be held for long-term
strategic purposes. Where such an election is made, the amount
accumulated in other comprehensive income remains in the
investment revaluation reserve (non-recycling) until the investment
is disposed of. At the time of disposal, the amount accumulated
in the investment revaluation reserve (non-recycling) is transferred
to retained earnings. It is not recycled through profit or loss.
Dividends from an investment in equity securities, irrespective
of whether classified as at FVPL or FVOCI (non-recycling), are
recognized in profit or loss as other operating income. Under
HKFRS 9, derivatives embedded in contracts where the host is a
financial asset within the scope of the standard are not separated
from the host. Instead, the hybrid instrument as a whole is
assessed for classification.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS MY
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. FESHHE®)
(d) Changes in accounting policies (continued) (d) EtBEEH (&)
(1) HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments (continued) (1) BEBUHREERESE  eMIAE)
(i) Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities (continued) () =HEERTHEEZLHEE)
The following table shows the original measurement categories TRETAEEREESSIENE39
for each class of the Group’s financial assets under HKAS 39 BAMEESHEeREE L RRTEEH
and reconciles the carrying amounts of those financial assets IR AV BREERFERMET
determined in accordance with HKAS 39 to those determined in ZESMEBEZEREZHEE -
accordance with HKFRS 9.
HKAS 39 HKFRS 9
carrying carrying
amount as at amount as at
31 December 1 January
2017 Reclassification  Remeasurement 2018
REEEET REZEME
ERIZE305H HEEAZS
I 3 R N\E
+-A=1+-H —A—Bz
LEEE Ekipay BitE REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEr Tisn T Ti5n
Financial assets carried at amortized cost LU ATIE 2 £ REE
Cash and short-term funds BeLRigs 5,133,534 - (2,130) 5,131,404
Balances with banks and other BIREREMSREELS
financial institutions 558,348 - (911) 557,437
Advances to customers REEN 47,583,317 - 85,101 47,668,418
Trade bils BERE 880,255 - (417) 879,838
Debt securities measured at amortized cost BRI A & 2 BIES 1,561,796 31,699,251 (255,904) 33,005,143
55,717,250 31,699,251 (174,261) 87,242,240
Financial assets measured NATEERAMZERETEZ
at FVOCI (non-recycling) SREE(FER)
Equity securities krES - 544,409 - 544,409
Financial assets measured at FVPL BRERNRBATLERSEY
SREE
Trading assets BERPREEE 1,846,823 - - 1,846,823
Derivatives financial instruments fTEERMTE 705,165 - - 705,165
2,551,983 - - 2,551,988
Financial assets classified as available-for- 1FIEE S S ERE39% A
sale under HKAS 39* THHEZ SREE" 32,243,660 (32,243,660) - -
* The fair value of the financial assets reclassified from available-for- Y REF-NFFZA=F—H RFE
sale under HKAS 39 into the amortized cost category under HKFRS 1E#24,432,177,0008 T 89 B EETS
9 amounted to HK$24,432,177,000 at 31 December 2018. Fair AIREE BB ERIF 395 By AT i &
value loss of HK$122,451,000 would have been recognized during BN EEREE B HHEERE
the year ended 31 December 2018 in other comprehensive income BRHIBIL IR - EZE 2 HEER
if the financial assets had not been reclassified. BR¥E BE-FT—/\F+=A=1H

LIFFER R -FEEEEH 122,451,000
BT B REMZ W AR o
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d) Changes in accounting policies (continued)
(1) HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments (continued)

84

U

(i)

Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)
The measurement categories for the Group’s financial liabilities
remain the same after the adoption of HKFRS 9 and there is
no impact on the carrying amounts of all financial liabilities at 1
January 2018, on the initial application of HKFRS 9.

The Group did not designate or de-designate any financial asset
or financial liability at FVPL at 1 January 2018.

Credit losses

HKFRS 9 replaces the incurred loss model in HKAS 39 with the
Expected Credit Loss (“ECL”) model. The ECL model requires an
ongoing measurement of credit risk associated with a financial
asset and therefore recognizes ECLs earlier than under the
incurred loss accounting model in HKAS 39.

The Group applies the new ECL model on all financial assets that
are measured at amortized cost, including cash and short-term
funds, balances with banks and other financial institutions, trade
bills and debt securities measured at amortized cost, and credit
related commitments and contingencies. The Group does not
recognize ECL in respect of accrued interest and others assets as
the impact is considered to be immaterial.

The application of the ECL model is more fully discussed in Note
2(p).

Basis of calculation of interest income on credit-impaired (or
defaulted) financial assets

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit-impaired,
in which case interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance of the financial asset.

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of

the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired (or defaulted)
includes the following observable events:

- significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a past due event or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d) Changes in accounting policies (continued)
(1) HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments (continued)
(i) Credit losses (continued)

2. FESHHEX @)
(d) BsTEEEF (@)
(1) BBBBHREENBR  ¢MIA(E)
(i) af@EMﬂ

— it becoming probable that the borrower will enter into
bankruptcy or other financial reorganization;

— significant changes in the technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have an adverse effect on the
debtor; or

— the disappearance of an active market for a security
because of financial difficulties of the issuer.

Modified financial instruments

Where the original contractual terms of a financial asset have
been modified for credit reasons and the instrument has not been
derecognized, the resulting modification loss is recognized within
impairment in profit or loss with a corresponding decrease in the
gross carrying value of the asset. If the modification involved a
concession that the Group would not otherwise consider, the
instrument is considered to be credit-impaired and is considered
forborne.

These assets are assessed to determine whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk subsequent to the
modification. Although loans may be modified for non-credit
reasons, a significant increase in credit risk may occur. ECL
for modified financial assets that have not been derecognized
and are not considered to be credit-impaired will be recognized
on a 12-month basis, or a lifetime basis, if there is a significant
increase in credit risk.

In addition to the recognition of modification gains and losses,
the revised carrying value of modified financial assets will impact
the calculation of ECL, with any increase or decrease in ECL
recognized within impairment.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either
partially or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case when the Group determines
that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income
that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts
subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously written off
are recognized as a reversal of impairment loss in profit or loss
for the period in which the recovery occurs.

Financial assets that are written off could still be subject to
enforcement activities in order to comply with the Group’s
procedures for recovery of amounts due.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(d) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

86

1

@

HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments (continued)

(i) Credit losses (continued)
Opening balance adjustment
The following table reconciles the closing impairment loss
allowance determined in accordance with HKAS 39 as at 31
December 2017 with the opening impairment loss allowance
determined in accordance with HKFRS 9 as at 1 January 2018.

2. FESHBEXR®)
(d) ETBEEE (5
(1) BEBBREELER  ¢HMITAH)
(i) 1ZBEEE)
B
TREJIBEEBHERFE305%
THE-E—+E+-A=+—HZH
REFRRERREE MR E
BBoHETHE-S—\F—A—

Impairment loss allowance as at
31 December 2017 under HKAS 39
Additional impairment loss allowance
recognized at 1 January 2018 on:
— Cash and short-term funds
— Balances with banks and other financial institutions
— Trade bills
— Debt securities measured at amortized cost
— Credit related commitments and contingencies
Reduction of impairment loss allowance recognized
at 1 January 2018 on:
— Advances to customers

Impairment loss allowance as at
1 January 2018 under HKFRS 9

B2 BB EE B 2 HR -
HK$’000
FAT
BIEESCEREREE—ZF—+
F+ - A=+—BZREEERE 289,031
RZZE—N\F—H—BRTI
FIEEREINREEBEE
—-HeMNEES 2,130
—RITRAIZE R EM S BB S 911
—BEERE 417
— B ANFTE 2 EISE S 39,230
—BREEAB AR NMHIATER 10,068
RZE—NF—A—BH T
ZIERERRESBIR
—RFEMR (85,101)
RIEREMSHREEUNEREE_Z
—N\F— A —RZREEIBEE 256,686

(i) Hedge accounting
The Group has chosen to continue to apply HKAS 39 hedging
requirements rather than those of HKFRS 9.

HKFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for recognising
revenue and some costs from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15
replaces HKAS 18, Revenue, which covered revenue arising from
sale of goods and rendering of services, and HKAS 11, Construction
contracts, which specified the accounting for construction contracts.

The Group performed an assessment of the new standard and
concluded that the current treatment of revenue from contracts with
customers is consistent with the new principles. The adoption of
HKFRS 15 does not have any material impact on the Group’s financial
position and there is no transitional impact to retained earnings.
Under HKFRS 15, a receivable is recognized only if the Group has
an unconditional right to consideration. If the Group recognizes
the related revenue before receiving the consideration or being
unconditionally entitled to the consideration for the promised goods
and services in the contract, then the entitlement to consideration
is classified as a contract asset. The contract asset is transferred to
receivables when the right to consideration becomes unconditional.
Similarly, a contract liability, rather than a payable, is recognized
when a customer pays consideration, or is contractually required to
pay consideration and the amount is already due, before the Group
recognizes the related revenue.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(e) Investments in subsidiaries

U]

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls
an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable retuns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing whether the Group
has power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences until the
date that control ceases.

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealized profits
arising from intra-group transactions, are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealized losses resulting from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealized
gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

In the Bank’s statement of financial position, its investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment losses, if any (see Note
2(p)).

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or the Bank has
significant influence, but not control or joint control, over its
management, including participation in the financial and operating
policy decisions.

The investment in an associate in the Philippines is not equity
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements as it is
considered by the directors to be immaterial to the Group. It is
stated at cost less impairment losses in the Group’s and the Bank’s
statement of financial position. The result of this associated company is
included in the Group’s and the Bank’s profit or loss to the extent of
dividends receivable.

The investment in an associate in the People’s Republic of China
is accounted for in the consolidated financial statements under
the equity method. It is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any
excess of the Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values of the
investee’s net identifiable assets over the cost of the investment (if
any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for the post-acquisition
change in the Group’s share of the associate’s net assets and any
impairment loss relating to the investment, if any (see Note 2(y)). The
Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the associate
and any impairment losses for the year are recognized in profit or
loss. The Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post tax items of the
associate’s other comprehensive income is recognized in the Group’s
other comprehensive income.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

88

®

(9)

Interests in associates (continued)

If the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the associate,
the Group’s interest would be reduced to nil and recognition of
further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of the associate. The Group’s interest in the associate is the carrying
amount of the investment under the equity method. In all other cases,
when the Group ceases to have significant influence over an associate,
it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that investee,
with a resulting gain or loss being recognized in profit or loss.

Unrealized profits and losses resulting from transactions between the
Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the associate, except where unrealized losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they
are recognized immediately in profit or loss.

In the Bank’s statement of financial position, its investments in both
associates are stated at cost less impairment losses, if any (see Note
2(p)).

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of

() the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and
the fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities
measured as at the acquisition date.

When (i) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognized immediately
in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated to each cash-
generating unit, or groups of cash generating units, that is expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination and is tested annually
for impairment (see Note 2(y)). In respect of associates, the carrying
amount of goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the interest
in associates and the investment as a whole is tested for impairment
whenever there is objective evidence of impairment (see Note 2(y)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any attributable

amount of purchased goodwill is included in the calculation of the
profit or loss on disposal.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Financial instruments

@

(ii)

Initial recognition

The Group’s policies for investments in debt and equity securities,
other than investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures,
are set out below.

Investments in debt and equity securities are recognized/derecognized
on the date the Group commits to purchase/sell the investment. The
investments are initially stated at fair value plus directly attributable
transaction costs, except for those investments measured at FVPL for
which transaction costs are recognized directly in profit or loss. These
investments are subsequently accounted for as follows, depending on
their classification.

Categorization

Investments other than equity investments

Non-equity investments held by the Group are classified into one of
the following measurement categories:

— amortized cost, if the investment is held for the collection of
contractual cash flows which represent solely payments of
principal and interest. Interest income from the investment is
calculated using the effective interest method;

- FVOCI (recycling), if the contractual cash flows of the investment
comprise solely payments of principal and interest and the
investment is held within a business model whose objective is
achieved by both the collection of contractual cash flows and
sale. Changes in fair value are recognized in other comprehensive
income, except for the recognition in profit or loss of expected
credit losses, interest income (calculated using the effective
interest method) and foreign exchange gains and losses. When
the investment is derecognized, the amount accumulated in
other comprehensive income is recycled from equity to profit or
loss; or

- FVPL, if the investment is held for trading or otherwise does not
meet the criteria for being measured at amortized cost or FVOCI
(recycling). Changes in the fair value of the investment (including
interest) are recognized in profit or loss.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

90

(h)
(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Financial instruments (continued)

Categorization (continued)

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVPL unless
the equity investment is not held for trading purposes and on
initial recognition of the investment, the Group makes an election
to designate the investment at FVOCI (non-recycling) such
that subsequent changes in fair value are recognized in other
comprehensive income. Such elections are made on an instrument-
by-instrument basis, but may only be made if the investment meets
the definition of equity from the issuer’s perspective. The FVOCI
designation is made when the non-trading equity investments are
expected to be held for long-term strategic purposes. Where such an
election is made, the amount accumulated in other comprehensive
income remains in the investment revaluation reserve (non-recycling)
until the investment is disposed of. At the time of disposal, the
amount accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve (non-
recycling) is transferred to retained earnings. It is not recycled through
profit or loss. Dividends from an investment in equity securities,
irrespective of whether classified as at FVPL or FVOCI (non-recycling),
are recognized in profit or loss as other operating income.

Fair value measurement principles

The fair value of financial instruments is ideally based on their quoted
market prices at the end of the reporting period without any deduction
for estimated future selling costs. Financial assets are priced at
current bid prices, while financial liabilities are priced at current asking
prices.

If there is no publicly available latest traded price nor a quoted market
price on a recognized stock exchange, a price from a broker/dealer
for non-exchange-traded financial instruments is used. If the market
for a financial instrument is not active, the fair value of the instrument is
estimated using a valuation technique that provides a reliable estimate
of the price which could be obtained in an actual market transaction.

Where discounted cash flow techniques are used, estimated future
cash flows are based on management’s best estimates and the
discount rate used is a market rate at the end of the reporting period
applicable for an instrument with similar terms and conditions. Where
other pricing models are used, inputs are based on market data at the
end of the reporting period.

Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognized when the contractual rights to
receive the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or where the
financial asset together with substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership, have been transferred.

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation specified in the
contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)
(v)

(vi)

@i

)

Financial instruments (continued)

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is
reported in the statement of financial position where there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or realize the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

Modified financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities whose original contractual
terms have been modified, including those loans subject to
forbearance strategies, are considered to be modified instruments.
Modifications may include changes to the tenor, cash flows and or
interest rates amongst other factors.

Where derecognition of financial assets is appropriate, the newly
recognized residual loans are assessed to determine whether the
assets should be classified as purchased or originated credit impaired
assets (“POCI").

Where derecognition is not appropriate, the gross carrying amount
of the applicable instruments are recalculated as the present value of
the renegotiated or modified contractual cash flows discounted at the
original effective interest rate (or credit adjusted effective interest rate
for POCI financial assets). The difference between the recalculated
values and the pre-modified gross carrying values of the instruments
are recorded as a modification gain or loss in profit or loss.

Repurchase and reverse repurchase transactions
Securities sold subject to a simultaneous agreement to repurchase
these securities at a certain later date at a fixed price (repurchase
agreement) are retained in the financial statements and measured in
accordance with their original measurement principles. The proceeds
from the sale are reported as liabilities and are carried at amortized
cost.

Securities purchased under agreements to resell (reverse repurchase
agreements) are reported as receivables and are carried at amortized
cost.

Interest earned on reverse repurchase agreements and interest
incurred on repurchase agreements is recognized as interest income
and interest expense respectively, over the life of each agreement
using the effective interest method.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognized at fair value. At the
end of each reporting period the fair value is remeasured. The gain
or loss on remeasurement to fair value is recognized immediately in
profit or loss, except where the derivatives qualify for cash flow hedge
accounting or hedges of net investment in a foreign operation, in
which case recognition of any resultant gain or loss depends on the
nature of the item being hedged.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(k) Hedging

92

(i)

Hedge accounting recognizes the offsetting effects on profit or loss of
changes in the fair values of the hedging instruments and the hedged
items. The Group assesses and documents whether the financial
instruments that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective
in offsetting changes in fair values of hedged items attributable to the
hedged risks both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis. Under
HKAS 39 hedge accounting is classified into three categories: (a) fair
value hedges; (b) cash flow hedges; and (c) net investment hedges.
The Group only applies hedge accounting for fair value hedging of
certain fixed rate debt securities measured at amortized cost and
certificates of deposit issued.

The Group discontinues prospectively hedge accounting when (a) the
hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised; (b) the
hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting; or (c) the
Group revokes the designation.

Fair value hedge

A fair value hedge seeks to offset risks of changes in the fair value
of recognized assets and liabilities that will give rise to a gain or loss
being recognized in profit or loss.

The hedging instruments are measured at fair value, with fair value
changes recognized in profit or loss. The carrying amounts of the
hedged items are adjusted by the changes in fair value attributable to
the risk being hedged. These adjustments are recognized in profit or
loss to offset the effect of gains or losses on the hedging instruments.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised,
the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting or
the Group revokes designation of the hedge relationship any
adjustment up to that point, to a hedged item for which the effective
interest method is used, is amortized to profit or loss as part of the
recalculated effective interest rate of the item over its remaining life.

Hedge effectiveness testing

In order to qualify for hedge accounting, the Group carries out
prospective effectiveness testing to demonstrate that it expects
the hedge to be highly effective at the inception of the hedge and
throughout its life. Actual effectiveness (retrospective effectiveness) is
also demonstrated on an ongoing basis.

The documentation of each hedging relationship sets out how the
effectiveness of the hedge is assessed. The method which the Group
adopts for assessing hedge effectiveness will depend on its risk
management strategy.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k) Hedging (continued)
(i) Hedge effectiveness testing (continued)

o

The Group utilises both cumulative dollar offset method and
regression analysis as the effectiveness testing methodologies for
retrospective testing. For prospective effectiveness, the hedging
instruments must be expected to be highly effective in achieving
offsetting changes in fair value attributable to the hedged risk
during the period for which the hedge is designated and is typically
demonstrated through matching of critical terms. For actual
effectiveness, the hedging instrument should demonstrate that it is
highly effective in offsetting changes in fair value attributable to the
hedged risk. The Group considers that where changes in fair value
offset each other in the range of 80 percent to 125 percent the hedge
is highly effective.

Property and equipment

The Group’s leasehold land and buildings are held under leasehold
agreements and, in the absence of reliable information to allow
separation of the land and buildings components under the leases the
land and buildings are accounted for as properties.

These leasehold land and buildings are stated at their revalued
amount, being their fair value at the date of the revaluation less any
subsequent accumulated depreciation. Revaluations are performed
with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying amount of these
assets does not differ materially from that which would be determined
using fair values at the end of the reporting period.

Changes arising on the revaluation of properties are generally dealt
with in other comprehensive income and are accumulated separately
in equity in the premises revaluation reserve. The only exceptions are
as follows:

— when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be charged to profit or
loss to the extent that it exceeds the amount held in the reserve
in respect of that same asset immediately prior to the revaluation;
and

— when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be credited to profit
or loss to the extent that a deficit on revaluation in respect of that
same asset had previously been charged to profit or loss.

Subsequent expenditure relating to a fixed asset that has already
been recognized is added to the carrying amount of the assets when
it is probable that future economic benefits, in excess of the originally
assessed standard of performance of the existing asset, will flow to
the Group. All other subsequent expenditure is recognized as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR ER M

2. FESHHEX @)
(k) ¥4
(i) BHEREARE)

0

AEEERRFERRBZERESOIES
BEPRHENAREAFATTE - R AR
MmE - @hTAGERBEEEL SRR
ERERMLEHEMEITRRMER 2 AF
BEEZDY AFRELYBREIEATER
1 RERAREME - S TAVAER
BREERRE AR EEME R RBREH
AFEEZE - AKERR > AFEER
B REB0%E126% M BEN A HE RS
ERR -

E IS
AEEREHEHASEHRELHRET
EERSFEMUAFREBRO AL INE
FZARIABERT T REFIIEDE
N

ZERELH BT HREEGSRER
B RSN A FEENREREFNRE)
FIfR - AEBE ST HETHGAERR IS
MAZEEAEZ REEAERATFEREE
ZEERBERER -

EfMEELZED - RAFINEMLZER
#R YRERAT ZMEERHETBL
K5t o ETIIBRERSD -

- BEMHREAR  BABHE-8E
REZERAZHEREEEREN
B R

— EREMGMHRBHRE - fHE—EEN
ELEEMBMBESHRE - JIAR
Bt RSB ARE  ELRANEE
REERATR ER-RBA -

WEZBEEEMBEENREBRELELA
RGNS (BHRBEEZMAFEZRE
RE)WRARKE - ZEEASHINER
BEZRAME - HUMAREEANEESE
BRI R RS °

Annual Report 2018 ik 93



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
3R o Bt

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
() Property and equipment (continued)

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of fixed assets
are determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the assets and are recognized in profit
or loss on the date of retirement or disposal. Any related revaluation
surplus is transferred from the premises revaluation reserve to

retained earnings and is not reclassified to profit or loss.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or valuation of items
of property and equipment using the straight line method over the

estimated useful lives as follows:

—  buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated over the
shorter of the unexpired term of the lease and their estimated
useful lives, being no less than 2% per annum after the date of

completion.

— furniture and equipment is generally depreciated over periods of

between three to ten years.

Where parts of an item of property and equipment have different useful
lives, the cost or valuation of the item is allocated on a reasonable
basis between the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both
the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed

annually.

(m) Assets held for sale

An asset is classified as held for sale if it is highly probable that its
carrying amount will be recovered through a sale transaction rather
than through continuing use and the asset is available for sale in its

present condition.

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the measurement of
the assets is brought up-to-date in accordance with the accounting
policies before the classification. Then, on initial classification as held
for sale and until disposal, the assets (except for certain assets as
explained below), are recognized at the lower of their carrying amount
and fair value less costs to sell. The principal exceptions to this
measurement policy so far as the financial statements of the Group
are concerned are deferred tax assets, assets arising from employee
benefits and financial assets (other than investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures). These assets, even if held for sale,
would continue to be measured in accordance with the policies set

out elsewhere in Note 2.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale, and on
subsequent remeasurement while held for sale, are recognized in
profit or loss. As long as an asset is classified as held for sale, the asset

is not depreciated or amortized.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)

@

(i)

(iii)

(o)

Leases and hire purchase contracts

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions,
is or contains a lease if the Group determines that the arrangement
conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period
of time in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a
determination is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes the
legal form of a lease.

Classification of leased assets

Leases which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee are classified as finance leases. Leases which
do not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee are classified as operating leases.

Finance leases

Where the Group is a lessor under finance leases, an amount
representing the net investment in the lease is included in the
statement of financial position as advances to customers. Hire
purchase contracts having the characteristics of finance leases are
accounted for in the same manner as finance leases. Impairment
losses are accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy for
impairment (see Note 2(p)).

Operating leases

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating leases,
payments made under the leases are charged to profit or loss in
equal instalments over the periods covered by the lease terms, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be delivered from the leased asset. Lease incentives
received are recognized in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregated net lease payments made. Contingent rentals are charged
to profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Repossessed assets

During the recovery of impaired advances to customers, the Group
may take repossession of assets held as collateral through court
proceedings or voluntary delivery of possession by the borrowers.
Where it is intended to achieve an orderly realization of the impaired
assets and the Group is no longer seeking repayment from the
borrower, repossessed assets are reported in “Accrued interest and
other assets” and the relevant loans and advances are derecognized.
The Group does not hold repossessed assets for its own use.

Repossessed assets are initially recorded at the lower of the amount
of the related loans and advances and fair value less costs to sell at
the date of exchange. They are not depreciated or amortized.

Impairment losses on subsequent remeasurement are recognized
in profit or loss. Any gains on subsequent remeasurement are
recognized in profit or loss subject to a cap at the amount of related
loans and advances at the date of exchange.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

96

(p) Credit losses and impairment of assets

HKFRS 9 replaces the incurred loss model in HKAS 39 with the ECL
model. The ECL model requires an ongoing measurement of credit
risk associated with a financial asset and therefore recognizes ECLs
earlier than under the incurred loss accounting model in HKAS 39.

The Group applies the ECL model on all financial assets that are
measured at amortized cost, including cash and short-term funds,
balances with banks and other financial institutions, advances to
customers, trade bills, debt securities measured at amortized cost,
and credit related commitments and contingencies. The Group does
not recognize ECL in respect of accrued interest and others assets as
the impact is considered to be immaterial.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit
losses are measured as the present value of all expected cash
shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive).

For credit related commitments and contingencies, expected cash
shortfalls are measured as the difference between (i) the contractual
cash flows that would be due to the Group if the holder of the credit
related commitments and contingencies draws down on the loan
and (i) the cash flows that the Group expects to receive if the loan is
drawn down.

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using the following
discount rates where the effect of discounting is material:

— fixed-rate financial assets, trade and other receivables and
contract assets: effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition or an approximation thereof.

— variable-rate financial assets: current effective interest rate.

—  credit related commitments and contingencies: current risk-free
rate adjusted for risks specific to the cash flows.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the
maximum contractual period over which the Group is exposed to
credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account reasonable and
supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort.
This includes information about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(p) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)
ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

— 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected to result
from possible default events within the 12 months after the
reporting date; or

— lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected to result from
all possible default events over the expected lives of the items to
which the ECL model applies.

The Group recognizes a loss allowance equal to 12-month ECLs
(“Stage 1”) unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk of
the financial instrument since initial recognition, in which case the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs (“Stage 2”
or, where classified as credit impaired, “Stage 3”).

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial instrument (including
credit related commitments and contingencies) has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk
of default occurring on the financial instrument assessed at the
reporting date with that assessed at the date of initial recognition. The
Group considers both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

Financial assets that are 30 days or more days past due and not
credit impaired will always be considered to have a significant
increase in credit risk. In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

— failure to make payments of principal or interest on their
contractually due dates;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in a financial
instrument’s external or internal credit rating (if available); or

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating
results of the debtor; and existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or legal environment that have
a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to meet its
obligation to the Group.

The Group assumes that there is no significant increase in credit risk
when a financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk at
the reporting date. For cash and short-term funds, balances with
banks and other financial institutions and debt securities measured
at amortized cost, the Group is utilizing the low credit risk simplified
approach. All obligors with investment grade ratings based on
external rating agencies are allocated to Stage 1.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

98

(p) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (continued)

For credit related commitments and contingencies, the date of initial
recognition for the purpose of assessing ECLs is considered to be the
date that the Group becomes a party to the irrevocable commitment.
In assessing whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition of a credit related commitment and
contingency, the Group considers changes in the risk of default
occurring on the loan to which the credit related commitment and
contingency relates.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect changes in the
financial instrument’s credit risk since initial recognition. Any change in
the ECL amount is recognized as an impairment loss or write-back of
impairment loss in profit or loss. The Group recognizes an impairment
loss or write-back of impairment loss for all financial instruments with
a corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account.

Basis of calculation of interest income on credit-impaired (or
defaulted) financial assets

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit-impaired, in
which case interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount less loss allowance of the financial asset.

Financial assets are considered to be credit-impaired where the
obligors are unlikely to pay on the occurrence of one or more
observable events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset. Financial assets that are
credit-impaired (or defaulted) include those that are at least 90 days
past due in respect of principal and/or interest. It may not be possible
to identify a single discrete event but instead the combined effect of
several events may cause financial assets to become credit-impaired.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired (or defaulted)
includes the following observable events:

significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

— abreach of contract, such as a past due event or delinquency in
interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the borrower will enter into bankruptcy
or other financial reorganization;

— significant changes in the technological, market, economic or
legal environment that have an adverse effect on the debtor; or

— the disappearance of an active market for a security because of
financial difficulties of the issuer.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(p) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income on credit-impaired (or
defaulted) financial assets (continued)

Credit losses against credit-impaired financial assets are determined
based on an assessment of the recoverable cash flows under a
range of scenarios, including the realization of any collateral held
where appropriate. The loss provisions held represent the difference
between the present value of the cash flows expected to be
recovered, discounted at the instrument’s original effective interest
rate, and the gross carrying value of the instrument prior to any credit
impairment.

Modified financial instruments

Where the original contractual terms of a financial asset have
been modified for credit reasons and the instrument has not been
derecognized, the resulting modification loss is recognized within
impairment in the profit or loss with a corresponding decrease in
the gross carrying value of the asset. If the modification involved
a concession that the Group would not otherwise consider, the
instrument is considered to be credit-impaired.

These assets are assessed to determine whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk subsequent to the modification.
Although loans may be modified for non-credit reasons, a significant
increase in credit risk may occur. ECL for modified financial assets
that have not been derecognized and are not considered to be credit-
impaired will be recognized on a 12-month basis, or a lifetime basis, if
there is a significant increase in credit risk.

In addition to the recognition of modification gains and losses, the
revised carrying value of modified financial assets will impact the
calculation of ECL, with any increase or decrease in ECL recognized
within impairment.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either
partially or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case when the Group determines that
the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the
write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously written off
are recognized as a reversal of impairment loss in profit or loss in the
period in which the recovery occurs.

Financial assets that are written off could still be subject to
enforcement activities in order to comply with the Group’s procedures
for recovery of amounts due.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(q) Cash equivalents

100

()
@

(i)

Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition.

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits include salaries, annual bonuses, paid
annual leave, contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits and are accrued in the year
in which the associated services are rendered by employees of the
Group. Where payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would
be material these amounts are stated at their present values.

Defined benefit retirement scheme

The Group’s net obligation in respect of its defined benefit retirement
scheme is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in return for their service in the current and
prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine the present
value and the fair value of any scheme assets is deducted. The
calculation is performed by a qualified actuary using the projected unit
credit method. When the calculation results in a benefit to the Group,
the recognized asset is limited to the present value of economic
benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the scheme
or reductions in future contributions to the scheme. Service cost and
net interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit liability (asset)
are recognized in profit or loss as part of “Staff costs”. Current service
cost is measured as the increase in the present value of the defined
benefit obligation resulting from employee service in the current
period. When the benefits of a scheme are changed, or when a
scheme is curtailed, the portion of the changed benefit related to past
service by employees, or the gain or loss on curtailment, is recognized
as an expense in profit or loss at the earlier of when the scheme
amendment or curtailment occurs and when related restructuring
costs or termination benefits are recognized. Net interest expense
(income) for the period is determined by applying the discount rate
used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the
reporting period to the net defined benefit liability (asset). The discount
rate is the yield at the end of the reporting period on high quality
corporate bonds that have maturity dates approximating the terms of
the Group’s obligations. Remeasurements arising from defined benefit
retirement schemes are recognized in other comprehensive income
and reflected immediately in retained earnings. Remeasurements
comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on scheme assets
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability (asset)) and any change in the effect of the asset ceiling
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability (asset)).

Fubon Bank & F8R1T

2. FESHBEXR®)

(a)

(r)
@i)

(ii)

£FREEE
ERFRCHEREPNRPLEESHNREER
B BUBERANRZHBREARENRES
HE o MArAASMEREDRBRE D - I
ERAR=EANDIH -

BERER

EHEEREF

RHRBRENEEGM SFEA  BHF
R~ ERUTURIKE BIHR R IFEERAIK
A REEERBREM ﬁ%ﬂﬂl&i‘%ZiFW%
af e HUEH%M%‘E TREERE
ZERBALRENR

ERBEARAEE
AEBARETEEEN RN BINFRBET
Tl aTHE B 77N 3 K 11 HA R B9 AR 7% P R A
ARBEHNEEME  ZRANCHHENERE
Eiﬁfﬁ WHRBABEEN R TEE - B
HEmaEREEMEREFELEEE
}Eﬂ et EHEREAREET - AHERH
BEERMEM AR A ERRKRKRD
MEr IR T NERLENENRE o iR
BRARTBRRIBE(BE)FENHMEX
RN BRI B R NRER BB X
ARIH—80 o RERISKA TR HE B R
BELAWERENEERENZNMEE -
et Bl BAI MRS - R BB - R
EEBRERBESEMNOLE - HEERAOW
SREBERFEEIAEERERERRE
MRAZR LR BEREREERBRER
WEERRX L - BAF B H (WA ) F8TY
FERRBRERNAN EEREMN RN
REMAEFRERMNFAB(EE)MET °
FRETDISEREEEFNREHROE R
X AENEFNHARAREMAERE
HRFIRE © ERRIERKEIELNERN
AENREMZERATERBZRRE
AR - B ERERBERERE
B AEEEZRR(TERt AR ERAE
REEE)NFNEANEE) REELRY
ENEMEH (T EEFAERENFAGE
(BE)WFNERNTE) -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. FESHHE®)
(s) Income tax (s) Fr8®i

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized in profit or loss
except to the extent that they relate to items recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognized in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the
year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities, and all
deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the asset can be utilized, are
recognized.

The amount of deferred tax recognized is measured based on the
expected manner of realization or settlement of the carrying amount
of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow the
related tax benefit to be utilized. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not offset.
Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred
tax assets against deferred tax liabilities if the Bank or the Group
has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Bank or the
Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either:
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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Income tax (continued)
—  the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets
are expected to be settled or recovered, intend to realize the
related current tax assets and settle the related current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realize and settle simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognized for other liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group or the Bank has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditures
expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognized in profit or loss as follows:

Interest income

Effective interest rate

Interest income and expense for all interest-bearing financial
instruments are recognized in the profit or loss on an accruals basis
using the effective interest method.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the
financial instrument to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
or the amortized cost of the financial liability.

When calculating the effective interest rate for financial instruments
other than credit-impaired assets, the Group estimates future cash
flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument but
not expected credit losses. For financial assets that were purchased
or originated credit-impaired on initial recognition, a credit-adjusted
effective interest rate is calculated using estimated future cash flows
including expected credit losses (i.e. no expected credit loss provision
is required at initial recognition).
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(u) Revenue recognition (continued)

@

(i)

Interest income (continued)

Effective interest rate (continued)

The calculation of the effective interest rate includes transaction costs
and fees and points paid or received that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The transaction costs include incremental costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of a financial
asset or financial liability.

Amortized cost and gross carrying amount

The ‘amortized cost’ of a financial asset or financial liability is the
amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is measured
on initial recognition minus the principal repayments, plus or minus
the cumulative amortization using the effective interest method of any
difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount and,
for financial assets, adjusted for any expected credit loss allowance.

The ‘gross carrying amount of a financial asset’ is the amortized
cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any expected credit loss
allowance.

Calculation of interest income and expense

In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate
is applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset (when the asset is
not credit-impaired) or to the amortized cost of the liability.

However, for financial assets that have become credit-impaired
subsequent to initial recognition, interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortized cost of the financial
asset. If the asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of
interest income reverts to the gross basis.

For financial assets that were purchased or originated credit-impaired
on initial recognition, interest income is calculated by applying the
credit-adjusted effective interest rate to the amortized cost of the asset.
The calculation of interest income does not revert to a gross basis,
even if the credit risk of the asset improves.

For information on when financial assets are credit-impaired, please
refer to Note 2(p).

Net income from financial instruments designated at FVPL and
net trading income

Net income from financial instruments designated at FVPL and
net trading income comprise all gains and losses from changes
in fair value (net of accrued coupon) of such financial assets and
financial liabilities, foreign exchange differences and dividend income
attributable to those financial instruments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
3R o Bt

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

104

(u)
(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Fee and commission income

Fee and commission income arises on financial services provided
by the Group including cash management services, brokerage
services, investment banking services, investment management
services and project and structured finance transactions services.
Fee and commission income is recognized when the corresponding
service is provided, except where the fee is charged to cover the
costs of a continuing service to, or risk borne for, the customer or
is interest in nature. In these cases the fee is recognized as income
in the accounting period in which the costs or risk is incurred or is
accounted for as interest income.

Origination or commitment fees received by the Group which result in
the creation or acquisition of a financial instrument are deferred and
recognized as an adjustment to the effective interest rate unless it is a
trading asset or liability or a financial asset designated at FVPL. In this
case it is immediately recognized in profit or loss. If the commitment
expires without the Group making a loan, the fee is recognized as
revenue on expiry.

Finance income from finance lease and hire purchase
contracts

Finance income implicit in finance lease and hire purchase payments
is recognized as interest income over the period of the leases so
as to produce an approximately constant periodic rate of return on
the outstanding net investment in the leases for each accounting
period. Contingent rentals receivable are recognized as income in the
accounting period in which they are earned.

Rental income from operating lease

Rental income received under operating leases is recognized as other
operating income in equal instalments over the periods covered by the
lease term, except where an alternative basis is more representative
of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset. Lease
incentives granted are recognized in profit or loss as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments receivable. Contingent rentals
receivable are recognized as income in the accounting period in which
they are earned.

Dividend income

Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognized when the
shareholder’s right to receive payment is irrevocably established.
Dividend income from listed investments is recognized when the
share price of the investment goes ex-dividend.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
3R o Bt

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(v) Translation of foreign currencies

2. FESHHEX @)
(v) Hhisiae

The Group and the Bank’s functional currency is Hong Kong Dollars.
Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the
end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are dealt with
in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated into Hong Kong
dollars using the exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
that are stated at fair value are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was determined.

Exchange differences relating to financial instruments held at FVPL
and derivative financial instruments are included in net income
from financial instruments designated at FVPL and net gain/(loss)
on derivative financial instruments, respectively. All other exchange
differences relating to monetary items are presented as gains less
losses from dealing in foreign currencies in profit or loss and are
reported within “Other operating income”. Differences arising on
translation of equity securities designated at FVOCI are recognized in
other comprehensive income.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the dates of the transactions. Assets and liabilities are translated
at the closing rate at the end of the reporting period. All resulting
exchange differences are recognized in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity in the foreign exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss on disposal is
recognized.

(w) Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is considered
to be related to the Group if:

(@) a person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to
the Group if that person:

0} has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group
or the Group’s parent.

REBRAITHCEEME R BB o AF
ERMNEZ FUTZ B 2 ERIBE BB o
PASMNEEE B EERBBENREHER
ZERBE BB o FrEINEBRE 2B
BABEERAERE -

AONERESY AESLRK AT 2 FEREE
BEEZRHANERMEDET - NN
BEENATEENRZ FEREERAR
REEAFEES AREREXBE ST -

BEESEUARRAFERZERTARITAE
TRITANERZRNFERREEREER
BREARRLFEEZ BT AFRERT
EERMTAFEN/(BR)  HhEHE%
138 B HOME R E RN BRRA 25 RINE
BEREE YN HMLERAIRER -
BEETULNFEEREMEZAREFEZ
BAES 2 ZBNE 2 E R R -

BINEBNEERAR G HNEXFERNE
FHERER - BERARAUREEHRN
BmERBE - EENMAELZENEMD
EHKERR - YRINEBRERBANRT A

i o

HEBINRBE - ERENEZF RIS
ARCEREZE A8  NERLER
B HESEN D BERA

(w) BEET

RULEPBEREMS - WRARLSEEHHE
TR

S

(@) EAHZBEAZIRREKE @ ZEA
EATER T HEAEAEEERE

() SRR AEE
iy HEAEBEBEEAFESN =&

(i) —RAKREIAEEIGARANEE
EBAE -

Annual Report 2018 ik 106



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
3R o Bt

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(w) Related parties (continued)

106

()

(b) an entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions
applies:

() the entity and the Group are members of the same group
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity
(or an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of
which the other entity is a member).

(i) both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the

Group.

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a).

(vi) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the

entity or is a member of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group
or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in
their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of
products and services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(y) Comparative information

As disclosed in Note 2(d), the Group adopted HKFRS 9 and HKFRS
15 starting from 1 January 2018 without restatement of comparative
information in accordance with respective transition arrangements.
The comparative information was prepared in accordance with
HKAS 39 and HKAS 18 and the relevant principal accounting policies
applied by the Group to the comparative information are set out
below:

U]

Financial instruments

()

(i)

Initial recognition

The Group classified its financial instruments into different
categories at inception, depending on the purpose for which
the assets were acquired or the liabilities were incurred. The
categories were: financial instruments measured at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity
investments, available-for-sale financial assets and other financial
liabilities.

Financial instruments were measured initially at fair value, which
normally will be equal to the transaction price, plus in case of a
financial asset or financial liability not held at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of the financial asset or issue of financial liability.
Transaction costs on financial assets and financial liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or loss were expensed
immediately.

The Group recognized financial assets and financial liabilities on
the date it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. A regular way purchase or sale of financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity investments or available-for-sale
financial assets is recognized using trade date accounting. From
these dates, any gains and losses arising from changes in fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities were recorded.

Categorization
Financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss

This category comprises financial assets and financial liabilities
held for trading, and those designated at fair value through profit
or loss upon initial recognition.

Trading financial instruments are financial assets or financial
liabilities which are acquired or incurred principally for the
purpose of trading, or are part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that are managed together and for which there is
evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking.
Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting (Note 2(k))
are accounted for as trading instruments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(y) Comparative information (continued)
(1) Financial instruments (continued)

108

(i)

Categorization (continued)

Financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

Financial instruments are designated at fair value through profit or
loss upon initial recognition when:

— the assets or liabilities are managed, evaluated and reported
internally on a fair value basis;

— the designation eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch which would otherwise arise;

— the asset or liability contains an embedded derivative that
significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be
required under the contract; or

— the asset or liability contains an embedded derivative the
separation of which from the financial instrument is clearly
not prohibited.

Financial assets and liabilities under this category are carried at
fair value. Changes in the fair value are included in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise. Interest income, interest expense
and dividends from instruments in this category are recorded in
interest income, interest expense and other operating income
respectively. Upon disposal or repurchase, the difference
between the net sale proceeds or the net payment and the
carrying value is included in profit or loss.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market, other than (a) those that the Group intends to sell
immediately or in the near term, which will be classified as held
for trading; (b) those that the Group, upon initial recognition,
designates at fair value through profit or loss or as available-
for-sale; or (c) those where the Group may not recover
substantially all of its initial investment, other than because of
credit deterioration, which will be classified as available-for-sale.
Loans and receivables mainly comprise advances to customers,
placements with banks and other financial institutions, and
certain debt securities.

Debt securities classified as loans and receivables are not quoted
in an active market. Investment decisions for such debt securities
are subject to the same credit approval processes as loans, and
the Group bears the same customer risk as it does for loans
extended to those customers. These debt securities include
subordinated debt instruments and senior debt instruments
issued by borrowers.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
3R o Bt

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(y) Comparative information (continued)
(1) Financial instruments (continued)

2. FESHHEX @)

(v) EEER(E)
(1) £RTAE®E

(i) Categorization (continued)

Loans and receivables (continued)

Loans and receivables are carried at amortized cost using the
effective interest method less impairment losses, if any (see Note
2()2)).

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity which the
Group has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity,
other than (a) those that the Group, upon initial recognition,
designates at fair value through profit or loss or as available-
for-sale; and (b) those that meet the definition of loans and
receivables.

Held-to-maturity investments are carried at amortized cost using
the effective interest method less impairment losses, if any (see
Note 2(y)(2)).

If, as a result of a change in intention or ability, it is no longer
appropriate to classify an investment as held-to-maturity, it is
reclassified as available-for-sale and remeasured at fair value.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial
assets that are either designated as available-for-sale or are not
classified in any of the other three categories above. They include
financial assets intended to be held for an indefinite period of
time, but which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or
changes in the market environment.

Available-for-sale financial assets are carried at fair value.
Unrealized gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value
are recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity, except for interest income, impairment
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Interest income is recognized using the effective interest method.

Investments in equity instruments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured, and derivatives that are linked to and must be
settled by delivery of such equity instruments are carried at cost
less impairment losses, if any (see Note 2(y)(2)).

When available-for-sale financial assets are sold, gains or
losses on disposal comprise the difference between the net
sale proceeds and the carrying value, and the accumulated fair
value adjustments previously recognized in other comprehensive
income.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

110

v)
@

Comparative information (continued)

Impairment of assets

The carrying amount of the Group’s assets are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence that assets are impaired
includes observable data that comes to the attention of the Group
about one or more of the following loss events which has an impact
on the future cash flows of assets:

Financial assets:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or borrower;

— abreach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganization;

— significant changes in the technological, market, economic or
legal environment that have an adverse effect on the borrower;

— disappearance of an active market for financial assets because
of financial difficulties; and

— asignificant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment
in an equity instrument below its cost.

Non-financial assets:

— during the period, an asset’s market value has declined
significantly more than would be expected as a result of the
passage of time or normal use;

— significant changes with an adverse effect on the Group have
taken place during the period, or will take place in the near future,
in the technological, market, economic or legal environment in
which the Group operates or in the market to which an asset is
dedicated;

— evidence is available of obsolescence or physical damage of an
asset; or

— significant changes with an adverse effect on the Group have
taken place during the period, or are expected to take place in
the near future, impacting how an asset is used or is expected
to be used. These changes include the asset becoming idle,
plans to discontinue or restructure the operation to which an
asset belongs, plans to dispose of an asset before the previously
expected date, and reassessing the useful life of an asset as finite
rather than indefinite.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(y) Comparative information (continued)

@

Impairment of assets (continued)

If any such evidence exists, the carrying amount is generally reduced
to the estimated recoverable amount by means of a charge to profit
or loss. For available-for-sale financial assets, the carrying amount is
reduced to the fair value.

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding assets
directly, except for impairment losses recognized in respect of
advances to customers, which are measured at amortized cost,
whose recovery is considered doubtful but not remote. In this case,
the impairment losses are recorded using an allowance account.
When the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against advances to customers
directly and corresponding amounts held in the allowance account
relating to that borrower are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously charged to the allowance account are reversed
against the allowance account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
directly are recognized in profit or loss.

()  Loans and receivables

Impairment losses on loans and receivables are measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of these assets). Receivables with
a short duration are not discounted if the effect of discounting is
immaterial.

The total allowance for credit losses consists of two components:
individual impairment allowances and collective impairment
allowance.

The Group first assesses whether any objective evidence
of impairment exists for financial assets that are individually
significant and collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it then includes the asset
in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics
and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are
individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment
loss is or continues to be recognized are not included in any
collective assessment of impairment. Assets that are not
individually significant are collectively assessed for impairment by
grouping together financial assets with similar risk characteristics.

Individual impairment allowances are based upon management’s
best estimate of the cash flows which are expected to be
received discounted at the original effective interest rate. In
estimating these cash flows management makes judgments
about the borrower’s financial situation and the net realisable
value of any underlying collateral or guarantees in favour of the
Group. Each impaired asset is assessed on its merits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(y) Comparative information (continued)
Impairment of assets (continued)

112

@

U

(i)

Loans and receivables (continued)

In assessing the need for a collective impairment allowance on
individually significant loans which are not impaired and assets
that are not individually significant, management considers
factors such as credit quality, portfolio size, concentrations, and
economic factors. In order to estimate the required allowance
the Group makes assumptions both to define the way the Group
models inherent losses and to determine the required input
parameters based on historical experience and current economic
conditions.

The accuracy of the impairment allowances the Group makes
depends on how well the Group can estimate future cash flows
for individually assessed impairment allowances and the model
assumptions and parameters used in determining collective
impairment allowance. While this necessarily involves judgment,
the Group believes that the impairment allowances on advances
to customers are reasonable and supportable.

Any subsequent changes to the amounts and timing of the
expected future cash flows compared to the prior estimates that
can be linked objectively to an event occurring after the write-
down, will result in a change in the impairment allowances on
loans and receivables and be charged or credited to profit or
loss. A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the loans and
receivables’ carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognized in prior years.

When there is no reasonable prospect of recovery the loan and
the related interest receivable are written off.

Loans and receivables with renegotiated terms are loans that
have been restructured due to deterioration in the borrower’s
financial position and where the Group has made concessions
that it would not otherwise consider. Renegotiated loans and
receivables are subject to ongoing monitoring to determine
whether they remain impaired or past due.

Held-to-maturity investments

Impairment on held-to-maturity investments is considered at both
an individual and collective level. If impairment is identified, the
individual impairment allowance is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the asset’s original
effective interest rate, where the effect of discounting is material.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(y) Comparative information (continued)
(2) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

Held-to-maturity investments (continued)

All held-to-maturity investments found not to be individually
impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment that
has been incurred but not yet identified.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal of
impairment losses shall not result in the asset’s carrying amount
exceeding that which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognized in prior years.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Where there is objective evidence that an available-for-sale
financial asset is impaired, the cumulative unrealized loss
that had been recognized in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss. The amount of the cumulative loss
that is recognized in profit or loss is the difference between the
acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and amortization)
and current fair value, less any impairment loss on that asset
previously recognized in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognized in profit or loss in respect of
available-for-sale equity securities are not reversed through profit
or loss. Any subseguent increase in the fair value of such assets is
recognized in other comprehensive income.

Impairment losses in respect of available-for-sale debt securities
are reversed if the subsequent increase in fair value can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognized. Reversals of impairment losses in such
circumstances are recognized in profit or loss.

Other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period to identify indications that the
following non-financial assets may be impaired or an impairment
loss previously recognized no longer exists or may have
decreased:

—  furniture, fixtures and equipment;

— investments in subsidiaries and associates; and

- goodwill.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(y) Comparative information (continued)
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Impairment of assets (continued)

(iv) Other assets (continued)
Calculation of recoverable amount
The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. Where an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group of assets that generate cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss whenever the
carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit to which
it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognized in respect of cash-generating units are allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
cash-generating unit (or group of units) and then, to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets in the unit (or group of units)
on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of an asset will
not be reduced below its individual fair value less costs to sell, or
value in use, if determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the asset’s carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognized in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in which the
reversals are recognized.

Revenue

Interest income

Interest income from interest-bearing financial instruments is
recognized in profit or loss on an accruals basis using the effective
interest method. Interest income from trading assets and financial
assets designated at fair value through profit or loss is recognized on
basis of accrued coupon and is recognized in net interest income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. FESTHR®)

(y) Comparative information (continued)

(3) Revenue (continued)
Interest income (continued)
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized
cost of a financial asset and of allocating the interest income over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through
the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate,
a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.
When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates cash
flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for
example, prepayment, call and similar option) but does not consider
future credit losses. The calculation includes all fees and points paid
or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate, together with transaction costs and all other
premiums or discounts. Cash rebates granted in relation to residential
mortgage loans are capitalized and amortized to profit or loss over
their expected life.

3. BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION 3.

These consolidated financial statements cover the consolidated
positions of the Bank and all its subsidiaries unless otherwise stated
and the Group’s interest in associates. For information required to be
reported in accordance with the Banking (Disclosures) Rules, the basis
of consolidation is set out in Note (A) in the Unaudited Supplementary
Financial Information on page 221.

4. INTEREST INCOME AND EXPENSE 4.

(a) Interestincome

Balances with banks and other RITRAZEREMEF
financial institutions HiE R

Investment in securities BHEEE

Loans and advances BERRER

Total interest income calculated using HRAEBRREETER
the effective interest method F B ALREE

Other interest income EH i F B U A

Total interest income B A MBEE

Interest income recognized on financial assets that are not measured
at fair value through profit or loss amounted to HK$2,692,504,000
(2017: HK$2,178,192,000).

(vy) E&EER @)

(3) WaE(®)
FlEWA ()
BEMEEDGESBEEZ BERARIR
ERHEBHFEMAZFE « BEFIE]T
REBT AT EHMBEAEBREAR
SR (FBER BT RS MEEY
BEEE) 2R - St E BB AR - A&
BEH RS - ZRNERIAY —Y4
KR (BIINIRATIE 3 - REE SR AEMERE) -
MU EHFRAREEFE - SHEEECEE
BEFR AT BB SNSRI SR —
NERRKE  XPHRAREMHE & ES
g o FERBERXZHSERE TIVER
1t - YETEH HIREBSRENEY -

RERE%E

BRRBEEAN  ZEFRAMBREBBAITRAE
THENBRRANGEANN - URASEREZ
DAl o RBCRITERE) RADAE 25K
AR HRAEEHIINE21 ERERGHT
FBERMEAA -

FMEWARZH
(a) FEYWA
2018 2017
—ZE-N\EF —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH&T FHT
119,358 113,029
1,033,329 880,860
1,539,817 1,176,155
2,692,504 2,170,044
15,736 10,698
2,708,240 2,180,742

RIEBBEFUARBATLBECZEREE
A2 F B A B2,692,504,0008 T (= F
—+4F 1 2,178,192,00057T) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4. INTEREST INCOME AND EXPENSE (continued)

(b) Interest expense

Deposits from customers

Deposits and balances of banks and
other financial institutions

Financial assets sold under repurchase
agreements

Certificates of deposit, debt securities
and subordinated debts issued

Others

4. MEWARZH @)

(b) FIEZH

BFER

RITRIR R EAL S B
Z TR M AR

BEmEE NHE L
TREE

BETEFRE  BEFEFK
‘RIEER

Hit

Interest expense recognized on financial liabilities that are
not measured at fair value through profit or loss amounted to

HK$1,345,089,000 (2017: HK$957,117,000).

5. FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME AND EXPENSE 5.

(a) Fee and commission income

Fee and commission income
arising from:
Credit related services
Trade finance services
Credit card services
Securities brokerage and investment services
Insurance services
Unit trust services
Other fees

Of which:
Fee and commission income
arising from:
— Financial assets or financial
liabilities which are not measured
at fair value through profit or loss
— Trust and other fiduciary activities

HIATEBREENER
KA
EEEH
BHMEERY
ERRES
BRI PRI IRTE
RERFEH
ERESER
Hit &M

e
CLHTESON
A
— 3ERBB IR
ATEE? SRAE
e RAE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T FAT
886,181 583,202
77,763 43,223
164,828 174,760
216,317 160,427
6,699 2,951
1,351,788 964,563

MEBRBEIURMATEE EREE
R 2 F 85 H A1,345,089,0008 7T (= Z

—+4 : 957,117,000/87T) °

EAREEWARTH
(a) EARFESWA
2018 2017
A
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TFHT
51,194 55,058
20,509 14,448
140,489 132,367
33,853 35,640
91,284 117,907
37,897 45,903
21,374 14,663
396,600 415,986
194,045 196,887
1,889 1,664

—EREREMEEER

Fee and commission income arising from trust and other fiduciary
activities relate to fees from asset management activities where the
Group holds assets or invests on behalf of customers.
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(continued)
(b) Fee and commission expense

Handling fees and commission
Other fees paid

Of which:
Fee and commission expense
arising from:
— Financial assets or financial liabilities which
are not measured at fair value through
profit or loss

OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Gains less losses from dealing
— Foreign exchange
— Trading assets
— Other dealing activities*
— Short selling activities

Net hedging (loss)/gain from fair
value hedges

Net loss on hedged items attributable
to the hedged risk

Net gain on hedging instruments

Dividend income from unlisted equity securities
Revaluation gain on financial instruments

designated at fair value through profit or loss
Revaluation loss on derivative financial instruments
Others

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME AND EXPENSE 5.

B R 5 B B
BEARBEWARIH @
(b) EARAEIH
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
FEENES 79,561 71,174
HEHENER 27,726 26,444
107,287 97,618
He
BARAETH
KE :
—IEBIBIEE A R
NP EEZ R
BENTRAE 94,766 93,555
6. HEEWKRA
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
R WFHREE
— SN (771) (52,014)
—RFERXRSABEE 27,094 25,565
—HMBEBERS* 7,991 10,341
—BERH (1,930) (396)
32,384 (16,504)
DNREEE 2 T
(BR),W#
BRI R R ARRE 2 W R IE B
2 FEE (156,500) (178,242)
T A2 Filkes 133,678 164,387
(22,822) (13,855)
SEEMRAZ S Z I EWA 15,874 16,624
EEBBBIEFEARMAF
EBREzemITEZEHKE - 4,434
PTEeMTAZEHESE - (4,022)
HA 16,571 16,920
42,007 3,597

* Other dealing activities include customer-driven dealing in financial instruments
including equity linked notes, options and structured deposit products.

* BEWMEERSERAEFEELBTA(GEKREH
HRE  BREREEI 7N ER) -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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7. OPERATING EXPENSES

Staff costs
Contributions to defined contribution scheme
Current service cost of defined
benefit scheme (Note 38(a)(v))

Retirement schemes costs
Salaries and other staff costs

Premises and other fixed assets
Rental of premises
Depreciation (Note 25(a))
Others

Audit fee

Other operating expenses
Business promotion
Legal and professional fees
Communication

Electronic data processing and computer systems

Others

8. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

7.

1B BN
TERRMHRET SR
TERAR A AT BRI AR S
A (B 5238 (@) (v))
RIRFHEIR AR
e REMESKAE

MENHEMBEEEE
YERES
#rE& (Mi7E25())
Hit

ZEE A

Hit 2@
ESi 34
FRERER
A

TFAREE R ER R

Hitp

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:

Basic salaries and other allowances
Directors’ fee

Contributions to pension scheme
Discretionary bonuses
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JE 5T B AR B
Ex8e
RRET B
BIBTEAL

EEX
2018 2017
—E-N\E —FtF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT TR
18,085 17,988
11,654 13,346
29,739 31,334
551,224 549,892
580,963 581,226
36,888 41,087
138,543 133,081
19,075 20,456
5,055 4,026
27,622 26,501
13,444 5,316
31,834 30,911
63,516 55,657
47,767 52,232
964,707 950,493

EETM

RIEEBCARIEDNEIIM)ER( AR (BREES
FZBRDBONFE2FEFE 2 EEFHIMT

2018 2017
—Z=-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
6,111 5,720
4,913 4,732

300 285

3,000 2,600
14,324 13,337




9.

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON ADVANCES TO
CUSTOMERS

(Written back of)/charge of impairment EFPENRERIE
losses on advances to customers: (EI),/$0k
— Stage 1 — B
— Stage 2 — EBoREER
— Stage 3 — B 3BEER
— Collective —kRE
- Individual — &Rl

10. GAIN ON BARGAIN PURCHASE OF AN ASSOCIATE

11.

In June 2018, the Bank purchased 99 million ordinary shares of Xiamen
Bank Co., Ltd. (“XBCL”), an associate company of the Bank, from other
shareholders for a consideration of RMB475 million. The purchase
consideration was RMB4.8 per share while the Bank estimated the fair
value of net identifiable assets and liabilities per share of XBCL was around
RMB5.41 as at the date of acquisition. The Bank has therefore recognized
a gain on bargain purchase on the date of the share acquisition on the
difference between the fair value of net identifiable assets and liabilities
acquired and the purchase consideration.

LOSS ON DISPOSAL OF AN ASSOCIATE

On 30 November 2018, the Group sold its entire shareholding in XBCL
to Fubon Financial Holding Co., Ltd. (“FFHCL”), its immediate parent
and ultimate controlling party, as part of the FFHCL’s group realignment
initiative.
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2018 2017
—=-NE T LF
HK$'000 HK$000
T Tt
(10,322) -
(3,891) -
63,166 -
= 24,229
= 43,600
48,953 67,829

10. ZEWEBE X T WS

11.

RZZE—NEXNA - AITAEMBREREEM
RITBHBERRE([EPERT) (BRI ZHE
A7) 299,000,000k i@ REAARE
475,000,000 - WEREAERARE4L8TT
MATEENEMBRITERTENEEREETFE
RIEE BB AT EENAARKES AT « £17
AfMRROUKE B R BTSN EEREEF
A FEBERKEREZ HNEZERRAEE
Y s

HEBE QA RER
R-F—\F+—A=+8  FEEBEFRST
MR BREHE T REZSAARRKEN T E
AEBERBRHERALT - FAEBERITRR
HERATEBEEHBIO—H5 -
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11.LOSS ON DISPOSAL OF AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

The Group recognized a loss on disposal on the transaction as set out

120

below:

Transaction consideration
Add:
— Gain on realization of investment
revaluation reserve (recycling) (Note 13)
Less:
— Carrying amount of interest in associate
— Loss on realization of foreign exchange
reserve (Note 13)
— Transaction costs directly attributable
to the transaction

Loss on disposal of an associate
Transaction consideration satisfied by:

— Cash
— Deferred consideration

Net cash inflow arising on disposal:
— Cash consideration received
— Transaction costs paid in connection
with the disposal

11. HEBE QA TER @)
AEERRL S HEFRNT

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET F#TT
RHNR(E 3,248,488 -
hn
— WA BHEHE(RR)EE
Wezs (F97E13) 49,615 -
/@Z :
—REE QRS REE (3,190,189) -
— SN A ER IS 1B
(FF5E13) (226,071) -
—RHEEEEZ KA
(611) -
HEBE A TEE (118,768) -
R HREBER
. a 3,239,264 -
EER(E 9,224 -
3,248,488 -
HEEANFRESRE ¢
—BlERNRESRE 3,239,264 -
—HHEFENEINRZS
R (84) -
3,239,180 -

The deferred consideration has been settled in cash subsequent to the

end of the reporting period.

Fubon Bank & F8R1T
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12. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income represents:

Current tax - Hong Kong Profits Tax

Tax for the year FRFIA

Current tax - Overseas Tax

Tax for the year FRRIE

Deferred tax ELERIE

Origination and reversal of temporary TR EREA RED
differences (Note 32(b)) (B3E32(b))

Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2018 is calculated at 16.5%
(2017: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year.
Taxation for overseas operations is similarly calculated using the
estimated annual effective rates of taxation that are expected to apply
in the relevant countries.

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting
profit at applicable tax rates

Profit before taxation R 75 AT )

Notional tax on profit before taxation, calculated

at the rates applicable to profits at 16.5% JERTHEETE
Tax effect of non-taxable income JEFERTRUA Z B8
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses FERT R S H 2 FiIE

Effect on profit of an associate
Tax effect on reversal of temporary differences

A WNCIb Y2

upon disposal of an associate e ClwyA -7
Overseas withholding taxes YFHNEIEL
Actual tax expense EERIEY

ENEABEIR — BB FIEH

ENEATL IR — Mg SN BLIR

=/

B

5/

B

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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12. R E2HEBRBERANFER

(a) FEEZTEKFERANBIA

2018 2017

=B \E  —F
HK$’000 HK$'000
T AT
113,184 89,450
4,694 8,723
(16,626) 11,908
101,252 110,081

“E-N\FERENERBEDRERFE
ZAHEERTE N 216.6% (ZF— L F
16.5%) 5t E < BN EBHRBMNFTEE 2
B AERFGFEARERNERERY

BRI ATE A 2 (A5 IRIZ16.5% 2

HEBERRREREEZR

EHE -
(b) BIEZHEREARRBRIAEZ
SIOEFEZHER
2018 2017
—ZE-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
924,080 693,464
152,473 114,422
(1,495) (2,855)
28,708 10,422
(26,480) (20,631)
(56,648) -
4,694 8,723
101,252 110,081
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13. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

122

Equity securities designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income: (non-recycling)

Changes in fair value recognized during the year
Deferred taxation (Note 32(b))

Net movement in the investment revaluation reserve
(non-recycling) during the year recognized in other
comprehensive income

Debt securities designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income: (recycling)

Share of changes in fair value of debt securities held
by an associate

Realization upon disposal of an associate
(Note 11)

Net movement in the investment revaluation reserve
(recycling) during the year recognized in other
comprehensive income

Available-for-sale financial assets:
Changes in fair value recognized during the year
Amounts transferred to profit or loss:
— net gains on disposals
Share of changes in fair value of available-for-sale
financial assets held by an associate
Deferred taxation (Note 32(b))

Net movement in the investment revaluation reserve
during the year recognized in other comprehensive
income

Fubon Bank & F8R1T

13. Hitt 2 E &

EBEUAFEEAEMEME
W B ZBRAES
(EER)

REEHRZ A FHEEE

IEIERIE (M7E32(0))

REFEREMEERESER 2
BEEAHEEGERER)
SR

EEUATEERHEMEE
st E2ESE  (fER)

fﬁ%%@ﬂZ%ﬁ%
NFEEE

HERE ARRER(ME)

AREFREAM 2 RS R 2
REBfhFHE(ER)FE

AJHEESRERE
AFEERZ AFEBEEZD
ERERR O
@Hﬂ’é”ﬁlm
FE(REE 2R E 2 A HHE
CMEEATEEES)
IR A (M FE32(0))
NEEREMEEREFER
REELHEFED

2018
—EB-N\F
HK$’000
FET

2017
T
HK$'000
T

270,585
(44,646)

225,939

118,116

(49,615)

68,501

518,946

233

(33,826)
(85,453)

399,900
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B A R B &
13. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (continued) 13. Htt 2wz )
2018 2017
—EB-N\F —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET T
Premises: Y/
Surplus on revaluation of premises (Note 25(a)) MEE SR (FIEE25()) 269,604 356,489
Share of surplus on revaluation of premises of JE(RE R N B 2 WEEGHBR
an associate 28,270 25,456
Deferred taxation (Note 32(b)) EIERLIB (B 5E32(0)) (35,373) (50,497)
Net movement in the premises revaluation reserve AEEREMEEBEERZY
during the year recognized in other comprehensive EEHREEEE
income 262,501 331,448
Defined benefit liability: EREEAEE:
Remeasurement of net defined benefit liability (Note ¥t & E56/E M & & %58 (M
38(a)(v)) 38(a)(v)) 1,436 (7,912)
Deferred taxation (Note 32(b)) PFEIEFRIA (MI5E32(0)) (237) 1,305
Net movement in the defined benefit liability during the AN E R E b 2 E IR IERZTE
year recognized in other comprehensive income mEMNAEEED 1,199 (6,607)
Foreign exchange reserve: INE A
Exchange differences on translation of BENRIINE TR EERE
an associate (216,434) 171,192
Realization upon disposal of an associate e A AR EIR(KEE11)
(Note 11) 226,071 -
Net movement in the foreign exchange REEREMEHEREER 2
reserves during the year recognized in HNE B FE
other comprehensive income 9,637 171,192
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14. SEGMENT REPORTING

124

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s operating
segments which are the components of the Group about which separate
financial information is available and evaluated regularly by the Chief
Executive Officer and Managing Director in deciding how to allocate
resources and in assessing performance.

Operating segments

The Bank and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision of
banking and related financial services. Reportable segments of the Group
are set out below.

Retail Banking comprises consumer finance activities including credit card
merchant acquiring, provision of credit card advances, mortgage lending
and other consumer lending and wealth management services such as
the sales and distribution of insurance products, investment products
and securities brokerage to wealth management clients and provision of
banking services to the mass market segment.

Institutional Banking comprises the corporate banking business, the
commercial banking business and the financial institutions business,
covering the provision of services including corporate lending, syndicated
loan, trade financing and deposits to large corporates, small and medium
enterprises in Hong Kong and Mainland China.

Financial Markets mainly engages in the marketing of investment products
to non-bank enterprises; managing the Group’s investment portfolio and
trading in foreign exchange and debt securities. Moreover, it also manages
the overall funding, liquidity and interest rate risk positions arising from the
banking activities of the Group.

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purpose of segmental analysis, the allocation of operating income
reflects the benefits of capital and other funding resources allocated to
the operating segments by way of internal capital allocation and fund
transfer pricing mechanisms. To reflect the benefit of joint efforts of two
operating segments on a third party fee-related transaction, operating
income derived from the transaction is split between the relevant operating
segments.

Cost allocation is based on the direct costs incurred by the respective
operating segments. For consistency with internal management reporting,
there is no apportionment of central management overheads and only
wholly and directly attributable costs of support units are charged to
the respective operating segments. Rental charges at market rates for
usage of premises are reflected in operating expenses and inter-segment
expenses for the respective operating segments.

Segment assets mainly include advances to customers, investment in

securities and financial instruments, inter-bank placements, current assets
and premises attributable to the operating segments.

Fubon Bank & F8R1T

14. P EHER

DEER B EAEENELEN PRE - NEE
ZREDBR/AEE 2 BRE D - HEAZHBE
B BB iR A R TRER R ESREE A
{EE IRHESURE A D BCERAGHZRA

'g«< AN u.B

AIREAMBLR . T EXEARKRITRIEMH
SRR - REBRRIMEBDAEIIWAT o

TERTOFBHEECHEG RN T ERERS
EORERREPRE  ERAREERS Bza%
REMBEBEER #ERLEAVEEETPREM
HERDHRBER REEDMBHFLLRE
AR AR 57 SRR -

EEEBBRITEACERITES  BRRTE

BREBRBEEY BEMEERTEAMZA
BERRFPEERREUCRER REEK B
PRE RIF AR °

TRTHIENEAERTEEHREREER
AEENREEAERIARIMNERBEBEFNHR
SR o s AMERAEEERESULA
RITEBEL 2 MBI KM R @R AL -

DEEE  BERER
BOBAMT2EERAE D RREEED
# o BBARERDEME S ARSI ED KL
BAREMES MR @R - BRI ELE
DEEFE =TT HFERARBR S LHAB M
BBz ER - REARS LARRZ EERAE
DEERBZEED -

oK

RADERANBLEN B2 BEKAE i%ﬁﬁi
NEEERE B PREFRAATOE -
ARz REET %IF%%&%“*HE’J{%%*EF‘?%
R ERREn Ik - SEEDBERYE
EWE.# Zfﬂi&ﬁ%ﬁx,@%ﬁ% ZEBXH
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HFREMTARE  RITRERGK /m@JéLX%&
E



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS MY
14. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 14. 2 HE R =)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued) i) %Bi,.‘ QE&EE’F
Segment liabilities mainly include deposits from customers, certificates of DHEBTERRBEENTRERPTER
deposit and debt securities issued, inter-bank borrowings, and accruals é‘ﬁﬁfx{j BBITEEES « BT H%{%%’K
attributable to the operating segments. JEETTRIE o
In addition to receiving segment information concerning profit before %o AR T HBRANEF BRI SR E
taxation, management is provided with segment information concerning BEHEMSILER - BREKE - FEXHE 7
revenue, interest expense, depreciation, amortization, impairment losses EEE OREBBRARD BEENIIEIER

BOHEE °

and additions to non-current segment assets used by the segments in
their operations.

Unallocated items mainly comprise the central management unit, ANBHBEBEIEaEDREEEN  FIEKREE
management of strategic investments, premises and property B EFRMEESEBEULREMRESENER RS
management and other activities which cannot be reasonably allocated to TEEEBERINEE -
specific business segments.
For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—Z-N\E+-A=t-HLEFE
Reportable
Retail Institutional Financial Segments
Banking Banking Markets Total
¥R Bk
ZERT KRR M5 DB
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TER
Net interest income FRIBUA 399,242 495,926 462,483 1,357,651
Other operating income/(loss) from external BENREFPEMEERA /(BB
customers 368,675 69,386 (27,878) 410,183
Fee and commission expense BRKAETH (85,833) (196) (7,947) (93,976)
Other operating incomey/(loss) Hi&EWA /(BE) 282,842 69,190 (35,825) 316,207
Operating income ZEWA 682,084 565,116 426,658 1,673,858
Operating expenses 2ETH (369,670) (83,196) (60,403) (513,269)
Inter-segment expenses BHEE (64,266) (7,871) (2,701) (74,838)
Operating profit before gains and impairment Rethz LR EBEAELER
losses 248,148 474,049 363,554 1,085,751
Impairment losses on advances to customers REETREEE (174) (48,779) - (48,953)
Write back of impairment losses on other financial 4% Bt & R E B8 2 B
assets 6,195 (1,053) 14,868 20,010
Write back of impairment losses on other assets £ {2 EE R {E &5 18 7 015 (13) 5,505 - 5,492
Net gains on disposal of financial assets at HENBENATEZ EREE
amortized cost Fla - - 399 399
Profit before taxation B AR A 254,156 429,722 378,821 1,062,699
Operating expenses — depreciation EEIM-ME (22,247) (1,577) (3,066) (26,890)
Segment assets NEEE 22,038,646 29,916,286 48,010,503 99,965,435
Segment liabilities AHEE 52,043,772 16,229,042 18,585,148 86,857,962
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B AR 5 B &
14. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 14. 2 BER @)
Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued) PHEE  BEEREE®)
For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_T—+F+-_A=+-AIFE
Reportable
Retail Institutional Financial Segments
Banking Banking Markets Total
rER e
TERT HiERTT 2RTS DEETE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THR FET THT THT
Net interest income EFBIA 409,042 414,923 391,203 1,215,168
Other operating income/{loss) from RENEFAMLEERA/(FB)
external customers 397,417 64,099 (65,911) 395,605
Fee and commission expense ERELESTM (82,369) (463) (10,117) (92,943)
Other operating income/(loss) HipBBRA/(EB) 315,064 63,636 (76,028) 302,662
Operating income ZERA 724,006 478,559 315,175 1,517,830
Operating expenses ZEYH (375,660) (85,340) (69,599) (620,599)
Inter-segment expenses BAESI (66,761) (7,375) (2,658) (76,794)
Operating profit before gains and Rt KR EREAT SR
impairment losses 281,675 385,844 262,918 920,437
Impairment losses on advances to customers REEFRERE (2,564) (45,265) - (67,829)
Impairment losses on other assets HtEERERE - (7,353) - (7,353)
Net gains on disposal of available-for-sale financial & AT H &4 B & &S
assets - - 1,310 1,310
Profit before taxation MR AR A 259,111 333,226 254,228 846,565
Operating expenses — depreciation EEIM-ME (21,081) (1,122) (2,852) (25,005)
Segment assets DEEE 23,289,235 28,484,915 41,946,270 93,720,420
Segment liabilities HEaE 44,857,622 17,235,205 20,033,539 82,126,366
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14. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 4. »HER =)

Reconciliation of reportable segment operating income,

AR EEBERA ~ BREATER -

profit before taxation, assets and liabilities EERBEZYEE
For the For the
year ended year ended
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
BE_Z- N\ BE_ZT—LF
+=A=+—H +ZA=1+—8H
WHFE IEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Operating income EERA
Reportable segment operating income AJ AR EB 2B 1,673,858 1,517,830
Elimination of inter-segment operating income B BB E U A 8 (106,808) (105,350)
Unallocated operating income AOBLEEWA 120,722 125,664
Consolidated operating income REEEIA 1,687,772 1,538,144
For the For the
year ended year ended
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
BE_Z- N\ BE-ZT—tF
+=HA=+—8 +=A Jr H
WHFE IEEFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Profit before taxation BREL AR R
Reportable segment profit before taxation AJEA #&/\*Bﬁ-}— T ADE 1,062,699 846,565
Unallocated operating income ROBLEERA 120,722 125,664
Unallocated operating expenses %ﬁ@ﬂ%@i i (483,408) (458,450)
Write back of impairment losses on other assets H A& ERE EE 2 O] B - 1,800
Write back of impairment losses on assets B E 2 EERERIE Y
held for sale o] % 1,543 1,200
Write back of impairment losses on assets acquired — #RIE S H 1S EE
under lending agreements BB E 18 2 Bl 1,100 1,700
Impairment losses on available-for-sale A EEmEERERE
financial assets - (1,286)
Share of profits of an associate FEAGES & A B ) 269,921 237,103
Gain on bargain purchase of an associate AEYUREE AR 70,255 -
Loss on disposal of an associate HERE A REE (118,768) -
Dilution loss arising from investment in TEHE N R E FTE £
an associate BEEE = (60,883)
Net gains on disposal of fixed assets i EE & E T 16 51
Consolidated profit before taxation fFa R AR 924,080 693,464
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14.

128

SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

Reconciliation of reportable segment operating income,
profit before taxation, assets and liabilities (continued)

Assets BE
Reportable segment assets AR D HBEE
Unallocated fixed assets AoBLEEEE

Interests in associates RE &N E) 2 i

Unallocated other assets AoBLEMEE
Consolidated total assets IREEEBRE
Liabilities aE

Reportable segment liabilities AR D HBEE
Unallocated other liabilities RO EMEE
Consolidated total liabilities Faalkass

Geographical information

Geographical segment information is based on the locations of the
principal operations of the subsidiaries or on the location of the branches
of the Bank responsible for reporting the results or booking the assets,
the location of customers and the location of assets. For the years ended
31 December 2018 and 2017, all of the Group’s operating income and
profit before taxation were generated by assets booked by the branches
and subsidiaries of the Bank located in Hong Kong. Except for the share
of profits from an associate in Mainland China, no single country or
geographic segment other than Hong Kong contributes 10% or more
of the Group’s assets, liabilities, profit or loss before taxation, operating
income or contingent liabilities and commitments.

Major customers

For the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, no single customer or
a group of customers under common control contributes 10% or more of
the Group’s operating income.

Fubon Bank & F8R1T

4. P EE R )
AR IEBERA  BRBIAIER
EEREBEBEZHE®
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
R-ZE—N\F RZE—+tF
t=A=t+-8 +-A=t-AH
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
99,965,435 93,720,420
1,760,124 1,682,242
- 2,390,809
1,061,187 690,731
102,786,746 98,484,202
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
R-ZE—N\F RZT—+tF
t=A=t+-8 +-A=t-AH
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
86,857,962 82,126,366
1,905,177 1,989,536
88,763,139 84,115,902
EBEER

BREEMREMBAR T EXEMAME - X
RAAREREIREEANKRZIATAITUE -
EFNEREENETURE -BE-_T-N\F
F_B—+F+-A=+t—HILFE  F&EEZ
PR B AR BT R E 19 R UL BB AR
IPTIRMBRARARCEEMES - BEMG—
B A B A B E QB8NS - LEEE
PN ERIE R R D B A RENEE - &
& HATENHER - EERARRAEE K
FE10%3RIA £ -

FEEF
BHE-_Z-\FR-ZT—+tF+-A=+—HL
FE - TEIMNE—FEREREH T2 —4A%
FEAEBEEERAI0%RIAL -



15.

16.

17.

CASH AND SHORT-TERM FUNDS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15.

PR ER M

RekEEs

31 December

31 December

2018 1 January 2018 2017

—E-N\F —E-N\F —E—+F

+=H=+—H —HB—HB +=ZA=+—H

HK$’000 HK$ 000 HK$'000

FET FHET FAT

Cash in hand Bne 117,284 116,755 116,755
Balances with the Hong Kong EAECRERER

Monetary Authority (“HKMA?) (TeERDEH 261,609 40,221 40,221

Balances with banks RITRIZE 2 A5 8R 686,695 832,211 832,211

Money at call and short notice * RSP ESEEES g 4,915,979 4,142,217 4,144,347

5,981,567 5,131,404 5,133,534

* Money at call and short notice represents deposits of up to a maximum of one
month maturity from the end of the reporting period.

TRADING ASSETS

Trading assets at fair value

Treasury bills (including Exchange Fund Bills)
- Unlisted —3EFT

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, all trading assets held by the Bank

are issued by governments and central banks.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The sale to customers of derivatives as risk management products and
the subsequent use of derivatives to manage the resulting positions is an
integral part of the Group’s business activities. Derivatives are also used to
manage the Group’s own exposures to market risk as part of its asset and
liability management process. The principal derivative instruments used by
the Group are interest and foreign exchange rate related contracts, which
are primarily over-the-counter derivatives. The Group also purchases
exchange traded derivatives. Most of the Group’s derivative positions have
been entered into to meet customer demand and to hedge these and
other trading positions or for balance sheet management. For accounting
purposes, derivatives are classified as either held for trading or qualifying
for hedge accounting.

16.

B FIEEIIRZIFE

17.

© AR RS B E— B A
2R

BES (REINEESRIE)

BEXZRAREE
1 January
2018 and
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
—=-N\F
—HA—Bk
—E-N\F —T—+F
t=A=t+-8 +-A=t—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
a7z THT
1,898,372 1,846,823

RIB-NFR-_B—F+-A=+—R M
BARFITHBZHERZAGEERBT TR
RITHEAT

TEE®MIA
AEFPHENTETANMERERERERREK
ERTETAERRRER  RAKEEST R
5% METANAUNERAKEMAZ NS
Bk FREEEREEEREFN D - A&
ERRBOTETIAZZRMERIMNERBES
o ZEENIERGIMIETAR - ARETE
BEXSMEENATA - REERFANITET
ERRUARARPESIALBEPZENEM
RHRBAEREERBRMAL - L& B
ME  METERDBAREXZREHAER
RALhERDE

Annual Report 2018 ik 129



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
3R o Bt

17.

130

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(a) Notional amounts of derivatives
Derivatives refer to financial contracts whose value depends on
the value of one or more underlying assets or indices. The notional
amounts of these instruments indicate the volume of transactions
outstanding as at the end of the reporting period and do not represent
amounts at risk. The following is a summary of the notional amounts
of each significant type of derivatives entered into by the Group:

17. 07T B
(@) FTEIE-RESEHE

HEET B BERT AR S ELE
EESEY Y BEMTZSBAL - HET
AV 4B BBRRBEHRNATRZR
58 MELFRRSRERSE - AT AR
E@Ty S ERMUETAY 54 E
THE -

31 December 2018
—E-NF+=HA=+—H

Qualifying for
hedge Held for
accounting trading Total
AERKEA

g BER S A iazE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET THET

Exchange rate derivatives EER{TAETA
— Forwards —in A - 6,697,062 6,697,062
— Swaps — 19 HA - 9,428,007 9,428,007
— Options purchased YN - 812,906 812,906
— Options written — i Hi e - 812,906 812,906
- 17,750,881 17,750,881

Interest rate derivatives FEHTETA
— Swaps — 9 Hf 18,582,413 2,134,680 20,717,093
18,582,413 2,134,680 20,717,093

Equity derivatives BREITETA
— Options purchased — BB A HiE - 10,860 10,860
— Options written — i Hi g - 10,860 10,860
- 21,720 21,720
Total BEE 18,582,413 19,907,281 38,489,694
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MR EMIEE
17. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 17. 5752 IT )
(@) Notional amounts of derivatives (continued) (@) STETAZERSHEW)

1 January 2018 and 31 December 2017
B N\F-A-BN_ZET—+HF+-F=+—H

Quialifying for
hedge Held for
accounting trading Total
BEBEA
mgshA FHERZ 5 A%k “azE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
FHT FT FET
Exchange rate derivatives EXOTATER
— Forwards — =5 - 5,513,848 5,613,848
- Swaps — 1= 5 - 12,490,958 12,490,958
— Options purchased YN L - 678,161 678,161
— Options written —h H R - 678,161 678,161
- 19,361,128 19,361,128
Interest rate derivatives FMEHTETA
— Swaps — 1= 5 14,914,212 4,220,143 19,134,355
14,914,212 4,220,143 19,134,355
Equity derivatives REMTETA
— Options purchased YN L - 21,866 21,866
— Options written —h AR - 21,866 21,866
- 43,732 43,732
Total k= 14,914,212 23,625,003 38,539,215
The above amounts are shown on a gross basis without taking into TS REABTEEE R - WS R e R KR4
account the effect of any bilateral netting arrangements. Char a7 1)
Derivatives reported as qualifying for hedge accounting represent wEASERERE T e A ITHE T EERE
hedging instruments designated as hedges under HKAS 39. BB O ER| B0 EE ¥R T A -
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17. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

132

(b) Fair values and credit risk weighted amounts of
derivatives
Credit risk weighted amount refers to the amount as computed
in accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules of the Hong Kong
Banking Ordinance. The amount depends on the status of the
counterparty and the maturity characteristics. The risk weights used
range from 0% to 100%.

These amounts are shown on a gross basis without taking into
account the effect of bilateral netting arrangements and are as below:

17. 97T €@M T B

(b) FTETAZ A FEEREEREM

EEE
FERERNESBRRBFACGRITERN)
IETZ@ETT%(5$)?E9‘J>£ Bre® ot

CHEARTRHEF 2R LI BN
T MRAZEERBRMEL RN F0%E
100%.2 & °

2B

=

ZESHIBEAREEFEEELZ
VA RRE RIS

Qo

31 December 2018

1 January 2018 and 31 December 2017

—E-\§-A-Bk
“2-\f¥+ZA=t-H B tE+TA=T-FH
Credit risk Credit risk
Fairvalue  Fairvalue  weighted Fair value Fair value weighted
assets liabilities amount assets liabilities amount
AYEE AYEE FEERR LFEE ATEE FEER
BE 8 MELE B BE  ERE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER TR TR THET THT TET
Exchange rate derivatives EETETR
- Forwards — & 473,708 51,393 68,421 473,436 19,915 26,428
- Swaps —ia 5 24,163 1,315 40,093 7,945 62,483 27,003
- Options purchased YNl 1,100 - 18,980 762 - 6,283
— Options written — b - 1,103 - - 762 -
498,971 53,811 127,494 482,143 83,160 59,714
Interest rate derivatives FIRFTETA
- Swaps — 297,238 79,150 143,688 222,589 144,623 108,983
297,238 79,150 143,688 222,589 144,623 108,983
Equity derivatives RESTETA
- Options purchased — B \HkE 386 - - 433 - -
- Options written —Jh A - 386 - - 433 -
386 386 - 433 433 -
Total ek 796595 133347 271,182 705165 228216 168697
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17. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

(c)

Fair values and credit risk weighted amounts of
derivatives (continued)
The following table provides an analysis of the notional amounts of

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR ER M

17.9TE €M T Bw)
(b) STETEZAFEBEREERE M

B8
T%%EZKEI&H\#&iﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁ“ﬂﬁlﬂﬁ%

derivatives of the Group by relevant maturity grouping based on the HiRR 2 BRI BRI B D 2 TE T ESE S
remaining periods to settlement at the end of the reporting period. BT ©
Notional amounts with remaining maturity of
BUATHRER 2 AR H
Over 1 year to
Total 1 yearorless 5years Over5years
#E —EfHUT —FNELERE BEHUE
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
31 December 2018 “E2-N\¥+ZA=1-H TET THERT TET THERT
Exchange rate derivatives EXITETA 17,750,881 16,066,291 1,684,590 -
Interest rate derivatives FETETA 20,717,093 3,813,545 13,420,211 3,483,337
Equity derivatives BRETETE 21,720 21,720 - -
Total k) 38,489,694 19,901,556 15,104,801 3,483,337
Notional amounts with remaining maturity of
BUATHREH 2RSS
Over 1 yearto

Total 1 yearorless 5years  Over 5 years
B —FIUT —FULERF AFEME
1 January 2018 and —T-\F-HA-Hk HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
31 December 2017 “E—tE+-A=+—H FEL THL FEL T
Exchange rate derivatives BETATE 19,361,128 18,998,612 362,516 -
Interest rate derivatives METETA 19,134,355 1,330,361 14,500,721 3,303,273
Equity derivatives BRETETA 43,732 43,732 - -
Total FEES 38,539,215 20,372,705 14,863,237 3,303,273

Fair values of derivatives designated as hedging
instruments

Fair value hedges

The Group uses interest rate swaps to hedge its exposure to changes
in the fair values of certain fixed rate certificates of deposit issued
and fixed rate debt securities investment. Pay-floating/receive-fixed
interest rate swaps are matched to specific issuances of fixed rate
certificates of deposit issued or pay-fixed/receive-floating interest rate
swaps are matched to fixed rate debt securities investment with terms
that closely align with the critical terms of the hedged item.

The Group’s approach to managing market risk, including interest
rate risk, is discussed in Note 44(b). Interest rate risk to which the
Group applies hedge accounting arises from fixed rate certificates of
deposit issued and fixed rate debt securities investment, whose fair
value fluctuates when benchmark interest rates change. The Group
hedges interest rate risk only to the extent of benchmark interest rates
because the changes in the fair value of fixed rate debt securities are
significantly influenced by changes in the benchmark interest rate.
Hedge accounting is applied where economic hedge relationships
meet the hedge accounting criteria.

(c) EEEAYHPIAZITETAZA

FEE
D EEH
AEBERFEE AL ERETHET
liﬂffﬁﬁﬁliﬂ ERFEFREN
FEEZHNER - T, WHREE
ﬂfﬁﬁﬁaﬁﬁlmﬂﬁfﬁﬁmﬁiﬁ
AR - SXANEEWEF B R i 5
BLE RS IR B B R IFRE T B
BEIE R BB E SR E AT -

REEERT SRR (BENERR) 8 AE
RIS FE44(0)F T AR 58 o AR JE R
BEHARFIE R B EE RN FHRE R
EEMEEHEFRE  EATEBEEEE
FIRSBNGEAERE) o A EE R REBE
FOATEEESHREENREHNEEY
2 KREBEELENRGERLHMEE
B o fHACEEDRBIERA G R g Rt 4R - A
Fgﬁ% ET/EP =] uJF/jE—
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17. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

134

(c) Fair values of derivatives designated as hedging

instruments (continued)

Fair value hedges (continued)

By using derivative financial instruments to hedge exposures to
changes in interest rates, the Group also exposes itself to credit risk of
the derivative counterparty. The Group minimises counterparty credit
risk in derivative instruments by entering into transactions with high-
quality counterparties, requiring the counterparties to post collateral
and clearing through central counterparties (see Note 44(a)(vi).

Before fair value hedge accounting is applied by the Group, the Group
determines whether an economic relationship between the hedged
item and the hedging instrument exists based on an evaluation of the
qualitative characteristics of these items and the hedged risk that is
supported by quantitative analysis. The Group considers whether the
critical terms of the hedged item and hedging instrument closely align
when assessing the presence of an economic relationship. The Group
evaluates whether the fair value of the hedged item and the hedging
instrument respond similarly to similar risks.

The Group establishes a hedge ratio by aligning the par amount of
the hedged fixed-rate debt securities and the notional amount of
the interest rate swap designated as a hedging instrument. Under
the Group’s policy, in order to conclude that a hedge relationship is
effective, all of the following criteria should be met.

— The regression co-efficient (R squared), which measures the
correlation between the variables in the regression, is at least
0.96.

— The slope of the regression line is within a range of -0.8 and
-1.25.

—  Statistical validity of the overall regression model (F-statistic) must
be small.

In these hedge relationships, the main source of ineffectiveness is
expected to be the effect of the counterparty’s and the Group’s own
credit risk on the fair value of the interest rate swap, which is not
reflected in the fair value of the hedged item attributable to the change
in interest rate.

Fubon Bank & F8R1T

17.5TE€@M T R
(c) BEEABHFIAEZTETAZR

TLEEG®)

DREEE(E)
BBEETESRTAUHAXEHNE
% AEBNABTEXSUFNEER
% AEBBBITIEBEERSHFNZ
5 BERZZYFREEARBATIRZS
HFRTEE(RME44@V) - SARE
ROTETANRZ ZEHFEERR

EREEERAFEEEYTEHEZA - K
SEREHZERE TR E
EDMIFHREIPER - BEEHTRE BY
HIAZHREFERERE - AREHEF
REBERENGER @ BEMEARY
HTEAMBRERETET B - FEEF
fREHIEA REP TAN A FEERS R
PUE e e E AR -

AEBEBRBRELNEEMNEEBEFNE
EREEREHIANFXERNEEER
REEEHLE - REAKREORE - /5
HE PR BN ER - BREATAER

% o

- HENREZEEABENEREZEHR
W H)EDE0.96 °

— BRSO ENT-08Kk-1.252

— EEDBEL(FHRTE)Wgsta it
A \

EZEHPAED - BN T 2RRAR
RZGHFRAEERGNEERREHE
HHNNFEENTZE  ETERRAEMNE
BHEENEPEIN A FEEL -



17. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c) Fair values of derivatives designated as hedging
instruments (continued)
Fair value hedges (continued)
At 31 December 2018, the Group holds the following interest rate
swaps as hedging instruments in fair value hedges of interest risk.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(c) EEERHHIAZ

TLEEG®
AFEEE ()

PR ER M

FTETIAZA

RZB-NEF+ZA=+—F  *&EAHFF
VAT AR b B VR B L B 2 T E (B 0 9

HHTH-

Remaining maturity of

Fler e
Over 1 year to
1 year or less 5 years Over 5 years
—EpEE
—FHEUTF HE EEUE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FEx FET FET
Risk category [E\ B 28 B
Interest rate risk FZ= @
Hedge of debt securities measured at #1112 4 #5% A 5+ 5 £

amortized cost [ETES
Nominal amount (in thousands of HEE(TAET)

HKD) 1,852,185 11,036,891 3,483,337
Average fixed interest rate FHEE = 4.57% 3.88% 3.99%
Hedge of certificates of HHE BT E

deposit issued
Nominal amount (in thousands of HEE(TAET)

HKD) 1,450,000 760,000 -
Average fixed interest rate FHEE = 1.88% 2.73% -

Fair value hedges consist of interest rate swaps that are used to
protect against changes in the fair value of certain of the Bank’s
certificates of deposit issued and fixed-rate debt securities held due
to movements in market interest rates.

AFEEYNEEREREE TATERLEK
BRAFESEREFRTSMNEEB MR

DT BERLOTIERH -
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17. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(c) Fair values of derivatives designated as hedging

17.5TE€@M T R
(c) BEEBHHIAZTETAZA

instruments (continued) TLEEG®)
Fair value hedges (continued) AP EEE(E)
The amounts relating to items designated as hedging instruments and EEAHTT ENERRESE R TEN
hedge ineffectiveness were as follows. HHHNMT -
31 December 2018
“8-\ftZA=t-H
Line item in the
consolidated ~ Change in fair
statementof  value used for
financial position  measuring hedge Line item in
where the hedging  ineffectiveness profit or loss that
. instrument is for2018  Ineffectiveness  includes hedge
Canying amount included BRHE recognized  ineffectiveness
Nominal kit BEUNIAN Z5-N\&  inprofitorloss gl
amount Assets Lihilties ~ SAEBHRZS  HRENHN NEEEA bt
2548 gE 8 el AVEES®  BINENE  ERBAER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TEn TEn TR TR
Interest rate risk FlEmk
Interest rate Swaps flzEH
- hedge of debt securties HAHE 16,372,413 284,740 (56,369) Derivative - - Other
measured at amortized cost % financial operating
instruments income
fiEeMIE HipEEHA
Interest rate swaps flEScEd
- heclge of certficates of ~HRE RIS 2,210,000 1423 (14,707) Derivative - - Other
depostt issued financial operating
instruments income
fiESMIE HipEEHA
The amounts relating to items designated as hedged items were as EEAMPTANERRBELEIFYNT -
follows.
31 December 2018
Z2-N\fTtZA=t-R
Accumulated amount of
fair value hedge adjustments
remaining in the statement
of financial position for any
Accumulated amount of hedged items that
fair value hedge adjustments Changein have ceased to be
on _the hedged. item included value used for adjusted for
'“;?fhceaﬁzg;g :’I‘t‘:r:"t measuring hedge  hedging gains and losses
ineffectiveness AL REREER
_ BRRUMREREEN for 2018 BEEmEEY
Carrying amount HWERATEE BHHE EYHERH
GEf UHAR 2 2ieE -E-\F BRS RS
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities @M MM ABAYER
BE & BE 86 AVEE%E WnaRz gl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn
Debt securies measured at FEEIAEL 16,427,351 = (178,806) = 3 -
amortized cost ExES
Certifcates of deposit issued B ERE - (2,199,529) - 9,378 - -

The Group’s fair value hedge principally consists of interest rate
swaps that are used to protect against changes in the fair value of
fixed rate long-term financial instruments due to movements in market
interest rates.
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MR EMIEE
17. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 17. 5752 IT )
(c) Fair values of derivatives designated as hedging (c) BEEALHPIEZSTETREZR
instruments (continued) FEE®)
Fair value hedges (continued) AT EEE(E)
The following is a summary of the fair values of derivatives held for RERBRIAD ZHHEERENZITETA
hedging purposes by product type: ZATEEHENT

1 January 2018 and
31 December 2017
—ET-NF-HA—HEK
—E—+F+=-A=+—H

Assets Liabilities
BE afE
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FHET
Fair value hedged derivatives interest rate N EEHAITETR
contracts FIREH 209,902 131,936
18. ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS 18. EFEX
(a) Advances to customers less impairment allowances: (a) EFEFURRERE -
31 December 1 January 31 December
2018 2018 2017
e e =
+=A=+—H —A—H +=ZA=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT FHET
Gross advances to customers EFPERBTE 47,929,870 47,872,348 47,872,348
Less: Impairment allowances BB
(Note 44(a)(xi)) (FMisE44(a)(xi))
— Stage 1 —BAREE (27,026) (37,349) -
- Stage 2 — SBoREER (6,728) (10,618) -
— Stage 3 — SB3REER (196,876) (155,963) -
— Collective —&RE - - (133,068)
— Individual — &7 = - (155,963)
47,699,240 47,668,418 47,588,317
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18. ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS continued)

18.

(b) Advances to customers analysed by industry sector
The following economic sector analysis of gross advances to
customers is based on the categories and definitions used by the

HKMA.

As at 31 December
Gross advances for use in Hong Kong
Industrial, commercial and financial
— Property development
— Property investment
— Financial concerns
— Stockbrokers
— Wholesale and retail trade
— Manufacturing
— Transport and transport equipment
— Information technology
— Others
Individuals
— Loans for the purchase of flats under the
Home Ownership Scheme,
Private Sector Participation Scheme
and Tenants Purchase Scheme or their
respective successor schemes
— Loans for the purchase of other residential
properties
— Credit card advances
— Others

Trade finance
Gross advances for use outside
Hong Kong

Gross advances to customers

138 Fubon Bank & F8R1T

R+=—A=+—H
EEBERNEREE
TrEEet
—MEER
—MERE
— o
—RELL
—PERTEHE
— BB
— B RERRE
—EE
—Hh
A

EFEFR@E

(b) RITRABENEFEN
DTEFERRENEBETENNNERS
ERATRAMOARIRER ©

—-BEIEEFEERNE -

[LAZZEREE R
[EEEHEES K
HEBMRES BIM
BFHER
—BEHEMEEYEN
X
—ERRER
—Hftp

BHME
HEEBAIMERH B TRAAHE

1 January

2018 and

31 December 31 December
2018 2017
—E-)\F

—RA—BXK

—E2-N\F —T—+F
+=A=+—H +=ZA=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
4,311,798 3,542,760
8,230,920 8,461,107
2,734,051 3,616,993
1,051,310 2,132,447
501,723 409,307
1,582,124 1,171,559
154,633 113,231
615,749 557,166
4,008,509 2,923,223
4,635 5,705
9,376,721 9,867,406
872,000 964,430
4,491,341 4,642,525
37,935,514 38,407,859
4,745,559 4,203,281
5,248,797 5,261,208
47,929,870 47,872,348
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18. ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (continued)
(c) Impaired advances to customers

18. 5EF &R
(c) EFREER

31 December 31 December
2018 % of 1 January % of 2017 % of
_3;)_\$ gross ﬁ_QOE gross —2:_EE gross
- _I_zg advances  —~ A )} q advances _ +: 5 advances
= HER EER - EER
HK$'000 @ HK$'000 Es HK$'000 ks
S Bl T BAl Fi5n BAl
Gross impaired advances REEREE 233,231 049 187,304 0.39 187,304 039
Stage 3 impairment allowances FREE TN
made against impaired loans FIRBRERE (196,876) (155,969) -
Individual impairment alowances ~ BLREER{ELH
made against impaired loans {ERI B E RS - - (165,969)
36,355 31,341 31,341
Amount of collateral held in respect  BEREEZIEEH)
of impaired loans EAmEE 26,308 31,521 31521

ERRIEZRREARTAKENEENRR
18 EPAREAMENE ARBERRRA
R ZREHRR -

MEHEREBSOZRETR

EFERTRAREREMENARENRE
B EBANETEP 2 TERRENR
BFRE - AN —ROSAHR=E0F W&
RARBEREMEREE ZERE - RE
BEHERERENERZZEHEETR
PERNFHEAZRENT -

Collateral mainly comprises mortgage interests over residential

properties with the Group. It does not include any expected recovery

from companies in liquidation and government guarantee schemes.
(d) Net investment in finance leases and hire purchase
contracts
Advances to customers include the net investment in motor vehicles
and equipment leased to customers under finance leases and hire
purchase contracts having the characteristics of finance leases. The
contracts usually run for an initial period of 3 to 5 years, with an option
for acquiring the leased asset at nominal value. The total minimum
lease payments receivable under finance leases and hire purchase
contracts and their present values at the year end are as follows:

(d)

31 December 1 January 31 December
2018 2018 2017
—EB-N\F —ZT-N\F —T—+F
+=A=+—H —A—H +=—A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET FHET
(Restated)
(ED)
Total minimum lease =EAEER
payments due: REFETAIEIR A&
—within 1 year ——F AR 69,793 78,803 78,803
— after 1 year but within ——FUBERSF
5 years LAY 79,959 78,835 78,835
— after 5 years —RFLAE 344 3,396 3,396
150,096 161,034 161,034
Interest income relating to BRREAEI B2
future periods FLEMA (355) (976) (976)
Present value of the minimum lease ~ EWSEREE R
payments receivable BHE 149,741 160,058 160,058
Impairment allowances on Stage 1 FIRBEREE
financial assets B RE (655) (370) -
Net investment in finance leases and B EFE KBS 2
hire purchase contracts & F5E 149,086 159,688 160,058
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18. ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (continued) 18. 5EF &R
(d) Netinvestment in finance leases and hire purchase (d) Eﬂﬁ%ﬂ%&#ﬂﬁ%é%’\] ZEBEFE
contracts (continued)
The maturity profile of the present value of the minimum lease Jﬁﬂﬁﬁé{% RIREEENIRE 2 HRAE R0
payments before impairment allowances is as follows: g
1 January
2018 and
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
— = _)\E'E
—A—HRK
—E-)N\fF —E—+F
+=A=t—H +=ZHA=+—H”H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
(Restated)
(fe&E%)
Within 1 year —F LR 69,517 78,455
After 1 year but within 5 years —FUBERFEUA 79,891 78,382
After 5 years FELAE 333 3,221
149,741 160,058
Comparative information is restated to include finance lease contracts HEEREESINB S BTHBATERS
that were not previously included in this note in prior period. E@ﬂﬂﬁiﬁ’ﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%’]
19. DEBT SECURITIES MEASURED AT AMORTIZED 19. RBSE R AT B ZERES
COST
31 December 1 January 31 December
2018 2018 2017
—=E2-N\fF —E-N\F —E—tF
+=—H=+—H —A—HB +=ZA=+—8H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT FAET
Debt securities measured at HEEK AT B
amortized cost (BRG5>S
Treasury bills (including Exchange Fund I}E%( BIEINER B
Bills) ES )
— Listed outside Hong Kong ﬂﬁé%\ﬁé LASN TR 14,958 14,849 -
— Unlisted —3ELET 4,579,528 1,009,359 -
Certificates of deposit held i F i
— Listed outside Hong Kong —RBEBUAIN TR 226,585 569,548 -
— Unlisted —3EET 834,699 1,213,913 -
Debt securities BB
— Listed in Hong Kong —RESA LT 10,889,872 6,748,282 -
— Listed outside Hong Kong — BB TR 13,036,403 18,249,262 -
— Unlisted —3ELET™ 7,307,722 5,199,930 -
36,889,767 33,005,143 -
Debt securities measured at B A 2 BT
amortized cost are issued by: B T EEEEETT -
— Governments and central banks — BUN KA R IRTT 5,234,078 1,955,903 -
— Public sector entities — NEHE 895,557 649,707 -
- Banks —iR7T 13,336,240 15,664,813 -
— Corporate entities —hEEE 17,423,892 14,734,720 -
36,889,767 33,005,143 -
As at 31 December 2018, debt securities issued by banks include debt RZF—-\F+=A=+—0  RITETNE
securities with fair value of HK$2,943.2 million issued by multilateral BESBESR %i%?ﬁ?*fﬁf??é{?ﬁ’] Fﬂgfﬁﬁ
development banks. As at 31 December 2018, the fair value of debt 2,943,200,00078 T EIEE & o —N\EF
securities guaranteed by governments was HK$1,637.8 million. f-A=+-8" BUTW%E’JF?%M%E'J N

{&A1,637,800,000/5 7T °
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LA EEREMEE WS

31 December 1 January 31 December
2018 2018 2017
—ZE-N\fF —E-)N\EF —E—+F
+=A=t+—8 —A—A +=ZA=+—8
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT FAET
Financial assets designated at HEEUARNFIEEREM
fair value though other PEK G EN L
comprehensive income BE
Equity securities B EFH
— Listed in Hong Kong —REBLM 62 69 -
— Unlisted —3EETH 809,268 544,340 -
809,330 544,409 -

These equity securities are irrevocably designated at FVOCI as the Group

ARAEERSAZSEFERBREIRBA

intends to hold these securities for long-term investment or strategic
purposes. None of these investments was disposed of during 2018, and
there were no transfers of any cumulative gain or loss within equity relating
to these investments.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

& ZERAEFTABEIET AR ATER
FAHMEERE - KT \FHERRELE
ZERE  AYEEREAZERERMNERZ
RN -

. THHESRERE

31 December

2018 and
1 January 31 December
2018 2017
—E-N\F
+=HA=+—H
E=—Z2—N\&F —E—+F
—HA—B +=-A=+—8
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Available-for-sale financial assets at R FEES R AT # 1 E
fair value TEEE
Treasury bills (including Exchange Fund Bills) HEA(BIEINEESZE)
— Listed outside Hong Kong —RREBEBEAIN ETH = 15,034
— Unlisted —3 M = 1,009,487
Certificates of deposit held FriFF 57
— Listed outside Hong Kong —REBAIN LT - 571,764
— Unlisted —JE L - 1,067,754
Debt securities BEI%ES
— Listed in Hong Kong —REBLT = 9,397,485
— Listed outside Hong Kong —REBUSN T - 15,378,966
- Unlisted -3k - 4,258,761
Equity securities ENCES
— Listed in Hong Kong —RAEBLEM = 69
— Unlisted —JLEm - 544,340
- 32,243,660
Available-for-sale financial assets are I B2 ml B2 T #EE
issued by: BT -
— Governments and central banks — U R AP RERTT - 1,963,013
— Public sector entities —NEHE = 656,408
- Banks —iR7T = 14,453,996
— Corporate entities —EER - 15,170,243
- 32,043,660
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21,

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued)

As at 31 December 2017, debt securities issued by banks include debt
securities with fair value of HK$2,014.7 million issued by multilateral
development banks. As at 31 December 2017, the fair value of debt
securities guaranteed by governments was HK$1,361.5 million.

As at 31 December 2017, certain of the Group’s available-for-sale equity
securities with a fair value of HK$30.7 million were individually determined
to be impaired on the basis of a significant or prolonged decline in fair
value below cost. Impairment losses on these investments of HK$1.3
million were recognized in profit or loss in year 2017.

22. HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS

21. At HESRMEE »)

RZBE—+E+-A=+—0  #RTEITRN
BEEFEEASEERBTETATEES
2,014,700,000 8 LK BB EHR - RZT—+tF
TZA=+—H  BRNEREXKESFNAFEE
/1,361,500,0008 7T ©

RZE—+F+-_A=+—H AEEETAT
{& {8 /230,700,000 78 7T & A it ) & i AN 35 5 A
ERFEEARBARHEARAMKERNET
BRE -R_T—LF ZERENRAEER
1,300,000/ L E B RNER -

2. FEFHPRE

31 December
2018 and 31 December

1 January 2018 2017
—E-)N\F
+=A=+—~H
R=Z2-N\fF —T—tF
—A—HB +-A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FHT
Held-to-maturity investments at amortized cost RS A DIBR 2 15 2 FIEIR &
Debt securities EBES
— Listed in Hong Kong —REBLEM = 77,268
— Listed outside Hong Kong — BB ET - 273,536
— Unlisted —3E LT = 1,054,735
Certificates of deposit FRE
— Unlisted —3EET™ = 156,257
- 1,661,796
Held-to-maturity investments are TR IR & TS
issued by: 27T -
- Banks —iR7T = 1,484,528
— Corporate entities —1EEE = 77,268
- 1,661,796

23.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
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23. RN &E AT 2 s

31 December 1 January 31 December
2018 2018 2017
—E-N\E —E-N\F —E—+F
+=—A=+—H —A—H +=ZA=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET THT
Unlisted shares, at cost FELEMRMG - HERANE 10,394 10,394 10,394
Share of net assets EnEEFE - 2,338,425 2,338,559
Goodwil SRS - 52,250 52,250
10,394 2,401,069 2,401,203
Less: Impairment allowance on unlisted B FE_ TR D
shares TRE B (10,394) (10,394) (10,394)
- 2,390,675 2,390,809
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23.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

The Bank has one associate as of 31 December 2018. The associate
is an unlisted corporate entity, whose market price is not available. The
information of the associate is as follows:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
3R o Bt

23. ABE N T 2 R ()
R=T—\E+-A=+—A &G —EY
BNT  BE AR A IO EERE EAE
HMENE - BAAR 2 ERBIIWT :

Form of Place of Particulars of Proportion
business incorporation issued and of ownership
Name of associate structure and operation paid up capital interest Principal activities
MK BRTRAR
BENRER BB EEY ZRAFE  HERHELA TEXK
IBA Finance Corporation (‘IBAFI")  Incorporated The Philippines 50,000,000 ordinary 40.00% Provision of financing and
IBA Finance Corporation([ 1BAFI]) A%z FEE shares of PHP1 each leasing services (Note i
50,000,000% &K E & B RS R ()
FEERRITOLBR

The Group’s effective interest over the associate is held by the Bank
directly.
Note i:  IBAFl is a financing company incorporated in the Philippines. The Group has
not equity accounted for the investments in IBAFI in view of the immaterial
amount involved.

As of 31 December 2017, the Bank held 15.78% of ownership interest in
XBCL, a bank incorporated in the PRC. The Bank was entitled to appoint
two directors, including one Executive Director, to the board of XBCL
which comprises thirteen directors. In view of the Bank’s shareholding
and representation on the Board of Directors, XBCL was accounted for
as an associated company as the directors believed they had significant
influence. The Bank sold its entire shareholding in XBCL during the year
2018 as disclosed in Note 11.

24.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries which
principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group. The class
of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

AEERBERANERESMATERRA

Meti:  IBAFIRRFERZEZMALHGERF © BRHT
FRZEFMNTEE  FEEWEL 5t ZAT

FRIBAFILZ R ESIAFEA ©

R-Z—tF+-_A=+—R  KIHERTE
SRS B P IRTT16.78% A RS © AR1T
BRZIMUER(BE—RITES) MAEM
PITNEFS (BT UESEK) - ERRITH
BREMNEFENRRAY  EFA/NFA
BEATEN  FAEMBRITES —BBE QT
AR M1 FTINEE - AT T —\FEH
HEREPIRITH 2 ROMCHE

24. B R ERE
NTAEEREEEYEL
B3

BRI HE R R o B
R AT AR

SEXE  EEXR
BREAEI - R

Particulars of  Proportion of
issued and ownership  Principal
Name of Company paid up capital interest  activities
ERITRARZ
PEES BAHE HEERRH TEEY
Incorporated and operating in Hong Kong REBIMR LR ERE
Fubon Credit (Hong Kong) Limited BB B(EE)BRAT HK$65,000,000 100%  Provision of financing services
65,000,000/ 7 B RS
FB Securities (Hong Kong) Limited ERELR(BE)BRLA HK$8,000,000 100%  Securities broking
8,000,000/ T BEHLE
FB Investment Management Limited ERNBEEERAA HK$8,000,000 100%  Fund management
8,000,000/ 7T HEER
Fubon Nominees (Hong Kong) Limited Fubon Nominees (Hong Kong) HK$200 100%  Nominee service
Limited 200/57T REBARS
Fubon Insurance Brokers Limited EARRERERAR HK$100,000 100%  Insurance broker services

100,000/87C (REBAZ A N\ R
iR LB AR ATTER RS

AIRBEPREEHERERRBEEERRA
Al 2 EDRE o HEFRIRER 26 -

All of the above subsidiaries are directly owned by the Bank.

The Bank sold its entire shareholding of FB Investment Management
Limited subsequent to the end of the reporting period. Details of the
disposal is disclosed in Note 26.
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25. FIXED ASSETS
(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount

25.BEEEE
(a) BREIEXER

Furniture,
fixtures and
Premises equipment Total
B #E
LY ES e Fak ol
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TEx TEx FTET
Cost or valuation BAEREE
At 1 January 2018 R-Z—-N\F—H—H 3,777,633 913,284 4,690,917
Additions NE - 81,184 81,184
Disposals HeE - (20,946) (20,946)
Surplus on revaluation (Note 13) HHBH(HTFE13) 269,604 - 269,604
Elimination of accumulated depreciation ~— #Ei5E L% > 2EHE
on revalued premises (65,965) - (65,965)
At 31 December 2018 —N\F
+=—A=+—H 3,981,272 973,522 4,954,794
Representing: K&
Cost KAE - 973,522 973,522
Valuation - 2018 HE-—Z-N\F 3,981,272 - 3,981,272
3,981,272 973,522 4,954,794
Accumulated depreciation e
At 1 January 2018 RZZE—-N\F—HA—H - 574,864 574,864
Charge for the year (Note 7) FRITE (FIEE7) 65,965 72,578 138,543
Released on disposal HER D - (20,885) (20,885)
Elimination of accumulated depreciation XS4 E %y 25T E
on revalued premises (65,965) - (65,965)
At 31 December 2018 —N\F
+-A=+-8 - 626,557 626,557
Accumulated impairment loss 2 REER
At 1 January and 31 December 2018 RZZE-\F-A—BK
+=A=+-AR 15,733 - 15,733
Net book value REFE
At 1 January 2018 RZE—-\F—H—H 3,761,900 338,420 4,100,320
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NF
—A=+—H 3,965,539 346,965 4,312,504
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B A R B &
25. FIXED ASSETS (continued) 25. B EEE®)
(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (continued) (a) BREEHEKR®
Furniture,
fixtures and
Premises equipment Total
CUTN3 =
VJES HiE B
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHET FET
Cost or valuation BAEREE
At 1 January 2017 R-ZT—+F—HF—H 3,482,333 815,605 4,297,938
Additions NE - 106,549 106,549
Disposals & - (8,870) (8,870)
Surplus on revaluation (Note 13) BHAEH(E3) 356,489 - 356,489
Elimination of accumulated depreciation ~ #Ks4EfE s 2
on revalued premises FHTE (61,189 - (61,189)
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—+F
+=—A=+—8H 3,777,633 913,284 4,690,917
Representing: R&:
Cost BKAE - 913,284 913,284
Valuation - 2017 HE-—2—tF 3,777,633 - 3,777,633
3,777,633 913,284 4,690,917
Accumulated depreciation e
At 1 January 2017 R-ZT—+F—F—H - 511,811 511,811
Charge for the year (Note 7) FRITE (FTEE7) 61,189 71,892 133,081
Released on disposal HE B[] - (8,839) (8,839)
Elimination of accumulated depreciation 5 $EEEME Y 251 E
on revalued premises (61,189 - (61,189)
At 31 December 2017 R-Z—+F
+=A=+—H - 574,864 574,864
Accumulated impairment loss ZETREFE
At 1 January and 31 December 2017 RZE—+F-HA—-HRK
+=-—A=+—H 15,733 - 15,733
Net book value REFE
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F
+=—A=+—H 3,761,900 338,420 4,100,320
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25. FIXED ASSETS (continued)

(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (continued)
Had the revalued premises been carried at cost less accumulated

146

depreciation, the

Net book value

(b) Fair value me
() Fairvalue h

carrying amounts would have been:

RESE

asurement of properties
ierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s
properties measured at the end of the reporting period on

a recurring

basis, categorized into the three-level fair value

hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement.
The level into which a fair value measurement is classified is
determined with reference to the observability and significance of
the inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

Level 1:

Level 2:

Level 3:

Fubon Bank & F8R1T

Fair value measured using only Level 1 inputs i.e.
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date

Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs i.e.
observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not
using significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable
inputs are inputs for which market data are not
available

Fair value measured using significant unobservable
inputs

25. Bl EEE (%)

(a) BREIME¥ER®)
WERYERK AR BEITEAR - BIRE

BIER :
1 January
2018 and
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
—E-N\F
—RA—BKk
—E2-N\F —F—+F
+=A=+—H +ZA=1+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
806,415 817,031

(b) MEZ A FEETE
() DFEESRIE
TRIRAEBERBERRZEFE R
B EZMERTERE  LRBERDE
PHRELRFE1BR DT BEAERR
EZ =R FEERERR - AFEE
BB R AR 2 RAT AERM
MRBABEZIEREERERER
MESE :
—&:  ER-RBAZREIRGE
REEREESAELLE
T RERERE)FTEZ
NFHEE
“H R RBARE(BIRAER
RE-FRELABERGA
g UWEAERATABR
EEHARB)FEZATE
B TABREABEER
BREMSEE B ARE
=% ERTUBREZEHAZE
AEZAYEE
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PR ER M

25. FIXED ASSETS (continued) 25.EEEE 4#)
(b) Fair value measurement of properties (continued) (b) MEZAFEEFTE®)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) () 2FEESHKHEE)
Fair value at Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2018 31 December 2018 categorized into
R=Z-\%F ALEEFER
+=ZA=t+-H “E-\E¥+ZA=t+-HA2ELT
ZAVEE Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
iR —& i1 =8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET FET TR
Recurring fair value measurement REMNTEETE
Premises: VESR 3,965,539 - - 3,965,539
Fair value at
1 January 2018 and
31 December 2017 Fair value measurements as at 1 January 2018
RZE—\F and 31 December 2017 categorized into
—-A—Bk AFEESEN-Z-)\F—A—HR
—TtF ZE—tEFZA=T-ASEMT
+-A=t—Hz Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
ATEESE —& % =5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHL L FAL
Recurring fair value measurement BEMNYERETR
Premises: W 3,761,900 - - 3,761,900

During the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, there were
no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or out
of Level 3. The Group’s policy is to recognize transfers between
levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period
in which they occur.

All of the Group’s premises were revalued as at 31 December
2018 and 2017. The valuations were carried out by an
independent firm of surveyors, Colliers International (Hong Kong)
Limited, who have among their staff fellows of the Royal Institute
of Chartered Surveyors with recent experience in the location
and category of property being valued.

The revaluation surplus of HK$225.1 million (2017: HK$297.7
million) has been recognized in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the premises revaluation reserve, net of deferred
tax.

REBEZ-Z-\FR-Z—+tF+=A
ZH-ALFE —RR-HELE
EAEYR  TEIMNEESARET =
o AEEZBERRREBE A 2 1HEH
BEHRERATFEBESHE 2 MM
i .

AEERENER-_T-NFL-F
—tF+ZA=t+—R{EHER - fE
HBVAERMTRABKDEER(F
B)ERAFET AN ETIARHE
EXFABMEEERGBEAARN

BRI AT e R SIS MO AE 5 o

B 5 A #225,100,0008 T (—T—+
4 1 297,700,000/ 7T ) MK IELE T 18
BENEMEEBERARRRENE
EfEER R -
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B AR 5 B &
25. FIXED ASSETS (continued) 25.EEEE 4#)
(b) Fair value measurement of properties (continued) (b) MEZAFEEFTERE)
(i) Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 3 fair value (i) =RLAFEETEEANGEERI
measurements R A B

148

The fair value of premises is determined using market comparison
approach assuming sale with immediate vacant possession and
by reference to comparable sales evidence.

(iii) Reconciliation of fair value measurements in Level 3 of the (iii)
fair value hierarchy
The following table provides a reconciliation of the movement
between opening and closing balances of Level 3 properties,
measured at fair value using a valuation technique with significant
unobservable inputs:

E 0N Wﬁfﬁm@ﬂﬁi%ttfﬁiﬂﬁi
ENRXEHERZEN AL BIHER
BMETE -

RNPEESRUE=RATVEEF
BHHER
TREFIR A FEEFEEABER
BREATABERARE . =BYx
YRR R BBER -

Premises 2018 2017
L/E S —=E-N\F —T—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT

At 1 January Hn—A—H 3,761,900 3,466,600
Depreciation for the year REEE (65,965) (61,189)
Surplus on revaluation — credit to BERAEHB-FTAYE

premises revaluation reserve EIHFEE 269,604 356,489
At 31 December ®W+—-—A=+—~H 3,965,539 3,761,900
Total gains or losses for the year included  FEAREHARATIE S AT A

in other comprehensive income for HEi 2B R RORFEE

assets held at the end of the reporting Wk 184858

period

— Premises: net movement in premises —WE  MEBERERE

revaluation reserve 234,231 305,992

Total gains or losses for the year included SR IR&HIR FTis B ERT A Bzs R

in profit or loss for KA FE W s E B4R TE

assets held at the end of

the reporting period

— Operating expenses: Depreciation —&EY W e (65,965) 61,189)
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25. FIXED ASSETS (continued)

(b) Fair value measurement of properties (continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR ER M

25. B EEE®)

(iv) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

(b) WEZAFEEE(E)
(v) EE=RATEESENESR

Valuation technique Unobservable input Range
fRE R TR SEW A BE &iE
Premises Market Approach — Comparable Premium/(discount) on 120% to -30%
Transactions Method characteristic of the
properties
ES MiGE - ELBRR 5% YERER) R E (HT5E) 120%% —30%

The fair value of premises held for own use are determined using
the Market Approach — Comparable Transactions Method. This
approach provides an indication of value by comparing the
subject asset with sales of identical or similar assets for which
price information is available. In analysing such sales, which
qualify as arms-length transactions between willing buyers and
sellers, adjustments are made for size, location, time, amenities
and other relevant factors to assess the value of the subject asset.

(c) The analysis of net book value of premises is as

follows:

Held in Hong Kong at fair value
— Long-term leases (over 50 years)
— Medium-term leases (10-50 years)

REBRATEERE
- REBOGEAATF)
—TFHRO(HEFEERTF)

RIEERMENRFEEIERTS
E-TBUBRHEETE - %ETE
BREREERBRERASNERK
BUBEHEFELER  URHEBEERE
% BRNMERET RERE T ES
BATRAETOHEXSAFERR
BECEER DRERE NE &
A RIS EMARRE -

(c) MIRIREHEN DM :

1 January

2018 and

31 December 31 December
2018 2017
—E-N\F

—A—Bk

—B-N\#F —FtF
+=HA=+—H +ZA=1+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
2,426,439 2,305,500
1,539,100 1,456,400
3,965,539 3,761,900
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26. ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

150

In May 2014, the Group transferred two owned properties situated in Hong
Kong with carrying amount of HK$92,669,000 from premises to assets
held for sale following the Group’s decision to dispose of the properties.
In December 2014, the Group sold one of the properties, with a carrying
amount of HK$47,225,000, at a consideration of HK$52,000,000. A gain
of HK$4,775,000 was recognized in profit the year ended 31 December
2014. The Group is committed to a plan to sell the remaining property.

The asset is measured at the lower of its carrying amount and fair value
less costs to sell at the end of each reporting period. The carrying amount
as of 31 December 2018 of HK$45,443,000 (2017: HK$43,900,000)
represents its fair value less costs to sell. The fair value measurement is
categorized as at Level 3 valuation as described in Note 25 (b).

Cumulative income recognized in other comprehensive income relating to
assets held for sale is HK$27,995,000 (2017: HK$27,995,000), net of tax,
which represents cumulative revaluation surplus of the property.

In May 2018, the Bank’s Board of Directors approved the disposal of one
of the Bank’s subsidiaries, which is a licensed corporation registered with
the Securities and Futures Commission. The Bank then signed a Sale and
Purchase agreement with the acquirer who is a fellow subsidiary of the
Bank. The completion of the transaction is subject to regulatory approval,
which was obtained in January 2019. The disposal was completed in
February 2019. All assets and liabilities related to this subsidiary are
presented under “Assets held for sale” and “Liabilities associated with
assets held for sale” respectively.

Assets held for sale comprise the following:

Property situated in Hong Kong URBBZME
Account receivables and other assets
of a subsidiary

REAEE

Fubon Bank & F8R1T

26. BEHEZEE

RZZ—WMERA  AEEREHEEUNE
7 ) BF T B /4 92,669,000 7 JT M) W B ¥ ¥
VHEEEESRERELECEE - RN=F
—NE+ZA AKEELET-—BHREEA
47,225,000% 7T H) ¥ % R 1B /52,000,000 7
T EBURNEE-E-ME+-A=+—HIE
B35 M RE:R4,775,00078 70 2 W2k o ALEEH
HEILEHRTE -

BERNEREBREFEERATFEERLES
KA (MEZEREERE)GE -RZT—NF
T-A=Z1+—8 ' REE45443,0005T(=F
—+ 4 © 43,900,000 7T ) IHE RN E AT EBR T
ERA - MEAFBENESEA=-RMEE (WK
FE25(0)FTit) °

R BARAZERATER - TIRREEL
& & E27,995,000/8 7L ( ZF —+ 4 : 27,995,000
BT (MBRHIE) - HERMRN R EERL

R-F-N\FRLA ATEFEHREHEATH
P-RXMEBAR EARNEFRNEEBERE
BeEMnEEiE - B8 - AMTRE/KITR
ZMBARMBRBIRITEERZ - XHALE
BRPED AR - YR T AF - A%SE
U o WHER T AF - AEK o EZM
BAREBNMEEERAED BRI FEHEL
BEIRIBHEHEBREZHBREITIIR

FIEHEZEERIE TIIRE

—FEM B AR Z YRR

1 January

2018 and

31 December 31 December
2018 2017
—E-)N\F

—HA—HK

—E2-N\F —T—+tF
+=A=+—-H +=-A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
45,443 43,900

384 -

45,827 43,900
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B R 5 B B
27. GOODWILL 27. B8
1 January
2018 and
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
—E-N\F
—HA—HK
—B-N\F  -T—t%
+=A=+—H +=-A=1+—8
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Cost and carrying amounts B K EREE
At 1 January n—A—H 52,250 66,182
Disposal of investment in an associate HERBE AR ZIRE (52,250) -
Dilution on investment in an associate R NI E 2 B8 = (18,932)
At 31 December Rt+—A=+—H - 52,250
As at 31 December 2017, goodwill of HK$52,250,000 in respect of NZZ—+F+-_A=1+—0 BHEAEEN—
the Group’s interest in an associate was included in carrying amount of & A A2 B A P8 2 $£52,250,0008 7L B 15
interests in associates (Note 23). R 2N RS 2 REEA (FF23) »
28. DEPOSITS AND BALANCES OF BANKS AND 28. RITRIERHMSHMBB 2 FRR
OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS F=3-2
1 January
2018 and
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
—ZE—N\F
—H—BxK
—E-N\F —E—tF
t=A=t-8 +-A=1—H
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAT
Deposits and balances from banks RITRIEZ TR M AR 3,209,729 2,001,405
Deposits and balances from the HKMA ReERZFR LR 278,273 24,743
3,488,002 2,026,148
Amounts due to banks and other financial institutions Bl §& 72518 T FE(T 4R TR 3
under repurchase agreements (Note 44(f) N E A5 B R 2 FO08
(Mi5E44() 5,979,423 9,181,147
9,467,425 11,207,295
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MRS MY
29. DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS 20.5EF&FEX
1 January
2018 and
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
—ET-N\F
—AR—BK
—E2-N\F —T—+F
+=A=+—H +ZA=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Demand deposits and current accounts B R AT 12,956,273 14,174,871
Savings deposits HEFR 1,269,027 1,499,752
Call deposits BRER 4,091,701 4,571,802
Time deposits TEHTFR 49,930,797 41,821,368
68,247,798 62,067,793
30. TRADING LIABILITIES 0. XGEREFNZEE
1 January
2018 and
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
—E-N\EF
—A—BK
—E-N\F —ZT—+F
t=A=t-8 +-A=t+-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
Tt T
Short positions in Exchange Fund Bills INEEGEERZEE 1,898,372 1,846,819
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PR ER M

31. OTHER LIABILITIES 31.HhEaE
31 December 1 January 31 December
2018 2018 2017
—E-N\E —E-N\E —T—+F
+ZA=+—H —H—H +=-A=1+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TExT FTExT FAT
Net defined benefit liability THRENaEFHE

(Note 38(a)(i)) (H¥3E38()(0) 47,361 57,301 57,301
Accounts payable and other liabilities JENMEEEREMBE 1,784,077 2,017,202 2,017,202

Expected credit loss on credit related EERBAELRSBESENTE
commitments and contingencies HEEEE 5,265 10,068 -
1,836,703 2,084,571 2,074,503

32.INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a) Current tax provision/(recoverable) in the

32. REMBARR K ZFFEHR

(a) FEBBAMRTRA Z DT HE

consolidated statement of financial position &, (ATREIENERE) A ¢
represents:
1 January
2018 and
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
—EN\F
—A—HBk
—E-N\F —E—+F
+t=A=+-8 +=A=+-A
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FT
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax FRNEEFESHEE
for the year 113,184 89,450
Provisional Hong Kong Profits Tax paid ERNEBEHFEH (66,807) (25,564)
46,377 63,886
Balance of Hong Kong Profits Tax payable/ HCBEEEERN,/ (AU E)
(recoverable) relating to EABNEB &R
prior years 1,472 (28,063)
47,849 35,823
Representing: &
Hong Kong Profits Tax recoverable* LG TIE Y (350) -
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax* FAETNET LR 48,199 35,823
47,849 35,823

* The amounts of taxation recoverable and payable are expected to be
settled within 1 year and are included in the “Accrued interest and other

assets” and “Other liabilities” respectively.

BT[] R JEAI B R 2 BRI — FNB 1 -
WERA DRI ErE it FIERAEMEE]

HURIEMEEIA
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32.INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

(b)

32. BREMBMRR T Z I EH (@

(b) ERRBELEHREERERE
NEARBRRRARR BEHELE
(BE)ZBARAD RFEN 2 BB -

Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognized

The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognized in the
consolidated statement of financial position and the movements
during the year are as follows:

154

Revaluation of
equity securities
Depreciation designated
allowances in Revaluation of ~ at fair value
excess of Defined available-for-  through other Unappropriated
related benefit  Imparment  sale financial comprehensive  Revaluation profit of
depreciation scheme allowance assets income  of premises  an associate Total
BENAT
EEREM
BREH 2EYEE
RENRE  TEE AEHE 2RSS YN
k] iR RERE SRAEER Bt WEERE  RHEEN &g
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL AL TARL AL TARL AL TAL AL
At 1 January 2017 RZE—t5-F—-H (40,739) 9,623 17,958 (16,099) - (448,968) (18,554) (496,779)
(Charged)/credited in arriving at WREEEFIR (%)
the profi for the year BE(H12()
(Note 12(@)) (6,463) (1,112) 3,998 - - 14 (8,445) (11,908
Credite/charged) to other REM2ERERER/
comprehensive income (H8) (RizE13)
(Note 13) - 1,306 - (85,489) - (60,497) - (134,645)
At 31 December 2017 WZE—+5F
+-A=+-H (47,202 9,816 21,956 (101,552) - (499,351) (26,999) (643,332)
At 31 December 2017 R=B-tf
+=A=1-H (47,202) 9,816 21,956 (101,552) - (499,351) (26,999) (643,332)
Opening balance adjustments \=RI e FilEE
arising from change in MEHELHR
accounting policy - - (6,333) 101,552 (65,802) - - 30,417
At 1 January 2018 W=E-\§-B-H (47,202) 9,816 16,623 - (65,802) (499,351) (26,999) (612,915)
(Charged)/credited in arrivingat ~ AAEERFIH
the profit for the year (%) /BE
(Note 12(a)) (MfE12(a) (3,226) (1,611) (5,650) - - 114 26,999 16,626
Charged to other comprehensive ~ REM2F i
income (Note 13) HBR(MEE13) = (237) = - (w4646) (3537 - (80256)
At 31 December 2018 R=B-NE
+=A=t-A (50,428) 7,968 10,973 - (110448 (534,610) - (676,545
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B A R B &
32.INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 2. FEUBMRRR Z BB @)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognized (continued) (b) CEFEEREEEREB (B
Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognized are summarized as ERARLRBEERARRLET -
follows:

31 December 1 January 31 December
2018 2018 2017
—E-N\F —E-N\F —T—+F
+=H=+—H —A—B +=ZA=+—8H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAT FAET
Net deferred tax assets recognized inthe 438 BATSIR RIER 2
consolidated statement of financial BRI THE EF5E
position 7 9 6
Net deferred tax liabilities recognizedin =~ 43 & BATEIA R R ER 2
the consolidated statement of financial RERIHE EF58
position (676,552) (612,924) (643,338)
(676,545) (612,915) (643,332)

(c) Deferred tax assets unrecognized (c) RERZELXEHBEE
The Group has no material unrecognized deferred tax asset as at 31 RZZB-NE+ZA=+—H AEETHE
December 2018 (2017: HK$NIl). BERARERZELREEE(ZT—tF -

) o
33. SUBORDINATED NOTES ISSUED 3B.ORITREERE
1 January
2018 and
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
—E-N\F
—A—Bk
—E-N\F —E—+F
+=A=+—-HA +=A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
US$200 million 6.125% subordinated notes issued in -~ 7 —ZE —Z 4 £77200,000,000
2010 EILFEER6.125%H)
RIERE 1,562,870 1,557,472

Subordinated notes with face value of US$200 million (equivalent to RKIR-—ZE—ZBF+—-A=+BRTEHES

HK$1,566.3 million) and carrying amount of HK$1,562.9 million which 200,000,000 7t ( 1 & 7 7% 1,566,300,0007% 7T )

qualify as supplementary capital were issued by the Bank on 30 November K BRE B /51,562,900,00058 7T &5 & M InE A%

2010 and will mature on 30 November 2020. ANEBERE ZREBR_Z_TF+-A=+

HEIE8 -
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33.

34.

35.

156

SUBORDINATED NOTES ISSUED (continued)

If at any time the HKMA determines (having regard to the applicable
regulatory framework) that these subordinated notes no longer qualify
as supplementary capital, the Bank may, on or after 1 January 2013 at
its option and subject to the prior written approval of the HKMA, provide
notice to such effect to Noteholders, such notice being a “Change in
Status Notice”. Upon a Change in Status Notice becoming effective,
these subordinated notes shall cease to constitute subordinated
obligations of the Bank and shall thereafter constitute direct, unconditional,
unsubordinated and unsecured obligations of the Bank and shall
at all times thereafter rank pari passu and without any preference
among themselves. The payment obligations of the Bank under these
subordinated notes shall, save for such exceptions as may be provided
by applicable legislation, at all times thereafter rank at least equally with
all its other present and future unsecured and unsubordinated obligations
including liabilities in respect of deposits.

These subordinated notes bear interest at 6.125% per annum, payable
semi-annually. Upon a Change in Status Notice becoming effective, the
interest rate for these subordinated notes will become 5.625% per annum,
payable semi-annually. These subordinated notes are stated at amortized
cost.

3. ORITREZE »)

W &8 RIMEMBRRE (BZ BIEARERIE
RIFAREZRBTBAERERMMER - K177
R-Z-—ZF-A—R3zE& EFAEGEE
REAREREENRERAEABRNERTE
ZRANRMOE TR - R EERNE
ik AREFBEETHERRTZERERT
WRERBRATZER - BEF - FFERERE
BREME UHNEREAREZERSES
BRI S ELE - RERERAUEREZ
BISMERIN - RITREBEARERE A REES
REREMBRESEMERMRA RRARER
AERFREAR(BRABARZAR)ZARSE
e

AREZBRFNEE126%TE - BFFN—
R M BRBAEYEL - FREZBFNE
& 55.625% * BFFXN—IR - FMREFEIMA
B AT IR

SHARE CAPITAL 34. [}
1 January 2018 and
31 December 2017
31 December 2018 —E-\&—A—Bk
—E-\&+=HA=+-H —E—+F+=-A=+—H
Number of Number of
shares  Share capital shares Share capital
RHEE [N = [N
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAExT
Issued and fully paid: ERTRHE -
Ordinary shares BER
Asat 1 January and 31 December ~ RA—A—BR+=A
=+—H 1,641,273,089 4,830,448 1,641,273,089 4,830,448

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends from time
to time and are entitled to one vote per share at a general meeting of the
Bank. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Bank’s residual
assets.

RESERVES

(a) Foreign exchange reserve
The foreign exchange reserve of the Group comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translations of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set out in Note 2(v).

(b) Regulatory reserve
The regulatory reserve is maintained to satisfy the provisions of the
Hong Kong Banking Ordinance for prudential supervision purposes.
Movements in the reserve are made directly through retained earnings
and in consultation with the HKMA.

Fubon Bank & F8R1T

TRRBEABGRIREIRE REERNEITZ
BRAE LRERE—F - MAEEBRRYEATZ
NSpEEZBRSMA -

35. f&fH

(a) SMEREE
AEBINEFBEERNEBNEBYBER
ERELZANEZR - ZRBREME
2V)FTE EFRTIRREIE

(b) EEREE
BIRBCRIT LG0T TIRE ST RS
NEEREETHAN - ZBB2EHE
HHSERYERGEEIREEIEE -



35. RESERVES (continued)

(c) Investment revaluation reserve (recycling)

The investment revaluation reserve (recycling) comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of debt securities measured
at FVOCI under HKFRS 9 held at the end of the reporting period
(see Note 2(h)). Prior to 1 January 2018, this reserve included the
cumulative net change in the fair value of available-for-sale financial
assets held at the end of the reporting period in accordance with
HKAS 39. This amount has been reclassified to investment revaluation
reserve (non-recycling) upon the initial adoption of HKFRS 9 at 1
January 2018 (see Note 2(d)).

(d) Investment revaluation reserve (non-recycling)
The investment revaluation reserve (non-recycling) comprises
the cumulative net change in the fair value of equity investments
designated at FVOCI under HKFRS 9 that are held at the end of the
reporting period (see Note 2(h)).

(e) Premises revaluation reserve
The premises revaluation reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies adopted for land and buildings in Note 2()).

36. ADDITIONAL EQUITY INSTRUMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR ER M

35. @& ()

(c) REEMRAE(BR)
RESHEHB(RR) DERRSHAEAR
BEBHERELASOFIELNTEEMNA
HEt 2RI ENEFEFNATEER
HEBRE(AMEAN) c R-E—-NFE—
A—HBAl - AFEERREREES S LS
wﬁ%ﬁiwxhﬁMT#ﬁE BMEEA

TEENZNEHIFE - ZFER TN\
F—A—BERRNE S BRE ERIEHR
BENHEEREE[FECGEHER) (RN
2(d)) °

(d) REEMERHEGEER)
REE[MFFHECGEER) BERBERRSE
REEEMBHREENZMPERT/RRAF
BEFAAEGZARENRARENZFTD

REZFFR(IME2N)

(e) MEREMRHE
MEE (GBI )P B L R TR
2 BETBERFNRL AT -

36. FMNRATA

US$193 million undated non-cumulative subordinated 193,000,000 TS| HA R #5%

additional tier 1 capital securities FHEERRIN—RERES

On 29 December 2017, the Bank issued undated non-cumulative
subordinated additional tier 1 capital securities (“Additional Tier 1 Capital
Securities”) with a face value of US$193 million (equivalent to HK$1,508
million net of related issuance costs). The Additional Tier 1 Capital
Securities were undated and bore a 4.85% coupon until the first call date
on 29 December 2022.

The Bank redeemed the Additional Tier 1 Capital Securities at par on 27
December 2018, upon mutual agreement with the holder of the securities
and approval from the HKMA. All of the Additional Tier 1 Capital Securities
were held by Fubon Financial Holding Co., Ltd., the Bank’s ultimate
holding company from issuance to redemption.

1 January

2018 and

31 December 31 December
2018 2017

—N\F

—HA—Bxk

—EB-N\F S
+t=H=+t—H +TZH=t+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FET

- 1,507,797

RZZE—+tF+=A=+NA  AOTBETEREE
EWMMW%%EW%@@%HW$ BER
1,508,000,00078 7T ) #) 4% 2 B H 3 Rt & B
—BEAEF([EIN—REXRESF]) - I
BEABAFEDEENFI8%ZEER HE-F
—F+ A TAHAMEREKE -

REFLFHEAETHERSERMER - KT
RZZB-NF+-A- Tt RREERER B
—RERES - Pﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ\\—%&ﬁzﬁ EFBETE
BEOEATREERARER S BRERRNE
YNSIESZEIC
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37.CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(a) Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated cash

flow statement

Cash and balances with banks

Money at call and short notice with original
maturity within three months

Treasury bills with original maturity within three
months

Placements with banks with original maturity
within three months

(b) Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of

financial position

Cash and short-term funds (Note 15)
Treasury bills
— Trading assets (Note 16)

— Debt securities measured at amortized
cost (Note 19)
— Available-for-sale financial assets
(Note 21)
Balances with banks and other financial
institutions
Amount shown in the consolidated statement
of financial position
Less: Amount with an original maturity of over
three months

Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated
cash flow statement

158 Fubon Bank & F8R1T

37.RERERFRLIER
(a) ZFEREFBRCEEREFARSE
HEB
2018 2017
—B-N\F —T—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHBT
B MR RITRIZE 2 5 1,065,588 989,187
FER=8ARNEIE @&
EEER 4,626,132 3,808,138
ER=EARIHzEES
3,397,144 2,408,840
FER=18ARNEIE 2 R1T
R 2GR 627,340 -
9,716,204 7,206,165
(b) ZREMBMRET LR
2018 2017
—E-)N\F —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHBT
ReREEHES (MFFE15) 5,981,567 5,133,534
B B 5
—BERFRBREE
(fizE16) 1,898,372 1,846,823
— IR R FTERET
FH(HIE19) 4,594,486 -
—AEHESmEE
(FfzE21) - 1,024,521
IRITRE M S R A
2,060,262 558,348
RAETEKRRAFTR
o] 14,534,687 8,563,226
W REBBE A=A L
)= Lol (4,818,483) (1,357,061)
BRARERBHRAZEE R
ZRRESER 9,716,204 7,206,165
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37.CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

7. REREFRLSIER )
(c) MEEBMEEANEBZHIR

activities
Debt securities  Additional equity
issued instruments Total
ERTEKES ECEIN N = st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET T#ExT

At 1 January 2018 RZZE—-—N\E—HF—H 1,179,009 1,507,797 2,686,806
Changes from financing cash flows: RBER&EREBSEH :
Repayment of debt securities BEERES (2,941,519) - (2,941,519)
Proceeds from issuance of debt securities 2577 {& 75 18 2= FT1S 2018 2,151,146 - 2,151,146
Dividends payment on additional equity ~ EBAMIE A T BJR S A% S

instruments - (72,986) (72,986)
Redemption of additional equity fEEIREIMR A T A

instruments - (1,508,266) (1,508,266)
Total changes from financing cash MERSRELEHAHE

flows (790,373) (1,581,252) (2,371,625)
Exchange adjustment BE 5 138 - 138
Other changes Hih g
Professional fees to repayment of BEBEIIMNIAT EEE

additional equity instruments b= 9z3] - 469 469
Dividends paid on additional equity BN A T BRSPS

instruments - 72,986 72,986
Total other changes Hitn @ Eh4a e - 73,455 73,455
At 31 December 2018 R-ZE—N\HF

+=-A=+-R 388,774 - 388,774

Financial liabilities

designated Debt securities  Additional equity
at fair value issued instruments Total
EE R
NHEEZ 21T
A=A BSES FINREATE #Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FAET FAET
At 1 January 2017 RZE—+tF
—H—H 406,185 821,482 - 1,227,667
Changes from financing cash BMEREME
flows: #E
Repayment of debt securities BEEBES (407,380) (826,498) - (1,233,878)
Proceeds from issuance of debt B¢ TEFE B SIS
securities IE - 1,174,463 - 1,174,463
Net proceeds from issuance of BATERIMERA T A
additional equity instruments FriSsiIaE5e - - 1,507,797 1,507,797
Total changes from financing cash ~ Fi &R &2 &
flows WBEE (407,380) 347,965 1,507,797 1,448,382
Interest expense B H 1,195 9,562 - 10,757
At 31 December 2017 RIE—+F
+=-A=+—H - 1,179,009 1,507,797 2,686,806
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38. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

160

(a) Defined benefit retirement plans

The Group operates a retirement scheme, namely the Fubon Bank
(Hong Kong) Limited Retirement Scheme (“the Scheme”), which
incorporates a defined benefits plan for 20% (2017: 22%) of its full
time employees. The Scheme is administered by trustees who are
independent. The assets of the Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group. The Group has secured Mandatory Provident
Fund (“MPF”) exemption status for the Scheme. The Scheme is
funded by contributions from the Group in accordance with the trust
deed governing the Scheme and based on an independent actuary’s
recommendations. The latest independent actuarial valuation of the
Scheme was at 31 December 2018 and was prepared by Mandy
Chan, Associate of the Society of Actuaries, of Mercer (Hong Kong)
Limited using the projected unit credit actuarial cost method. The
actuarial valuation indicates that the Group’s obligations under the
Scheme are 84.11% (2017: 80.44%) covered by the plan assets held
by the trustee.

The Scheme offers a lump sum at retirement based on final salary and
years of service or employee and employer contributions if greater.
The contribution based benefit is notionally invested in a “guarantee
fund” (for which the Group acts the Guarantor), with no less than a 5%
p.a. return.

The Scheme is closed to new entrants except that in exceptional
circumstances new individual entrants are allowed to join at the
Group’s discretion, so that the plan’s size is contained. However, the
defined benefit element and the 5% p.a. guaranteed return offered
on contributions exposes the Group to actuarial risks such as interest
rate risk, investment risk and longevity risk.

() The amounts recognized in the consolidated statement of
financial position are as follows:

Present value of wholly or partly funded &&=k 255 & By
obligations ANERE

Fair value of plan assets FrEIEEMNATEE

Net liabilities recognized in the
consolidated statement of financial
position (Note 31)

B EFBME3T)

A portion of the above liability is expected to be settled after
more than one year. However, it is not practicable to segregate
this amount from the amounts payable in the next twelve
months, as future contributions will also relate to future services
rendered and future changes in actuarial assumptions and
market conditions.

Fubon Bank & F8R1T

RiFaMBARRKRERZ

38. BERINEF
(a) EFEBARNKEE

ZK%%EH BRIKETE - R ARART (R
B)BRRRIERKEEI([%ATE)) - BE20%
(:?*ti 122%) 2BEBRY —IBER
EFEE - ZEEABUSFEAEE © AT
HEERAKENEENHREA - AEEHM
ZErBEGRMELES([BEe DHHL
WAL o ZEH BT M A S EIRERE LRSI
ERRE  WABUBEMNE R AEHE
B - ZEH IR BUBERETIN =
E-N\F+ZA=+—RET BXE(F
/%)EBE Rz REBZCREERER) AR

BRUEENARYE - ZRERERT A&
BRZTEMAEZEED 84 11%(ZF
—LF : 80.44%) FIB B R AT AN
HEERSRE -

LB ERARE AR EE RRHE MRBF
HLhEIHFzBSERT—F2HE - EN
B zHFNEE LRER B[ ERES)
(FEBERERA) - FEBETERNE%

ZETEIT AR IAE R - MR IAE A i
AEERBAEAFMA - BUEZ 2R
BRI o 231 - ERRAR MR R REF
@33 5% 2R MR E A S EHEREEER
plrxmk - ZRERBRRESER -

() REEHBRRRERAHESE|NOT

2018 2017
—2-N\F —EF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER THET
(298,116) (292,992)
250,755 235,691
(47,361) (67,301)

LB EN—Fr RS NER—FR
BE - A BREBRRKT AR
H%%’EEP"%‘&%TT‘T F RRARRHE

SR IS R IR R R IR RAFERR
&W/RE’PKX """"" EJ



38. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS (continued)
(a) Defined benefit retirement plans (continued)

The Scheme follows a tri-annual funding valuation schedule when at
each funding valuation, the contributions for the following three years
are set. The last funding valuation was as of 31 December 2016 and
it was assessed at that valuation that the entity contributes 14.0% of
member’s salary. The next funding valuation will be carried out by the
Scheme actuary no later than 31 December 2019.

In addition to the above, the Group acts as the “Guarantor” to meet
the 5% p.a. return on the defined contribution benefits. The annual
contribution relating to this obligation is determined annually (based
on the Scheme’s return in the 1 July — 30 June financial year). The
Guarantor contribution determined for the 1 July 2018-30 June 2019
financial year is HK$12,465,000 which will be made in the first half of
2019.

(i) Plan assets consist of the following:

BARES Hfir
teEs

Equities or unit funds
Interest-bearing securities
Bank deposit, cash and other assets

All of the interest-bearing securities have quoted prices in active
markets.

(iii) Movements in the present value of the defined benefit

obligation
At 1 January: Kn—HA—H:
Remeasurements: EHFTE

— Actuarial losses arising from changes in  — A A& EHBR R S B E 4+

demographic assumptions ZIEEEE

- Actuarial gains arising from changes in ~ — B REEFES 2
financial assumptions TEE W

— Actuarial losses arising from experience  — B HEES 2

RITER  REREMEE

adjustments THEEE
Benefits paid by the plans FHEIEEF
Current service cost NEAPRFS R AR
Interest cost F B
Participants’ contributions 2EEHK
At 31 December Rt+t—A=+—H

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is

5.8 years (2017: 6.0 years).

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR ER M

38. EERMNKER ()
(a) EFEEAEBIAKETEI(E)

BN E = —RBA KN RER TR
SEUR - BE-ARAREARE T
—AET=A=+—H  AREREREH
 14.0% it SRS RAPIS 1 © 3%t BB
BERTER —F-NFT=A=T—BE
7T — R -

Br ESTUASN - REBEARIERAIGETE
BERFEFGERHOIR - AEZETHHE
AASFET(ENEA—BENA=ZTEY
BEEZENER) - —T—N\FtA—H
E-Z-NEXNA=TEFBEENERA
HFEE T 512,465,000 7T » TR -F
—NEFEEFEES -

(i) FBEEEFEQT :

2018 2017
—E-N\F ZE—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHBT
5,927 7,829
69,636 57,597
175,192 170,265
250,755 235,691

FAH e ESNERTHERE -

(i) EEENETRENESH

2018 2017
—ZE-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHxT FiBT
292,992 283,198
- 7,286

(3,123) -
1,159 2,854
291,028 293,338
(12,888) (20,638)
11,654 13,346
4,784 3,260
3,538 3,686
298,116 292,992

EEEMNETINEFHERAL.3F (=
T+ 6.0F) o
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38. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS (continued)

(a) Defined benefit retirement plans (continued)
(iv) Movements in plan assets

At 1 January: Kn—A—H:

Group’s contributions paid to A& E SR
the plans

Benefits paid by the plans FHEIEFEF]

Interest income FLEHA

Administrative expenses paid EREIEESENLY)
from plan assets TR

Return on plan assets s EIE E BT

At 31 December R+ZA=+—H

(v} Amounts recognized in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income are as follows:

Current service cost (Note 7)

Net interest on net defined benefit liability & ZE1EH]| & E)F5E >
pEFIRSN

Administrative expenses and taxes T K B IR

Total amounts recognized in

profit or loss

Actuarial (gain)/losses BE (), B8
Return on plan assets, excluding interest  5t21& & 7 BIsR ~B1E
income FLEMA

Total amounts recognized in other

comprehensive income (Note 13) 1 %E (M3E13)

Total defined benefit cost TR R AN 4E %58

The actual return on the Scheme’s assets for the year ended
31 December 2018 amounted to approximately HK$1,084,000
(2017: HK$2,619,000).

162 Fubon Bank & F8R1T

REABRAE A (L7 )

PIBEIRFER 2 R

38. EERMKEBEF (&)
(a) EEEEFENRE (@)
(iv) SHEIEERS

2018 2017
—E-N\E —FtF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T FHL
235,691 227,034
26,868 26,676
(12,888) (20,638)
4,029 2,737
(2,417) (2,346)
(528) 2,228
250,755 235,691

(v) REE2ENERTERIZEED

REMEEKERFPERZ

T
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+fF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TET FET
11,654 13,346

755 523

2,417 2,346
14,826 16,215
(1,964) 10,140

528 (2,228)

(1,436) 7,912
13,390 24,127

BE-_T—-)\E+-_A=+—HIF
& FTEIEEER [ R E 491,084,000
BIT(ZZE—+% : 2,619,000/87T) ©



38. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS (continued)
(a) Defined benefit retirement plans (continued)

(vi) Significant actuarial assumptions (expressed as weighted
averages) and sensitivity analysis are as follows:

Discount rate IR =
Salary increase rate o=

The analysis below shows how the defined benefit obligation
as at 31 December 2018 would have increased/(decreased)
as a result of 50 basis points change in the significant actuarial

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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38. EERMNKER ()
(a) EFEEAEBIAKETEI(E)
(vi) EARERR(REBNELHE) RS

BREIWAOT
2018 2017
—=E-N\F —E—+F
1.9% p.a. 1.7% p.a.
FFIZE1.9% EFE 7%
3.0% p.a. 3.0% p.a.

FF#3.0% 4 F23.0%

AT o BR B AR B R £ E)501E
EHRTFREBRNEEN T N\F+=
A=+—8#N/0ad) :

assumptions:
Increase in Decrease in
50 basis points 50 basis points
LFHS0EER  THES0EEE
HK$°000 HK$°000
As at 31 December 2018 R-E—-NF+=ZA=+—H FHET F#ExT
Discount rate PR = (7,453) 8,049
Salary increase rate Femx 4,472 (3,876)
Increase in Decrease in
50 basis points 50 basis points
EFB0MEES, TBE501EE 2L
HK$'000 HK$'000
As at 31 December 2017 RZZE—tF+=-A=+—A FAET FET
Discount rate IR (8,497) 9,083
Salary increase rate HE I hnR 4,981 (4,395)

The sensitivity analysis presented above has been determined
based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions
occurring at the end of the reporting period assuming that all
other assumptions are held constant.

(b) Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”)

The Group also operates an MPF scheme under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees
employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance and not previously covered by the Scheme. The Group
participates in an approved MPF scheme with the Bank Consortium
Trust Company Limited to provide a scheme choice to both existing
and new employees. The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution
retirement scheme administered by an independent trustee.

Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make mandatory contributions to the scheme at 5% of
the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of HK$30,000. Contributions to the scheme vest immediately.

In addition to the mandatory contribution, employees will have an
one-off election to make a voluntary contribution of 5% of employee’s
relevant income. At the same time, the employer will make a matching
voluntary contribution accordingly.

N E2HRFREDTNEERHERR
MEMRBRO AR E B (RER
BAMBRRREIE) -

(b) BEMLIEEEHE((REEE )
ARBEMRIEE B QBT AR BEDIA
BEEBEBEIIEEEEAZEMALH
A BARNREHTT —RRE SRS -
AEE2BFBEAERAR —AERATH
W ARRE R ARRBRHE
EE - RESHBNHBURXEAMER
HOE B SURIRET S -

RERESTE  BIREEEAKBMAT
BN (e B IRRAAEE5% 2 BRI (SR - 1
AXBREAEBRAZ LRE30,0008TT
—REEH B AT ARE -

BRER BRSO - BB AL —R—RIEE

B ERBRAELS% 2 BRI - F
B - EERAFLARNSEE RGN -
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39. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

(a) Credit related commitments and contingencies
Credit related commitments and contingencies include acceptances,
letters of credit, guarantees and commitments to extend credit.
The risk involved is essentially the same as the credit risk involved
in extending loan facilities to customers. The contractual amounts
represent the amounts at risk should the contract be fully drawn upon
and the credit default. As the facilities may expire without being drawn
upon, the contractual amounts do not represent expected future cash
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flows.

The following is a summary of the contractual and credit risk-weighted
amounts of each significant class of credit related commitments and

contingencies:

Direct credit substitutes
Transaction-related contingencies

Trade-related contingencies

Undrawn loan facilities

- which are unconditionally
cancellable

- with an original maturity of up to
one year

- with an original maturity of more
than one year

HEEEENRIER
B F B2 AR
IBH
HE Z B2 R
IBH
KRIRELZ A ER
— Hoeh AT 4 D
BUH
— JRA] I HRHARR
A& —F
— JRET R HHARR
B—FEUE

39. ARBBRAE
(a) EEEEEEZRIERSAER
SESABIAERIABE BEANLE

B A% EENEANRE LA

SEA FEAEFREERY EEARE

Fl-AHERREERNRTE

REBLEP

BRRAAERR ZBE - ARNZEHERAE
ARG IRDAZ S HANSHELT
(AESERE N E A

NTREBRERBEERRZAERINE
BERZANEBREEIESEZHE -

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
Credit risk Credit risk
Contractual weighted Contractual weighted
amounts amounts amounts amounts
FERE EERMR
EHEHE InESE R kar] nEEE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET TET FET
866,758 866,758 138,170 138,170
40,830 20,415 16,172 8,086
192,471 38,494 734,248 146,850
32,667,732 - 25,619,171 -
256,791 51,358 8,721 1,744
2,023,875 1,004,828 2,219,450 1,108,476
36,048,457 1,981,853 28,735,932 1,398,326
RARFTEEERRINES T 2 BB INEL X

The risk weights used in the computation of credit risk weighted

amounts range from 0% to 100%.

Fubon Bank & F8R1T
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39. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

(continued)

(b)

(c)

Lease commitments
At 31 December, the total future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

Properties: ME -

— Within one year ——FR

— After 1 year but within 5 years ——ZERFMH
— More than 5 years —RFUE

The Group leases a number of properties and items of equipment
under operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial period
of 1 to 10 years, with an option to renew the lease when all terms
are renegotiated. Lease payments are renegotiated on renewal upon
expiration of lease term and adjusted to reflect market rentals. None
of the leases include contingent rentals.

Capital commitments
Capital commitments for purchase of equipment and equity
securities designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income outstanding at 31 December not provided for in the financial
statements were as follows:

Contracted for BElAH4

40. TRUST ACTIVITIES

The Group commonly acts as trustees and in other fiduciary capacities
that result in the holding or placing of assets on behalf of individuals,
trusts, retirement benefit plans and other institutions. These assets and the
income arising thereon are excluded from these financial statements, as
the Group has no beneficial interest in the assets.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR ER M

39. ABBRAE @)

(b)

(c)

HE AR
Rt=—A=+—8 FTARBEERHTZ
FARERERSRENT

2018 2017
—B-\F  —TtF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR Ttz
20,708 25,612
32,548 33,645
5,236 10,880
58,492 70,137

AEEREBEEHOERETOENRREER
B BEEONGERA—FE2TF X
AREBHERMA GREEERD - HER
EAREOGRRIMRNERREENEE R
FBUARRTSHEE - IERNERAAE

BRI
RtZA=t—BARRUBHRENREZE
HEERBRETARTEENEMEENR
SR B ZBAESR 2 AR ERAGEDT -

2018 2017
—Z2-N\F —T—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
THExT FT
231,213 242,280

40. SR
AEE-BRAXEAREMCZTEANS DRKRE
A ERE RRRAGFE REMBERERFE
BE mRNAKEYERNZEEETHEER R
i ARSEEREMELE ZBUATERNEL
BIREDIIE -
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41. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Financial instruments carried at fair value
Fair value estimates are generally subjective in nature, and are made as
of a specific point in time based on the characteristics of the financial
instruments and relevant market information. The Group measures
fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the
significance of the inputs used in making the measurements:
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Level 1:

Level 2:

Level 3:

Quoted market price (unadjusted) in an active market
for an identical instrument.

Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level
1 that are observable either directly (i.e., as prices)
or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices). This category
includes instruments valued using: quoted market
prices in active markets for similar instruments; quoted
prices for identical or similar instruments in markets
that are considered less than active; or other valuation
techniques where all significant inputs are directly or
indirectly observable from market data.

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs). This
category includes all instruments where the valuation
technique includes inputs not based on observable
data and the unobservable inputs have a significant
effect on the instrument’s valuation. This category
includes instruments that are valued based on
quoted prices for similar instruments where significant
unobservable adjustments or assumptions are required
to reflect differences between the instruments.

The table below analyses financial instruments, measured at fair
value at the end of the reporting period, by the level in the fair value

2018

Assets
Trading assets

Derivative financial instruments
Equity securities designated
at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Liabilities

Trading liabilities
Derivative financial instruments

M. EMIECLAFEE
(a) AAFEEIERzEMIA
AFEE i —RAETEBME - TR
FEMSENZART A EHREETE
ERHEL ST o REEE B TSI RS
FAZEABE EBM Y AT EBSRS
EHBATEE :

HRTARERTSZT5IRE
(RIERZ) -

A — RETEREAIN TR R E
Z(NER) R EREER)
BARE - 2O BEERER T
HERTEECIA  BUTA
RERTHZTHERE  TEE
BH5zERSBUTAZR
B IMEEZREITEER
FERMEHRERRMES H
b ER -

W IELART BB T 45 R (T AT
ERANER) RERNEERA
BENBARE - 2O BEREMGE
B E AR AR BIE A A
BEMBUTAZHEEERY
BZMABTAR - WEATABE
BEABRAAURETAZE
WEE  ZOBBRREBEUT
BHHmEMMEHNTA -

TRILARFEESEHE (A FEERLS
B)PTRARERRARTEBETE 2SR

hierarchy into which the fair value treatment is categorized: TA:
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
—& =t 3 =R g
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
—B-N\F TET FTET THEx THET
gE
FER SRR EE 1,898,372 = = 1,898,372
fTESmIA - 796,595 - 796,595
BEARTEE
REMEER T
E2RAEFES 62 - 809,268 809,330
1,898,434 796,595 809,268 3,504,297
=
RHBETZBE 1,898,372 - - 1,898,372
TTEERMIA - 133,347 - 133,347
1,898,372 133,347 - 2,031,719
During the year ended 31 December 2018, there were no transfers WEBE-Z—\E+-_A=+—BItFE "

between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3.

Fubon Bank & F8R1T
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41. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continued)

(a) Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
3R o Bt

MHEMTEZAFEER

(a) ADFEEYIERz2EMITAS)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
— - =& k]
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2017 ZE—+F FHT FHT FET FET
Assets BE
Trading assets BERSHBAREE 1,846,823 - - 1,846,823
Derivative financial instruments PTESRTA - 705,165 - 705,165
Available-for-sale financial assets AEHES R
BE 15,741,031 15,956,289 546,340 32,243,660
17,587,854 16,661,454 546,340 34,795,648
Liabilities =L
Trading liabilities RHBEETZBE 1,846,819 - - 1,846,819
Derivative financial instruments fTEeRTIA - 228,216 - 228,216
1,846,819 228,216 - 2,075,035

During the year 2017, there were transfers of financial instruments
from Level 1 to Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy of HK$2,313 million
as active markets cannot be identified for identical instruments,
and transfers from Level 2 to Level 1 of HK$4,322 million as active
markets were identified for identical instruments. There were no
transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy is to recognize
transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the
reporting period in which they occur.

() Valuation of financial instruments with significant
unobservable inputs
The following methods have been applied in determining the
fair values of financial instruments under Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy:

(1) The fair value of unquoted equity investments is estimated, if
possible, using the applicable price/earnings ratio and other
market data for similar listed companies adjusted to reflect
specific circumstances of the issues; and

(2) the fair value of unlisted investment funds is estimated using
the net asset value as reported by the managers of such
funds.

R-Z—+F ARAERBRIAS HHT
EETS - BE2SIEETHNERIAHARD
FTEESHHIES - REBEE 4 &R
RERIER LA HERRTS - BE43.22(8
ALNERTAME _REBE—H - 5=
B EEAREY - AREZERENERSE
HAHRN RS PREENDTEESRE

%o

() ERAERFABRBBETZER
TAME
W mEE AREERNAFEESR
HE=fzeBITAZAVEE:

(1) REMEZBRAREZAFERT
RATTER MERBIU LT AR
MRELAMTEREREERR
RETIHEBRETRE - R

@ FEMREESZAFEERNZ

THS Y @B AR AR BT
fiigt o
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41.

168

FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continued)

(a) Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)
() Valuation of financial instruments with significant
unobservable inputs (continued)
The following table shows a reconciliation from the beginning
balances to the ending balances for fair value measurements in
Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:

Assets BE

At 1 January m—HA—H

Purchases BE

Sales &

Changes in fair value recognized in other 7= EAth 2 Nz N HER 2
comprehensive income NEEEZE

At 31 December R+—A=+—8H

Total gains or losses for the year included A #R&E HikiEH 2 BEST A
in other comprehensive income for HEt 2wl s NEE
assets held at the end of the reporting Wik EsTEAa e
period

Total gains or losses for the year included A& EIRZFE 2 BETA
in profit or loss for assets held at the T§¥9EZ$¢§W£T§EE
end of the reporting period ETiEARE

Assets BE

At 1 January R—A—H

Purchases HE

Sales &

Changes in fair value recognized in profit  7E18zRAIER 2 A FBE
or loss: 2E) -
— Impairment losses on available-for- —AEHESREEY

sale financial assets BEEE

Changes in fair value recognized in other EEWE%@W SERZ
comprehensive income N EEE

At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H

Total gains or losses for the year included W REHIRIT A 2 BEFA
in other comprehensive income for Htt2mism s RN FE
assets held at the end of the reporting Hﬁl Sk ES BB R
period

Total gains or losses for the year included ARG HARIEHE 2 BEET A
in profit or loss for assets held at the BaREZAFEREY
end of the reporting period ErigE e

Fubon Bank & F8R1T

MHE2MTEZAFEES

(a) ARFEEIRzESMTAS)
HERAEATTEREBETZEH
TARMGEE)

TREI A FEESEHE=FAAF
BEFEZFNHRERFRBE LY

@

AE -

Equity securities designated at fair
value through other comprehensive

income

EEAAPEEREM2EKE

STRZRAES
2018 2017

—E-N\F T+

HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET TAT

544,340 -
3,962 -
(9,619) -

270,585 -

809,268 -

270,585 -

15,874 -

Available-for-sale
financial assets
AHHESHEE

2018 2017

—E-N\E —E—+F

HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TAETT

= 234,548
- 4,646
- (15,215)

- (1,286)

- 323,647

- 546,340

= 323,647

- 7,216




41. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)
(a) Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)
(ii) Effects of changes in significant unobservable
assumptions to reasonably possible alternative
assumptions

Although the Group believes that its estimates of fair value are
appropriate, the use of different methodology or assumptions
could lead to different measurements of fair value. For fair value
measurements in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, a 10%
change in either direction in the net asset value reported by
respective counterparties would have the following effects:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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MHEMTEZAFEER

(a) AR EEIIRZEMITE(®)
(i) EAFTHEMREBESHE AT
BROBBR2E

EAAKEREER ifﬁ@ﬁ?r%iﬁ
H - ERERTRESRR TSR
NFEEZTFGE - ®A L@v?&
HE=RTZAFEEHEMNS &
%‘T%EﬁiﬁZﬁE@ﬁﬁE%Eﬁ“@
10%FIREEE TR E

Effect on
Effect on profit or loss other comprehensive income
HERRANTE HHMZEKEHTE
Favourable  Unfavourable Favourable  Unfavourable

B2 AHED BHEE Gyl

As at 31 December 2018 RZE-N\E HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
+=ZA=t+-AH TET THET TR THERT
Assets BE
Equity securities designated at fair ETUATEBE
value through other comprehensive  REf 2 EUZET & 2 1%
income REH - - 80,927 (80,927)
Effect on
Effect on profit or loss other comprehensive income
HERERNTE HEMEERGENTE
Favourable Unfavourable Favourable Unfavourable

BHEE FI% BME A&

As at 31 December 2017 RZE—tF HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
+=ZA=+—H AT FAT TAL TET

Assets BE
Avallable-for-sale financial assets AP ESREAE - (907) 54,634 (53,727)
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41. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continued)

(b) Fair values of financial instruments carried at other
than fair value
The following methods and significant assumptions have been applied
in determining the fair values of financial instruments presented in the
table below:

170

U

(i)

(iii)

()

the fair value of demand deposits and savings accounts with
no specific maturity is assumed to be the amount payable on
demand at the end of the reporting period;

the fair value of variable rate financial instruments and loans
is assumed to be approximated by their carrying amounts.
Changes in the credit quality of these financial instruments and
loans are not taken into account in determining gross fair values,
as the impact of credit risk is recognized separately by deducting
the amount of the impairment loss and allowances from both the
carrying amount and fair value;

the fair value of fixed rate loans and mortgages carried at
amortized cost is estimated by comparing current market rates
offered on similar loans. Changes in the credit quality of loans
within the portfolio are not taken into account in determining
gross fair values, as the impact of credit risk is recognized
separately by deducting the amount of the impairment loss and
allowances from both the carrying amount and fair value; and

the fair value of debt securities measured at amortized cost is
determined with reference to the available market value. If quoted
market prices are not available, then the fair value is estimated on
the basis of pricing models (see Note 2(h)(iii)).

Fubon Bank & F8R1T

MHE2MTEZAFEES

(b) EUAPEENEZSBTAZA
FEE
TITEREABRREEAREER TR
RZERMTAZAVERE:

)

(iv)

BREHFRRESTHR 2 RERP
ZAFEEENBREHRRTERER
S

BRFIDERMIARERZATEER
MHKAEE - BEQAFEELBELN
quZEZTrérﬂIE&EWZTi &
1t lttTJEWZfT FEFRER
HER $Tfﬁ?ﬂl?é?ﬂ@§ﬁé-\&%’§ﬁi
BT ARER

BATRERIRERKATIR 2 1Z1B
/A Féeﬁﬂmfﬁ%EﬁZﬁ%
TSMEMGE - AR EERRZFE
%ﬂﬁ%@ﬁ& 1@%%&@%@
FEESRTNEBRR  RETAL
FEERIAERASASENRZEE
HE# R

BEEAA B BRSO EE
THESETRATMEET - WELERD
BHRE ARATFEEREFESEX(R
B sE2(h)(il)) 15 5T ©



41. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continued)

(b) Fair values of financial instruments carried at other
than fair value (continued)
The carrying amount of the Group’s financial instruments carried at
cost or amortized cost are not significantly different from their fair
values as at 31 December 2018 and 2017 except as follows:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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MHEMTEZAFEER

(b) AR FEEIRZEMTRAZLD

EEE®)
AEBZERASBHREATRZEHTIAEZ
EEEREN S \FR-T—tF+=
AZ+-BZRAFEETESAEZE - I
THTHIBRAN -

2018
“E-N\F
Carrying
amount Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
BESH ATPEE —& & =
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TR TR TR THERT TR
Financial assets EHEE
Advances to customers EFER 2,329,386 2,342,390 - 2,342,390 =
Debt securities measured at REEN A E BB
amortized cost 5 36,889,767 36,958,174 15,746,394 21,209,780 2,000
Financial liability 2HEE
Deposits from customers EEEDR 49,912,002 49,907,782 - 49,907,782 -
2017
—T+F
Carrying
amount Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
RESHE ATEE —# - =%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THR TET THx THET
Financial assets THEE
Advances to customers ZEER 2,469,962 2,329,606 - 2,329,606 -
Held-to-maturity investments BEIEEE 1,561,796 1,617,498 - 1,617,498 -
Financial liability ZHEE
Deposits from customers ZEER 41,821,368 42,107,357 - 42,107,357 -

During the year 2018, there were transfers of financial instruments,
being debt securities measured at amortized cost from Level 1
to Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy of HK$3,054 million as active
markets cannot be identified for identical instruments, and transfers
from Level 2 to Level 1 of HK$1,766 million as active markets were
identified for identical instruments. There were no transfers into or out
of Level 3. The Group’s policy is to recognize transfers between levels
of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which
they occur.

RZZT—\F  ARREERERTED P
JERTS  BES0L4EB e T AR
BB E 2 ERESR) AT EESSE
HESE-REBEE_H aResaRT
BAEERME - BE17.66EETHE
TEHFE - LEBBREE—H - F-HMES
A o REBZBRIERHEHARER
R R A AP BES RSB -
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42. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group entered into a number of transactions with its
ultimate holding company and other related parties. These transactions
were entered into in the ordinary course of the Group’s banking business
and included, inter alia, lending, placement of interbank deposits,
correspondent banking transactions and foreign exchange transactions.
The transactions were priced at the relevant market rates at the time of
each transaction, and were on the same terms as those available to other
counterparties and customers of the Group. In the opinion of the directors,
these transactions were conducted on normal commercial terms.

Information relating to income and expenses from related party
transactions during the year and balances outstanding as at the end of
the reporting period that are not disclosed in other notes to these financial

R.EXBERITRS

FN AEEEASRKERARREGEETE
UZBRG - ZEXHEAKERTER AR
EHB@iRFIY BR(TRMNEER  RITAE
FEEER  HARTRZRIMNER S - ZEX
SUETERFEZHRAMSEREE  YWIRE
AEERRTEMZZEFHIRER ZBRE
T EFRAR - ZERHDE—REEKR
I3

BBERBEE H X HAEL LR RN EEH
P DR E SR B
B2 ERHIIWT :

statements is set out below:

(a) Income/(expenses)
Fellow subsidiaries GTES VAT
Fee and commission income A MEsWA
Fellow subsidiaries JGES VAT
Fee and commission expenses BRAMAESH

(b) Assets
Ultimate holding company wALSEAR 2 A
Accrued interest and other assets FERTF S R EMEE
Fellow subsidiaries JZES )N
Cash and short-term funds BekEiEse

172

Accrued interest and other assets

FEEHRIE R A B E

Fellow associate GTES AT
Cash and short-term funds BekEiEse

There was no impairment allowance made against the above assets.

Fubon Bank & F8R1T

(@) WA (%)

The Group
AEE
2018 2017
—ZE-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH&T THT
25,546 33,576
(4,015) (364)
(b) EE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THT
9,224 -
30,149 12,993
56 312
30,205 18,305
1,856 -

TREEIRA EHRERE -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B A R B &
42. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS RERBESTHIRS &)
(continued)
(c) Liabilities (c) &fE
2018 2017
—=E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FET
Ultimate holding company RAFERR 2 B]
Deposits from customers EEGEM - 551
Fellow subsidiaries IGES PNl
Deposits and balances of banks and other IRITRIZE R E M S EgE
financial institutions TRt 32,907 36,503
Deposits from customers 2EEH 394,603 309,089
Other liabilities HibBE 413 364
427,923 345,956
Other related parties A gEr
Deposits from customers 2EEH® 73,277 217,759
(d) Financial instruments (d £@TA
2018 2017
—E-N\E —T—+fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Fellow subsidiaries JGES VN
Derivative contracts (notional principal) PTHETEA ,i’] (BEARLEE) 379,835 378,923
(e) Loans to directors and entities connected with (e) EEREEZRHEERER
directors

Loans to directors of the Bank and entities connected with directors
disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)(d) of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and Part 3 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information
about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:

Aggregate amount of relevant loans at FITHBAETR+=A

31 December by the Bank =—t+— B8
Maximum aggregate amount of relevant loans 174 A 15 AR 1B & HE
outstanding during the year by Bz ==

the Bank

There was no interest due but unpaid nor any impairment allowance
made against these loans at 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

RBEF B BRI )F383(1)d) R K 2 7
(BREEENRER)H 1§U>%3*B%&E”§Z$ﬁ
E=NESHEEREROT

2018 2017
—=2-\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FHET

112 49

177 421,046

RZE-N\F+ZA=+—BITEIHER
MOMERMZFERIELRERE(=
—tFE)

Annual Report 2018 ik 173



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
3R o Bt

42. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

174

(continued)

() Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel, including amounts
paid to the Bank’s Directors as disclosed in Note 8 is as follows:

Salaries and short-term employee benefits HekEEEER
Post-employment benefits RIRAEF

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see Note 7).

(g) Credit facilities to key management personnel

During the year, the Bank provided loans and credit facilities to key
management personnel of the Group and their close family members
and companies controlled or significantly influenced by them. The
credit facilities were provided in the ordinary course of business and
on substantially the same terms as for comparable transactions with
other employees. The amounts involved, other than transactions with
the ultimate holding company and fellow subsidiaries, are set out
below:

Loans, at 31 December

Interest income

A EHA

Credit facilities, at 31 December

No expected credit loss (Stage 3) have been made against balances
outstanding during the year with key management personnel.

The Bank’s policies for lending to related parties take into account
the requirements under the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance and the
guidelines of the HKMA. The Group sets internal limits (individual and
aggregate group limits for individual, group, secured and unsecured
exposures) and carefully monitors exposure to related parties,
whether individual or corporate, and takes the necessary measures
to control the risk of connected lending. Approvals are made by the
Credit Committee, the Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director
and/or the Executive Credit Committee.

Fubon Bank & F8R1T

W+t A=+—REHEHE

R+ A=+—BE&ERS

REXBEZHFRSZ @)

n TEEBEAEME

IBEEABZME(BEMESANENT
ATEZEZFBWT -

2018 2017
S
HK$’000 HK$'000
T FHT
56,902 53,928
3,302 2,968
60,204 56,896

BBt A RERA(RHET) -

(0) TXZEBABEERK

FNATRAAEECIRERABRKS
ZEEBBARZZEANTE AR
ZENTAREAYENZ RARHKERK
FE - ZEEERBINEREKBIEDIR
- MEBRTEEMERMT LA
BRXHABMAR - REREZRATRFZ
BRI HIN  FREBHIIWT -

2018 2017
—2-N\F  -FtF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
2,103 2,769

46 37

4,060 4,160

WERFATEERABKRERFEEL
BHEEER(S3MEE) -

AITRRES T ERNER D & REE(RTT
ERPDRSERIESIZHRE - AEBRER
FRPR A (BHEA LA B 3R & AR 1R R 0
AREEREER)  TEEEEREEHZ
Bk (EAREE) RRERES D BEEAEE
SHEEEZRR - ERZES  THAH
RESLEEL /SRITEREEGETH
i 3



43. ASSETS PLEDGED AS SECURITY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR ER M

43. EREREARCERE
THEECRBERRERE S ARERRT U

The following assets have been pledged as collateral for own liabilities at

the end of the reporting period:

Secured liabilities

Assets pledged:

Trading assets

Debt securities measured at amortized cost
Available-for-sale financial assets
Held-to-maturity investments

BEAEE
EEHREE -
FERXZMBEE

R AGTB 2 BEBES

AR ESREE
REIBRE

The Group maintains the following balances with counterparties for margin
deposits of derivatives and is included in “Accrued interest and other

assets” at the end of the reporting period:

Margin deposits for derivative contracts

ITET AR HHRESFR

These transactions are conducted under usual and customary terms.

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

44.

This section presents information about the Group’s exposure to and its
management and control of risks, in particular, the primary risks associated

with its use of financial instruments:

Credit risk: losses resulting from customer or counterparty default and

arising from credit exposures in all forms, including settlement risk.

—  Market risk: exposures to market variables such as interest rates,

exchange rates and equity markets.

—  Liquidity and funding risk: risk that the Group is unable to meet its
payment obligations when due, or that it is unable, on an ongoing
basis, to borrow funds in the market on an unsecured, or even
secured basis at an acceptable price to fund actual or proposed

commitments.

—  Operational risk: risk arising from inadequate or failed internal
processes, people and systems or from external events resulting in

financial loss.

CER
2018 2017
—2-N\F T t%
HK$’000 HK$'000
T AT
7,877,795 11,027,966
1,898,372 1,846,823
6,266,342 -
= 9,520,768
= 122,612
8,164,714 11,490,203

ARERTETARZZIHTFIRERERR
oo ERRE AR AIER IS R EE] -

2018 2017
—Z-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TFHET FHET
99,654 157,853

ZER P TER— BB BT o

B R EE

RE2HEBAEEFEE BB LEHZER
o BERIZESZER  BRSHRERASHT

BEMzIERR

- FEEAR : FPARZHTFRERFEMER
BEwER  URBBRIEERR  BFEF

HEk o

- WHER: mHEHER -

UGS

Flmp = - Ex

- RBURRERR  AREREENRELE
AW ETNREL  ABESEETS L
NEERKEZNEEROTARART
BRIEAED  BURERKERZAER

HARNESHNER -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

The Group has established policies and procedures to identify and
measure these risks, to set appropriate risk limits as derived from its risk
appetite statements and risk appetite indicators and control measures,
and to monitor the risks and limits continuously by means of reliable and
up-to-date management and information systems. These policies and
procedures, including limit excess follow-up procedures, are distributed
to the relevant risk taking and risk management units for execution and
monitoring. Regular training courses are conducted in order to ensure that
all staff are familiar with the key principles of the Group’s code of conduct.
The Group continuously modifies and enhances its risk management
policies and systems to reflect changes in markets, products and best
practice risk management processes. Internal auditors also perform regular
audits to ensure compliance with the Group’s policies and procedures.

The Group has established an organizational structure such that risk
management functions are independent of risk taking units. The risk
management functions independently provide key risk information,
including asset quality, liquidity profile, capital adequacy ratio and the risk
exposures, and limit monitoring results to the Risk Committee of the Board
(“RC”) and to senior management on a regular basis.

(a) Credit risk management
Credit risk is the risk of suffering financial loss in the event that the
Group’s customers or counterparties fail to fulfil their obligations to the
Group. It arises mainly from loans and advances, debt securities held
and counterparty credit risk arising from derivative contracts entered
into with customers or counterparties. It can also arise from trading
and treasury activities.

The Group manages credit risk through a framework of controls to
ensure credit risk taking activities are based on sound principles
and in line with the overall business objectives of the Group. It has
established a set of credit policies and procedures which define
credit risk taking criteria, credit approval authorities delegated from
the Board of Directors (“Board”), credit monitoring processes, credit
rating and scoring systems and loan impairment criteria.

The Board has delegated credit approval authorities to the following
committees in descending order of authority: the Executive Credit
Committee (“ECC”), the Credit Committee (“CC”) and the Wholesale
Credit Committee (“WCC”).

The ECC serves as the credit committee of the Board to review and
approve credits that require the approval of the Board. In addition, it
approves the Group’s credit policies and credit risk profile, taking into
consideration relevant law and regulations.

Fubon Bank & F8R1T
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(a) Credit risk management (continued)

4. BEREBREE x)
(a) EERMERE &)

The CC is a management level committee that provides management
oversight of the Group’s credit risk management. It ensures that the
Group has in place an effective credit risk management framework
and that its credit risks are within the credit policies and credit risk
profile as specified by the Board or its delegated committees. The
CC reviews and endorses credit policies and credit risk profile for the
ECC’s approval, and reviews and approves credit related guidelines. It
also conducts on-going review of the market environment and makes
necessary policy recommendations to the ECC to ensure that the
credit risk profile of the Group is within its risk appetite. The CC also
reviews and approves credits that are within its authority as delegated
by the Board.

The WCC reviews and approves corporate credits that are within its
authority as delegated by the Board.

The credit risk units, Enterprise Credit Risk Management Department,
Special Assets Management Department and Retail Credit Risk
Oversight & Data Analytics Team, provide centralized management of
credit risk for corporate credits and retail credits respectively. They are
responsible for:

— independent evaluation of corporate credit applications;
— monitoring loan portfolio and conducting regular analysis;

— managing problem corporate credits to achieve the highest
recovery;

— recommending loan classification, impairment and charge-off;
and

—  reporting to the CC and ECC regularly on aspects of the loan
portfolio.

Compliance reviews are conducted by an independent unit on
an ongoing basis to ensure compliance with applicable laws and
regulations, standards, guidelines and codes of practices. The internal
audit function of the Group is an independent appraisal function set
up with the primary objective of evaluating the internal control system
and compliance with laws, regulatory guidelines and internal control
policies.

Credit risk limits are set at different levels, including portfolio and
individual customer levels, taking into consideration various factors
including market situation, capital requirement and the returns.

Credit risk management procedures are designed to promote early
detection of customer, industry or product exposures that require
special monitoring. Overall portfolio risk is monitored on an on-going
basis. Regular risk management reports covering information on large
exposures, country exposures, industry exposures, loan quality and
loan impairment level are submitted to the CC, ECC and RC.
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a) Credit risk management (continued)
Specific policies and measures to address different kinds of credit
related activities are set out below:

178

@

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Institutional Banking

Credit risk from Institutional Banking is managed by conducting
thorough credit evaluation, credit mitigation through collateral
and guarantee, internal credit rating system and post-approval
monitoring system. Subject to the size of the credit, value of
collateral and the internal credit rating of the customer, different
levels of credit approval authority are required. Credit decisions
take into account facility structure, tenor, repayment ability of the
obligor and credit mitigation through collateral and guarantee.

The Group has established limits for credit exposure to
individual industry and customer groups, regardless of whether
the credit exposure is funded or non-funded. The Group also
undertakes ongoing credit review and monitoring at several
levels. The relevant policies and procedures take into account
the rules under the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance, regulatory
requirements of the HKMA and best market practices.

Retail Banking

Credit risk from Retail Banking is product driven, arising from
retail loan products such as credit cards, unsecured personal
loans, merchant receivable financing, mortgage loans and loans
secured by wealth management products. Because of the
homogeneous nature of these products, credit risk management
is primarily based on statistical analyses of risks with respect to
different types of product, collateral and customer. The Group
determines product terms and desired customer profiles on a
regular basis by developing, validating and fine-tuning internal
scorecards and stress testing models.

Counterparty credit risk

Unlike on-balance sheet instruments, where the credit risk is
generally represented by the principal value of loans or other
financial instruments, credit risk for counterparties of derivatives
is the positive replacement cost together with an estimate for the
potential future exposure from changes in market value. These
credit exposures are managed as part of the overall credit limits
to the counterparties. The credit risk exposure on derivatives is
disclosed in Note 17(b) to these financial statements. The Group
uses the current exposure method for the purpose of providing
capital for such counterparty exposures.

Wrong way risk occurs when the credit exposure to a
counterparty is adversely correlated with the credit quality of
that counterparty. Credit exposures and potential losses may
increase as a result of adverse change in market conditions. The
Group has set up policies and procedures to control wrong-way
risk.

Credit related commitments

The risks involved in credit related commitments and
contingencies are essentially the same as the credit risk
involved in extending loans to customers. These transactions
are, therefore, subject to the same credit application, portfolio
management and collateral requirements as for loan transactions.
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(a) Credit risk management (continued)

v)

(vi)

Concentration of credit risk

Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in geographic,
economic or industry factors similarly affect groups of customers
or counterparties whose aggregate credit exposure is material in
relation to the Group’s total exposures. The Group’s financial risk
exposure is diversified by customer group, industry and product,
but is concentrated in Hong Kong.

Analysis of credit risk concentration of respective financial assets
is disclosed in Notes 15 to 22.

Credit risk mitigation

The Group’s credit evaluation focuses primarily on the obligor’s
repayment ability from its cash flow and financial condition.
In addition, the Group employs various credit risk mitigation
techniques such as appropriate facility structuring, posting of
collateral and/or third party support as well as transfer of risk to
other third parties, which form an integral part of the credit risk
management process. There is immaterial credit and market
risk concentration within the credit risk mitigations used by the
Group. The most commonly used credit risk mitigation measures
are provided below:

Collateral

The Group holds collateral against its credit exposures to
customers mainly in the form of cash deposits, marketable
securities, mortgage interests over properties and guarantees.
The Group also has in place policies and procedures that govern
the assessment, acceptance and the periodic valuation of the
collateral. Collateral taken to secure credit exposures is revalued
periodically ranging from daily to annually depending on the type
of collateral. For treasury operations, collateral management is
based on daily marked-to-market positions.

Master netting agreements

Collateral generally is not held over credit exposures to banks,
except for securities held as part of reverse repurchase and
securities borrowing activities. However, where applicable,
the Group manages its credit exposures to banks by entering
into master netting arrangements whenever it is appropriate
and feasible to do so. The netting arrangement results in the
settlement of counterparty exposure on a net basis in the event a
default occurs.

The Group’s preferred agreement for documenting derivative
activity is the ISDA Master Agreement which covers the
contractual framework within which dealing activity across a
full range of over-the-counter derivative products is conducted
and contractually binds both parties to apply close-out netting
across all outstanding transactions covered by such agreement if
either party defaults or upon the occurrence of other pre-agreed
termination events.

It is also common for the Group to execute a Credit Support
Annex with counterparties in conjunction with the ISDA Master
Agreement to mitigate the market risk inherent in derivative
transactions.
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 44. RS EE 5)
(a) Credit risk management (continued) (a) GERMERE &)
(vi) Credit risk mitigation (continued) (vi) BIEEERE(E)
The following table sets out the carrying amounts of recognized TEREIZBEN G ENCHERER
financial instruments that are subject to the above agreements. TEAMEEE -
Gross
Gross amount of
amountsof  recognized Netamounts
financial financial of financial
instruments  instruments  instruments
inthe off-setin the in the Related
consolidated  consolidated  consolidated financial
statementof  statementof statementof instruments
financial financial financial that are
position position position notoffset  Netamount
BEE
SRIE SRIA $RMIA
REEHE  REEHE  RERHE
ik #RE  MREG  AEEM
BRNAE  BINGE B8 FHENIA bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
As at 31 December 2018 RZE-NE+ZA=1-H T T TR T TR
Financial assets TREE
- Exchange rate derivatives ~ER{TAETH 33,874 - 33,874 20,479 13,395
~ Interest rate derivatives ~FEfTETE 281,116 - 281,116 28,254 252,862
314,990 - 314,990 48,733 266,257
Financial liabilties PEERE
— Exchange rate derivatives -ERFTAETR 45,299 - 45,299 20,479 24,820
- Interest rate derivatives ~FEfTETE 46,211 - 46,211 28,254 17,957
— Equity derivatives -RETETE 379 - 379 - 379
91,889 - 91,889 48,733 43,156
Gross
Gross amount of
amounts of recognized  Netamounts
financial financial of financial
instruments instruments instruments
inthe  off-setinthe inthe Related
consolidated ~ consolidated  consolidated financial
statementof  statementof  statement of instruments
financial financial financial that are
position position position not offset Net amount
[REE]
tRTA SRIE SRIA
NeElE  RNEEREE REeTE
RRE RRE HRER REE B
BRNGE  BINEE 8 BEsEIA FE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
As at 31 December 2017 RZE-tE+-A=1+-H AL AL AL FAT FAT
Financial assets PHEE
— Exchange rate derivatives ~EX{TETE 26,834 - 26,834 15,221 11,613
~ Interest rate derivatives —FIEfTETE 207,599 - 207,599 42,007 165,572
234,433 - 234,433 57,248 177,185
Financial labilties PHEE
- Exchange rate derivatives —ERHTETE 65,526 - 65,526 15,221 50,305
- Interest rate derivatives —MEATAETE 125,129 - 125,129 42,027 83,102
— Equity derivatives -REFETE 368 - 368 - 368
191,023 - 191,023 57,248 133,775
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B A R B &
44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 44. IR EE )
(a) Credit risk management (continued) (a) GERMERE &)
(vi) Credit risk mitigation (continued) (vi) BIEEERK(E)
Other credit risk mitigation measures Bz BRERER

The Group may also employ other types of credit mitigation,
such as guarantees and letters of credit, mainly for corporate
exposures. As the value of these types of collateral is conditional
upon other credit related factors, their financial effect has not
been quantified.

(vii) Maximum exposure to credit risk

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting
period without taking into consideration any collateral held
or other credit enhancements is represented by the carrying
amount of each financial asset in the consolidated statement of
financial position after deducting any impairment allowance. A
summary of the maximum exposure to credit risk for the various
components of the consolidated statement of financial position,
contingencies and commitments is as follows:

Credit risk exposures relating to on-balance sheet ~ HEZEBEFZANEEB B

assets: EEEf -
Cash and short-term funds Rekaige
Balances with banks and other financial institutions 8377 [/ % 2 Bt & Bkt 4560
Trading assets BERXSHRGEE
Derivative financial instruments PTESRIA
Advances to customers HFER
Trade bills BERE
Accrued interest and other assets [EETFIE REMERE
Debt securities measured at amortized cost B EN A 2R ESES
Available-for-sale financial assets I ESREE
Held-to-maturity investments BFEIERE

Credit risk exposures relating to off-balance sheet ~ fEEB EFINEHEFZ

items: EEEE

Financial guarantees and other credit related IS ERIEMEERRBZ
contingent liabilities FAREE

Loan commitments and other credit related ERREREMEERE
commitments A

AEREMERERRERAESE OB
MEERENR  T2RARBELER
B o ARZ SRR ERREEIRR

E@ﬁfﬁ%l% AT

Mn%%ﬁﬁmﬁ

RSB ARRRNEERR (TR
HﬁZEﬂﬁTﬁﬂuﬂZEWu,jm’LH‘i
i) RERAMBRARANEBEEREE
MR EMRERERREE - %58
Bk - */iﬁ”ﬁ@f, FEENEBDE
ERBRSRREBEZNT :

2018 2017
—EB-N\EF “T—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
Tz TET
5,981,567 5,133,534
2,060,262 558,348
1,898,372 1,846,823
796,595 705,165
47,699,240 47,583,317
907,964 880,255
1,373,811 1,425,869
36,889,767 -
- 31,699,251

- 1,661,796
1,100,059 888,590
34,948,398 27,847,342
133,656,035 120,130,290

Annual Report 2018 ik 181



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
3R o Bt

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a) Credit risk management (continued)
(viii) Determination of expected credit losses

44, R EE ()

(a) CERMEE @)
(viii) BRI S EEE

Starting from 1 January 2018, the Group adopts the approach
below in determining expected credit losses on financial assets in
accordance with HKFRS 9:

B-Z-N\F-HA—BHKR AKEX
WA NRBE M RERRAE
FREEMBEERPEESE

Component
AR

Definition

&

Probability of
default (PD)

The probability at a point in time that a counterparty will default, calibrated over up to 12 months from the
reporting date (stage 1) or over the lifetime of the product (stage 2) and incorporating the impact of forward-
looking economic assumptions that have an effect on credit risk, such as interest rates, unemployment rates
and GDP forecasts.

The PD is estimated at a point in time which means it will fluctuate in line with the economic cycle. The term
structure of the PD is based on statistical models, calibrated using historical data and adjusted to incorporate
forward-looking economic assumptions.

%zﬁiﬁ’\%ﬂﬁﬁ'ﬁﬁﬁ%éi’m’ﬂﬁi‘f REZAHREDRREZ 12 (F-RBR)NERLHE
HI(FZBER)  YMAHEERBERZENFEEQERINTZE  OFF  KEXEXRERE
ERERA -

ERNHRETDENT AR B GF ﬁ BEEBBESERARKRE - BOIRENHREBIE
REEHER - R L BURREY HEE B 2 AT IEEAE R

Loss given
default (LGD)

BRBKER

The percentage loss that is expected to arise on default, incorporating the impact of forward-looking economic
assumptions where relevant, which represents the proportion of the contractual cash flows due that the Group
expects to receive.

The Group estimates LGD based on the history of recovery rates and considers the recovery of any collateral
that is integral to the financial asset, taking into account forward-looking economic assumptions where relevant.

B ARFTEEHER MIBR B /L (M A ATIE A ERRNTE) - RRAER AU F)
Tﬁ%/ﬁn e

RET R AR E BB IEERE - ARERELWERNE L CEAGFENRRE  XEE
Wm e EENEIERERS

Exposure at

The expected balance sheet exposure at the time of default, taking into account the expected change in

default (EAD) exposure over the lifetime of the exposure. This incorporates the impact of drawdowns of committed facilities,
repayments of principal and interest, amortization and prepayments, together with the impact of forward-looking

economic assumptions where relevant.
BRI AR REHRFNTEEE E B BRERAE(C RARFEBENEHRBAEEZS)  HPaEsA
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a) Credit risk management (continued)
(viii) Determination of expected credit losses (continued)

4. BEREBREE x)

(a) GERBEE &)
(viii) EHIEEEBEE (&)

The ECLs are measured at the present value of all expected cash
shortfalls.

The estimate of expected cash shortfalls is determined by
multiplying the PD with LGD and EAD.

Forward looking economic assumptions are incorporated
into the PD, LGD and EAD where relevant and where they
influence credit risk, such as GDP, unemployment rate and
house price indices amongst others. These assumptions are
incorporated using the Group’s most likely forecast for a range of
macroeconomic assumptions. These forecasts are determined
using all reasonable and supportable information, which includes
both internally developed forecasts and those available externally,
and are consistent with those used for budgeting, forecasting
and capital planning.

To account for the potential non-linearity in credit losses, multiple
forward-looking scenarios are incorporated into the range of
reasonably possible outcomes for all material portfolios, both in
respect of determining the PD, LGD and EAD and in determining
the overall expected credit loss amounts.

Credit quality of loans and advances
The credit quality of advances to customers can be analysed as
follows:

Neither past due nor impaired WS RE
Past due but not impaired BB ERE
Impaired ERE
Of which: Hep e
Gross loans and advances to customers that are W ESORE 2 B P 1
neither past due nor impaired KRE 1A%
—Grade 1: Pass —F—4 B
— Grade 2: Special mention —EHBE

BHEEBAATIRSRSTREL
R -

BHRE RN DEBREORA
K BHBERRNERRORBAER
RMETE °

AT EEBERREMAROIRE 2
MBREREORRAE(HRB LY
ZEERR  MENEELE  KEX
FRBEREHNSE) ZERRE[AEHE
H— R ZEEBERINRAEAENE
BIMMA - ZERAERAERERA
ERAMER (B REDE R TR RS
AMRHETRR) MERE - YEEE - &
BIRERTEIIAE -

Rt REEBERNEEFRIENE - %
HRRELEESSMAMBEREANE
Ert EREEN - BEETROIA
K BHNBEREENRRAE  UE
TRERHEEBRELE -

BRRERZEEEER

2018 2017
—E-N\F —EtF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FRRT TAT
47,138,226 47,318,372
558,413 366,672
233,231 187,304
47,929,870 47,872,348
46,994,434 47,124,617
143,792 193,755
47,138,226 47,318,372
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IR MIRE
44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 44. AR EE #)
(a) Credit risk management (continued) (a) GERMERE &)
(ix) Credit quality of loans and advances (continued) (ix) BRERERZEEER(E)
Advances to customers EEE&
The following table sets out information about the credit quality TR EFEF/EEEZEUNE
of advances to customers. Unless specifically indicated, the £l o BREFRIZTERGN - RO S EBIEEMmE
amounts in the table represent gross carrying amounts. B o
2018 217
“E-N\E IE-tF
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL not credit-impaired credit-impaired Total Total
12f8 A mAH FEETRMEARL EETRN2H
FEFE EEkE AREEER &% %
Accrued Accrued Accrued Accrued Accrued
Principal interest  Principal  interest  Principal  interest  Principal interest  Principal interest
3% EHAR 5% AR 18 EAAE 3% EHAR 18 [EEHE
HK$000  HK$000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000
Tén TEx TExr TEx TER  TEmn  TEmn  TEmn  TEr  TiEn
Pass bkl 46,265,963 93,757 1,140,514 822 - - 41406477 94579 47,429,700 78744
Special mention e - - 200162 1,645 - - 20162 1645 255,344 287
Substandard e - - - - 11,694 - 11,694 - 18,678 -
Doubtful B - - - - 25 - 2153 - 168626 -
Loss Bx - - - - - = = = - -
(Gross carrying amount FmeE 46,265,963 93,757 1,430,676 2467 233231 - 47929870 96,224 47,872,348 79,031
Less: Impairment alowance 5+ HERE (27,026) - (6,728) - (196,876) - (230,630) - (289,031 -
Carrying amount BaE 46,238,937 93757 1,423,948 2,467 36,355 - 47,699,240 96,024 47583317 79,031
The Group classifies advances to customers in accordance FEERBEARSERZWMMABRMNL
with the loan classification system required to be adopted for ERDBHEREPETETHE -
reporting to the HKMA.
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a) Credit risk management (continued)
(ix) Credit quality of loans and advances (continued)

(x)

The ageing analysis of advances to customers that are past due
but not impaired is as follows:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR ER M

4. BEREBREE x)

(a) GERBEE &)
(ix) EZREHZCEEEE(E)

BAMELERE? EFERER AT
m -

2018 2017
—EB-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
T FHT
Gross loans and advances to customers CEHETERECER
that are past due but not impaired BER R EELE
— Overdue 3 months or less — @ EA=EASAT 535,146 364,879
— Overdue 6 months or less but —mHEISE A SIA T
over 3 months ME=MEA U 13,272 -
— Overdue 1 year or less but —BE—F AT
over 6 months MEZSE A A 9,995 1,793
558,413 366,672

Loans and advances that would be past due or impaired had the
terms not been modified amounted to HK$16,284,000 as at 31
December 2018 (2017: HK$15,119,000).

Credit quality of financial assets other than loans and
advances

The following tables set out the credit analysis for financial assets,
other than advances to customers, measured at amortized cost.
The below tables analyse the financial assets by its rating under
the Group’s loan classification system or credit rating designation
based on Standard & Poor’s rating or their equivalents, whichever
is appropriate. Unless specifically indicated, the amounts in the
table represent gross carrying amounts.

()

RZZE—NFE+=-A=+—8 ' #EX
FFETN A BN EREZ BHRR
S5 £ R16,2840008 (- E—+
F :15,119,000/87T) °

i3
i

ERRERUIZEREEZFE
BE

TREFIREF EFUAINZ LKA
AEEREEZEENN - TRIBEA
SEERDBERRR THOFRIARE
R RRESARZARTERE
£ REEFRHEREEFDON -
BREFRIRTAASN - KPS BISREAR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a) Credit risk management (continued)
(x) Credit quality of financial assets other than loans and

44. B ERERE )
(a) Fﬁﬂl‘ﬁf“ 2 (&
x) BREEF

advances (continued) BE(E)
Trade bills BEZE
2018 217
“E-N\E “E-tE
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL not credit-impaired credit-impaired Total Total
12f8A AR5 FRETRNEARH FEFRHEH
FEFE FEFE RHEEER &% %
Accrued Accrued Accrued Accrued Accrued
Principal interest  Principal  interest  Principal  interest  Principal interest  Principal interest
3¢ R 58 EHAE A AR 3¢ R i FEHNE
HK$000  HK$000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$000  HK$000
Tér T TAn TEr TEn  TEn  TEr  TEr TR TEn
Gross carrying amount BREE 908,041 - - - - - 908,041 - 880285 -
Less: Impairment alowance  J5, : R (M) - - - - - (M) - - -
Carrying amount BAE 907,964 = = = = - 907,964 - 88025 -
All trade bills as at 31 December 2018 and 2017 are classified as RZE-NFRZF—tF+=HA

=T-R MERERBREERIR
HEASREBRIR

“Pass” under the loan classification system.

Cash and short-term funds B REHES
2018 2017
Z2-)\f TE4E
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL not credit-impaired credit-impaired Total Total
12f8A R ARH FRETRNEAES FEFRHZH
FEFS FEER RHCEER &% 5%
Accrued Accrued Accrued Accrued Accrued
Principal  interest  Principal ~ interest  Principal  interest  Principal  interest  Principal interest
58 EfAE 58 EHHE 58 EfAE 58 EAAE i EHHE
HK$000  HK$000  HKS'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000
Tér TAnr TEn TEr TER  THEx TR TEr TR TEn
AA-to AA+ A-EAA 1,210,080 1,159 - - - - 1,210,080 1,159 1,322,179 177
A-toA+ A-EA+ 4,039,000 6,370 - - - - 4,039,000 6,370 3,236,232 10409
Lower than A- A=LAT 353,790 151 - - - - 353790 151 418146 201
Unrated ER 380,750 - - - - - 380750 - 1977 -
Gross carrying amount SHEs 5,983,620 7,680 - - - - 5983620 7680 5133534 10,787
Less: Impairment alowance 5 : ERE (2,053) - - - - - (2,053) - - -
Carrying amount ] 5,981,567 7,680 - - - - 5981,567 7,680 5133534 10,787
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS MY
44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 44. RS EE 5)
(a) Credit risk management (continued) (a) GERMERE &)
(x) Credit quality of financial assets other than loans and x) BREEFUNIZEHREEZREE
advances (continued) BE(E)
Balances with banks and other financial institutions RITRAMZHEELE
2018 2017
“2-)\E CEtE
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL not credit-impaired credit-impaired Total Total
128 REH FEETRM2 DR EETRNZH
FEFR REFE RHEERE ag 28
Accrued Accrued Accrued Accrued Accrued

Principal interest  Principal  interest  Principal  interest  Principal interest  Principal interest
3¢ R L il A8 EHAE 3¢ R A RS
HKS000  HK$000 HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000
TEn Tén Tén TErn TEx TEx TExn  TEn  TEr TER

AA-to AA+ A-ZM 380,000 1,020 - - - - 380,000 1,020 - -
A-toA+ A-EA+ 1,533,007 5,346 - - - - 1,533,007 5346 558,348 7313
Lower than A- A-UT 150,000 513 - - - - 150,000 573 - -
Unrated &35 - - - - - - - - - -
Gross canying amount FHaE 2,063,007 6,939 - - - - 2,063,007 6939 558348 7313
Less: Impairment alowance 5 : HERE (2,745) - - - - - (2,745) - - -
Carrying amount EAE 2,060,262 6,939 - - - - 2,060,262 6939 558348 7313
Debt securities measured at amortized cost (2017: held-to BEBER AT ENEREES(—E—+
maturity investment and available-for-sale investment) F . ERIHRER JREERE)
2018 2017
“E-N\§ “TtF
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL not credit-impaired credit-impaired Total Total
12 ARES FEETRN2HTES EETRM2E
rEFE 513 REEERE k] a5
Accrued Accrued Accrued Accrued Accrued

Principal ~ interest  Principal  interest  Principal ~ interest  Principal  interest  Principal interest
12 EAE 1&  ERAE A% R 12 EAE 1% [EHE
HK$000  HK§000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS$000
Tén TEn TEr TEr TERr  TEm  TER  TER  TEr TiEn

AMA AAA 4,482,085 53,953 - - - - 4,482,085 53953  3,680,9% 45,941
AA-to AA+ AM-ZEM: 9,896,238 34317 - - - - 9,896,238 3T 6,241,761 28,811
A-toA+ A-EA+ 16,521,443 133,211 193,152 1,346 - - 16,714,595 134,557 17,343,532 127,418
Lower than A- A-UT 4,093,774 36,837 - - - - 4,093,774 36,837 4,390,793 40,142
Unrated EEEE 1,725,681 15,640 - - - - 1,725,681 15640 1,603,967 13,650
Gross carrying amount FHaE 36,719,221 273958 193,152 1,346 - - 36912318 215304 33261047 256,022
Less: Impaiment alowance 8 ¢ AR (21,582) - (1,024) - - - (22,600) - - -
Carrying amount REE 36,607,639 273958 192,128 1,346 - - 36,889,767 275304 33261047 266,022
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

188

(a) Credit risk management (continued)
(x) Credit quality of financial assets other than loans and
advances (continued)
Credit related commitments and contingencies

44, R EE ()
(a) GERBEE &)

x) ERREFUII2ERHEEZRFE

HE#E)
HEEEH 2 RERAARE

2018 2017
“E-N\% ZE—tF
Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
12-monthECL  credit-impaired  credit-impaired Total Total
12{8 AmEL FEEFRN  FEFRNZH
FEEFR 2HBRAGEER REGERR o &5
Principal Principal Principal Principal Principal
b b x& xg ki)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000
THRT THET TER TARL TATL
Pass #ib 35,819,057 221,968 - 36,041,025 28,735,932
Special mention B - 7,432 - 7,432 -
Gross amount REEE 35,819,057 229,400 - 36,048,457 28,735,932
Impairment allowance FEEE (5,081) (184) - (5,265) -

Credit risk that arises from investments in financial assets is
managed in the same way as the Group manages its credit
risk under corporate lending, with the exposure to the issuer
controlled under the overall lending limit to the customer group.
Analysis of trading securities by credit rating designation at
31 December, based on Standard & Poor’s ratings or their
equivalents, is as follows:

AA —to AA+ AA—EAA+

There were no overdue debt securities held by the Group as at
31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

Fubon Bank & F8R1T

AEBRERNAEREZEERBRAR
ZHA - BERESREERBELLZE
Bk HEBITH 2 ARRIHREFE
BIRHHBREERE - WEELERZ
TREERERZFRTEREE 17
FEEFREZSEFNT-A=1—H
ETZAWMT

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
Trading assets Trading assets
RERS FER S
RREE R#EE
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FHET
1,898,372 1,846,823

REER-_Z—\F+-_A=+—HL
AEBEABEEESF(ZE—tF
@®) o
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a) Credit risk management (continued)
(xi) Impairment allowances reconciliation
The following tables show reconciliations from the opening to the
closing balance of the impairment allowance by class of financial

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
3R o Bt

4. BEREBREE x)
(a) GERBEE &)
(xi) FEBEYE
TEBRZSRIAZSBAED R
(ERE O HR Y 2 B R SR RS E o

instrument at transaction level.

Advances to customers EFER
2018
—B-N\%
12-month  Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
ECL  credit-impaired  credit-impaired Total
12BAREE FEEFRM2E GETRHZH
FEFA RHEERR RAEERE et
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
ThR TET TR TR
Balance at 1 January W—R—Bz&s% 37,348 10,619 155,963 203,930
Transfer to 12-month ECL EZEAREEEE
B8 (147) 147 - =
Transfer to lifetime ECL not credii-impaired ~ EZFEESTRH2E
EHEEEE 4,641 (4,641) - -
Transfer to lfetime ECL credit-impaired? EREETRNEH
EHEEEE 2 - @ =
New financial assets originated or purchased, &4 58 A7 514 &
assets derecognized, repayments and BE AR
further lending BE BRE—S
X 2,065 1,354 - 3419
Write-offs Hsa = = (29,207) (29,207)
Net remeasurement of impairment allowances S5/ER &2 Bt &8 FE (03
(incluing exchange adjustments) [E R %) (16,883) (751) 70,122 52,488
Balance at 31 December Rt-A=t—-Rz&% 27,026 6,728 196,376 230,630
The contractual amount outstanding on advances to customers BE_Z-\F+-A=+—HILEE
that were written off during the year ended 31st December 2018 BB EETRTESD ZEPERR
and that are still subject to enforcement activity is HK$29.2 B4 4£5/529,200,0008 T ©

million.
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a) Credit risk management (continued)
(xi) Impairment allowances reconciliation (continued)
The movement in impairment allowances on advances to
customers during the year ended 31 December 2017 is as
below:

44, R EE ()
(a) GERBEE &)
(xi) FEREYEE)
HE-Z—+F+-_A=+—"HItFE
CEFEHRERBEEHNT

Individual Collective
impairment impairment
allowances allowance

BB R E R mERERE
HK$’000 HK$°000
FEx FEx
At 1 January 2017 R-E—tF—HF—H 149,919 108,839
Impairment losses charged to profit or loss PMEZREENG 2 B EEE 85,487 24,229
Impairment losses released back to profit or ~ HEz5EEREE 2
loss REEE (41,887) -
Amounts written off MERS 58 (45,516) -
Recoveries of advances written off BEFECHEEZRZ
in previous years Y[ 7,960 -
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—+F+=A
(Note 18(a)) =+—H8(K3E18(@)) 155,963 133,068
Debt securities measured at amortized cost BB AT B EREF
2018
“E-0\%
12-month  Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
ECL  credit-impaired  credit-impaired Total
128ARESE FEETRN2E GEFRHZE
51 RAEERFR RHEERE Lt
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
ThT TAL TR TR
Balance at 1 January n—A—Bz&# 38,426 804 - 39,230

New financial assets originated or purchased, B4 i A7 54
assets derecognized, repayments and BE B2
further lending BE EXRE—S
B3 4,023 - - 4,023
Net remeasurement of impairment allowances F{EE &2 E#

(including exchange adjustments) HEFE(RE
&5 BE) (20,867) 220 = (20,647)
Balance at 31 December RtZA=t—-Hz&% 21,582 1,024 - 22,606
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B R 5 B B
44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 44, RS EE ()
(a) Credit risk management (continued) (a) GERBEE &)
(xi) Impairment allowances reconciliation (continued) (xi) FEREHR(E)
Others p=vii
2018
—E-N\f
12-month  Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
ECL  credit-impaired  credit-impaired Total
12EARES FEETRNZE FEFRHZE
GEFE FEHEERFRE RIGERFE fam
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
Ti#n T T#r T#n
Balance at 1 January n—A—BzE# 12,826 700 - 13,526
New financial assets originated or purchased, RSB A2 518 8ARE - BUY
assets derecognized, repayments WRAZEE  BERNE—F
and further lending g 4,875 = = 4,815
Net remeasurement of impairment allowances S5/ER &2 Bt &8 FE (R4E
(including exchange adjustments) B335 (7,745) (516) - (8,261)
Balance at 31 December WZRA=t—-Hz£&H 9,956 184 - 10,140
Of which: He:
Cash and short-term funds BehEHEe 2,053 - - 2,053
Balances with banks and other financial ROTREREM
institutions TRBELR 2,745 - - 2,745
Trade bills BERE n - - 7
Credit related commitments and BEEEWL
contingencies EERSAER 5,081 184 - 5,265
9,956 184 - 10,140

(xii) Collateral and other credit enhancements
An estimate of the fair value of collateral and other credit
enhancements held against financial assets is as follows:

(xii) A7 R H A EE R T i
REREEMSEZEARREMEER
RAERZ BT AFEERT

2018 2017
—EB-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Fair value of collateral and other credit HTIeREEMFEZ
enhancements held against financial assets ~ #{##& & A b {Z B2
that are: Bz A FEE :
— Neither past due nor impaired — W HA SR E 94,285,726 90,975,520
— Past due but not impaired —BE@HEYERE 1,770,137 1,194,530
— Impaired —BRE 81,218 84,525
96,137,081 92,254,575
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

192

(a) Credit risk management (continued)

(xiii) Collateral and other credit enhancements obtained

During the years 2018 and 2017, the Group did not obtain any
assets by taking possession of collateral held as security.

As at 31 December 2018, total repossessed assets and assets
acquired under lending agreements of the Group amounted to
HK$27,000,000 (2017: HK$40,700,000).

Repossessed properties are sold as soon as practicable with
the proceeds used to reduce the outstanding indebtedness.
Repossessed property is classified in the consolidated statement
of financial position within accrued interest and other assets.

(b) Market risk management

Market risk arises on all market risk sensitive financial instruments,
including securities, foreign exchange contracts, equity and other
derivative instruments, as well as from the statement of financial
position or structural positions. The Group transacts in the money
market, foreign exchange market, equity market and capital market
giving rise to market risk exposures. Positions are taken as a result
of the execution of customers’ orders, and market making activities,
and offsetting transactions taken in order to hedge the Group’s open
position. The Group does not engage in significant proprietary trading.

The objective of market risk management is to avoid excessive
exposure of earnings and equity to loss and to reduce the Group’s
exposure to the volatility inherent in financial instruments.

The Board reviews and approves policies for the management of
market risks including dealing authorities and limits. The Board
has delegated the responsibility for ongoing general market risk
management to the Asset and Liability Committee (“ALCO”). This
committee articulates the interest rate view of the Group and decides
on future business strategy with respect to interest rates. It also
reviews and sets funding policy and ensures adherence to risk
management objectives.

The Group has also established clear market risk policies, including
limits, reporting lines and control procedures, which are reviewed
regularly and approved by the Board. Market risk is managed within
various limits approved by the Board. These limits are determined for
each financial instrument and include limits on product volume, gross
and net positions, position concentrations, mark to market limits,
stop loss limits and risk position limits. These limits are reviewed and
endorsed by the ALCO and approved by the Board at least annually.
The regular limit monitoring is performed daily and the result is
reported to the ALCO members. The risk exposures are also reported
to the RC at least monthly.

Fubon Bank & F8R1T

44, R EE ()

(a)

(b)

FERBERE &)

(xii) EMB 2 EARREMEERAE
i
AEER-_Z-N\FR-_Z—tFHY
FREBEEHERRZERR -

N-ZB-NF+-A=+—0  BEKX

SEZEEHZREZNEEENEE

4 (8/527,000,0008 T ( —Z T —+ 4

40,700,000 7T) °

WEmEeERFALE  PAEZHIE
B RABDRAEE 2 B8 - REAMK
MRAER - WEMED BREHE K
HBE -

miEEREE
MERBRELERAAETERRSZ SR
IR BEEZ INEAK  BEREMT
ATA  URMBRARKERLERE - K
SEEEERETS  MNEMS  REMGLE
AmBPETRS  AMELTSER - K
SERATEPES  MBHFEY - MR
REMEAEEZATRRMBAERE - A%
EUEZ2REABERS °

mSREREE  ARARRAN IR AER
BEBRRNBLAEERERIARSER
BIRFTS| R 2 B

EZeRIRELEATHRAREE ZBE
BRRERENEEEE - EFECEHE
—RMGRAREECEERTAEREEZE
€ - ZRBCRANRAKEHNEED 2
A MREBBAREXERE - ZRBE
MEFH R RERKL RESEARERE
RRFEA -

AEETHEBRH 2 THSEREE - 8FR
B WmENEREFEF YHEFEE
T AR Rt - mHRRDESHES
SREZRRENTUERE - WERE 5
FEEeRIAET BRAEME RERER
R RREDE HMEREZRE -
FHREREARABREREZRE - AE
REZESHELRBIETENNZN - I
BESBFE-RBEFTEHE - THEANE
RETT UHERBEREERBZE SN
8 - ERAELELSARRRZEGRS -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
3R o Bt

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Market risk management (continued)

4. BEREBREE x)
(b) TIEREMEE (&)

The sale of derivatives to customers as risk management products
and the subsequent use of derivatives to manage the resulting
position is an integral part of the Group’s business activities. These
instruments are also used to manage the Group’s own exposures to
market risk as part of its asset and liability management process. The
principal derivative instruments used by the Group are interest rate
and foreign exchange rate related contracts, which are primarily over-
the-counter derivatives. The Group also purchases exchange traded
derivatives. Most of the Group’s derivatives positions have been
entered into to meet customer demand and to hedge these and other
positions.

One of the tools used by the Group to monitor and limit market risk
exposure is Value-at-risk (VAR). VAR is a technique that estimates
the potential losses that could occur on risk positions as a result of
movements in market rates and prices over a specified time horizon
and to a given level of confidence. The calculation uses the historical
simulation method as the means to estimate the statistical confidence
level.

The VAR technique is only effective for potential loss events which
are not correlated. The Group therefore augments its VAR limits with
other positions and sensitivity limit structures. Additionally, the Group
applies a wide range of sensitivity analysis and stress testing, both
on individual portfolios and on the Group’s consolidated positions to
assess the potential impact on the Group’s earnings as a result of
extreme movements in market prices.

(i) Sensitivity analysis of market risk exposures
Trading market risk
Currency risk
At 31 December 2018, if Hong Kong Dollar had strengthened
by 0.5% against other currencies, with all other variables held
constant, the profit before tax for the year would have been
HK$8.7 million lower (2017: HK$5.5 million lower).

Conversely, if Hong Kong Dollar had weakened by 0.5% against
other currencies, with all other variables held constant, the profit
before tax for the year would have been HK$8.7 million higher
(2017: HK$5.5 million higher).

Interest rate risk

The Group measures trading book interest rate risks through
Present Value of Basis Point (PVBP). PVBP is a sensitivity test
to measure the potential profit or loss fluctuation on interest rate
positions upon a basis point movement.

The Group adopts a sensitivity test of a 100 basis points
movement. At 31 December 2018 and 2017, 100 basis points
upward or downward movement in interest rate would not result
in a material profit movement.

Equity risk

At 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group has no equity
position in its trading portfolio. As such, any movement in the
equity price would have no impact on the Group.
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Market risk management (continued)
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@

Sensitivity analysis of market risk exposures (continued)
Non-trading market risk

Currency risk

All of the Group’s foreign currency position arises from the
Group’s non-trading activities (e.g. investments, lending and
deposit taking) are captured and transferred to the Financial
Markets Division. The Financial Markets Division monitors these
foreign currency exposures and minimizes foreign currency asset
and liability mismatch by entering into foreign currency spot and
forward transactions. Market Risk Management Department
monitors those outstanding foreign currency positions on a daily
basis and report to the ALCO regularly.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk primarily results from timing differences in the
repricing of interest-bearing assets, liabilities and commitments.
Interest rate risk is managed by the Financial Markets Division
within limits approved by the Board, including interest rate
gap limits. The Group also uses interest rate swaps and other
derivatives to manage interest rate risk.

Structural interest rate risk arises primarily from the deployment
of non-interest bearing liabilities, including shareholders’ funds
and current accounts, as well as from certain fixed rate loans and
liabilities. Structural interest rate risk is monitored by the ALCO.

At 31 December 2018, if other market variables including prime
rate were held constant, an increase in HKD market interest
rates of 100 basis points would result in an increase in earnings
over the next 12 months of HK$77.5 million (2017: HK$87.0
million increase), and increase in economic value of HK$22.0
million (2017: HK$17.0 million decrease); while an increase in
USD market interest rates of 100 basis points would result in an
increase in earnings over the next 12 months of HK$1.5 million
(2017: HK$18.0 million decrease), or an increase in economic
value of HK$13.5 million (2017: HK$7.5 million increase).

Conversely, if other market variables including prime rate were
held constant, a decrease in HKD market interest rates of 100
basis points would result in a decrease in earnings over the next
12 months of HK$77.5 million (2017: HK$87.0 million decrease),
and decrease in economic value of HK$22.0 million (2017:
HK$17.0 million increase); while a decrease in USD market
interest rates of 100 basis points would result in a decrease in
earnings over the next 12 months of HK$1.5 million respectively
(2017: HK$18.0 million increase), or a decrease in economic
value of HK$13.5 million (2017: HK$7.5 million decrease).
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Market risk management (continued)

@

(ii)

Sensitivity analysis of market risk exposures (continued)
Non-trading market risk (continued)

Equity risk

At 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group holds a small
portfolio of non-trading listed equity securities. As such, any
movement in the equity price would have insignificant impact on
the Group.

The Group holds non-trading unlisted equity investments and
uses the applicable price/earnings ratio and other market
data for similar listed companies adjusted to reflect specific
circumstances of the issues or the net assets value reported by
the management of the investee companies to determine the fair
value of the investment. A sensitivity analysis on the fair value of
these unlisted equity investments is disclosed in Note 41(a)(ii).

The method and assumptions used in the above sensitivity
analysis on interest rate risk, currency risk and equity risk are
performed on the same basis for both 2018 and 2017.

Analysis of currency risk exposures

The Group’s foreign currency positions arise from foreign
exchange dealing, commercial banking operations and structural
foreign currency exposures. All foreign currency positions are
managed by the Financial Markets Division within limits approved
by the Board. The Group has no structural foreign currency
positions as of 31 December 2018 (2017: HK$1,399.4 million,
representing foreign currency investments in an associate). The
Group seeks to match closely its foreign currency denominated
assets with corresponding liabilities in the same currencies.
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b) Market risk management (continued)
(ii) Analysis of currency risk exposures (continued)
The following table indicates the concentration of currency risk at

44, R EE ()
(b) MEERERE®)
(i) E¥RAEDH(E)
TRIFRBE A2 G @EERET

the end of the reporting period: E:
2018
—E-N\F
Chinese Other foreign
US Dollars Renminbi currencies
(Equivalent in HK$’000) (FRATEME) ESH ARY Hitpohg
ASSETS BE
Cash and short-term funds HekEige 1,731,613 510,049 675,026
Balances with banks and other financial RITRIZE R EAM S R
institutions ok 676 410,107 573,363
Derivative financial instruments PTEEmIA 317,531 18,931 34,505
Advances to customers TEER 9,508,029 311,271 557,929
Trade bills HEZR 727,091 180,873 -
Accrued interest and other assets [ A B REMEE 798,518 7,824 59,196
Debt securities measured at amortized cost 1% $5Ak N5 8 W ETS B 5 22,248,193 404,303 6,589,547
Equity securities designated at BEURTFEEREM
fair value through other comprehensive EERETEZRAES
income 144,884 589,003 4,733
Spot assets REEE 35,476,535 2,432,361 8,494,299
LIABILITIES =l
Deposits and balances of banks and other  R1T[RI% & E b & Bk~
financial institutions FR KA 5,682,356 - 3,491,202
Deposits from customers BPER 19,745,371 1,786,744 4,163,921
Certificates of deposit issued B BITFHGE 1,292,127 - -
Debt securities issued BEITERES 388,774 = -
Derivative financial instruments fTESRTA 66,437 17,278 34,254
Other liabilities HiGE 678,879 14,920 63,114
Subordinated notes issued BERITRERE 1,562,870 = -
Spot liabilities REEE 29,416,814 1,818,942 7,752,491
Net on-balance sheet position EEEBRASAESE 6,059,721 613,419 741,808
Off-balance shest position BEBBERIEE
Foreign exchange derivative contracts INELTE B (3,753,819) (569,677) (743,069)
Net aggregate position HERTHE 2,305,902 43,742 (1,261)
Credit commitments and PN HE 2 EERER
other contingent liabilities in HitREE
foreign currencies 405,070 56,929 411,839
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B R 5 B B
44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 4. BEREBREE x)
(b) Market risk management (continued) (b) TIZRAEE (&)
(i) Analysis of currency risk exposures (continued) (i) E¥RABIFTE)
2017
—E—+F
Chinese  Other foreign
US Dollars Renminbi currencies
(Equivalent in HK$°000) (FATEE) e ARE HAiyng
ASSETS EE
Cash and short-term funds BekEige 1,894,835 420,890 303,077
Balances with banks and other financial RITRIZE R EAM S R
institutions R - 558,348 -
Derivative financial instruments TEeMT A 227,053 18,797 4,759
Advances to customers REEm 9,808,821 902,685 444,265
Trade bills EERE 864,495 15,760 -
Accrued interest and other assets EETF B R EMEE 682,107 213,711 74,092
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHESREE 19,383,197 1,048,089 9,803,738
Held-to-maturity investments RRIHEE 1,561,796 - -
Interests in associates REEENT 2R - 2,390,809 -
Spot assets HEEE 34,422,304 5,569,089 10,629,931
LIABILITIES &&
Deposits and balances of banks and ~ $R/TEIZE R H &R
other financial institutions g 2 FR RS 5,739,641 15,610 5,368,247
Deposits from customers BEFER 17,019,351 2,614,011 3,573,821
Certificates of deposit issued BEITERE 703,015 - -
Debt securities issued BEBITERES 779,454 - -
Derivative financial instruments TTESmI A 191,804 17,848 2,076
Other liabilities Hih g g 629,236 217,565 83,363
Subordinated notes issued BEITRERE 1,557,472 - -
Spot liabilities HEEE 26,619,973 2,865,034 9,027,507
Net on-balance sheet position EEEBERAEASE 7,802,331 2,704,055 1,602,424
Off-balance sheet position BEEBBERINESE
Foreign exchange derivative contracts ~ 4MNESTHE S 4 (4,831,622) (260,294)  (1,547,032)
Net aggregate position HERRE 2,970,709 2,443,761 55,392
Credit commitments and NS EE  EERER
other contingent liabilities in HsRERE
foreign currencies 1,218,926 80,900 54,858

Annual Report 2018 &4 7§ 197



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
3R o Bt

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

198

options.

ASSETS

Cash and short-term funds

Balances with banks and
other financial institutions

Trading assets

Derivative financial instruments

Advances to customers

Trade bills

Debt securities measured at
amortized cost

Other assets

LIABILITIES

Deposits and balances of banks
and other financial institutions

Deposits from customers

Trading liabilities

Certificates of deposit issued

Debt securities issued

Derivative financial instruments

Subordinated notes issued

Other liabilities

Interest rate sensitivity gap

Derivative financial instruments are carried at mark-to-market
values. Note 17(b) includes further information on the remaining
maturity of derivatives by notional amount.
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(b) Market risk management (continued)
(ili) Analysis of interest rate risk exposures

The following tables indicate the effective interest rates for the

relevant periods and the mismatches of the expected interest

repricing dates for interest-bearing assets and liabilities at the

end of the reporting period. Actual repricing dates may differ from

the contractual dates owing to prepayments and the exercise of
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44. IR ERE @)
(b) THZREMEE (5)

(iii) FZE@EBED AT
TRITRMERRAEEEREER
HREREAR 2 BRI RN FE AR S EET
EEBH 2 - EREFTERBH
BEEBENRETEREMTRRNELA
g,qo

2018
“5-N\%

Average 3 months or Over Over
effective less (include 3 months 1 year Over  Non-interest
interest rate Total overdue) tolyear  to5years 5years bearing

ZfEAs

4 DT ZEARE -0
BRA= 2 ) ) E-f FEFE  BEMNE THE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER THR TR THER TR
220% 5981567 4,989,179 - - - 992,388
266% 2,060,262 2,060,262 - - - -
153% 1898372 1,898,372 - - - -
N/ATER 796,595 - - - - 796,595
3.86% 47,699,240 45978693 1,334,412 335,129 2,570 48,436
3.44% 907,964 795,671 112,293 - - -
297% 36,889,767  10,026947 6819497 16508914 3,532,409 2,000
450% 6,552,979 74,293 - - - 6,478,686
102,786,746 65823417 8,266,202 16,844,043 3534979  8318,105
277% 9467425 9,121,622 - - - 345,803
180% 68,247,798 57,670,700 10,215,600 8,952 - 352,546
153% 18983712 1,808,372 - - - -
240% 4551213 2355615 1,437,069 758,589 - -
3.03% 388,774 234,701 154,073 - - -
NARER 133,347 - - - - 133,347
6.48% 1,562,870 - - 1562870 - -
NATER 2513280 - - - - 2513280
88,763,139 71,281,010 11,806,742 2,330,411 - 3344976

(5,457,593)  (3,540,540) 14513632 3,534,979
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b) Market risk management (continued)
(ili) Analysis of interest rate risk exposures (continued)

44. IR EE )
(b) TIZAMEE ()
(iii) FIZREBHH(45)

2017
“5-tf
Average 3months or Over Over
effective less (include 3 months 1 year Over  Non-interest
interest rate Total overdue) fo1year t0 5 years 5 years bearing
=A%
e WRERE  ZEANE —Et
BEH= gg  BEIH) EF Enf RENE 1T
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
Tén Fin Tin Tén T Tin
ASSETS EE
Cash and short-tem funds ReREHES 181%  51335%  42139%5 - - - 919,609
Balances with banks and other BUREREhSRE
financial institutions o3 415% 558,348 568,348 - - - -
Trading assets HERGRREE 056% 1846823 1747180 99,643 - - -
Derivative financial instruments fiEeMTA NATER 705,165 - - - - 705,165
Advances to customers ZEEN 312% 47583317 46,232,931 891,169 426,935 2670 29,612
Trade bils RS 2.25% 880,255 788149 2,106 - - -
Avalable-for-sale financial assets ~ AI{HESBEAR 163% 32243660 10751067 2071416 15454736 3420042 546,400
Held-to-maturty investments REIERE 413% 156179 - - 156179 - -
Other assets AfidE 394% 7971304 06,926 855 - - 790352
98484200 64358516 3,155,180 17443467 3422712 10104318
LIABILITIES 8
Deposts and balances of banksand ~ SF/TFE RE (4 B
other financil nstiutions FHRER 191% 11207295 11139340 - - - 67955
Depostts from customers PR 106% 62067793  B2376365 9257272 15,500 - 418656
Tradingliabilties REBETLEE 056% 1846819 1846819 - - - -
Certficates of depostissued BEARIE 194% 3311457 912,089 660423 1738945 - -
Debt securities issued BENERES 174% 1179009 1,179,009 - - - -
Derivative financial intruments fEeRIE NANER 208,216 - - - - 228216
Subordinated notes Issued BEARES 670% 1557472 - - 15TAR - -
Other lbilies AfaR NATER 271784 - - - - aTiTeM
8115902 67453622 901765 3311917 - 3432608
Iterest rate sensitivity gap HEgREZE (3005106) (6762508 14131550 3422712

TEE BT ARMEREIR - M
170 EREAREEATITE T AR
HIREE—FER -

Derivative financial instruments are carried at mark-to-market
values. Note 17(b) includes further information on the remaining
maturity of derivatives by notional amount.
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
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(c) Liquidity risk management

The purpose of liquidity management is to ensure sufficient cash flows
to meet all financial commitments and to capitalize on opportunities
for business expansion. This includes the Group’s ability to meet
deposit withdrawals either on demand or at contractual maturity,
to repay borrowings as they mature, to comply with the statutory
liquidity maintenance ratio, and to make new loans and investments
as opportunities arise. The Group maintains a stable and diversified
funding base of core retail and corporate customer deposits as well as
portfolios of highly liquid assets.

Policy and guideline on liquidity risk management are established to
build up a sound liquidity risk management framework and controls
appropriate for the Group’s business and in compliance with the
regulatory requirements. The Liquidity Risk Management Policy covers
the Group’s liquidity risk management strategy, risk management
mechanism to identify, measure, monitor and control liquidity risks,
and also the Group’s contingency funding plan. The Liquidity Risk
Management Guideline covers the risk measurement, risk reporting
and operational requirements in implementing the Banks’ liquidity
management strategy. These policy and guideline are both reviewed
by the ALCO, comprising of senior management of business lines and
risk management teams, and are approved by the RC and the ALCO
respectively.

The RC reviews and approves the Group’s risk appetite statement at
least annually. The Group’s liquidity risk management strategy and
principle is to maintain a healthy liquidity position with adequate stock
of liquid assets, well-diversified funding structure relying on a broad
customer deposit portfolio with prudent loan-to-deposit ratio and
money market funding ratio and appropriate size of off-balance sheet
liabilities to support the Bank’s liquidity needs under both normal and
stressed conditions.

It is the responsibility of the Group’s management to ensure
compliance with local regulatory requirements and limits set by the
RC. Liquidity is managed on a daily basis by the Group’s Funding
Desk unit. The Funding Desk unit is responsible for ensuring that
the Group has adequate liquidity for all operations, ensuring that the
funding mix is appropriate so as to avoid maturity mismatches and
to minimise price and reinvestment rate risk in the case of a maturity
gap, and monitoring relevant markets for the adequacy of funding and
liquidity.
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(c) Liquidity risk management (continued)

Compliance with liquidity and funding requirements is monitored by
the ALCO and is reported to the RC on a regular basis. This process
includes:

— maintaining balances within relevant regulatory requirements;

— projecting cash flows under various stress scenarios and
considering the level of liquid assets necessary in relation thereto;

— maintaining adequate intraday liquidity position and assessing
how the intraday liquidity profile will change in conditions of
stress;

— monitoring balance sheet liquidity and loan to deposit ratios
against internal requirements;

— maintaining a diverse range of funding sources with adequate
back-up facilities;

— managing the concentration and profile of debt maturities;

— managing lending commitments to customers within pre-
determined management alert triggers;

- managing debt financing plans;

- monitoring depositor concentration in order to avoid undue
reliance on large individual depositors and ensuring a satisfactory
overall funding mix;

— maintaining funding contingency plans, which identify early
indicators of stress conditions and describe actions to be taken
in the event of difficulties arising from systematic or other crises,
while minimising adverse long-term implications for the business;
and

— managing liquidity on a legal entity and on a group basis.
Intragroup funding transactions are carried out at arm’s length
and treated in the same way as transactions with non-related
third parties and controlled within pre-determined management
alert triggers.

Primary sources of funding

Customer deposits form a significant part of the Group’s overall
funding. The Group places considerable importance on the stability
of these deposits, which is achieved through the Group’s retail and
corporate banking activities and by maintaining depositor confidence
in the Group’s capital strength. In order to lengthen the duration of
the funding, the Group issues certificates of deposit with different
maturities from time to time. Interbank markets are also accessed for
the purposes of providing additional funding, maintaining a regular
presence in local money markets and optimising asset and liability
maturities.
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

202

(c) Liquidity risk management (continued)

The management of funding and liquidity risk

As part of its liquidity risk management, the Group focuses on a
number of components, including maintaining sufficient liquid assets,
maintaining diversified sources of liquidity, reserving necessary
funding capacity and contingency planning. The Group manages
liquidity risk by holding sufficient liquid assets (e.g. cash and short-
term funds and securities) of appropriate quality to ensure that short-
term funding requirements are covered within prudential levels. Debt
securities held are marked to the market on daily basis to ensure their
market liquidity. The Group also adopts a funding strategy that is to
achieve diversification of funding by controlling the concentration of
top depositors, wholesale funding and reliance on foreign exchange
swap markets. Moreover, adequate standby facilities are maintained
to provide strategic liquidity to meet unexpected and material cash
outflows in the ordinary course of business.

In addition to observing the statutory liquidity ratio, the Group has
established different liquidity risk metrics, including but not limited to
the liquidity maintenance ratio, loan-to-deposit ratio, cumulative cash
flow gap, concentration of funding sources and medium-term funding
ratio to measure and analyse its liquidity risks. Financial Control
Division is responsible for measurement and monitoring of these
liquidity metrics and reporting to the ALCO regularly.

The Group assesses and monitors the structure of balance sheet and
also the concentration of funding sources from time to time with use
of different risk metrics. During the year 2018:

— Loan-to-deposits ratio was kept below 80% for the aggregate
position of all currencies and also not exceeding respective
management alert trigger levels for each significant lending

currency;

—  Core funding ratio, which measures medium-term funding
demand and use exceeded 125%;

- Undrawn commitments were maintained not exceeding HK$9.0
billion;

—  Single depositor concentration was maintained below 5% of total
customer deposits;

—  Concentration of the top 10 depositors was maintained below
20% of total customer deposits;

— Swapped fund ratio (measuring reliance on foreign exchange
and/or currency swap markets) was maintained below 15%;

- Medium-term funding ratio was maintained above 5%;

Fubon Bank & F8R1T
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(c) Liquidity risk management (continued)

4. BEREBREE x)
(c) REMERARERE®)

The management of funding and liquidity risk (continued)
- Wholesale funding was kept below 20% of total funding;

—  Certificates of deposit and other debt securities issued did not
exceed 10% of total customer deposits (including certificates of
deposit and other debt securities issued); and

— Intragroup funding was maintained at minimal level not exceeding
USD53 million.

Core deposits

The Group monitors the stability of customer deposits by means
of the core deposit ratio, which is the ratio of core deposits to total
customer deposits. The Group categorizes customer deposits into
core deposits after taking into consideration of nature of deposits,
relationship history with customers and stability of customer’s total
balance. An alert trigger level is set on the core deposits ratio which
is monitored by the ALCO. Core deposits ratio was maintained above
25% throughout the year 2018.

Loan to deposit ratio

The Group emphasizes the importance of customer deposits as a
source of funds to finance lending to customers, and mitigate against
reliance on short-term interbank funding. A limit on the loan to deposit
ratio is established and approved by the RC and monitored by the
ALCO. Management alert triggers are also set on loan to deposit ratio
for significant lending currencies and monitored by the ALCO.

Cash flow projection and stress testing

The Group conducts cash flow analysis and cash flow projection
arising from on- and off-balance sheet items over a set of time
horizons on a regular basis to identify funding needs in specific time
buckets. The Group also regularly performs stress tests on its liquidity
position. In the stress test, both on — and off-balance sheet items
with a cash flow impact are considered, with applicable hypothetical
and historical assumptions. Three stressed scenarios, namely an
institution-specific crisis scenario, a general market crisis scenario,
and a combined scenario are adopted with minimum survival period
defined pursuant to HKMA'’s Supervisory Policy Manual guideline
“Sound Systems and Controls for Liquidity Risk Management”.
Stress testing assumptions are reviewed and approved by the ALCO
regularly to ensure their continued appropriateness.

Liquidity Cushion

The Group maintains a stock of high-quality readily liquefiable assets as
a liquidity cushion against a range of stressed scenarios. The eligible
assets are unencumbered, low credit risk and low market risk. The
liquidity cushion is segregated from debt securities held for trading
purposes. A certain portion of the liquidity cushion is made up of the
most liquid and readily marketable assets (such as debt securities
issued by government or multinational development banks) that
can be easily liquidated to meet funding needs in the initial phase of
liquidity stress.
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

204

(c) Liquidity risk management (continued)

The management of funding and liquidity risk (continued)
Liquidity Cushion (continued)

The size of the liquidity cushion shall be adequate to meet the Group’s
day-to-day liquidity needs and also emergency funding needs under
both normal and stress market conditions. The minimum required size
of the liquidity cushion is determined with reference to the funding
gap generated from the Group’s regular liquidity stress testing results.
Management alert triggers are established by the ALCO to ensure
sufficient size of liquidity cushion is maintained and appropriate
diversification among the liquidity cushion is achieved. The size and
mix of the liquidity cushion is reviewed by the ALCO regularly.

Size and mix of liquidity cushion were maintained above all relevant
management alert triggers throughout the year 2018:

— net long position of Exchange Fund Bills/Notes held was
maintained at not less than HK$1.0 billion;

— assets eligible for Lenders of Last Resort purpose was
maintained at not less than 30% of total customer deposits;

— level 1 high-quality readily liquefiable assets were maintained at
not less than 8.5% of total customer deposits;

— non-financial institution high-quality readily liquefiable assets were
maintained at not less than 25% of total customer deposits; and

— total high-quality readily liquefiable assets were maintained at not
less than 30% of total customer deposits.

Contingent liquidity risk

The Group provides customers with committed and standby facilities.
These facilities increase the funding requirements of the Group when
customers drawdown. The liquidity risk associated with the potential
drawdown on committed facilities is factored into our stressed
scenarios and a management alert trigger is set for these facilities.
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(c) Liquidity risk management (continued)

4. BEREBREE x)
(c) RBMRAMERE (1)

The management of funding and liquidity risk (continued)
Contingency funding plan

The Group has formulated a Contingency Funding Plan (“CFP”) that
describes the Group’s strategy for dealing with any liquidity problem
and the procedures for making up cash flow deficits in emergency
situations. The CFP is designed to be pro-active and pre-emptive. The
Group utilizes early warning indicators, which cover both qualitative
and quantitative measures, monitoring both internal and external
factors. Should there be any early signs of significant impact on the
Group’s liquidity position, the management would be informed for
their consideration. Once the CFP is triggered, a Crisis Management
Team, which is led by senior management, is formed to handle the
crisis. Strategy and procedures in obtaining contingency funding,
as well as roles and responsibilities of parties concerned are clearly
stated. The CFP also includes the analysis of cash flow projections to
estimate potential liquidity needs under stress scenarios.

The CFP is subject to regular testing to ensure its effectiveness and
operational feasibility, particularly in respect of the availability of the
contingency sources of funding listed in it. The CFP is also subject to
review and update on a regular basis to ensure it remains robust over
time. Any changes to the CFP would be approved by the RC.

Moreover, in accordance with the HKMA’s Supervisory Policy Manual
Guideline “Recovery Planning”, the Group has established a Recovery
Plan, which has been approved by the Board. The Recovery Plan
helps ensure that the Group is able to recover quickly from period of
severe stress and preserve or restore its liquidity level. The Recovery
Plan is subject to regular, at least annual, review and update.

Liquidity exposures

The Group’s liquidity exposures are measured on a consolidated
basis which comprises the Bank and Fubon Credit (Hong Kong)
Limited as designated by the HKMA for regulatory purposes.

Fubon Credit (Hong Kong) Limited maintains a minimal loan portfolio
not exceeding HK$10 million without borrowings and new lending,
and maintains liquidity maintenance ratio over 100% throughout the
year 2018.

The Bank also maintains average liquidity maintenance and core
funding ratios well above the statutory minimum ratios of 25% and
50% respectively throughout the year 2018.
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk management (continued)
(i) Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity

206

The following maturity profile is prepared based on the remaining
period at the end of the reporting period to the contractual

maturity date.

ASSETS

Cash and short-term funds

Balances with banks and other
financial institutions

Trading assets

Derivative financial instruments
Advances to customers

Trade hils

Debt securities meastred at

amortized cost

Equity securities designated
at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Other assets

LIABILITIES

Deposits and balances of
banks and other financial

institutions

Depostts from customers

Trading liabities

Certificates of deposit issued

Debt securities issued

Derivative financial instruments
Subordinated notes issued

Other liabilties

Net liquidity gap
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44, R EE ()

(c) RBMRABERE (&)
() BASHRITCEERER

THHRANHERBERREALDFT
PRRIH B 2 RIS AR AR AL -

2018
“E-)\E
Over Over Over
1month  3months 1year
Repayable Within -~ butwithin ~ butwithin  but within Over  Undated or
Total  ondemand imonth  3months 1year 5years 5years overdue
-EARE  ZEAME  -EME iyt
a%  HRER -EAM ZERMA  -EMR EEMR EENME ki
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TEn TEn Tn TEn T#n TEn Tién
5981567  1,065589 4,915,978 - - - - -
2,060,262 - - 1511974 548,288 - - -
1,898,372 - 513351 1,325,021 - - - -
796,595 - - - - - - 796,595
47,699,240 - 1152648 2965704 5070005 15895999 12,104,237 137,647
907,964 - 682,929 112,741 112,204 - - -
36,889,767 - 2033035 3199445 8265881 19,856,997 3,532,409 2,000
809,330 - - - - - - 809,330
5,743,649 - 862,487 180,223 30,497 10 - 4670432
102,786,746  1,065589 20503428 9,205,108  14,026965  35753,006 15636646 6,416,004
9,467,425 345803 3,266,015 5855607 - - - -
68,247,798  18317,001 21,591,028 18115224  10,215599 8,951 - -
1,898,372 - 513351 1,325,021 - - - -
4,551,273 - 939,769 199647 1693638 1,718,219 - -
388,774 - 156,598 78,103 154,073 - - -
133,347 - - - - - - 133,347
1,562,870 - - - - 1562870 - -
2,513,280 - 1,225380 137,673 207,316 17,517 - 925,304
88,763,139 18,662,804 27,752,136 25,711,275 12,270,626 3,307,557 - 1,058,741
(17,597,215  (7,158,708) (16,416,167) 1,756,339 32445449 15,636,646

Derivative financial instruments are carried at mark-to-market
values. Note 17(b) includes further information on the remaining
maturity of derivatives by notional amount.

Fubon Bank & F8R1T
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk management (continued)
(i) Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity

4. BEREBREE x)

(c) RBMRAMERE (1)
() BRSBRAIFCEERSREE)

(continued)
2018
“E-N\E
Over Over Over
1month  3months 1year
Repayable Within ~ butwithin ~ butwithin  but within Over  Undated or
Total  ondemand 1month 3 months 1year 5years 5years overdue
—fANE =AML —-EHE iy
a8 HNER AR =ARNA —ELR BEHR BENE i
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tién T Tén T T T T TR
Of which: A
Debt securities held* KERERS
- Included in trading assets N
& 1,898,372 - 573,351 1,325,021 - - - -
- Included in debt securities ~NREERA
measured at amortized cost SERELES 36,889,767 - 2033035 3199445 8205881 19,856,997 3,532,409 2,000
38,788,139 - 2606386 4524466 8265881 19856997 3532409 2,000
Of which: A
Certificates of depositheld ~ HE7Z
- Included in debt securities N -
measured at amortized cost SENERES 1,061,284 - - 60,808 512,660 481,816 - -
Certificates of depositissued ~ BR7HE%
- Stated at amortized cost —REHR A% 4,551,273 - 939,769 199647 1693638 1,718,219 - -

* The amount of debt securities held included certificates of deposit

held.
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk management (continued)
(i) Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity

208

(continued)

ASSETS
(Cash and short-term funds

Balances with banks and other
financial institutions
Trading assets

Derivative financial instruments
Advances to customers

Trade bills

Avalable-for-sale financial assets
Held-to-maturtty investments
Other assets

LIABILITIES

Deposits and balances of banks
and other financial insfitutions
Depostts from customers

Trading liabities

Certificates of deposit issued
Debt securtties issued
Derivative financial instruments
Subordinated notes issued
Other liabilties

Net liquidity gap
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(c) RBMRABERE &)

() BRGHRITZEEREEGR)

2017
“E-1E

Over Over Over

1 month 3months 1 year
Repayable Within but within but within but within Over  Undated or
Totd  ondemand 1 month 3 months 1 year 5years 5 years overdue

—EANE  ZEANME  —FUE
g% PEER -EAM ZEAMAM BN RENR RENE ERENaH
HKS'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
Tin TiEn Fin TEn Fin TEn T TEn
5,133,534 989,187 4,144,347 - - - - -
558,348 - - 558,348 - - - -
1846823 - 999,760 747420 99,643 - - -
705,165 - - - - - - 705,165
47583317 - 11010922 37983%6 5845429 14020992 12,854,834 52,744
880,255 - 323,196 308,264 248,79 - - -
32,243,660 - 1651704 1499775 3027216 22098514 3420042 546,409
1,561,796 - - - - 1,561,79% - -
7,971,304 - 766,894 269,595 37,559 19,719 - 6877537
98,484,202 989,187 18896823 7,181,798 9258642 37,701,021 16274876 8,181,855
11,207,295 67,955 956,246 10,183,094 - - - -
62,067,793 20246425 16795439 15793157 9,257,272 15,500 - -
1846819 - 999,757 747420 99,642 - - -
3,311,457 - - 156,256 860,388 2,204,813 - -
1,179,009 - - 1,179,009 - - - -
228216 - - - - - - 228216
1,057,472 - - - - 1567472 - -
2,717,841 - 1449424 128717 167,013 98 - 982,629
84115902 20314380 20160866 28,187,713 10374315 3,867,883 - 1210745

(19325199 (1,264,043 (21005915  (1,115673 33833138 16,274,876

Derivative financial instruments are carried at mark-to-market
values. Note 17(b) includes further information on the remaining
maturity of derivatives by notional amount.
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PA SR Y EE
44, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 44. IR EE #)
(c) Liquidity risk management (continued) (c) REMEERERE (&)
(i) Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity () BRGHRIVTZEERERE(E)
(continued)
2017
3t
Over Over QOver
1 month 3months 1 year
Repayable Within but within but within but within Over  Undated or
Totd  ondemand 1 month 3 months 1 year 5years 5years overdue
—EARE  ZERNME  —ENE BT

aE  HBER -ERR ZERMR R BENA BENE k]
HK§'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
TEx T TEx TiEx TEL TEx TiEL TEn

Of which: B
Debt securities held * BERERES
~Included in traing assets N
EE 1,846,823 - 999,760 747,420 99,643 - - -
-Included in avalable-orsdle AT EESF
financial assets EE 31,699,251 - 1,661,704 1,499,775 3027216 22,098,514 3,420,042 2,000
-Included in held-o-maturty  —ABZEIERE
investments 1,561,796 - - - - 156179 - -
36,107,870 - 2,051,464 224719 3126859 23,660,310 3,420,042 2,000
Of which: B
Certificates of depositheld ~ EE7HH
-Included in avalable-for-sale ~ —MATELESR
financial assets EE 1,639,518 - 97575 342,844 220,067 979,082 - -
-Included nheld-to-matuity -~ AR HIEBRE
investments 156,257 - - - - 156,257 - -
1,795,775 - 97,575 342,844 220,067 1,135,289 - -
Certificates of depositissued BRI
- Stated at amortized cost it 3311457 - - 156,256 860,388 2204813 - -
* The amount of debt securities held included certificates of deposit ) FrisERHEF a2 B AT FH
held. e
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

210

(c) Liquidity risk management (continued)
(ii) Analysis of non-derivative liabilities by contractual

maturities

The following table sets out contractual cash flow projections of
the Group’s financial liabilities, and off-balance sheet exposures
analysed by the remaining period as at the end of the reporting
period to the contractual maturity dates. The balances in
the tables below will not agree directly to the balances in
the consolidated statement of financial position as the table
incorporates all cash flows, on an undiscounted basis, related to
both principal as well as those associated with all future interest
and coupon payments.

44, R EE ()
(c) RBMRABERE (&)

(i)

ERER AL 2 HITLREDHF

TREFIRBERREANI AR
HHEIT 2 ASEEBBEREER
BERIERANADREAL - TRE
BT EERSRANGEAMBRREKZ
B BRTREZE2BAREEM
RZEERBRATEERZMERTR
(RIBARYTREE) -

Repayable
Total  ondemand

28  OEEX
HK$'000 HK$000
Thn T

2018
“E-N\%
Over Over Over
1month 3 months 1 year
Within ~ butwithin ~ butwithin  but within Over
1 month 3 months 1 year 5years 5years

-BANE  ZEARE  -FNE
-fAR  ZEAMR  -EMA BFMA EENME
HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000

TEn

Th ThT TEn Th

Financial liabilities SHAE
Deposits and balances of banks ~ $1TREREMER
and other financial institutions BREZERRER 9,530,724 345,803

Deposits from customers REEH 68,685,736 18,317,001
Trading liabilties REEETZ8E 1,902,000 -
Certficates of deposit issued BRETENE 4,708,206 -
Debt securities issued BETERES 391,583 -
Subordinated notes issued BETHREZE 1,760,870 -
Other liabilties EafE 1,482,283 -

3,287,360 5,897,561 - = -
21,695,456 18,250,508 10,413,692 8,994 -
574,000 1,328,000 - - -

956,403
156,633

1,173,007

216908 1,763,951 1,770,944 =

78317 156,633 = =
- 97,537 1,663,333 =

190002 101,763 17511 -

88,461,402 18,662,804

21842859  25961,381 12,533,576 3,460,782 -

Off-balance sheet exposures ~ ZEEEERIER

- Contingent liabilties -FREE 1,100,059 - 1,100,059 - - - -
- Commitments —KIE 34048398 34,948,398 - - - = =
36048457 34948308 1,100,059 - - - -

Fubon Bank & F8R1T
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MRS MY
44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 44. R EE @)
(c) Liquidity risk management (continued) (c) REMEERERE (&)
(i) Analysis of non-derivative liabilities by contractual (i) HEHZIHAEHZHITEEERT
maturities (continued) (&)
2017
“EtE

Over Over Over

1 month 3 months 1 year
Repayable Within but within but within but within Over
Total  ondemand 1 month 3 months 1 year 5 years 5years

—BANE  ZEANME  -FNE
BE MmER -EARN ZERMA —EMR REMR RENE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
ThL ThL Thn ThL Th T ThL

Financial liabilities tREE
Depostts and balances of banks ~ $TREREMAE
and other financial institutions BEZER LR 11,259,739 67,955 959300 10,232,484 - - -

Deposits from customers REER 62341528 20246427 16,804,732 15,882,020 9,392,822 15,927 -
Trading liabiliies RHFETEfE 1,848,500 - 1,000,000 748,500 100,000 - -
Certificates of deposit issued BENGLE 3,407,963 - 2,673 166,902 903,664 2,334,724 -
Debt securties issued BEIERES 1,181,285 - - 1181285 - - -
Subordinated notes issued ERTRERE 1853679 - - - 9%,770  1,756909 -
Other liabilities Eafk 1,822,547 - 1,427,132 320,628 74,689 98 -

83715241 20314382 20193837 28531819 10567945 4,107,258 -

Off-balance sheet exposures ~ EEEERIER
- Contingent liabilties -gNERE 888,590 - 888,590 - - - -
- Commitments —HiE 27847342 27,847,342 - - - - -

28,735,932 27,847,342 888,590 - - - -
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

212

(d) Operational risk management

Operational risk refers to the risk of loss resulting from inadequate
or failed internal processes, people or systems, or from external
events. Given that operational risk is inherent in all business products,
activities, processes and systems, the Group has developed,
implemented and maintained a robust operational risk management
framework to facilitate the timely identification, effective assessment
and mitigation of the risk. Internal controls, an integral part of a sound
operational risk management framework, are maintained by the
departmental operational manuals which provide guidance on the
baseline controls to ensure a sound management of business and
operations.

The RC provides oversight of the risk management of the Group
regularly reviews the Group’s operational risk framework and risk
profiles, and approves the risk management policies. The Internal
Control Committee (“ICC”) also plays an active role in overseeing
operational risk related issues and monitoring the implementation
of improvement plans for risk events identified and rectifications
needed in operational risk management tools, including Control Self
Assessment and Key Risk Indicator.

Business and support units are required to review their procedures
regularly to ensure compliance with internal control standards and
regulatory requirements. They are also required to work closely with
Operational Risk Management Department and Business Compliance
Department on internal control, regulatory compliance and operational
risk management related activities and initiatives.

Each new product or service introduced is subject to a rigorous
review and approval process where all relevant risks are identified
and assessed by departments independent of the risk-taking unit
proposing the product or services. Variations of existing products or
services are also subject to a similar process. In addition, the Group
maintains business continuity plans and tests contingency facilities
regularly to ensure the ability to continue operating and limit losses in
the event of severe business disruptions.

Internal Audit Division and Compliance Department play an essential
role in monitoring and limiting operational risk. Their foci include
evaluating the adequacy of all internal controls independently,
ensuring adherence to operating guidelines (including regulatory and
legal requirements) and making improvement recommendations pro-
actively.

Fubon Bank & F8R1T

(d) &

44, R EE ()

L ERRER
EERREEATTREMEBE AR
e ABSHIERIMEEM - BFEEEL

MER - ERFTAEEBER &8 BER
HEHAEANESERR  REEERITE
Ephgriene BmRERER - e

R A ”ﬁx&%ﬁ&ﬁd\ ZRERE - R
BERIEARREERRERERZEER
ol E&E”ﬁBFEJg@D?Hﬁ(%zEﬁMﬁ =1
5 BR—EZEH ARENEERR)ME
i

ERZEeERAEENER
MASENZERMERRRRRR - L&
PR EREOR o W%B%?*&Aiﬁi,%@ﬁ
%é‘ﬁi%f’ﬁﬁﬁ CEEEER MHEE%H&%
ERARBREENREF B L hmEER
AI@IE(E%QﬁZW?” AEREEER a“a

RERE - THE

RRBOFUHESE -

EBERXEE 1 JRTE B B H A2 Fr LAREIR T
ANHEER &%%’%ﬁ o KEIARN
HPEHE - ﬁ*&/\%ﬁ& S ERBREERRLDY

LERAEERRET *BF?&F‘%%A*&*BF?

EZmatk-

EHMERIMEALETERRALELB
12 0 WHNVE LI R A E i Sk AR ) L R
AP 2 B B PIRR R A B AR R R
%W& Rl o BRI A E m e R TR
AREOIRFRS - teoh - REETEHBF
RBEEEMATE R RARE - KRR
ABEXBETETARNFELCE RRHEA
I AERK E S 18 o

NEEZ SR RABPIEESRE MR E 2 ER
RO BEEERER - RENEHERBEL
FHEFMAABEENTEN I - BRETEE
Eol(BREENEERE)ARTBRENR
Bt



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
3R o Bt

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(e) Capital management

4. BEREBREE x)
(e) EXREE

The HKMA sets and monitors capital requirements for the Group
as a whole. In addition to meeting the regulatory requirements, the
Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern so that it can
continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders, by pricing products and services commensurately with
the level of risk and by securing access to finance at a reasonable
cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position,
and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

The Group’s capital management is overseen by the ALCO and
reviewed regularly by the Board. Key tools adopted include capital
budgeting, monitoring, stress testing. An annual capital budget
is prepared during the annual budgeting process to assess the
adequacy of the Group’s capital to support current and future
business activities taking into account projected business growth and
any new business activities. The annual budget is approved by the
Board. Actual capital adequacy is measured and compared against
the approved budget on a regular basis. In addition, regular stress
testing and scenario analysis of major sources of risk faced by the
Group is performed to assess impact on capital adequacy ratios. The
Group’s Recovery Plan ensures that the Group is able to preserve or
restore its capital level during a severe stress period. The Recovery
Plan is subject to regular, at least annual, review and update.

The principal forms of capital are included in the following balances
in the consolidated statement of financial position: share capital,
reserves, additional equity instruments and subordinated notes
issued. Capital for regulatory purposes also includes the impairment
allowances made against Stage 1 and Stage 2 financial assets as
allowed by the Banking (Capital) Rules.

The Group adopts the standardised approach for the calculation of
risk-weighted assets for credit risk and market risk, and the basis
indicator approach for the calculation of operational risk.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its capital
structure on the basis of its capital adequacy ratio and there have
been no material changes in the Group’s policy on the management
of capital during the year.
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(e) Capital management (continued)

®

The Bank computes its capital adequacy ratios of the Bank and
certain specified subsidiaries in accordance with the Banking
(Capital) Rules of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance. Certain non-
banking financial subsidiaries are also subject to the supervision
and capital requirements of local regulatory authorities. The Group
regularly measures and monitors capital adequacy of these regulated
subsidiaries.

The Group and its individually regulated operations have complied
with all externally imposed capital requirements throughout the years
ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, and were above the minimum
required ratio set by the HKMA and other regulatory authorities.

Transfers of financial assets

As of 31 December 2018, the Group had entered into repurchase
agreements with certain counterparties to sell financial assets
measured at amortized cost with carrying amounts of HK$6.27 billion
(2017: available-for-sale financial assets of HK$9.52 billion and held
to maturity investments of HK$122.6 million) which are subject to
simultaneous agreements (“repurchase agreements”) to repurchase
these financial assets at agreed dates and prices. The consideration
received under these repurchase agreements totalling HK$5,979.4
million (2017: HK$9,181.1 million) was reported as “Deposits and
balances of banks and other financial institutions” at 31 December
2018 (Note 28).

As stipulated in the repurchase agreements, there was no transfer
of the legal ownership of these financial assets to the counterparties
during the covered period. However, the Group was not allowed to
sell or pledge these financial assets during the covered period unless
both parties mutually agree with such arrangement. Accordingly,
these financial assets were not derecognized from the financial
statements but regarded as “collateral” for the secured lending by
these counterparties. Normally, the counterparties could only claim
from the collateral when there exists an event of default on the
secured lending.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, there were no outstanding
transferred financial assets in which the Group had a continuing
involvement, that were derecognized in their entirety.

45. IMMEDIATE PARENT AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING
PARTY

At 31 December 2018, the Directors consider the immediate parent and
ultimate controlling party of the Group is Fubon Financial Holding Co., Ltd.,
which is incorporated in the Republic of China.
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46.

47.

POST BALANCE SHEET SUBSEQUENT EVENT

After the end of the reporting period, the Court of Appeal issued judgment
allowing the Group’s appeal and rejecting the Plaintiff’s cross-appeal in
a lawsuit, where an original judgement was issued against the Group
during 2016. The Group received HK$96 million (being the net aggregate
amount that the Group previously paid the Plaintiff under the original
judgment) from the Plaintiff on 17 January 2019. The Group will receive
further interest and recover costs relating to the lawsuit at such rates and
amounts to be determined by the court.

BANK-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION AND STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN
EQUITY
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46. EEEBREHNREE
RBEBERE - FFERE TR 2T —RF
HRFEHAEEELNHL  EFAREN L
FRBEREEFAFNIX LF - REERRZ
Z-NEF— A+t HE8R&E%E 96,000,000
T (AEEERERARRRE ZNHFR
8) AREBIRERBRENE R RS BREE
—HF B EEFAGANER -

A7. RTUBRRRRERBBRER

31 December 1 January 31 December
2018 2018 2017
A —E)N\F —ET—+tF
+=H=+—8H —A—HB +ZA=+—8H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET T FAT
ASSETS BE
Cash and short-term funds BehEBEs 5,981,544 5,131,381 5,133,511
Balances with banks and RITEIZE R EAM
other financial institutions LR RS 2,060,262 557,437 558,348
Trading assets BERX S RBREE 1,898,372 1,846,823 1,846,823
Derivative financial instruments PTESRMT A 796,595 705,165 705,165
Advances to customers EFPER 47,697,362 47,660,462 47,575,344
Trade bills [GEESE 907,964 879,838 880,255
Accrued interest and other assets et R B R B A E 1,377,011 1,391,110 1,391,110
Debt securities measured at LA SR AT 22
amortized cost B HESH 36,889,767 33,005,143 -
Equity securities designated at EENAFEEBR
fair value through other Hfh2miizstS
comprehensive income A E 809,330 544,409 -
Available-for-sale financial assets AtEESREE - - 32,243,660
Held-to-maturity investments SR EIEIRE - - 1,561,796
Interests in associates i NI - 1,399,442 1,399,442
Investments in subsidiaries R B AR ZIE 73,162 81,162 81,162
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE P B A B I 42,060 89,517 89,517
Fixed assets TEE 4,312,504 4,100,320 4,100,320
Assets held for sale BEELEZEE 53,443 43,900 43,900
Total assets BERSE 102,899,376 97,436,109 97,610,353
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47. BANK-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION AND STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN

EQUITY (continued)

LIABILITIES

Deposits and balances of banks
and other financial institutions

Deposits from customers

Trading liabilities

Certificates of deposit issued

Debt securities issued

Derivative financial instruments

Other liabilities

Amounts due to subsidiaries

Deferred tax liabilities

Subordinated notes issued

Total liabilities

EQUITY
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity attributable to shareholders

of the Bank
Additional equity instruments

Total equity

Total equity and liabilities

afE
RITRAEREME R
Mg > TR R i g
BETEH
REGWETZEBE
BT E
BEBITERKES
THEemIA
HithEE
FERT BT A R FRE
ELERIEEE
BEITRESRE
BB

i

BeA

G

RAITRCR &M

P R as

RRIMEA TR
REaSABER
#m kB ERR

47. BT BRR KRR ER R HHE R

(%)

31 December 1 January 31 December
2018 2018 2017
—=E-N\F —E)N\EF —E—+F
+=H=+—H —A—H +ZA=+—H
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET FET
9,467,425 11,207,295 11,207,295
68,247,798 62,067,793 62,067,793
1,898,372 1,846,819 1,846,819
4,551,273 3,311,457 3,311,457
388,774 1,179,009 1,179,009
133,347 228,216 228,216
1,796,504 2,072,100 2,062,033
277,213 229,703 229,703
675,551 584,923 615,337
1,562,870 1,557,472 1,557,472
88,999,127 84,284,787 84,305,134
4,830,448 4,830,448 4,830,448
9,069,801 6,813,077 6,966,974
13,900,249 11,643,525 11,797,422
= 1,507,797 1,507,797
13,900,249 13,151,322 13,305,219
102,899,376 97,436,109 97,610,353

REZER_Z-AF=ATNLRBBRRER

Approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 19 March

2019. fh o
Ming-Chung (Daniel) TSAI Robert James KENRICK Raymond Wing Hung LEE
SR HEf K%

Director Director Director

BE BE £
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RS SR s M
47. BANK-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL AT. RITHBMR AR R EREBRER
POSITION AND STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ()
EQUITY (continued)
Investment Premises Additional
Share  Regulatory  revaluation  revaluation Retained equity
capital reserve reserve reserve eamings Total instruments  Total equity
R& I Eh

BR tRRE EREE EREE REEN B%  RAIR RN
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TR TR ThL TAL TiEn ThL TEL TR

At 1 January 2017 “E2—+E-f-H 4,830,448 527,242 80,193 2239802 2852577 10,530,262 - 10,530,262
Total comprefensive income for the year  A4% 2 H Mz 45 - - 433726 305992 527442 1267,160 - 1267,160
- Proft for the year ~AEEER - - - - 534049 534049 - 534049
-~ Other comprenensive income, of which:  — E 2Bz - £ :
- Avallable-for-sale financial assets: -AHEESREE
net movement in investment REERGE
revaluation reserve FEY - - 43378 - - 433726 - 433728
- Remeasurement of net - BN ETEE
defined beneft iabilty BEFE - - - - (6,607  (6,607) - (6,607)
~ Premises: net movement in -NF  NEEEEE
premises revaluation reserve F& - - - 305,992 - 305,99 - 305992
Transfer (to)/from retained earnings EK(Z)/aREER - (28,254) - (50,449) 78,703 - - -
Issuance of additional equity instruments ~ #4TESMER T A - - - - - - 507,797 1,507,797
At 31 December 2017 “E-tE+-A=TH 4830448 498988 513919 2495345 3458722 11,797,422  1507,797 13,305,219
Investment  Premises Additional
Share Regulatory revaluation revaluation  Retained equity
capital reserve reserve reserve  earnings Total instruments Total equity
RE L g

BE  EERE EURE EfEE  REE B8 HRAIRE BRAR
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
ThT ThL T ThT ThR T Th Thn

At 31 December 2017 “E—+E+ZA=1-8 4,830,448 498,988 513919 2495345 3458722 11,797422 1,507,797 13,305,219
Opening balance adusiments arisng &R ESM 4 4]
from change in accounting policy e - - (180921) = 21,04 (153897) - (153,897)
At1 January 2018 “5-/\&—R-H 4,830,448 498,988 332998 2495345 3,485,746 11,643525 1,507,797 13,151,322
Total comprehensive income for the year  AEE2 AU HEE - - 25930 234231 1,870,000 2,330,179 - 230179
- Proft for the year ~FEREF = = = - 1868810 1,868,810 - 1868810
- Other comprehensive income, of which:  — B2z « Eep -
— Equity securiies designated at FVOCE — — 38 AR TBER
net movement in investment Ermkaite
revaluation reserve LRSS A
EhERTE - - 2599 - - 2599 - 225999
~ Remeasurement of net defined ~ N ETERER
benefi liablity BETE - = = = 1,199 1,199 S 1,199
- Premises: net movement in W% MEERERE
premises revaluation reserve FE - - - 234,231 - 234,231 - 234,231
Transfer from/{to) retained eamings 5 /(Z)RBEA - 37612 - (55224) 17,612 - - -
Dividend payment for additional FEINRATANREMAH
equity instruments - - - - (1296  (12,96) - (12,96)
Redemption of additional equity BIRATEED
instruments - - - - (469) (469)  (1,507,797)  (1,508,266)
At 31 December 2018 —Z-\&+=A=1-8 4,830,448 536,600 558,937 2,674,352 5299912 13,900,249 - 13,900,249
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48. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

218

In preparing these financial statements, certain assumptions and estimates
have been made by management of the Group. The accuracy of these
assumptions and estimates are continuously reviewed by management
with reference to actual results, historical experience and other factors,
including projection of future cash flows and possible outcomes from
future events. Management believes that the assumptions and estimates
made are reasonable and supportable.

Notes 25 and 41 contain information about the assumptions and risk
factors relating to fair value of premises and financial instruments. Other
key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(@) Impairment losses

Applicable to 2018 only

Management exercises judgement in establishing the criteria for
determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition and determining inputs into the
ECL measurement model, including the incorporation of forward-
looking information. For details of the ECL model, please refer to Note
44(a)(viil).

Applicable to 2017 only

Advances to customers

Loan portfolios are reviewed periodically to assess whether
impairment losses exist. Management makes judgements as to
whether there is any objective evidence that a loan portfolio is
impaired, i.e. whether there is a decrease in estimated future cash
flows. Objective evidence of impairment includes observable data that
the payment status of borrowers in a group has adversely changed.
It may also include observable data of local economic conditions that
correlate with defaults on the assets in the group. If management has
determined, based on their judgement, that objective evidence for
impairment exists, expected future cash flows are estimated based
on historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics
similar to those of the group. Historical loss experience is adjusted on
the basis of current observable data.

Management reviews the methodology and assumptions used
in estimating future cash flows regularly to reduce any difference
between loss estimates and actual loss experience.

In assessing the need for a collective impairment allowance,
besides factors such as credit quality, portfolio size, concentrations,
management also considers economic factors. In order to estimate
the required adjustment to the collective impairment allowance from
economic factors, the Group makes assumptions and judgements
to determine the relevant economic indicators and their relevant
weighting based on historical experience and current economic
conditions.

Available-for-sale equity securities

The Group determines that available-for-sale equity securities are
impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value below cost. The determination of when a decline in fair value
is significant or prolonged is judgmental by nature so profit and loss
could be affected by differences in this judgment.
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48. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Fair value determination

The Group determines the fair values of financial assets and liabilities
which are carried at fair value based on quoted market prices
whenever possible. If such quoted market prices are not available
or an active market does not exist, the Group determines the fair
values based on internally developed models which make use of
market parameters, including interest rate yield curves, historical and/
or implied option volatilities, currency rates, prices of the underlying
instruments, and the net assets of the underlying investments. Model
assumptions and correlation among these parameters can affect the
estimates of the fair values of these financial instruments.

Held-to-maturity investments — Applicable to 2017
only

The Group classified non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and fixed maturity which the Group has a
positive intention and ability to hold to maturity as held-to-maturity
investments. In making this judgement, the Group evaluated its
intention and ability to hold such investments till maturity.

If the Group fails to hold these investments to maturity other than in
certain specific circumstances, the Group will have to reclassify the
entire portfolio of held-to-maturity investments as available-for-sale.

This would result in held-to-maturity investments being measured at
fair value instead of at amortized cost.

Other accounting estimates

Judgement has been exercised in determining the amount which
may be payable to customers in respect of complaints or legal
claims arising from the sale of investment products and establishing
a reserve included in other liabilities. A charge has been recognized
in profit or loss representing amounts paid and an estimate of future
amounts which could be payable.

49. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE ANNUAL
ACCOUNTING PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has issued
a few amendments and new standards which are not yet effective for the
year ended 31 December 2018 and which have not been adopted in these
financial statements. These include the following which may be relevant to
the Group:

HKFRS 16, Leases

BRI EERIFE 165

HE

HK(FRIC) 23, Uncerfainty over income tax treatments

78 (BRMBHRE

RBEEY) F2O9%  HiFHEEZ THRE!E

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

BRI EEN —FT—

hFEE-TtFRYPZFERE

HKFRS 17, Insurance contracts

BAMBRELERNSETH - REREA
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49. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW

220

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE ANNUAL
ACCOUNTING PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

(continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact
of these amendments and new standards is expected to be in the period
of initial application. So far the Group has identified some aspects of
HKFRS 16 which may have an impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements. Further details of the expected impacts are discussed
below. While the assessment has been substantially completed for HKFRS
16, the actual impact upon the initial adoption of this standard may differ as
the assessment completed to date is based on the information currently
available to the Group, and further impacts may be identified before the
standard is initially applied in the Group’s interim financial report for the six
months ending 30 June 2019. The Group may also change its accounting
policy elections, including the transition options, until the standard is initially
applied in that financial report.

HKFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in Note 2(n), currently the Group classifies leases into finance
leases and operating leases and accounts for the lease arrangements
differently, depending on the classification of the lease. The Group enters
into some leases as the lessor and others as the lessee.

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the way that lessors
account for their rights and obligations under a lease. However, once
HKFRS 16 is adopted, lessees will no longer distinguish between finance
leases and operating leases. Instead, subject to practical expedients,
lessees will account for all leases in similar way to current finance lease
accounting, i.e. at the commencement date of the lease the lessee will
recognize and measure a lease liability at the present value of the minimum
future lease payments and will recognize a corresponding “right-of-use”
asset. After initial recognition of this asset and liability, the lessee will
recognize interest expense accrued on the outstanding balance of the
lease liability, and the depreciation of the right-of-use asset, instead of the
current policy of recognising rental expenses incurred under operating
leases on a systematic basis over the lease term. As a practical expedient,
the lessee can elect not to apply this accounting model to short-term
leases (i.e. where the lease term is 12 months or less) and to leases of
low-value assets, in which case the rental expenses would continue to be
recognized on a systematic basis over the lease term.

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting as a lessee of
leases for properties, plant and equipment which are currently classified as
operating leases. The application of the new accounting model is expected
to lead to an increase in both assets and liabilities and to impact on the
timing of the expense recognition in the profit or loss over the period of the
lease.

The Group plans to apply HKFRS 16 initially on 1 January 2019
retrospectively by restating the related comparative information. Upon the
initial adoption of HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019, the Group estimates that
it will recognize right-of-use assets and related lease liabilities of HKD47
million and HKD53 million respectively. The Group will records a negative
impact of HKDS million to the retained earnings.
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UNAUDITED SUPRLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
AREBERME M HER

(A) CONSOLIDATION BASIC FOR REGULATORY

DISCLOSURES

The capital ratio is computed on a consolidated basis which combines the
position of the Bank and Fubon Credit (Hong Kong) Limited as required by
the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (“HKMA”) for regulatory purposes.

The basis of consolidation for accounting purposes is in accordance with E@ztEH zzgggiﬁﬁfgﬁggg B f 3R & £E B
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and is different from the basis %IJE 1E| BRRAEERL R GEEERE
and scope of consolidation for the calculation of capital ratios. Subsidiaries B o st EERL R ARGATAZHBAREN
not included in the consolidation for the calculation of capital ratios are set ZZIJ"F :

out below:

Name of subsidiaries

WEAR AR

FB Securities (Hong Kong) Limited
BRES(BB)ERAA

FB Investment Management Limited
ERIREEEERAR

Fubon Insurance Brokers Limited
ERRBERERRR

Fubon Nominees (Hong Kong) Limited

Admiralty Finance Company Limited
BERBERAT

Aquarius (Nominees) Limited

Principal activities

Securities broking
EAREL

Fund management
EeER

Insurance broker services
RIgE LIRS

Nominee service

REARS
Inactive
Tak
Inactive

NERE

(A) EERB2GEEE

MR RER & AR E -

BAL R REEERERR(2E
B E’J?&iﬁ’]ﬂé/—\zﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬂﬁ%(%%)ﬁﬂﬁ

%J)Efﬁ*ﬁﬁ

As at 31 December 2018
R-ZB-N\F+=A=t—-H

As at 31 December 2017
RZE—tF+ZA=+—H

Total assets Total equity Total assets Total equity
EEAH EHaH BERSE EReE
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TR TAT TET
172,289 103,956 157,451 69,168
11,135 8,644 21,988 19,455
3,219 1,529 3,209 1,711
3,982 142 3,858 146
63 63 63 63

6 6 6 6
190,694 114,340 186,575 90,549
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UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
AEEBLHTHEER

(A) CONSOLIDATION BASIC FOR REGULATORY

222

DISCLOSURES (continued)

There are no subsidiaries which are not included within both the
accounting scope of consolidation and the regulatory scope of
consolidation. There are also no subsidiaries which are included within the
regulatory scope of consolidation but not included within the accounting
scope of consolidation.

The Bank’s shareholdings in the above subsidiaries are deducted from
CET1 capital in accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules (“Capital
Rules”). There is no relevant capital shortfall in any of the Bank’s
subsidiaries which are not included as part of the consolidation group for
the calculation of capital ratio.

The Group maintains a regulatory reserve, as disclosed in Note 35, to
satisfy the provisions of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance for prudential
supervision purposes. Movements in the reserve are made directly through
retained earnings and in consultation with the HKMA.

In accordance with the Capital Rules, the Group has adopted the
“standardised approach” for the calculation of risk-weighted assets for
credit risk and market risk and the “basic indicator approach” for the
calculation of operational risk.

The Group disclosed the full terms and conditions of its capital
instruments as of the end of the reporting period in its website
(https://www.fubonbank.com.hk) under the page “Regulatory Disclosures”
in accordance with section 16FE of the Banking (Disclosure) Rules (‘BDR”).

The leverage ratio, countercyclical capital ratio and liquidity maintenance
ratio are computed on the same consolidation basis as the capital ratio.

Fubon Bank & F8R1T
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UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
AEELHRMEER

(B) FURTHER ANALYSIS ON ADVANCES TO (B) RITEPENEFERNE—X
CUSTOMERS ANALYSED BY INDUSTRY SECTOR oA
Advances to customers analysed by industry sector and the coverage BITEREEAERNZEFERATOT - €5
of collateral is as follows. The economic sector analysis is based on the TEMNNERNSERMEANENNESE -

categories and definitions used by the HKMA.

2018 2017
“E-N\F —T—tF
% of % of
Gross gross loans Gross gross loans
loans and covered by loans and covered by
advances collateral advances collateral
BEAZER BEAZER
Bk HEXEEZ Bak  HEREEZ
The Group XEE EXaE BAL Bnas BAL
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR THET
Gross advances for use in Hong Kong EERERNERBE
Industrial, commercial and financial TEeR
— Property development -MEER 4,311,798 16.05 3,542,760 15.31
- Property investment - MERE 8,230,920 92.29 8,461,107 92.58
~ Financial concerns —-SRiE 2,734,051 2.93 3,616,993 514
- Stockbrokers —BE&RL 1,051,310 43.08 2,132,447 65.76
~Wholesale and retall trade -BELRTEX 501,723 27.20 409,307 31.01
-~ Manufacturing —REE 1,582,124 8.35 1,171,559 5.63
- Transport and transport equipment - BRRERRE 154,633 94.40 113,231 99.57
- Information technology —BHRHE 615,749 - 557,166 0.13
- Others —Hft 4,008,509 31.96 2,923,223 35.02
Indlividuals A
— Loans for the purchase of flats under the ~-BEREHEEE]
Home Ownership Scheme, [MAZEEE:EI IR
Private Sector Participation Scheme [(EEEREE %
and Tenants Purchase Scheme or HEAMBETEIR
their respective successor schemes EFHNER 4,635 100.00 5,705 100.00
— Loans for the purchase of other -BEEMEEMENER
residential properties 9,376,721 100.00 9,867,406 99.96
- Credit card advances ~ZRRER 872,000 - 964,430 -
- Others —Hft 4,491,341 32.90 4,642,525 28.41
37,935,514 38,407,859
Trade finance e 4,745,559 17.43 4,203,281 15.85
Gross advances for use outside ERBUIMERNEFBSE
Hong Kong 5,248,797 4.74 5,261,208 13.04
Gross advances to customers REEDHE 47,929,870 46.84 47,872,348 49.79
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UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
AEEBLHTHEER

(B) FURTHER ANALYSIS ON ADVANCES TO (B) BITED ENEFERNE—F
CUSTOMERS ANALYSED BY INDUSTRY SECTOR DT )
(continued)
Analysis of the Group’s impaired advances in respect of industry sectors BITENMER P ERAE10%IIA FHRES
which account for 10% or more of gross advances to customers: SMEERMT :
Provisions
(released
back)/
charged to Loans
Individual Collective  the profit or written off
Overdue Impaired impairment impairment loss during during
advances advances  allowances* allowance* the year the year
REERNER
il G5 EBR(BE)/ ERHE
As at 31 December 2018 RZB-NF+ZA=t-8 ARER AEER HERE HERE  1keRR ZER

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR

~ Property investment -WELE 64,245 24,336 - 4,634 2,49 -
~ Loans for the purchase of other -BEEMEENENER
residential properties 61,853 - - 626 (1,801) -
- Gross advanoes for use outside Hong ~ERRLUMERNE A
Kong 42,090 42,090 42,090 5,758 (11,991) -
Provisions
(released
back)/
charged to Loans
Individual Collective the profit or written off
Overdue Impaired impaiment impaiment loss during during
advances advances allowances” allowance* the year the year
AEERNER
{25 5 EA(ER)/ i
As at 31 December 2017 e o o jaki ey HEER HERE HERE  MhoRE ZEH

HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$000
TR TR TR TR TR TR

- Property investment -MERE 48,047 26,482 - 2516 (792) -
-~ Loans for the purchase of other -EEEMAENENER

residential properties 66,054 3,536 - - (560) -
-~ Gross advances for use outside Hong ~ERRINMEBRET BE

Kong 57,316 57,316 57,316 15,235 22,079 -

* For the purpose of regulatory disclosures made in the unaudited supplementary AR ECH A EER N EERENE
financial information, the term “individual impairment allowances” represents [EFRER G R 4 a e |2 FIERE—F
expected credit loss allowance made on financial assets classified as Stage —NFF+ZA=+—HIUFEREEEYHHEE
3, while “collective impairment allowance” represents expected credit loss RIBOH G 7 BB E — IR % AAE (F L IR H
allowance made on Stage 1 and Stage 2 financial assets in accordance with EEEBRERIE BRRE-—BREHEEE
HKFRS 9 for the year ended 31 December 2018. MRS BRETRR
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UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

(C) OVERDUE AND RESCHEDULED ASSETS

(i) Overdue advances to customers

Gross advances to customers which have
been overdue with respect to either
principal or interest for periods of:

-6 months or less but over
3 months

-1 year or less but over
6 months

- Over 1 year

Covered portion of overdue loans and
advances

Uncovered portion of overdue loans
and advances

Individual impairment allowances in
respect of advances overdue for
more than three months

RFEF@B AL
MEFBH -

—~MEAZAT
E=EAKL

——FFUT
HEAEANRE

-

BHERRERN

BERED

BHEFRER
EEAD

#

BEMEA=EAZ
BHAEZ AR
IER

AEBLRHAMBER

C) B REEREE

BMEFEN

As at 31 December

R+=A=t-8
2018 2017
—E-N\§ 5
% of gross % of gross
HK$’000 advances HK$'000 advances
RERBE FEFeE
TExT ZEA FET ZBAL
38,450 0.08 3,469 0.01
62,049 0.13 5,329 0.01
132,733 0.28 147,918 0.31
233,232 0.49 156,716 0.33
28,776 11,005
204,456 145,711
233,232 156,716
192,690 144,982

Loans and advances with a specific repayment date are classified as
overdue when the principal or interest is overdue and remains unpaid
at the year-end. Loans repayable by regular instalments are treated
as overdue when an instalment payment is overdue and remains
unpaid at year end. Loans repayable on demand are classified as
overdue either when a demand for repayment has been served on the
borrower but repayment has not been made in accordance with the
demand notice, and/or when the loans have remained continuously
outside the approved limit advised to the borrower for more than the

overdue period in question.

BREERANEFREFEEREHAE
BRIRFRDAXINERIBRCHL -
AHNFEENEFERND D HEHRE B
BRFERMAIMNERER/CEALY - ZEK
BENEREERAKZEEZRELER
BEXBNERR SEEREHEELE
HERRANBILENRE  TBLEAE
AR A BT R B A B ] L B 3 B RO B
ERESEACEHY -
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UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
AEEBLHTHEER

(C) OVERDUE AND RESCHEDULED ASSETS (continued)

(i) Rescheduled advances to customers

Rescheduled loans and advances are those loans and advances
which have been restructured or renegotiated because of

deterioration in the financial position of the borrower, or of the inability WETFTREIHNSEFTATNERRER
of the borrower to meet the original repayment schedule and for MEEETNE T EEN A EEBIFmE L
which the revised repayment terms are non-commercial to the Group. o BEFBRIHNEEERRERNERE
Rescheduled loans and advances to customers are stated net of any BER B E A=A AT ERRERT
loans and advances that have subsequently become overdue for over B WA AT

C)APRKLERAEE»)
(i) EEERHNEFER
B ERNE AR R EAMERAL
BARBEREE R TERBER M

3 months and can be analysed as follows:

2018 2017
“E-N\F B
% of gross % of gross
HK$°000 advances HK$'000 advances
RERAE HENEE
THET AR TET ZBEAL
Rescheduled advances to customers BEEFENTFER 4,684 0.01 7,993 0.02

(iii) Geographical analysis of overdue loans and advances
to customers b
Analysis of the Group’s overdue loans and advances to customers

(iii) R ESNHECBAPEFERRE

BRI HATAEEEAREPERLE

in respect of geographical segment which account for not less than RUEBPERLEBETE10%) :

10% of gross advances to customers:

As at 31 December 2018
RZZE-N\F+=A=t—-H

Gross Overdue Impaired loans Individual
loans and loans and (individually impairment
advances advances determined) allowances

fERK BAMER REER {EBIRE

EXBH REX (ERIEE) B

HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET TET THT TRERT

Hong Kong B 40,441,972 117,473 117,472 92,158
China H 6,752,584 42,090 42,090 42,090
Other HinlE 735,314 73,669 73,669 62,628
47,929,870 233,232 233,231 196,876

226 Fubon Bank & F8R1T



UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

(C) OVERDUE AND RESCHEDULED ASSETS (continued)

(iii) Geographical analysis of overdue loans and advances
to customers (continued)

AEBLRHAMBER

C)APRKLEAEE»)

(iii) RWESTHEBHRESERK

BXm)

As at 31 December 2017
WZE—+F+-A=1+—-H

Gross Overdue  Impaired loans Individual
loans and loans and (individually impairment
advances advances determined) allowances

508 EaHER REER EREE
S REF (HEpIER) BB
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx THET FAT FAET
Hong Kong 5 39,888,508 99,400 129,988 98,647
China HE 7,180,337 57,316 57,316 57,316
Other HfitE 803,503 - - -
47,872,348 156,716 187,304 155,963
The above geographical analysis is classified by the location of the VA B3 (& D ITIRE AP, - 5T REMER
borrowers after taking into account the transfer of risk. In general, risk BmETE - —BME  BEEXRNERAMELE

transfer applies when a loan is guaranteed by a party situated in an
area different from the counterparty.

The collective impairment allowance is not allocated to any
geographical segment as at 31 December 2018 and 2017.

BRSGHF AR - HEBEBEERANELD

B o
RZBE-N\ER=_F—+F+=-_A=+—H0 #
BARSRERED K T EAME S
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UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
AEEBLHTHEER

(D) INTERNATIONAL CLAIMS

228

The Group’s country risk exposures in the tables below are prepared
in according to the location and types of the counterparties as defined
by the HKMA under the BDR. International claims are on-balance sheet
exposures to counterparties based on the location of the counterparties
after taking into account the transfer of risk, and represent the sum of
cross-border claims in all currencies and local claims in foreign currencies.

International claims attributable to individual countries or areas not less
than 10% of the Group’s total international claims, after recognized risk
transfer, are shown as follows:

(D) ERREHRE

TERAREBHEZROERAIN - HRREER
BECRITE(RE)RADMRENE F 5 ER
RERINE - BRERAHTF T EERRRA
RBRE - REFIRMMEMELSE - LB
FEBREBRER  HANERMEEE ZBEE
(EHE R AN it 2 SN B HE

RERIBER k@& D HW Bt kD BRRBERE
HASBEREREREEETDN10% . B ERS
N

As at 31 December 2018
R-B-N\F+-A=t—-H

Non- Non-

bank financial

Official financial private
Banks sector institution sector Total

FRAT FEm
Figures in HK$ million BE#ER BT EAKE SREE  RAKE ot

Counterparty country/ jurisdiction HIFER AEEE
Developed countries BERER 10,548 17 75 160 10,800
Offshore centres BRI 1,026 - 2,939 13,399 17,364
- of which: Hong Kong —Hi &% 158 - 2,624 12,688 15,470
Developing Asia and Pacific BRPONRAFE TR 9,874 196 1,915 10,844 22,829
- of which: China —H 6,967 196 1,906 10,151 19,220
As at 31 December 2017
RZZE—+F+-A=+—H

Non- Non-

bank financial

Official financial private
Banks sector institution sector Total

FRIT ke
Figures in HK$ million BEBETL i BAKE SREE FLAE B

Counterparty country/ jurisdiction UFHER AEEE

Developed countries EERER 12,753 18 80 29 12,880
Offshore centres BEEHL 544 - 3,387 11,976 15,907
- of which: Hong Kong —Hi H/E 113 - 3,149 11,030 14,292
Developing Asia and Pacific BRADN AT iE 12,167 401 1,536 9,713 23,817
- of which: China —Her: b 9,569 401 1,536 9,030 20,536
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UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
AEELHRMEER

(E) NON-BANK MAINLAND CHINA EXPOSURES

The analysis of non-bank Mainland exposures includes the exposure of the
Bank and Fubon Credit (Hong Kong) Limited on the basis agreed with the

HKMA.

Central government, central government-
owned entities and their subsidiaries and
joint ventures (“JVs”)

Local governments, local government-
owned entities and their subsidiaries and
JVs

Companies incorporated in and PRC
nationals residing in Mainland China

Companies incorporated outside and PRC
nationals residing outside Mainland
China where the credit is granted for use
in Mainland China

Other counterparties where the exposures
are considered by the Bank to be non-
bank Mainland China exposures

Total
Total assets after provision

On-balance sheet exposures as
percentage of total assets

PRI - PREFHEE Z
ERANREMBARR
BN

WHBAT - 0 BUF 3R 2
ERAREMBARR
BN

R B EETA S 2
REREERTEARLL
FEAR

REHZEERRTEAZ
B A3t A SN [E T T AR L
ZARIREERARIERZ
FEAR

AIRRERBATEAL
FRITE AR Z
HieR5HF

BE

BEAECGIRERE)

BERBRAZEREE
HEEREZANL

(E) FPEI A3t IE R 1T 3 2 JE B

FENMIFRITE BB (BRATRE M
(BR)ERARZESERHENERFEL D

i
2018
—E-N\F
On-balance Off-balance
sheet sheet
exposure exposures Total
EEEERRA EEEERD
ZEREE Z BB EE ok}
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
TR THET FET
10,635,306 27,869 10,663,175
2,599,533 - 2,599,533
5,235,852 229,317 5,465,169
1,723,578 156,002 1,879,580
20,194,269 413,188 20,607,457
102,547,037
19.69%
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UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

AEBLHAMBEEN

(E) NON-BANK MAINLAND CHINA EXPOSURES (continued)

Central government, central government-
owned entities and their subsidiaries and

JVs

Local governments, local government-
owned entities and their subsidiaries and

JVs

Companies incorporated in and PRC
nationals residing in Mainland China

Companies incorporated outside and PRC
nationals residing outside Mainland
China where the credit is granted for use

in Mainland China

Other counterparties where the exposures
are considered by the Bank to be non-
bank Mainland China exposures

Total

Total assets after provision

On-balance sheet exposures as
percentage of total assets

230 Fubon Bank & F8R1T

hRTRAT - SRR 2 B
BUREMRBRRR
SEAT

SHB - B 2 K
BURERBRRR
SEAT

AR BRI 2 AR R
EERNTENDY
HEAR

W2 EERRE ALY
R B At DA SN [ T 32
ZARIREERER R
HEAR

ATRBRARBTENLE
BTy ABR
HipR BT

83

AESECIRER)

BEABRAZRARARE
HEEREZAD

(E) FEIA M IERITE 2 AR ()

2017
—T—+F
On-balance Off-balance
sheet sheet
exposure exposures Total
BEBBRA BEABERI
2 B A 2 BB AEE mE
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TET FET
9,486,485 102,285 9,588,770
2,435,818 - 2,435,818
5,174,078 313,971 5,488,049
2,346,627 120,393 2,467,020
19,443,008 536,649 19,979,657
97,558,600
19.93%



UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
AEELHRMEER

(F) CURRENCY CONCENTRATION (F) Shisis e g
The Bank’s net positions or net structural positions in foreign currencies AT EBIINER) B A BRI RSB AR S 5T
are disclosed as follows when each currency constitutes 10% or more of BHEIMNEFREHES LB TR BAFE10%H
the respective total net position or total net structural position in all foreign o BIENT :
currencies:

As at 31 December 2018
RZB-NE+=A=+-H

Other foreign Total foreign

US dollars currencies currencies
Equivalent in HK$ Million BEBTSE E Hth s ShEELaEE
Spot assets HEEE 34,825 10,872 45,697
Spot liabilties BEBE (29,362) (9,521) (38,883)
Forward purchase RHEA 7,646 3,458 11,104
Forward sales BHEN (11,400) @,11) (16,171)
Net option position HEARFE 1 = 1
Net long position REFE 1,710 38 1,748
Net structural position RBELERTE = = =
As at 31 December 2017
RZE—+F+A=+—H
Chinese Other foreign Total foreign
US dollars renminbi currencies currencies
Equivalent in HK$ Million BEBTSE e AR Hipspg SN L %E
Spot assets REEE 33,853 3,147 10,572 47572
Spot liabilities REER (27,964) (2,847) (9,026) (39,837)
Forward purchase EHEA 7,467 722 3,049 11,238
Forward sales RHED (12,299) (983) (4,595) (17.877)
Net option position HEARFR - - - -
Net long position REFE 1,057 39 - 1,006
Net structural position REERERTE - 1,399 - 1,399
The net option position is calculated on the basis of the delta-weighted HESRIFEIEERES AN SRBNER
position of option contracts. Net structural position as of 31 December BIREEHE - HE-_T—+F+-FA=+—H
2017 represents the Bank’s investments in an overseas associate. MER R B FEEERITREINGE R AME

& o
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UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
AEEBLHTHEER

(G) CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Bank is committed to high standards of corporate governance, and
has fully complied throughout the year with the guidelines on “Corporate
Governance of Locally Incorporated Authorised Institutions” and “Guideline
on a Sound Remuneration System” issued by the HKMA.

(H) KEY COMMITTEES

232

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) has established five Board
committees to assist it in carrying out its responsibilities comprising
the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Risk
Committee, Executive Credit Committee and Executive Committee. In
addition, a number of management level committees have been set up
by the Board to oversee the effectiveness of the Bank’s daily operations
including, the Management Steering/Business Committee, Asset and
Liability Committee, Internal Control Committee, Credit Committee,
Information Technology Steering Committee and Compliance & Anti-
Money Laundering Committee. The composition and function of these
committees are set out below:

(i) Audit Committee
The Audit Committee comprises four members including one Non-
Executive Director and three Independent Non-Executive Directors.
The Audit Committee is chaired by an Independent Non-Executive
Director who has appropriate accounting professional qualifications.
The committee meets at least four times a year and additionally when
deemed necessary.

The Audit Committee is required to ensure that there is adequate
supervision of the Bank’s financial reporting processes, systems of
internal control, and that the internal audit function is effective and
backed by adequate resources and has appropriate standing within
the Bank. It is also required to ensure that there is coordination
between the internal and external auditors, to monitor compliance
with internal policies, statutory regulation, and to consider
recommendations made by the internal and external auditors.
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UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

(H) KEY COMMITTEES (continued)

@i

(i)

Audit Committee (continued)

The Audit Committee has to review the Bank’s financial reporting
process, the systems of internal control, the internal audit function and
the risk management process. In particular, the review undertaken
by the Audit Committee on the internal audit function includes the
Internal Audit Charter and its approval, the annual audit plan, internal
audit reports and special investigation reports issued, and ensuring
that appropriate management actions are taken following the major
audit findings.

The Audit Committee also has to review the appointment of external
auditors and to discuss with them the nature and scope of their
audits. The Audit Committee will also review the interim and annual
financial statements before recommending them to the Board for
approval.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is chaired by an
Independent Non-Executive Director and comprises the Non-
Executive Chairman, Non-Executive Vice Chairman and all the
Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Bank. The committee
meets periodically and as required and provides oversight of
the management of the Bank’s human resources including the
appointment of Directors (both executive and non-executive),
Senior Management and Management Committee Members. The
committee has to establish the Bank’s overall human resources
management framework to ensure that the Bank is in compliance
with the applicable government regulations and follows the market
best practice whenever possible. The committee is also responsible
to ensure that Directors, Senior Management and Management
Committee Members appointed possess the necessary and
appropriate qualifications to perform and discharge their duties.

The committee regularly reviews whether each existing Director
continues to remain qualified for his post. It also reviews the structure,
size and composition of the Board and makes recommendations on
any proposed change to the Board.
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UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
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(H) KEY COMMITTEES (continued)

(i) Nomination and Remuneration Committee (continued)

The committee reviews and approves the remuneration of Directors,
members of Board Committees, Senior Management and Key
Personnel (as defined in the Remuneration Policy of the Bank).

The committee is mandated to assist the Board in establishing
cultural and behavioural standards that promote prudent risk-taking
and fair treatment of customers. It advises and assists the Board in
discharging its responsibilities for the Bank'’s culture-related matters.

(iii) Risk Committee

234

The Risk Committee comprises five members including one Executive
Director, one Non-Executive Director and three Independent Non-
Executive Directors. The Risk Committee is chaired by an Independent
Non-Executive Director who has extensive banking experience. The
committee meets at least four times a year and additionally when
deemed necessary. Its mandate is to establish the Bank’s overall risk
appetite and risk management framework, and to oversee Senior
Management’s implementation of the Bank’s risk policies.

The Risk Committee will annually review and endorse the Bank’s
risk appetite statement and risk management strategies. It will
oversee the establishment and maintenance by Senior Management
of appropriate infrastructure, resources and systems for risk
management, particularly in relation to compliance with relevant
legal and regulatory requirements and adherence to the approved
risk appetite and related policies, and the adoption of best practices
wherever feasible.

The Risk Committee is required to ensure that the staff responsible for

implementing risk management systems and controls are sufficiently
independent of the risk taking units in the Bank.
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UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

(H) KEY COMMITTEES (continued)

(iv) Executive Committee

)

The Executive Committee comprises the Non-Executive Chairman,
Non-Executive Vice Chairman and the Executive Director of the Bank.
It will exercise the powers and authority delegated by the Board from
time to time concerning the management and day-to-day running
of the Bank. The Executive Committee will meet periodically and as
required and will operate as a general management function under
the auspices of the Board.

Executive Credit Committee

The Executive Credit Committee (“ECC”) comprises the Non-
Executive Chairman, Non-Executive Vice Chairman and the Executive
Director of the Bank. It has the delegated authority to approve credit
proposals, credit policies and other credit related matters which
require the approval of the Board. The ECC will meet as required.

(vi) Management Steering/Business Committee

The Management Steering Committee and the Management Business
Committee (together “the Committees”) are both chaired by the
Bank’s CEO, and comprises senior management personnel appointed
by the CEO. The Committees are the key decision making bodies
for the Bank and are responsible mainly for the running of the Bank’s
day to day business under the authority delegated by the Board and
within the strategy and business plan as approved by the Board. The
Committees are also responsible for the formulation of the Bank’s
business strategies and major bank-wide initiatives for the Board’s
approval. The Committees meet weekly to evaluate and approve new
business initiatives, coordinate business and support units during
the implementation process, monitor the progress. The Committees
also monitor the implementation of the approved business strategies
and, review the achievement of business targets, objectives and the
financial performance of the Bank.
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(H) KEY COMMITTEES (continued)
(vii) Asset and Liability Committee

The Asset and Liability Committee (“ALCO”) comprises the Bank’s
CEOQO, Chief Financial Officer and senior management personnel as
appointed by the CEO. The committee is responsible for providing
oversight of the Bank’s operations relating to interest rate risk,
market risk and liquidity risk (collectively known as “financial risks”)
as well as capital management. The committee initiates, reviews
and endorses for the approval of the Risk Committee of the Board
the Bank’s policies on financial risks and capital management. It
approves guidelines relating to such policies, reviews and approves
all major financial risk management reports. The ALCO also oversees
the Bank’s investment activities by establishing investment strategies
within policies laid down by the Risk Committee of the Board and
reviews actual performance.

(viii)Internal Control Committee

236

The Internal Control Committee (“ICC”) comprises the Bank’s CEQO,
Executive Vice Presidents, Head of Control & Risk Management and
the heads of different control, business and support functions. The
responsibilities of the committee include providing oversight of the
Bank’s exposure to operational and legal risks, ensuring the Bank has
in place an effective internal control framework, providing guidance
to the Bank in establishing a sound internal control and monitoring
system to ensure overall compliance within the Bank.

To ensure an effective internal control framework is in place, the
ICC reviews policies and approves guidelines relating to internal
control and management of operational and legal risks, receives and
discusses reports submitted by various risk management units and
promotes internal control culture. To maintain an adequate system of
internal control, the ICC reviews and discusses major operational risk
events, and the progress of rectification of audit findings and control
self-assessment.
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UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

(H) KEY COMMITTEES (continued)

(ix) Credit Committee

()

The Credit Committee (“CC”) meets weekly and its mandate is
to provide oversight of the Bank’s credit risk management. The
committee is chaired by the Bank’s CEO, and consists of senior
executives of the Bank.

The CC reviews and endorses credit policies and credit risk profile of
the Bank for ECC’s approval, and reviews and approves credit related
guidelines. The committee also reviews and approves requests for
credit facilities that are within the CC’s authority as delegated by the
Board, and reviews and endorses requests for credit facilities before
their submission to the ECC for approval.

The CC will also conduct on-going reviews on the market environment
and make necessary policy recommendations to the ECC to ensure
the credit risk profile of the Bank is within the established risk appetite.
In this regard, the CC will provide periodic and timely credit related
management and stress testing reports to the ECC for review.

Information Technology Steering Committee

The Information Technology Steering Committee is chaired by the
Bank’s CEO, and comprises senior management personnel as
appointed by the CEO. The committee is responsible for providing
oversight of the Bank’s key information technology governance
objectives. The committee approves long and short term information
technology strategies to ensure they are in line with the Bank’s
business strategy and priorities; approves funding and determines
prioritization of information technology enabled investment projects;
discusses status of key projects escalated from its sub-committee;
and manages major information technology risk issues and
corresponding remediation. The committee meets on a monthly basis
and upon ad hoc call by the committee chairman.
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(H) KEY COMMITTEES (continued)

(xi) Compliance & Anti-Money Laundering Committee

238

The Compliance & Anti-Money Laundering Committee (“CAMLC”)
comprises the Bank’s CEO, Executive Vice Presidents, Head of
Compliance & Anti-Money Laundering Department and the heads of
different control, business and support functions. The responsibilities
of the committee include providing oversight of the Bank’s exposure
to compliance risks and compliance activities to ensure the Bank
is in compliance with applicable regulatory requirements and the
Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing (Financial
Institutions) Ordinance (Cap 615) (“AML/CFT”), ensuring the Bank has
an effective compliance framework in place to meet the regulatory
requirements. The CAMLC provides guidance to the Bank and senior
management in establishing a professional compliance control and
monitoring system to cultivate a strong compliance culture and ensure
overall compliance within the Bank.

To maintain the Bank’s overall regulatory compliance standards,
the CAMLC reviews and oversees: (a) compliance and AML/CFT
related risk and control issues; (b) latest developments in regulatory
compliance and AML/CFT requirements applicable to the Bank;
(c) implementation of new regulatory and AML/CFT requirements;
(d) major non-compliance with regulatory requirements and AML/
CFT requirements; and (e) rectification status of findings identified in
compliance reviews conducted by the compliance function of the
Bank and examinations conducted by the regulators. In addition, the
CAMLC also reviews and approves guidelines relating to compliance
and AML/CFT.
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MEMBERS OF FUBON FINANCIAL HOLDINGS

Fubon Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
Year of Founding: Dec 2001
Chairman: Richard M. Tsai
President: Jerry Harn

Capital : NT$115 Billion

237 Section 1 Jianguo S Road,
Taipei, Taiwan

Tel : (8862) 6636 6636

Fax: (8862) 6636 0111
www.fubon.com

Fubon Life Insurance Co., Ltd.
Year of Founding: Jul 1987
Chairman: Richard M. Tsai
President: Benson Chen

Capital  : NT$110.83 Billion

108 Section 1 Dunhua S Road,
Taipei, Taiwan

Tel : (8862) 8771 6699

Fax: (8862) 8809 8889
www.fubon.com

* Aetna Life Insurance Company of America,
Taiwan Branch was established in 1987
and then bought by ING Group in 2000 and
renamed ING Life Taiwan. The branch became
an ING Life subsidiary in 2006, which was later
bought by the Fubon Group. Fubon Life was
launched in 1993. The two insurers formally
merged in 2009.

Taipei Fubon Commercial Bank
Co., Ltd.

Year of Founding: Apr 1969
Chairman: Eric Chen
President: Roman Cheng
Capital : NT$106.52 Billion
169 Section 4 Ren Ai Road,
Taipei, Taiwan

Tel : (8862) 2771 6699

Fax: (8862) 6638 3812
www.fubon.com

Fubon Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
Year of Founding: Jan 1970
Chairman : Daniel M. Tsai

Chief Executive Officer: Raymond Lee
Capital  : HK$4.83 Billion

38 Des Voeux Road Central,

Hong Kong

Tel : (852) 2842 6222

Fax: (852) 2810 1483
www.fubonbank.com.hk

Fubon Bank (China) Co., Ltd.

Year of Founding: Mar 1997
Chairman: Pei Li Hong

President: Feng Chen

Capital : RMB 2.1 Billion

1-3F, 5F, 18-20F, Oriental Financial
Plaza, Tower A, 1168 Century Avenue,
Pudong Shanghai, P.R.C.

Tel : (8621) 2061 9888

Fax: (8621) 5840 9900
www.fubonchina.com

Fubon Insurance Co., Ltd.
Year of Founding: Apr 1961
Chairman: Ben Chen
President: Jason C.M. Lo
Capital  : NT$3.18 Billion

237 Section 1 Jianguo S Road,
Taipei, Taiwan

Tel : (8862) 6636 7890

Fax: (8862) 2325 4723
www.fubon.com

Fubon Securities Co., Lid.
Year of Founding: Jul 1988
Chairman: Gang Shyy
President: Leo Cheng
Capital : NT$16.64 Billion
169 Section 4 Ren Ai Road,
Taipei, Taiwan

Tel : (8862) 8771 6888

Fax: (8862) 8771 6636
www.fubon.com

Fubon Securities Investment
Services Co., Ltd.

Year of Founding: May 1987
Chairman: Charles Hsiao
President: Peter Cheng

Capital  : NT$300 Million

108 Section 1 Dunhua S Road,
Taipei, Taiwan

Tel : (8862) 2781 5995

Fax: (8862) 2773 5601
www.fubon.com

Fubon Futures Co., Ltd.
Year of Founding: May 1998
Chairman: Raymond Yang
President : Phoebe Chang
Capital : NT$1.4 Billion
3F, 9 Xiangyang Road,
Taipei, Taiwan

Tel : (8862) 2388 2626

Fax: (8862) 2370 1110
www.fubon.com

ERBEEKE

Fubon Asset Management Co., Ltd.
Year of Founding: Sep 1992
Chairman: Philip Hu

President: Ming M.C. Lee

Capital  : NT$2.30 Billion

108 Section 1 Dunhua S Road,

Taipei, Taiwan

Tel : (8862) 8771 6688

Fax: (8862) 8771 6788
www.fubon.com

Fubon Direct Marketing Consulting
Co., Lid.

Year of Founding: Aug 1997
Chairman: Jerry Harn

President: Alex Yeh

Capital : NT$145 Million

17F, 9 Xiangyang Road, Taipei, Taiwan
Tel : (8862) 2370 5199

Fax: (8862) 2370 5100
www.fubon.com

Fubon Financial Holding Venture
Capital Corp.

Year of Founding: Oct 2003
Chairman: Victor Ma
President: Mike Lin

Capital  : NT$4.66 Billion

108 Section 1 Dunhua S Road,
Taipei, Taiwan

Tel : (8862) 6606 9088

Fax: (8862) 8771 4697
www.fubon.com

Fubon Sports & Entertainment
Co., Ltd.

Year of Founding: Sep 2007
Chairman: Daniel M. Tsai
President: Chris Tsai

Capital  : NT$48 Million

108 Section 1 Dunhua S Road,
Taipei, Taiwan

Tel : (8862) 6606 9088

Fax: (8862) 8771 4697
www.fubon.com

*Taiwan Mobile Basketball was founded in
September 2007 and renamed Fubon Sports
& Entertainment in September 2014.

Fubon AMC Co., Lid.

Year of Founding: Aug 2004
Chairman: Roman Cheng

Acting President: Wenshing Hung
Capital : NT$2.5 Billion

50 Section 2 Zhongshan N Road,
Taipei, Taiwan

Tel : (8862) 6618 0588

Fax: (8862) 6608 0166
www.fubon.com
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All strategic business decisions and day-to-day business decisions of Fubon Bank (Hong Kong)
Limited (“the Bank”) are guided by its risk appetite framework and capital requirement. The level
of capital support required to sustain a healthy banking and business operation is ordinarily
determined through the Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (‘ICAAP”). The Bank requires
management to establish robust risk management systems to ensure the risk exposure arising from
business decisions are within its risk tolerance.

Our Risk Appetite Statement is updated annually in conjunction with our strategic planning cycle and
is approved by the Board. The Board and senior management regularly receive and review reports on
the Bank’s risk profile against the risk parameters established under the risk framework approved by
the Board.

The objective of our risk appetite framework is to ensure that:

= Risks taken will be commensurate with acceptable and sustainable returns, including return on capital

m  Healthy capital position that would support the desired level of risk associated with the Bank’s
business strategy while fully satisfying regulatory requirements

m  Establishment of a balance sheet that is well-balanced and well-structured with considerations
given to the Bank’s capital requirements as determined by the ICAAP process

m  Adequate liquidity that takes into account business needs and market conditions

m  Robust organization structure with clearly defined responsibilities and delegations

m  Strong internal control framework with clearly defined segregation of duties that reflects the best
industry practices

=  Strong compliance and anti-money laundering culture supported by an appropriate framework
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